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Corporate Profile

Laredo Petroleum is an independent energy company with headquarters in
Oklahoma. Laredo’s business strategy is focused on the acquisition, exploratio
development of oil and natural gas properties and transportation of oil and nat
from such properties, primarily in the Permian Basin in West Texas.

PERMIAN BASIN
(SPRABERRY/WOLFCAMP/CLINE)
[1 Oil and liquids-rich natural gas

[1 Extensive horizontal drilling program
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multiple target horizons, extensive production histories, long
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Dear Stockholders:

2016 was an exceptional year
for Laredo and our stockhold-
ers in several respects. Our
stock outperformed the S&P
500 Index by more than 67%
and the S&P O&G E&P Index
by more than 45%, reflecting
the resiliency of the Company RSN C
in the midst of an extremely challenging industry environment.
Our operational and financial success was directly related to our
past decisions to invest in data and infrastructure, which improves
our drilling results and capital efficiency. The implementation of
these investments on the Company’s contiguous acreage base
resulted in Company-record production, an increase in Laredo’s
Upper and Middle Wolfcamp type curves by 18% and 30%,
respectively, and reduced operating costs to a level among the

lowest in the Midland Basin.

Well results continued to be enhanced during 2016 by the
application of our proprietary multivariate Earth Model. Powered
by investments in data collection and development of technical
workflows since the inception of the Company, the Earth Model
has increased our understanding of subsurface and operational
production drivers between and within the various formations
underlying our contiguous acreage position. Applying this
understanding to optimize landing point selection and completions
design, with the goal of maximizing net asset value and resource

recovery, has benefited our development methodology and,

consequently, our well results. We have used the Earth Model for
landing point selection and optimized completions on more than
50 horizontal wells, resulting in aggregate outperformance of our
historic type curves by approximately 40%. This outperformance
led to the Company growing production by 11%, increasing our
Upper and Middle Wolfcamp type curves to 1.3 million BOE and
growth in proved developed reserves of approximately 40% at a
proved developed finding and development cost of $5.12 per BOE
during 2016.

Our contiguous acreage base supports multiple horizontal drilling
locations within a 4,500-foot thick gross targeted resource,
creating the opportunity to leverage infrastructure investments
across a large number of locations. Our field infrastructure,
primarily along production corridors, contains oil and natural gas
gathering systems, a water gathering and recycling facility and
centralized compression facilities that aid in the transportation of
oil, natural gas and water. In 2016, we received more than $24
million in financial benefits from past infrastructure investments,
which helped to reduce lease operating expenses 37% during the
year. These operational advantages also contributed to reduced
drilling costs, resulting in executing our 2016 capital program
approximately 20% below budget. We expect the financial and
operating advantages of our production corridors to be retained as
we drill more horizontal wells that will benefit from this existing
infrastructure. Additionally, these savings could further accelerate

in a rising service cost environment.

We have also invested in the Medallion-Midland Basin pipeline

system to transport oil from our acreage to multiple delivery points



that access long-haul pipelines out of the Permian Basin. Our 49%
ownership in this system and our 30,000 gross barrels of oil per
day firm commitment on the system ensures that we will be able to
move a substantial portion of our oil production out of the
Midland Basin. The value of our ownership in the system
continues to grow as other operators have recognized the benefit of
dedicating acreage to the Medallion-Midland Basin system, thus
increasing volumes transported by the system. In 2016,
transported volumes on the system grew by 159% to 39.3 million
barrels, and we expect the 2017 exit rate of transported volumes to
grow more than 75% from the 2016 exit rate of approximately

133,000 barrels of oil per day.

We continue to employ a number of strategies to maintain our
financial strength in any commodity price environment by
balancing exceptional drilling economics with a disciplined capital
program. In 2016, we accelerated our drilling activity in a
measured fashion, resulting in a drilling program funded with cash
flows from operations. Additionally, we continue to employ a
disciplined hedging program designed to mitigate the impacts of
volatile commodity prices on anticipated cash flows. In 2016, our
commodity hedges generated approximately $185 million of net
cash settlements on matured derivatives. Looking forward, we
have hedged approximately 70% of anticipated 2017 natural gas

production.

Our development strategy continues to be focused on value
creation. Our contiguous acreage base enables the drilling of
return-enhancing long lateral horizontal wells and in 2016 our

horizontal wells had an average lateral length of approximately

10,000 feet. These long laterals, in combination with our Earth

Model-driven well results and low operating costs, resulted in an
anticipated rate of return on invested capital of greater than 40%
on the drilling program. In 2017, we will continue to innovate and
create value. We expect to test development strategies to maximize
the value of each horizon through the development of multiple
landing points. We anticipate drilling horizontal wells with lateral
lengths in excess of 14,000 feet and to continue to capitalize on
existing field infrastructure investments to keep capital and
operating costs low. Collectively, these strengths will serve as the
foundation to continue generating competitive results in all aspects

of our operations in 2017.

Our exceptional results in 2016 could not have been accomplished
without the dedication of our employees and the guidance of our
Board of Directors. Our employees have weathered the difficulties
of a sustained commodity price downturn and have generated
value for our stockholders by adhering to our guiding principles of
integrity, stewardship, respect, teamwork and success. We thank
our Board of Directors for their leadership throughout the year and
express our appreciation to our stockholders, who entrust us with

the management of their company.

RN =S

Randy A. Foutch
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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GLOSSARY OF OIL AND NATURAL GAS TERMS
The following terms are used throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this "Annual Report"):
"2D"—Method for collecting, processing and interpreting seismic data in two dimensions.
"3D"—Method for collecting, processing and interpreting seismic data in three dimensions.

"Allocation well"—A horizontal well drilled by an oil and gas producer under two or more leaseholds that are not pooled,
under a permit issued by the Texas Railroad Commission.

"Basin"—A large natural depression on the earth's surface in which sediments, generally brought by water, accumulate.

"BbI" or "barrel"—One stock tank barrel, of 42 U.S. gallons liquid volume, used herein in reference to crude oil,
condensate, natural gas liquids or water.

"Bcf"—One billion cubic feet of natural gas.

"BOE"—One barrel of oil equivalent, calculated by converting natural gas to oil equivalent barrels at a ratio of six Mcf of
natural gas to one Bbl of oil.

"BOE/D"—BOE per day.

"Btu"—British thermal unit, the quantity of heat required to raise the temperature of a one pound mass of water by one
degree Fahrenheit.

"Completion"—The process of treating a drilled well followed by the installation of permanent equipment for the
production of oil or natural gas, or in the case of a dry hole, the reporting of abandonment to the appropriate agency.

"Developed acreage"—The number of acres that are allocated or assignable to productive wells or wells capable of
production.

"Development well"—A well drilled within the proved area of an oil or natural gas reservoir to the depth of a
stratigraphic horizon known to be productive.

"Dry hole"—A well found to be incapable of producing hydrocarbons in sufficient quantities such that proceeds from the
sale of such production exceed production expenses and taxes.

"Earth Model"—A proprietary integrated workflow process combining geoscience, production, operations and
engineering data utilizing multivariate analytics.

"Exploratory well"—A well drilled to find a new field or to find a new reservoir in a field previously found to be
productive of oil or natural gas in another reservoir.

"Field"—An area consisting of a single reservoir or multiple reservoirs all grouped on, or related to, the same individual
geological structural feature or stratigraphic condition. The field name refers to the surface area, although it may refer to both
the surface and the underground productive formations.

"Formation"—A layer of rock which has distinct characteristics that differ from nearby rock.

"Fracturing" or "Frac"—The propagation of fractures in a rock layer by a pressurized fluid. This technique is used to
release petroleum and natural gas for extraction.

"GAAP"—Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.
"Gross acres" or "gross wells"—The total acres or wells, as the case may be, in which a working interest is owned.
"HBP"—Acreage that is held by production.

"Horizon"—A term used to denote a surface in or of rock, or a distinctive layer of rock that might be represented by a
reflection in seismic data.

"Horizontal drilling"—A drilling technique used in certain formations where a well is drilled vertically to a certain depth
and then drilled at a right angle within a specified interval.

"Initial Production"—The measurement of production from an oil or gas well when first brought on stream. Often stated
in terms of production during the first thirty days.



"Liquids"—Describes oil, water, condensate and natural gas liquids.
"MBbI"—One thousand barrels of crude oil, condensate or natural gas liquids.
"MBOE"—One thousand BOE.

"MMBOE"—One million BOE.

"Mcf"—One thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

"MMBtu"—One million British thermal units.

"MMcf"—One million cubic feet of natural gas.

"Natural gas liquids" or "NGL"—Components of natural gas that are separated from the gas state in the form of liquids,
which include propane, butanes and ethane, among others.

"Net acres"—The percentage of gross acres an owner has out of a particular number of acres, or a specified tract. An
owner who has 50% interest in 100 acres owns 50 net acres.

"NYMEX"—The New York Mercantile Exchange.

"Production corridor"—Infrastructure put in place over an extended area, usually several miles, containing multiple
pipelines to facilitate the transfer of oil, natural gas and/or water. A specific production corridor may also contain water
recycling facilities, artificial gas lift and fuel gas distribution lines.

"Productive well"—A well that is found to be capable of producing hydrocarbons in sufficient quantities such that
proceeds from the sale of the production exceed production expenses and taxes.

"Proved developed non-producing reserves" or "PDNP"—Developed non-producing reserves.

"Proved developed reserves" or "PDP"—Reserves that can be expected to be recovered through existing wells with
existing equipment and operating methods.

"Proved reserves"—The estimated quantities of oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids that geological and engineering
data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be commercially recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under
existing economic and operating conditions.

"Proved undeveloped reserves" or "PUD"—Proved reserves that are expected to be recovered within five years from new
wells on undrilled locations and for which a specific capital commitment has been made or from existing wells where a
relatively major expenditure is required for recompletion.

"Recompletion"—The process of re-entering an existing wellbore that is either producing or not producing and
completing new reservoirs in an attempt to establish or increase existing production.

"Reservoir'—A porous and permeable underground formation containing a natural accumulation of producible oil and/or
natural gas that is confined by impermeable rock or water barriers and is separate from other reservoirs.

"Resource play"—An expansive contiguous geographical area, potentially supporting numerous drilling locations, with
prospective crude oil and/or natural gas reserves that has the potential to be developed uniformly with repeatable commercial
success due to advancements in horizontal drilling and multi-stage fracturing technologies.

"Spacing"—The distance between wells producing from the same reservoir. Spacing is often expressed in terms of acres,
e.g., 40-acre spacing, and is often established by regulatory agencies.

"Standardized measure"—Discounted future net cash flows estimated by applying year-end prices to the estimated future
production of year-end proved reserves. Future cash inflows are reduced by estimated future production and development costs
based on period end costs to determine pre-tax cash inflows. Future income taxes, if applicable, are computed by applying the
statutory tax rate to the excess of pre-tax cash inflows over our tax basis in the oil and natural gas properties. Future net cash
inflows after income taxes are discounted using a 10% annual discount rate.

"Two stream"—Production or reserve volumes of oil and wet natural gas, where the natural gas liquids have not been
removed from the natural gas stream and the economic value of the natural gas liquids is included in the wellhead natural gas
price.



"Three stream"—Production or reserve volumes of oil, natural gas liquids and natural gas, where the natural gas liquids
have been removed from the natural gas stream and the economic value of the natural gas liquids is separated from the
wellhead natural gas price.

"Undeveloped acreage"—Lease acreage on which wells have not been drilled or completed to a point that would permit
the production of commercial quantities of oil and natural gas regardless of whether such acreage contains proved reserves.

"Wellhead natural gas"—Natural gas produced at or near the well.

"Wolfberry"—A general industry term that applies to the vertical stratigraphic interval that can include the shallow
Spraberry formation to the deeper Woodford formation throughout the Permian Basin.

"Working interest" or "WI'—The right granted to the lessee of a property to explore for and to produce and own crude oil,
natural gas liquids, natural gas or other minerals. The working interest owners bear the exploration, development and operating
costs on either a cash, penalty or carried basis.



CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Various statements contained in or incorporated by reference into this Annual Report are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). These forward-looking statements include statements,
projections and estimates concerning our operations, performance, business strategy, oil and natural gas reserves, drilling
program capital expenditures, liquidity and capital resources, the timing and success of specific projects, outcomes and effects
of litigation, claims and disputes, derivative activities and potential financing. Forward-looking statements are generally
accompanied by words such as "estimate," "project," "predict," "believe," "expect," "anticipate," "potential,”" "could," "may,"
"will," "foresee," "plan," "goal," "should," "intend," "pursue," "target," "continue," "suggest" or the negative thereof or other
variations thereof or other words that convey the uncertainty of future events or outcomes. Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of performance. These statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by us in light of our
experience and our perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments as well as other factors
we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. Among the factors that significantly impact our business and could impact
our business in the future are:

» the volatility of, and substantial decline in, oil, natural gas liquids ("NGL") and natural gas prices,
which remain at low levels;

*  revisions to our reserve estimates as a result of changes in commodity prices and other uncertainties;

e impacts to our financial statements as a result of impairment write-downs;

*  our ability to discover, estimate, develop and replace oil, NGL and natural gas reserves;

*  changes in domestic and global production, supply and demand for oil, NGL and natural gas;

« the ongoing instability and uncertainty in the United States and international financial and consumer
markets that could adversely affect the liquidity available to us and our customers and the demand
for commodities, including oil, NGL and natural gas;

»  capital requirements for our operations and projects;

*  our ability to maintain the borrowing capacity under our Senior Secured Credit Facility (as defined
below) or access other means of obtaining capital and liquidity, especially during periods of
sustained low commodity prices;

«  restrictions contained in our debt agreements, including our Senior Secured Credit Facility and the
indentures governing our Senior Unsecured Notes (as defined below), as well as debt that could be
incurred in the future;

*  our ability to generate sufficient cash to service our indebtedness, fund our capital requirements and
generate future profits;

e our ability to hedge and regulations that affect our ability to hedge;

« the potentially insufficient refining capacity in the United States Gulf Coast to refine all of the light
sweet crude oil being produced in the United States, which could result in widening price discounts
to world crude prices and potential shut-in of production due to lack of sufficient markets;

» regulations that prohibit or restrict our ability to apply hydraulic fracturing to our oil and natural gas
wells and to access and dispose of water used in these operations;

* legislation or regulations that prohibit or restrict our ability to drill new allocation wells;
*  our ability to execute our strategies;
*  competition in the oil and natural gas industry;

* changes in the regulatory environment and changes in U.S. or international legal, political,
administrative or economic conditions;

e drilling and operating risks, including risks related to hydraulic fracturing activities;
»  risks related to the geographic concentration of our assets;

»  the availability and costs of drilling and production equipment, labor and oil and natural gas
processing and other services;

« the availability of sufficient pipeline and transportation facilities and gathering and processing
capacity;



» the ability to successfully identify and consummate strategic acquisitions at purchase prices that are
accretive to our financial results and to successfully integrate acquired businesses, assets and
properties;

«  our ability to comply with federal, state and local regulatory requirements; and

*  our ability to recruit and retain the qualified personnel necessary to operate our business.

These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements should therefore be considered
in light of various factors, including those set forth in this Annual Report under "Item 1A. Risk Factors," in "Item 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and elsewhere in this Annual Report.
In light of such risks and uncertainties, we caution you not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. These
forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Annual Report, or if earlier, as of the date they were made. We do
not intend to, and disclaim any obligation to, update or revise any forward-looking statements unless required by securities law.



Part1

Laredo Petroleum, Inc. is a Delaware corporation formed in 2011 for the purpose of merging with Laredo Petroleum,
LLC (a Delaware limited liability company formed in 2007) to consummate an initial public offering of common stock in
December 2011 ("IPO"). Laredo Petroleum, Inc. was the survivor of such merger and currently has two wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Laredo Midstream Services, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("LMS"), and Garden City Minerals,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("GCM").

Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this Annual Report to "Laredo,” the "Company,” "we," "our," "us,"
or similar terms refer to Laredo Petroleum, Inc. and its subsidiaries at the applicable time, including former subsidiaries and
predecessor companies, as applicable.

Except where the context indicates otherwise, amounts, numbers, dollars and percentages presented in this Annual
Report are rounded and therefore approximate.

Item 1. Business

Overview

Laredo is an independent energy company focused on the acquisition, exploration and development of oil and natural
gas properties, and the transportation of oil and natural gas from such properties, primarily in the Permian Basin in West Texas.
The oil and liquids-rich Permian Basin is characterized by multiple target horizons, extensive production histories, long-lived
reserves, high drilling success rates and high initial production rates. We operate and analyze our results of operations through
our two principal business segments:

*  Exploration and production of oil and natural gas properties - conducted principally by Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
through the exploration and development of our acreage in the Permian Basin. As of December 31, 2016, we had

assembled 127,847 net acres in the Permian Basin and had total proved reserves, presented on a three-stream basis, of
167,100 MBOE.

e Midstream and marketing - conducted principally by our wholly-owned subsidiary, LMS. LMS buys, sells, gathers
and transports oil, natural gas and water primarily for the account of Laredo. In addition, LMS owns a 49% interest in
Medallion Gathering & Processing, LLC ("Medallion"), which, upon completion of current projects, will own and
operate more than 650 miles of pipeline in the Permian Basin ("Medallion-Midland Basin"). This system gathered,
transported and delivered an average of 129,087 BOE/D in the fourth quarter of 2016.

Financial information and other disclosures relating to our business segments are provided in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report (see Note 16 to our consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report).

2016 segment operation highlights

Exploration and production

*  Produced a Company record 53,141 BOE/D in the fourth quarter of 2016, resulting in full-year 2016 production
growth of 11% from full-year 2015;

*  Grew proved developed reserves organically by 40% in 2016;
*  Completed 45 horizontal development wells in 2016; and

*  Reduced unit lease operating expenses to $3.56 per BOE in the fourth quarter of 2016, resulting in full-year 2016
reduction of 37% from full-year 2015.

Midstream and marketing

*  Recognized $24 million of cash benefits from LMS field infrastructure investments through reduced capital and
operating costs and increased revenue;

*  Received $186 million of net cash settlements on commodity derivatives that matured during 2016, increasing the
average sales price for oil by $20.34 per Bbl and for natural gas by $0.47 per thousand cubic feet compared to pre-
hedged average sales prices; and

e Grew annual transported volumes on the Medallion-Midland Basin system, of which LMS is a 49% owner, by 159%
in 2016 to 39.3 million Bbls of oil, with a fourth-quarter daily average rate of 129,087 BOE/D.



Our core assets

Exploration and production

The Permian Basin is comprised of several distinct geological provinces, including the Midland Basin to the east, the
Delaware Basin to the west and the Central Platform in the middle. Our primary development and production fairway is located
on the east side of the Midland Basin, 35 miles east of Midland, Texas. Our acreage is largely contiguous in the neighboring
Texas counties of Howard, Glasscock, Reagan, Sterling and Irion. We refer to this acreage block in this Annual Report as our
"Permian-Garden City" area. As of December 31, 2016, we held 127,847 net acres in the Permian Basin, all of which were held
in 268 sections in the Permian-Garden City area, with an average working interest of 95% in all Laredo-operated producing
wells.

We believe our acreage in the Permian-Garden City area is a resource play for multiple producing formations that
make up a significant portion of the entire stratigraphic section. We are currently focusing the majority of our development
activities on four horizontal drilling targets (Upper, Middle and Lower Wolfcamp and Cline formations), although we have
established the existence of additional producing formations, including the Spraberry and Canyon. From our inception in 2006
through December 31, 2016, we have drilled and completed (i.e., the particular well is flowing) 275 horizontal wells in these
initial four identified targets and 967 vertical wells in the Wolfberry interval. Of these 275 wells, 127 were horizontal Upper
Wolfcamp wells, 61 were horizontal Middle Wolfcamp wells, 30 were horizontal Lower Wolfcamp wells and 57 were
horizontal Cline wells.

Beginning in mid-2012, we started focusing our horizontal activity on drilling longer laterals. Since that time our
average lateral length has grown to 10,000 feet and longer in areas where our contiguous acreage position allows.

Following the sharp decline in oil, NGL and natural gas prices that began in the second half of 2014 and continued
through 2015, we reduced our 2016 planned capital budget. As prices and related margins have somewhat stabilized, although
still being at reduced levels from highs seen in 2013 and early 2014, we have approved a 2017 capital budget of $530 million,
excluding acquisitions and investments in Medallion. Of this budget, $514 million is allocated to our exploration and
production segment and $16 million is allocated to our midstream and marketing segment. Substantially all of the planned
capital budget is anticipated to be invested in the Permian-Garden City area for both of our segments. Our strategy is to
concentrate our drilling activities in multi-well packages around our previously established production corridors that have the
infrastructure in place to provide us the flexibility to most efficiently and economically drill wells at an attractive rate of return.
At the same time, we believe drilling wells in multi-well packages also enables us to minimize the impact of current drilling on
future drilling plans by mitigating pressure depletion and frac impact. We will also continue to seek cost saving measures to
more efficiently deploy our capital; however, as commodity prices have increased, service costs have also risen. We anticipate
that this upward trend on service costs may continue. On December 31, 2016, we had a total of four operated drilling rigs
drilling horizontal wells. Our current drilling schedule anticipates that we will utilize four horizontal rigs and no vertical rigs
throughout 2017.

The timing of drilling our potential locations is influenced by several factors, including commodity prices, capital
requirements and availability, the Texas Railroad Commission ("RRC") well-spacing requirements and the continuation of the
positive results from our ongoing development drilling program.

We expect our Permian-Garden City acreage to continue to be the primary driver for the growth of our reserves,
production and cash flow for the foreseeable future.

Since our inception, we have established and realized our reserves, production and cash flow primarily through our
drilling program coupled with select strategic acquisitions. Our net proved reserves were estimated at 167,100 MBOE on a
three-stream basis as of December 31, 2016, of which 84% are classified as proved developed reserves and 38% are attributed
to oil reserves. For all periods prior to January 1, 2015, our reserves and production were reported in two streams: crude oil and
liquids-rich natural gas. This means the economic value of the natural gas liquids in our natural gas was included in the
wellhead natural gas price and total volumes on a BOE-basis were lower. Beginning on January 1, 2015, we started reporting
our production volumes on a three-stream basis, which separately reports NGL from crude oil and natural gas. In this Annual
Report, the information presented with respect to our estimated proved reserves has been prepared by Ryder Scott Company,
L.P. ("Ryder Scott"), our independent reserve engineers, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC") applicable to the periods presented.



The following table summarizes our total estimated net proved reserves presented on a three-stream basis, net acreage
and producing wells as of December 31, 2016, and average daily production presented on a three-stream basis for the year
ended December 31, 2016. Based on estimates in the report prepared by Ryder Scott, we operated wells that represent 99% of
the economic value of our proved developed oil, NGL and natural gas reserves as of December 31, 2016.

As of December 31, 2016

Estimated net Producing

1) Year ended
proved reserves wells December 31. 2016
% of Net average df;ily
MBOE total reserves % 0Oil acreage Gross Net production (BOE/D)
Permian Basin ........c.cccceeeereenenn 167,100 100% 38% 127,847 1,194 1,088 49,586
Other properties.........ccccoevevennne. — —% —% 15,193 — — —
Total ..o 167,100 100% 38% 143,040 1,194 1,088 49,586

(1) See "—Our operations—Estimated proved reserves" for discussion of the prices utilized to estimate our reserves.

Our net average daily production for the year ended December 31, 2016 was 49,586 BOE/D, 47% of which was oil,
26% of which was NGL and 27% of which was natural gas.

As discussed previously in this Annual Report, during 2015 commodity prices for crude oil, NGL and natural gas
experienced sharp declines, and this downward trend accelerated further into 2016, with crude oil prices reaching a twelve-year
low in February 2016. In the second half of 2016 and into the first quarter of 2017, commodity prices increased and stabilized
at relatively higher prices but at significantly lower levels than 2014. Prices continue to remain volatile. Our capital budget for
2017 is $530 million, representing a 42% increase from 2016 capital expenditures, excluding acquisitions.

Beginning in 2016, we purposely significantly reduced the portion of our reserves that have historically been
categorized as "proved undeveloped" or "PUD." We adjusted our long-range five-year SEC PUD bookings methodology
because we believe it enables us to develop our acreage in the most efficient manner possible and determine which potential
locations will be most profitable. We believe that we can optimize the value for our shareholders by maintaining greater
flexibility in choosing the specific drilling locations that will most efficiently develop our properties, particularly as technology
changes and we continue to further understand our acreage.

As our activities to date have indicated, the majority of our acreage represents a resource play. In the near-term, our
goal is to drill those locations that we anticipate have the potential to provide the greatest economic return and enhance
shareholder value. We have determined that the most efficient way to accomplish this is to maintain the flexibility to choose
those locations based upon our continuing insight as we drill and collect data across our acreage, regardless of SEC reserve-
booking status. Reducing our future PUD commitments provides us the most flexibility to maximize our rate of return at
prevailing conditions and minimize the requirement to drill wells previously assigned, under very different circumstances, as
specific PUD locations. Accordingly, for 2017 we have further reduced our booked PUD locations to those we have reasonable
certainty to believe that we will develop and have made a specific capital commitment to drill within one year. This strategy
maintains our flexibility to add new PUD locations and convert other locations to proved developed reserves as our plans deem
appropriate and opportunistic.

We have built an extensive proprietary technical database that includes 591 in-house, core-calibrated petrophysical
logs, 1,133 square miles of 3D seismic, 53 microseismic surveys, more than 1,090 open and cased-hole logging suites,
including 144 dipole sonic logs, 5,005 feet of proprietary whole cores in 15 wells, 945 sidewall cores, 39 single-zone tests and
46 production logs. Our strategic interest in utilizing our significant technical database is directed at understanding the
principles that control hydraulic fracture geometry and potential resource recovery that can then be leveraged during all
operational phases of development, with the goal of maximizing the value of our entire asset base. Our reservoir
characterization process encompasses three fundamental areas: (i) multivariate analytics (including our proprietary Earth
Model), (ii) reservoir simulation and (iii) completions optimization (incorporating leading-edge hydraulic fracture modeling).

We have developed a number of proprietary workflows within our completions optimization and reservoir simulation
process. We have constructed a series of calibrated three-dimensional geocellular models incorporating data that represent
reservoir, geomechanical and natural fracturing conditions, which enable us to forward-model fracture geometries by applying
physics-based rules. These detailed three-dimensional models of hydraulic fracture geometries have subsequently been history
matched and calibrated to oil production. We believe that by forward-modeling various completions designs and then
comparing back to our extensive data set, fundamental insights can be gained into how to best design completions to deliver the
appropriate resource recovery and to enhance value for the total resource. We consider our database a fundamental technical
advantage, enabling the above-described workflows to yield high-quality calibrated results.
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A key component of our reservoir characterization process is internally referred to as the "Earth Model," which
represents proprietary integrated workflows combining geoscience, production, operations and engineering data utilizing
multivariate analytics. The goal of the Earth Model is to develop a predictive three-dimensional model that can forecast
production rates through associating empirical subsurface data with proved methods. We have continued to develop the Earth
Model during the last five years by applying a multivariate analytics approach to integrating data that represents mechanical
rock properties, natural fractures, reservoir properties, completions, production, flow back and operational execution
components.

We consider both the Earth Model and completions optimization workflows to be potentially significant tools in
designing multi-well development plans with the goal of maximizing value by optimizing completion designs by landing point,
increasing lateral lengths where possible and geo-steering targets while integrating horizontal and vertical spacing
considerations for well laterals.

We anticipate that 100% of our horizontal wells to be drilled in 2017 will utilize at least some aspects of the Earth
Model and completions optimization. If our preliminary applications of the Earth Model and completions optimization
workflows are replicated in forward-looking well planning, we anticipate this will positively impact our ability to select higher
value multi-well development plans.

Midstream and marketing

We are actively involved in seeking additional midstream solutions for our oil, NGL and natural gas production.
Capitalizing on our large contiguous acreage blocks, we have built crude oil, natural gas and/or water systems in four
production corridors on our Permian-Garden City acreage. These production corridors are designed to provide a combination of
services including high-pressure centralized natural gas lift systems, crude oil and natural gas gathering and water delivery and
takeaway capacity, with certain corridors also capable of accessing recycling facilities. In 2015, we commenced operations at
our water treatment facility, which is capable of recycling more than 30,000 Bbls of water per day and has a storage capacity of
1.4 million Bbls. We believe the fact that these production corridors and associated facilities and infrastructure are already in
place will enable us to enhance the value of the 2017 drilling program.

Additionally, we have built and maintain more than 40 miles of crude oil gathering pipelines to connect Laredo-
operated wells in our Permian-Garden City asset, providing a safer and more economic transportation alternative than trucking.
We have also installed and maintain 170 miles of natural gas gathering pipelines across our Permian-Garden City acreage,
providing us with takeaway optionality that enables us to maintain lower operating pressures and more consistent well
performance.

LMS is a 49% owner in the Medallion-Midland Basin crude oil gathering system which commenced operations in
March of 2015. Upon completion of current projects, the system will have more than 650 miles of laid pipeline in the following
counties in Texas: Crane, Glasscock, Howard, Irion, Martin, Midland, Mitchell, Reagan, Scurry and Upton. In 2016, the system
transported 39.3 million Bbls of crude oil. See Notes 14 and 15.a to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in
this Annual Report for a discussion of Medallion.

Our midstream and marketing activities continue to focus on achieving increased efficiencies and cost reductions for
(1) the transportation and marketing of our oil and natural gas through the utilization of our oil and natural gas gathering
systems to provide access to multiple markets and reduce the potential for production shut-ins caused by downstream capacity
issues and (ii) the handling of fresh, recycled and produced water.

We market the majority of production from properties we operate for both our account and the account of the other
working interest owners in our operated properties. We sell substantially all of our production under contracts ranging from one
month to several years, all at fluctuating market prices. We normally sell production to a relatively limited number of
customers, as is customary in the exploration, development and production business; however, we believe that our customer
diversification affords us optionality in our sales destination. We have committed a portion of our Permian crude oil production
under firm transportation agreements, including with Medallion, which agreements will enhance our ability to move our crude
oil out of the Permian Basin and give us access to potentially more favorable Gulf Coast pricing.
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As of December 31, 2016, we were committed to deliver for sale or transportation the following fixed quantities of
production under certain contractual arrangements that specify the delivery of a fixed and determinable quantity:

2020 and
Total 2017 2018 2019 after
Crude oil (MBDI):
Sales COMMItMENTS........cc.cceveiiuiieeiieeiii et 38,133 6,935 6,935 6,935 17,328
Transportation commitments:
FIeld oo 92,438 13,344 12,410 11,874 54,810
To U.S. @ulf COASt.....cooiviivieeiciiceieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 29,810 3,650 3,650 3,650 18,860
Natural gas (MMcf):
Sales COMMITMENTS ........oeeiiiiieeeie et 71,666 5,612 5,615 5,615 54,824
Total commitments (MBOE)™" ........coovireeeeeeeeeeeee, 172,325 24,864 23,931 23,394 100,136

(1) BOE equivalents are calculated using a conversion rate of six Mcf per one Bbl.

We have firm field transportation agreements that enable us or the purchasers of our oil production to move oil from
our production area to the major market hub of Colorado City, Texas. We also have a firm transportation agreement to move oil
from Colorado City, Texas to the U.S. Gulf Coast. We expect to fulfill these firm transportation commitments primarily by
utilizing the volumes under our firm sales commitments.

Our production has been equivalent or greater than our delivery commitments during the three most recent years, and
we expect such production will continue to exceed our future commitments. However, in certain instances, we have made
payments for natural gas minimum volume commitments and have used spot market oil purchases to meet commitments in
certain locations or due to favorable pricing. We anticipate continuing this practice in the future. Also, if our production is not
sufficient to satisfy our delivery commitments, we can and may use spot market purchases to fulfill the commitments.

In the current market environment, we believe that we could sell our production to numerous companies so that the
loss of any one of our major purchasers would not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations solely by reason of such loss. For information regarding each of our customers that accounted for 10% or more of
our oil, NGL and natural gas revenues during the last three calendar years, see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this Annual Report. See "Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks related to our business—The inability of our
significant customers to meet their obligations to us may materially adversely affect our financial results."

Corporate history and structure

Laredo Petroleum, Inc. is a Delaware corporation formed in 2011 for the purpose of merging with Laredo Petroleum,
LLC (a Delaware limited liability company formed in 2007) to consummate an IPO in December 2011. Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
was the survivor of such merger and currently has two wholly-owned subsidiaries, LMS and GCM. As of December 31, 2016,
affiliates of Warburg Pincus LLC ("Warburg Pincus), our founding member, owned 36.2% of our common stock.

On August 1, 2013, we completed the sale of our assets in the Anadarko Basin in the Texas Panhandle and Western
Oklahoma (the "Anadarko Basin Sale"), which represented 15% of our proved reserve volumes as of December 31, 2012.

Laredo Petroleum, Inc. is the borrower under our Fourth Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Facility (as
amended, the "Senior Secured Credit Facility"), as well as the issuer of our $350 million of 6 1/4% senior unsecured notes due
2023 (the "March 2023 Notes"), our $500 million of 7 3/8% senior unsecured notes due 2022 (the "May 2022 Notes") and our
$450 million of 5 5/8% senior unsecured notes due 2022 (the "January 2022 Notes"). We refer to the March 2023 Notes, the
May 2022 Notes and the January 2022 Notes collectively as the "Senior Unsecured Notes." Our subsidiaries, LMS and GCM,
are guarantors of the obligations under our Senior Secured Credit Facility and Senior Unsecured Notes. On April 6, 2015 (the
"Redemption Date"), we used the proceeds of the March 2023 Notes offering to fund a portion of the complete redemption of
the Company’s then outstanding $550 million of 9 1/2% senior unsecured notes due 2019 (the "January 2019 Notes") at a
redemption price of 104.75% of the principal amount of such notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest.
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Our business strategy

Our goal is to enhance sharcholder value by (i) protecting and potentially growing our reserves, production and cash
flow and (ii) enhancing our midstream and marketing segment by executing the following strategy:

Exploration and production

Maximize the potential net asset value of our asset base by capitalizing on our technical expertise and taking advantage of our
drilling optionality and operational flexibility

*  We will continue to leverage our operating and technical expertise to further delineate and develop our core acreage
position. We are enhancing value by capitalizing on our extensive database for the development and application of our
Earth Model in identifying the optimal landing point and completions optimization techniques, thereby capturing more
hydrocarbons within the target acreage than might otherwise be possible.

*  We believe that the most efficient and cost-effective way to develop our acreage is through the use of multi-well
packages in the same or multiple formations, including multiple landing points in a single formation. This approach
allows for economies of scale as well as reducing production issues related to pressure depletion.

*  Subject to adverse changes in commodity prices and/or service costs, we believe that our entire acreage position,
comprised of multiple formations, will be a part of our future development.

* In order to increase our operational flexibility, in the past two years we deliberately reduced our PUD bookings within
our reserves. While this decision impacts our total booked reserves in the short term, we believe that it enhances our
ability to grow our proved developed reserves and overall resources by providing us with crucial flexibility in tailoring
our drilling and operating plans in a manner that is most conducive to maximizing the net asset value of our asset base.

Proactively manage risk to limit downside

*  We actively attempt to limit our business and operating risks by focusing on safety, flexibility in our financial profile,
operational efficiencies, hedging, controlling costs and developing oil and natural gas takeaway capacity with multiple
delivery points.

Deploy our capital in a conservative and strategic manner while maintaining a strong liquidity position and continuing to
delever

*  We believe that maintaining a strong liquidity position is critical. Therefore, we will be highly selective in the projects
that we fund and will review opportunities to bolster our liquidity and financial position through asset dispositions,
utilizing our Senior Secured Credit Facility and accessing the capital markets.

Continue to hedge our production to protect cash flows, diminish the effects of commodity price fluctuations and maintain
upside exposure

e During 2016, we realized a significant benefit through our hedging program and the certainty that it provided to our
cash flow. In the future, we will seek hedging opportunities to further protect our cash flows from commodity price
fluctuations while maintaining upside exposure if commodity prices increase.

Evaluate value-enhancing acquisitions, divestitures, mergers and joint-ventures

*  We will continue to monitor the market for strategic acquisitions that we believe could be accretive and enhance
shareholder value. However, as a result of our past years of data collection and delineation drilling, we have
established the production capability of a substantial portion of our acreage in multiple formations, which provides us
with a significant drilling inventory.

Midstream and marketing

Increase the use of our previously built infrastructure and evaluate opportunities for strategic expansion

*  We believe that our infrastructure provides us with optionality and efficiencies in developing and transporting
production from our Permian-Garden City acreage position, as well as providing water transportation and recycling
services for a significant portion of our planned drilling activities. Because of the value we ascribe to this
infrastructure, we will continue to look for strategic expansion opportunities while maintaining our core strategy of
providing marketing optionality for our oil, NGL and natural gas production.
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Participate in the value growth of Medallion-Midland Basin system

*  We believe the Medallion-Midland Basin system is a premier and valuable asset that provides benefits to us by
transporting our production to multiple markets. Additionally, through our 49% ownership of Medallion, we benefit
from the growth in value of the Medallion-Midland Basin system as Midland Basin production continues to increase.

Our competitive strengths

We have a number of competitive strengths in each of our segments that we believe will assist in the successful
execution of our business strategy.

Exploration and production

Our extensive Permian technical database and Earth Model

*  We have made a substantial upfront investment to understand the geology, geophysics and reservoir parameters of the
rock formations and production characteristics that define our drilling and development program. We have utilized and
will continue to utilize this information in the ongoing refinement of the Earth Model, which has assisted us in
optimizing our well results and is expected to provide corresponding additional future benefits.

Contiguous acreage position with high working interests and extensive interests in leases held by production containing
multiple formations, resulting in a substantial drilling inventory

e We have 127,847 net acres in the Permian-Garden City area that are largely contiguous with a high average working
interest percentage (95% for Laredo-operated properties), are 85% held by production and have identified up to seven
targets to date from which we can produce, resulting in a significant drilling inventory. Our contiguous acreage
position also allows us to drill long laterals (10,000 feet or greater) in many locations, which we believe provide an
even greater rate of return as we continue to refine our spacing, drilling and completions techniques.

Drilling and lease operating efficiencies afforded by our acreage position and production corridors that enable low-cost
operations

* By making upfront investments in production infrastructure on our contiguous acreage position, we are now able to
drill and operate in a more efficient and low-cost manner. We believe that this infrastructure will enable us to continue
to be a low-cost operator while at the same time drilling productive new wells.

Significant operational control

*  We operate wells that represent 99% of the economic value of our proved developed reserves as of December 31,
2016, based on our reserve report prepared by Ryder Scott. We believe that maintaining operating control permits us to
better pursue our strategy of enhancing returns through operational and cost efficiencies and maximizing cost-efficient
ultimate hydrocarbon recoveries through reservoir analysis and evaluation and continuous improvement of drilling,
completions and stimulation techniques. We expect to maintain operating control over most of our potential drilling
locations.

Strong corporate governance and institutional investor support

e Our board of directors is well qualified and represents a meaningful resource to our management team. Our board of
directors, which is comprised of representatives of Warburg Pincus, other independent directors and our Chief
Executive Officer, has extensive oil and natural gas industry and general business expertise. We actively engage our
board of directors, on a regular basis, for their expertise on strategic, financial, governance and risk management
activities. In addition, Warburg Pincus has many years of relevant experience in financing and supporting exploration
and production companies and management teams. During the last two decades, Warburg Pincus has been the lead
investor in many such companies, including two previous companies operated by members of our management team.

Midstream and marketing

Our production corridors and water treatment facility enable us to more efficiently develop our acreage and utilize/dispose of
water, thus reducing our capital and operating expenses

*  We believe that our previously built production corridors increase field level operating efficiencies in oil and natural
gas gathering and takeaway capacity, water supply and operations. We have demonstrated that our production
corridors provide us with identified areas within which we can achieve material cost savings and efficiencies through
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the use of our previously built infrastructure, including water recycling. In addition, drilling wells within these
corridors increases our production consistency and enables us to better plan our development program.

e The use and disposal of water is one of the most challenging aspects of horizontal drilling in the Permian Basin and
our production corridors provide us with a reliable and consistent means to ensure that we have the water we need to
complete our wells while also providing low-cost takeaway capacity for flowback and produced water.

Extensive infrastructure in place

*  We own and operate more than 230 miles of pipeline in our crude oil and natural gas gathering, fuel gas and gas lift
systems in the Permian Basin as of December 31, 2016. These systems and pipelines provide greater operational
efficiency and potentially better pricing for our production and enable us to coordinate our activities to connect our
wells to market upon completion with minimal pipeline delays.

e Through our association with Medallion, and upon completion of current projects, we will have access to more than
650 miles of oil gathering systems and pipelines connected to Colorado City, Texas. As a 49% owner of Medallion, we
benefit financially from the system including through our share of the net income from the shipment of all crude oil on
the system.

Firm transportation for a majority of our oil

e As production in the Permian Basin has increased, the need for firm takeaway capacity has become even more
important. We have 30,000 Bbls per day of intra-basin firm transportation for oil and access to four points of delivery.
We also have 10,000 Bbls per day of firm transportation from Colorado City, Texas to five points of delivery in the
U.S. Gulf Coast. We believe this type of certainty provides us with an advantage in formulating our present and future
drilling and operating plans.

Other properties

In addition to our Permian-Garden City acreage, as of December 31, 2016, we held 15,193 net acres in the Palo Duro
Basin. Approximately 72% of this acreage will expire in 2017, absent drilling or renegotiation of the applicable leases. We
anticipate little or no activity on these properties in 2017.

Our operations

Estimated proved reserves

Our reserves are reported in three streams: crude oil, NGL and natural gas. In this Annual Report, the information with
respect to our estimated proved reserves presented below has been prepared by Ryder Scott, in accordance with applicable SEC
rules and regulations.

SEC guidelines require companies to use the unweighted arithmetic average first-day-of-the-month price for each
month within the 12-month period prior to the end of the reporting period before differentials ("Benchmark Prices"). The
Benchmark Prices are then adjusted for quality, transportation fees, geographical differentials, marketing bonuses or deductions
and other factors affecting the price received at the wellhead ("Realized Prices"). The Realized Prices are held constant and
utilized to calculate estimated reserves and the associated future cash flows. The following table presents the Benchmark Prices
and Realized Prices for the periods presented:

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Benchmark Prices:

O ($/BBL) oo e e e e e e se e $ 3925 $ 46.79

INGL (B/BDL) .ttt ettt ettt ereens $ 1824 § 18.75

Natural 2as ($/MMBLU).......ccvooiiiiieiiietiietei ettt ettt ss e s s s se s eseas $ 233§ 2.47
Realized Prices:

O ($/BBL) 1o e e e $ 3744 45.58

INGL (B/BDL) .ttt ettt ettt ettt eaeens $ 11.72  $ 12.50

NALUTAL ZAS (B/MCE) .ttt ettt ettt st se b es e s s eseas $ 1.78 $ 1.89
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Our net proved reserves were estimated at 167,100 MBOE on a three-stream basis as of December 31, 2016, of which
84% were classified as proved developed reserves and 38% are attributable to oil reserves. The following table presents
summary data for our core operating area as of December 31, 2016.

As of December 31, 2016
Proved reserves % of total
Area: (MBOE)
Permian BasiN.........coccoiiiiiiiiiiieceie et 167,100 100%
Oher PIOPEITIES ..c.euviieiieiieiieieeieet ettt ettt sttt sttt — —%
TOtAL .ottt ettt eae et e re e beeraesaeenaenaeas 167,100 100%

Our estimated proved reserves as of December 31, 2016 assume our ability to fund the capital costs necessary for their
development and are affected by pricing assumptions. See "[tem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks related to our business—Estimating
reserves and future net revenues involves uncertainties. Decreases in commodity prices, or negative revisions to reserve
estimates or assumptions as to future oil, NGL and natural gas prices, may lead to decreased earnings, losses or impairment of
oil and natural gas assets."

The following table sets forth additional information regarding our estimated proved reserves as of December 31,
2016 and 2015. Ryder Scott estimated 100% of our proved reserves as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. The reserve estimates
as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 were prepared in accordance with the applicable SEC rules regarding oil, NGL and natural
gas reserve reporting.

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Proved developed producing:
OIL (IMBDBL) <.ttt sttt ettt ettt be et be b e nes 53,156 40,493
INGL (IMBDI) .ttt ettt ettt e s be s e b e b et e st e st e st enteneeneeneeseenene 42,950 29,009
NAtural @S (IMIMCE) ..c.viiuiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt e e saesbeesae b e esseseeseeeneenes 270,291 178,519
Total proved developed producing (MBOE) .........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiicececeeee e 141,155 99,255
Proved developed non-producing:
OIL (IMBDBL) <.t ettt ettt eb e — 451
INGL (IMBDI) ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e s et e s ene e s s eneeneeneeneeneenenan — 340
NAtural ZaS (IMIMCE) ...eiiiiieiieie ettt ettt e e e e ssaesbeesaenseenaeseeneenseenes — 2,094
Total proved developed non-producing (MBOE)............ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiececeeeee e — 1,140
Proved undeveloped:
OIL (IMBDBL) .ttt ettt ettt ettt b b ebe s se b e b e b e st ess e st essessesseseeseeseeseeneenennas 10,784 11,695
INGL (IMBDI) .ttt ettt et st et et se et n e bt aeene et ene e 7,400 6,718
JANF 10 e 1Y 10 (o3 ) PP 46,566 41,339
Total proved undeveloped (MBOE) ........ccoooiiiiiiiiiieiccececteeeeee ettt eaens 25,945 25,303
Estimated proved reserves:
OTL (IMBDBL) <.ttt ettt ettt et et e bt e b et ess e st essenteseeneeneeseeneeneenenes 63,940 52,639
INGL (MBDI) .ttt sttt ettt s bbbt b ene e 50,350 36,067
NAtUral @S (IMIMCE) ..c.veiuiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt e eas e re s e eaeens 316,857 221,952
Total estimated proved reserves (MBOE) .........coiiiiiiiiiiicieiecieie et 167,100 125,698
Percent deVEIOPEA........oouiiviiiieiieieeee ettt ettt et et eaeas 84% 80%

Technology used to establish proved reserves

Under SEC rules, proved reserves are those quantities of oil, NGL and natural gas that by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be economically producible within five years from a given date
forward from known reservoirs, and under existing economic conditions, operating methods and government regulations. The
term "reasonable certainty" implies a high degree of confidence that the quantities of oil, NGL and/or natural gas actually
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recovered will equal or exceed the estimate. Reasonable certainty can be established using techniques that have been proven
effective by actual production from projects in the same reservoir or an analogous reservoir or by other evidence using reliable
technology that establishes reasonable certainty. Reliable technology is a grouping of one or more technologies (including
computational methods) that has been field tested and has been demonstrated to provide reasonably certain results with
consistency and repeatability in the formation being evaluated or in an analogous formation.

To establish reasonable certainty with respect to our estimated proved reserves, our internal reserve engineers and
Ryder Scott, our independent reserve engineers, employed technologies that have been demonstrated to yield results with
consistency and repeatability. The technologies and economic data used in the estimation of our proved reserves include, but
are not limited to, open-hole logs, core analyses, geologic maps, available downhole and production data and seismic data.
Reserves attributable to producing wells with sufficient production history were estimated using appropriate decline curves,
material balance calculations or other performance relationships. Reserves attributable to producing wells with limited
production history and for undeveloped locations were estimated primarily by performance from analogous wells in the
surrounding area and the use of geologic data to assess the reservoir continuity. These wells were considered to be analogous
based on production performance from the same formation and completion using similar techniques.

As discussed previously in this Annual Report, during 2015 commodity prices for crude oil, NGL and natural gas
experienced sharp declines, and this downward trend accelerated further into 2016, with crude oil prices reaching a twelve-year
low in February 2016. In the second half of 2016 and into the first quarter of 2017 commodity prices increased and stabilized at
relatively higher prices but significantly lower than 2014 . However, prices continue to remain volatile. Our capital budget for
2017, excluding acquisitions and investments in Medallion, is $530 million, representing a 42% increase over 2016 capital
expenditures, excluding acquisitions.

Beginning in 2016, we purposely significantly reduced the portion of our reserves that have historically been
categorized as "proved undeveloped" or "PUD." We adjusted our long-range five-year SEC PUD bookings methodology
because we believe it enables us to develop our acreage in the most efficient manner possible and determine which potential
locations best enhance our overall value. We believe that we can optimize the value for our shareholders by maintaining greater
flexibility in choosing the specific drilling locations that will most efficiently develop our properties, particularly as technology
changes and we continue to further understand our acreage.

As our activities to date have indicated, the majority of our acreage represents a resource play. In the near-term, our
goal is to drill those locations that we anticipate have the potential to provide the greatest shareholder value. We have
determined that the most efficient way to accomplish this is to maintain the flexibility to choose those locations based upon our
continuing insight as we drill and collect data across our acreage, regardless of SEC reserve-booking status. Reducing our
future PUD commitments provides us the most flexibility to maximize our rate of return at prevailing conditions and minimize
the requirement to drill wells previously assigned, under very different circumstances, as specific PUD locations. Accordingly,
for 2017 we have further reduced our booked PUD locations to those we have reasonable certainty to believe that we will
develop and have made a specific capital commitment to drill within one year. This strategy maintains our flexibility to add
new PUD locations and convert other locations to proved developed reserves as our plans deem appropriate and opportunistic.

Qualifications of technical persons and internal controls over reserves estimation process

In accordance with the Standards Pertaining to the Estimating and Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserves Information
promulgated by the Society of Petroleum Engineers and guidelines established by the SEC, Ryder Scott, our independent
reserve engineers, estimated 100% of our proved reserve information as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 included in this
Annual Report. The technical persons responsible for preparing the reserves estimates presented herein meet the requirements
regarding qualifications, independence, objectivity and confidentiality set forth in the Standards Pertaining to the Estimating
and Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserves Information promulgated by the Society of Petroleum Engineers.

We maintain an internal staff of petroleum engineers and geoscience professionals who work closely with our
independent reserve engineers to ensure the integrity, accuracy and timeliness of data furnished to Ryder Scott in their reserves
estimation process. Our technical team meets regularly with representatives of Ryder Scott to review properties and discuss
methods and assumptions used in Ryder Scott's preparation of the year-end reserves estimates. The Ryder Scott reserve report is
reviewed with representatives of Ryder Scott and our internal technical staff before dissemination of the information.

Our Vice President of Reservoir Engineering is the technical person primarily responsible for overseeing the
preparation of our reserves estimates. He has more than 17 years of practical experience with eight years of this experience
being in the estimation and evaluation of reserves. He has a Bachelors of Science in Chemical Engineering from Rice
University, a Masters of Business Administration from the Kellogg School of Management and a Masters of Engineering
Management from Northwestern University. Our Vice President of Reservoir Engineering reports to our Senior Vice President -
Exploration & Land. Reserves estimates are reviewed and approved by our senior engineering staff, other members of senior
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management and our technical staff, our audit committee and our Chief Executive Officer and then submitted to our board of
directors for final approval.

Proved undeveloped reserves

Our proved undeveloped reserves increased from 25,303 MBOE as of December 31, 2015, to 25,945 MBOE as of
December 31, 2016. We estimate that we incurred $170.4 million of costs to convert 17,941 MBOE of proved undeveloped
reserves from 26 locations into proved developed reserves in 2016. New proved undeveloped reserves of 11,638 MBOE were
added during the year from 10 new horizontal Wolfcamp and four new horizontal Cline locations. Positive revisions to proved
undeveloped reserves of 6,945 MBOE were due to the combined effect of removing two proved undeveloped locations due to
changes in drilling plans, reinterpreting 10 undeveloped locations and adding seven undeveloped locations that were removed
from reserves in a previous year. A final investment decision has been made on these 31 locations and they are scheduled to be
drilled and completed in 2017.

Estimated total future development and abandonment costs related to the development of proved undeveloped reserves
as shown in our December 31, 2016 reserve report are $199 million. Based on this report and our PUD booking methodology,
the capital estimated to be spent in 2017 to develop the proved undeveloped reserves is $197 million and $0 for each of 2018,
2019, 2020 and 2021. Based on our anticipated cash flows and capital expenditures, as well as the availability of capital
markets transactions, all of the proved undeveloped locations are expected to be drilled within a one-year period in 2017.
Reserve calculations at any end-of-year period are representative of our development plans at that time. Changes in
circumstance, including commodity pricing, oilfield service costs, technology, acreage position and availability and other
economic and regulatory factors may lead to changes in development plans.
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Sales volume, revenues and price history

The following table sets forth information regarding sales volumes, revenues, average sales prices and average costs
per BOE sold for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. For the 2014 period, our reserves and production were
reported in two streams: crude oil and liquids-rich natural gas, and for 2015 and 2016 our reserves and production were
reported in three streams: crude oil, NGL and natural gas. For additional information on price calculations, see the information
in "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."

For the years ended December 31,

(unaudited) 2016 2015 2014
Sales volumes:""”
OIL (IMBDL) ..ttt 8,442 7,610 6,901
NGL (MBDI) ettt 4,784 4,267 —
Natural 2aS (IMMCT) ..ot 29,535 26,816 28,965
0il equivalents (MBOE)P®) oot 18,149 16,346 11,729
Average daily sales volumes (BOE/D)™.............cooccoiviimmiioiieeeeeeeeeeeeeen. 49,586 44,782 32,134
0il, NGL and natural gas sales (in thousands):"”
Ol ettt ettt § 318466 $ 329,301 $ 571,620
NG ettt n et n e a e ne e enes $ 56,982 $ 50,604 $ —
NALUTAL ZAS..c.vviieeiieeietetetetete ettt ettt b et et s bbb se s se s eseesessesens $ 51,037 $ 51,829 § 165,583
Average sales prices without hedges:""
Index 011 ($/BDI)™® ... $ 4332 $ 4880 $  93.00
Ol realized (B/BB1)™)........eieeeeeeeeee e $ 3773 $ 4327 $ 82.83
Index NGL ($/BBI)® ..o $ 1897 § 1881 § —
NGL, 1ealized ($/BDI)™ ...t $ 1191 $ 11.86 $ —
Index natural gas ($/MMBUU)™® .........ooiimioieoeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo $ 246 $ 266 $ 4.41
Natural gas, realized ($/Mcf)® .......oooovmiooeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 173 $ 193 $ 572
Average price, realized ($/BOE)™ ........cooooiviooeoeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ 23.50 $ 2641 $ 6286
Average sales prices with hedges:"®
O1il, hedged ($/BDI)....c.coviiiiiieiiieiee et $ 58.07 $ 7441 § 85.77
NGL, hedged ($/BD).....cuieiiieiiieiiieiiieteee e $ 1191 $ 11.86 $ —
Natural gas, hedged ($/MCf).....coiviiiiiiiieeeee e $ 220 S 242§ 5.73
Average price, hedged ($/BOE) .......oooioiieieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 3373 $ 41.71 3 64.62
Average costs per BOE sold:""
Lease OPErating EXPENSES .....c.ecveueereeereeereeereeseseeseseeseseeseseesessesessesessesesesesseseenas $ 4.15 % 6.63 § 8.23
Production and ad valorem taXes ...........cccoeceeeeririirienierieieieieieiee e $ 1.58 $ 201 $ 4.29
MidStream SEIVICE EXPENSES ......cuvivireerereereeeereereseeseseeseseeseseesessesessesesseseseresseseenas $ 022 $ 036 $ 0.46
General and administrative:
CASIL ettt eee s $ 345§ 403 $ 7.07
Non-cash stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized................... $ 161 § 1.50 § 1.97
Depletion, depreciation and amortization .................cceceeervevereeriererereresserereenennns $ 817 § 1699 $ 21.01

(1) For the period prior to January 1, 2015, we presented our sales volumes, sales, average sales prices and average costs
per BOE sold for oil and natural gas, which combined NGL with the natural gas stream, and did not separately report
NGL. This change impacts the comparability of 2016 and 2015 with 2014.

(2) BOE is calculated using a conversion rate of six Mcf per one Bbl.

(3) The volumes presented are based on actual results and are not calculated using the rounded numbers presented in the
table above.

(4) Index oil prices are the simple average of the daily settlement price for NYMEX West Texas Intermediate Light Sweet
Crude Oil each month for the period indicated. Index NGL prices are the simple arithmetic average of the monthly
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)

(6)

average of the daily high and low prices for each NGL component during the month of delivery as reported for Mont
Belvieu, Texas by the Oil Price Information Service using the Purity Ethane price for the ethane component and the
Non-TET prices for the propane, butane and natural gasoline components multiplied by the simple arithmetic average
of the monthly average percentage makeup of each NGL component in Laredo's composite NGL barrel. Index natural
gas prices are the simple arithmetic average of each month's settlement price of the NYMEX Henry Hub natural gas
First Nearby Month Contract upon expiration.

Realized oil, NGL and natural gas prices are the actual prices realized at the wellhead adjusted for quality,
transportation fees, geographical differentials, marketing bonuses or deductions and other factors affecting the price
received at the wellhead. The prices presented are based on actual results and are not calculated using the rounded
numbers presented in the table above.

Hedged prices reflect the after-effects of our hedging transactions on our average sales prices. Our calculation of such
after-effects includes current period settlements of matured derivatives in accordance with GAAP and an adjustment to
reflect premiums incurred previously or upon settlement that are attributable to instruments that settled in the period.
The prices presented are based on actual results and are not calculated using the rounded numbers presented in the
table above.

Productive wells

The following table sets forth certain information regarding productive wells in each of our core areas as of

December 31, 2016. All but three of our wells are classified as oil wells, all of which also produce liquids-rich natural gas and
condensate. Wells are classified as oil or natural gas wells according to the predominant production stream. We also own
royalty and overriding royalty interests in a small number of wells in which we do not own a working interest.

Total producing wells

Gross Net
Vertical Horizontal Total Total Average WI %

Permian Basin:
Operated Permian-Garden City........cccecvvvvenennene 854 281 1,135 1,074 95%
Non-operated Permian-Garden City ....................... 53 6 59 14 24%
Other Properties .........ceveverererenenenieieieeeeeeeceeens — — — — —%
Total..oeeee e 907 287 1,194 1,088 91%

Acreage

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the developed and undeveloped acreage in which we own

an interest as of December 31, 2016 for each of our core operating areas, including acreage held by production ("HBP"). A

majority of our developed acreage is subject to liens securing our Senior Secured Credit Facility.
Developed acres Undeveloped acres Total acres %
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net HBP
Permian Basin ..................... 123,749 108,096 21,443 19,751 145,192 127,847 85%
Other properties................... — — 22,966 15,193 22,966 15,193 —%
0171 R 123,749 108,096 44,409 34,944 168,158 143,040 76%
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Undeveloped acreage expirations

The following table sets forth the gross and net undeveloped acreage in our core operating areas as of December 31,
2016 that will expire over the next four years unless production is established within the spacing units covering the acreage or
the lease is renewed or extended under continuous drilling provisions prior to the primary term expiration dates.

2017 2018 2019 2020
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Permian Basin........c.cccecevennne. 3,212 3,291 12,173 10,815 961 279 — —
Other properties ........ccccceeeenuenee. 15,794 10,902 6,652 4,122 520 170 — —
Total..ooeeecieeeeeeee 19,006 14,193 18,825 14,937 1,481 449 — —

Of the total undeveloped acreage identified as expiring over the next four years, 357 net acres have associated PUD
reserves as of December 31, 2016, and these locations are scheduled to be drilled in 2017 to hold the associated leases. These
PUD reserves represent 3.4% of our overall PUD reserves.

At December 31, 2015, 40 net acres of leasehold were identified as attributable to PUD reserves and potentially
expiring. All of the PUD reserves on those acres were drilled and completed in 2016.

Drilling activity

The following table summarizes our drilling activity for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. Gross
wells reflect the sum of all wells in which we own an interest. Net wells reflect the sum of our working interests in gross wells.

2016 2015 2014
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Development wells:
ProdUCIVE ..o 45 44.5 93 80.4 219 183.9
DY e — — — — —
Total development Wells............occovieviinieceeiicieieeieenn 45 44.5 93 80.4 219 183.9
Exploratory wells: -
ProdUCIVE ... — — 2 2.0 2 1.8
DY e 1 0.5 — — 1 1.0
Total exploratory Wells.........cccceevevieienieieiieieceeenn 1 0.5 2 2.0 3 2.8

Title to properties

We believe that we have satisfactory title to all of our producing properties in accordance with generally accepted
industry standards. As is customary in the industry, in the case of undeveloped properties, often cursory investigation of record
title is made at the time of lease acquisition. Investigations are made before the consummation of an acquisition of producing
properties and before commencement of drilling operations on undeveloped properties. Individual properties may be subject to
burdens that we believe do not materially interfere with the use or affect the value of the properties. Burdens on properties may
include customary royalty interests, liens incident to operating agreements and for current taxes, obligations or duties under
applicable laws, development obligations under oil and gas leases or net profit interests.

Oil and natural gas leases

The typical oil and natural gas lease agreement covering our properties provides for the payment of royalties to the
mineral owner for all oil, NGL and natural gas produced from any wells drilled on the leased premises. The lessor royalties and
other leasehold burdens on our properties generally range from 12.5% to 25%, resulting in a net revenue interest to us generally
ranging from 75% to 87.5%. As of December 31, 2016, 76% of all of our net leasehold acreage was held by production and
85% of our Permian-Garden City acreage was held by production.

Seasonality

Demand for oil and natural gas generally decreases during the spring and fall months and increases during the summer
and winter months. However, seasonal anomalies such as mild winters or mild summers sometimes lessen this fluctuation. In
addition, certain natural gas users utilize natural gas storage facilities and purchase some of their anticipated winter
requirements during the summer. This can also lessen seasonal demand fluctuations. These seasonal anomalies can increase
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competition for equipment, supplies and personnel during the spring and summer months, which could lead to shortages and
increase costs or delay our operations.

Competition

The oil and natural gas industry is intensely competitive, and we compete with a wide range of companies in our
industry, including those that have greater resources than we do and those that are smaller with fewer ongoing obligations.
Many of the larger companies not only explore for and produce oil and natural gas, but also carry on refining operations and
market petroleum and other products on a regional, national or worldwide basis. Many of the smaller companies have a lower
cost structure and more liquidity. These companies may be able to pay more for productive properties and exploratory locations
or evaluate, bid for and purchase a greater number of properties and locations than our financial or human resources permit and
may be able to expend greater resources to attract and maintain industry personnel. In addition, these companies may have a
greater ability to continue exploration and production activities during periods of low market prices. Our larger competitors
may be able to absorb the burden of existing, and any changes to, federal, state and local laws and regulations more easily than
we can, which would adversely affect our competitive position. Our ability to acquire additional properties and to discover
reserves in the future will be dependent upon our ability to evaluate and select suitable properties and to consummate
transactions in a highly competitive environment. In addition, because of the inherent advantages of some of our competitors,
those companies may have an advantage in bidding for exploratory and producing properties.

Hydraulic fracturing

We use hydraulic fracturing as a means to maximize the productivity of almost every well that we drill and complete.
Hydraulic fracturing is a necessary part of the completion process for our producing properties in Texas because our properties
are dependent upon our ability to effectively fracture the producing formations in order to produce at economic rates. We are
currently conducting hydraulic fracturing activity in the completion of our wells in the Permian Basin. While hydraulic
fracturing is not required to maintain any of our leasehold acreage that is currently held by production from existing wells, it
will be required in the future to develop the proved non-producing and proved undeveloped reserves associated with this
acreage. Nearly all of our proved developed non-producing and proved undeveloped reserves associated with future drilling,
recompletion and refracture stimulation projects require hydraulic fracturing.

We have and continue to follow standard industry practices and applicable legal requirements. State and federal
regulators impose requirements on our operations designed to ensure protection of human health and the environment. These
protective measures include setting surface casing at a depth sufficient to protect fresh water formations, and cementing the
well to create a permanent isolating barrier between the casing pipe and surrounding geological formations. It is believed that
this well design effectively eliminates a pathway for the fracturing fluid to contact any aquifers during the hydraulic fracturing
operations. For recompletions of existing wells, the production casing is pressure tested prior to perforating the new completion
interval.

Injection rates and pressures are monitored instantaneously and in real time at the surface during our hydraulic
fracturing operations. Pressure is monitored on both the injection string and the immediate annulus to the injection string.
Hydraulic fracturing operations would be shut down immediately if an abrupt change occurred to the injection pressure or
annular pressure.

Certain state regulations require disclosure of the components in the solutions used in hydraulic fracturing operations.
Approximately 99% of the hydraulic fracturing fluids we use are made up of water and sand. The remainder of the constituents
in the fracturing fluid are managed and used in accordance with applicable requirements. In accordance with Texas regulations,
we report the constituents of the hydraulic fracturing fluids utilized in our well completions on FracFocus (www.fracfocus.org).
Hydraulic fracture stimulation requires the use of a significant volume of water. Upon flowback of the water, we dispose of it
by recycling or by discharging into approved disposal wells, so as to minimize the potential for impact to nearby surface water.
We currently do not discharge water to the surface. Based upon results of testing the performance of recycled flowback/
produced water in our fracing operations on a limited number of wells, we have constructed and operate a water recycle facility
on one of our production corridors and anticipate expanding our recycling activities in the future.

For information regarding existing and proposed governmental regulations regarding hydraulic fracturing and related
environmental matters, please read "-Regulation of environmental and occupational health and safety matters-Water and other
waste discharges and spills." For related risks to our stockholders, please read "Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks related to our
business—Federal and state legislation and regulatory initiatives relating to hydraulic fracturing and water disposal wells could
prohibit projects or result in materially increased costs and additional operating restrictions or delays because of the
significance of hydraulic fracturing and water disposal wells in our business."
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Regulation of the oil and natural gas industry

Our operations are substantially affected by federal, state and local laws and regulations. In particular, the production
of oil and natural gas is subject to regulation under a wide range of local, state and federal statutes, rules, orders and
regulations. Federal, state and local statutes and regulations require permits for drilling operations, drilling bonds and reports
concerning operations. The State of Texas has regulations governing environmental and conservation matters, including
provisions for the pooling of oil and natural gas properties, the permitting of allocation wells, the establishment of maximum
allowable rates of production from oil and natural gas wells (including the proration of production to the market demand for oil
and natural gas), the regulation of well spacing, the handling and disposing or discharge of waste materials and plugging and
abandonment of wells. The effect of these regulations is to limit the amount of oil and natural gas that we can produce from our
wells and to limit the number of wells or the locations at which we can drill, although we can apply for exceptions to such
regulations or to have reductions in well spacing. Moreover, Texas imposes a production or severance tax with respect to the
production and sale of oil, NGL and natural gas within its jurisdiction. Texas further regulates drilling and operating activities
by requiring, among other things, permits for the drilling of wells, maintaining bonding requirements in order to drill or operate
wells, and regulating the location of wells, the method of drilling and casing wells, the surface use and restoration of properties
upon which wells are drilled and the plugging and abandonment of wells. The failure to comply with these rules and
regulations can result in substantial penalties. Our competitors in the oil and natural gas industry are subject to the same
regulatory requirements and restrictions that affect our operations.

The regulatory burden on the industry increases the cost of doing business and affects profitability. Additional
proposals and proceedings that affect the natural gas industry are regularly considered by the new administration, Congress, the
states, the Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"), Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") and the courts. We
cannot predict when or whether any such proposals may become effective.

We believe we are in substantial compliance with currently applicable laws and regulations and that continued
substantial compliance with existing requirements will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, cash flows
or results of operations. However, current regulatory requirements may change, currently unforeseen environmental incidents
may occur or past non-compliance with environmental laws or regulations may be discovered, and such laws and regulations
are frequently amended or reinterpreted. Therefore, we are unable to predict the future costs or impacts of compliance.

Regulation of environmental and occupational health and safety matters

Our operations are subject to numerous stringent federal, state and local statutes and regulations governing the
discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to protection of the environment or occupational health and
safety. Numerous governmental agencies, such as the EPA, issue regulations that often require difficult and costly compliance
measures, the noncompliance with which carries substantial administrative, civil and criminal penalties and may result in
injunctive obligations to remediate noncompliance. These laws and regulations may require the acquisition of a permit before
drilling commences, restrict the types, quantities and concentrations of various substances that can be released into the
environment in connection with drilling, production and transporting through pipelines, govern the sourcing and disposal of
water used in the drilling, completion and production process, limit or prohibit drilling activities in certain areas and on certain
lands lying within wilderness, wetlands, frontier, seismically active areas and other protected areas, require some form of
remedial action to prevent or mitigate pollution from current or former operations such as plugging abandoned wells or closing
earthen pits, result in the suspension or revocation of necessary permits, licenses and authorizations, require that additional
pollution controls be installed and impose substantial liabilities for pollution resulting from operations or failure to comply with
regulatory filings. In addition, these laws and regulations may restrict the rate of production. Certain of these laws and
regulations impose strict liability (i.e., no showing of "fault" is required) that, in some circumstances, may be joint and several.
Public interest in the protection of the environment has increased dramatically in recent years. The trend of more expansive and
stringent environmental legislation and regulations applied to the oil and natural gas industry could continue, resulting in
increased costs of doing business and consequently affecting profitability. Changes in environmental laws and regulations occur
frequently, and to the extent laws are enacted or other governmental action is taken that restricts drilling or imposes more
stringent and costly operating, waste handling, disposal and clean-up requirements, our business and prospects, as well as the
oil and natural gas industry in general, could be materially adversely affected.

Hazardous substance and waste handling

Our operations are subject to environmental laws and regulations relating to the management and release of hazardous
substances, solid and hazardous wastes, and petroleum hydrocarbons. These laws generally regulate the generation, storage,
treatment, transportation and disposal of solid and hazardous waste and may impose strict and, in some cases, joint and several
liability for the investigation and remediation of affected areas where hazardous substances may have been released or
disposed. The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, as amended, referred to as CERCLA
or the Superfund law, and comparable state laws, impose liability, without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct,
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on certain classes of persons deemed "responsible parties." These persons include current owners or operators of the site where
a release of hazardous substances occurred, prior owners or operators that owned or operated the site at the time of the release
or disposal of hazardous substances, and companies that disposed or arranged for the disposal of the hazardous substances
found at the site. Under CERCLA, these persons may be subject to strict and joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning
up the hazardous substances that have been released into the environment, for damages to natural resources and for the costs of
certain health studies. CERCLA also authorizes the EPA and, in some instances, third parties to act in response to threats to the
public health or the environment and to seek to recover the costs they incur from the responsible classes of persons. Despite the
"petroleum exclusion" of Section 101(14) of CERCLA, which currently encompasses natural gas, we may nonetheless handle
hazardous substances within the meaning of CERCLA, or similar state statutes, in the course of our ordinary operations and, as
a result, may be jointly and severally liable under CERCLA for all or part of the costs required to clean up sites at which these
hazardous substances have been released into the environment. In addition, we may have liability for releases of hazardous
substances at our properties by prior owners or operators or other third parties. Finally, it is not uncommon for neighboring
landowners and other third parties to file common law based claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly caused
by hazardous substances or other pollutants released into the environment.

The Oil Pollution Act of 1990 (the "OPA") is the primary federal law imposing oil spill liability. The OPA contains
numerous requirements relating to the prevention of and response to petroleum releases into waters of the United States,
including the requirement that operators of offshore facilities and certain onshore facilities near or crossing waterways must
maintain certain significant levels of financial assurance to cover potential environmental cleanup and restoration costs. Under
the OPA, strict, joint and several liability may be imposed on "responsible parties" for all containment and clean-up costs and
certain other damages arising from a release, including, but not limited to, the costs of responding to a release of oil to surface
waters and natural resource damages, resulting from oil spills into or upon navigable waters, adjoining shorelines or in the
exclusive economic zone of the United States. A "responsible party" includes the owner or operator of an onshore facility. The
OPA establishes a liability limit for onshore facilities, but these liability limits may not apply if: a spill is caused by a party's
gross negligence or willful misconduct; the spill resulted from violation of a federal safety, construction or operating regulation;
or a party fails to report a spill or to cooperate fully in a clean-up. We are also subject to analogous state statutes that impose
liabilities with respect to oil spills.

We also generate solid wastes, including hazardous wastes, which are subject to the requirements of the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended ("RCRA"), and comparable state statutes. Although RCRA regulates both solid
and hazardous wastes, it imposes strict requirements on the generation, storage, treatment, transportation and disposal of
hazardous wastes. Certain petroleum production wastes are excluded from RCRA's hazardous waste regulations. These wastes,
instead, are regulated under RCRA's less stringent solid waste provisions, state laws or other federal laws. It is also possible
that these wastes, which could include wastes currently generated during our operations, will be designated as "hazardous
wastes" in the future and, therefore, be subject to more rigorous and costly disposal requirements. Indeed, legislation has been
proposed from time to time in Congress to re-categorize certain oil and natural gas exploration and production wastes as
"hazardous wastes." Also, in January 2017, the EPA agreed in a consent decree to review its regulation of oil and gas waste. It
has until March 2019 to determine whether any revisions are necessary. Any such changes in the laws and regulations could
have a material adverse effect on our maintenance capital expenditures and operating expenses.

We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the requirements of CERCLA, RCRA, OPA and related state
and local laws and regulations, and that we hold all necessary and up-to-date permits, registrations and other authorizations
required under such laws and regulations. Although we believe that the current costs of managing our wastes as they are
presently classified are reflected in our budget, any legislative or regulatory reclassification of oil and natural gas exploration
and production wastes could increase our costs to manage and dispose of such wastes.

Water and other waste discharges and spills

The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, also known as the Clean Water Act, the Safe Drinking Water
Act ("SDWA"), the OPA and comparable state laws impose restrictions and strict controls regarding the discharge of pollutants,
including produced waters and other natural gas wastes, into federal and state waters. The discharge of pollutants into regulated
waters is prohibited, except in accordance with the terms of a permit issued by the EPA or the state. The discharge of dredge
and fill material in regulated waters, including wetlands, is also prohibited, unless authorized by a permit issued by the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers. The EPA has also adopted regulations requiring certain oil and natural gas exploration and
production facilities to obtain individual permits or coverage under general permits for storm water discharges. Costs may be
associated with the treatment of wastewater or developing and implementing storm water pollution prevention plans, as well as
for monitoring and sampling the storm water runoff from certain of our facilities. The State of Texas also maintains
groundwater protection programs that require permits for discharges or operations that may impact groundwater conditions.
The underground injection of fluids is subject to permitting and other requirements under state laws and regulation. Obtaining
permits has the potential to delay the development of oil and natural gas projects. These same regulatory programs also limit
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the total volume of water that can be discharged, hence limiting the rate of development, and require us to incur compliance
costs.

These laws and any implementing regulations provide for administrative, civil and criminal penalties for any
unauthorized discharges of oil and other substances and may impose substantial potential liability for the costs of removal,
remediation and damages. Pursuant to these laws and regulations, we may be required to obtain and maintain approvals or
permits for the discharge of wastewater or storm water and the underground injection of fluids and are required to develop and
implement spill prevention, control and countermeasure plans, also referred to as "SPCC plans," in connection with on-site
storage of significant quantities of oil. We maintain all required discharge permits necessary to conduct our operations, and we
believe we are in substantial compliance with their terms.

Hydraulic fracturing

Hydraulic fracturing is a practice that is used to stimulate production of hydrocarbons from tight formations. The
process involves the injection of water, sand and chemicals under pressure into the formation to fracture the surrounding rock
and stimulate production. The SDWA regulates the underground injection of substances through the Underground Injection
Control Program (the "UIC"). However, hydraulic fracturing is generally exempt from regulation under the UIC, and thus the
process is typically regulated by state oil and gas commissions. Nevertheless, the EPA has asserted federal regulatory authority
over hydraulic fracturing involving diesel additives under the UIC. Under this assertion of authority, the EPA requires facilities
to obtain permits to use diesel fuel in hydraulic fracturing operations, specifically in Class II wells, which are those wells
injecting fluids associated with oil and natural gas production activities. The U.S. Energy Policy Act of 2005, which exempts
hydraulic fracturing from regulation under the SDWA, prohibits the use of diesel fuel in the fracturing process without a UIC
permit. On February 12, 2014, the EPA published a revised UIC Program permitting guidance for oil and natural gas hydraulic
fracturing activities using diesel fuel. The guidance document describes how Class II regulations may be tailored to address the
purported unique risks of diesel fuel injection during the hydraulic fracturing process. Although the EPA is not the permitting
authority for UIC Class II programs in Texas, where we maintain acreage, the EPA is encouraging state programs to review and
consider use of this permit guidance. Furthermore, legislation has been proposed in recent sessions of Congress to repeal the
hydraulic fracturing exemption from the SDWA, provide for federal regulation of hydraulic fracturing and require public
disclosure of the chemicals used in the fracturing process.

In addition, the EPA plans to develop a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking by June 2018, which would describe a
proposed mechanism-regulatory, voluntary, or a combination of both-to collect data on hydraulic fracturing chemical
substances and mixtures. Also, on June 28, 2016, the EPA published a final rule prohibiting the discharge of wastewater from
onshore unconventional oil and gas extraction facilities to publicly owned wastewater treatment plants. The EPA is also
conducting a study of private wastewater treatment facilities (also known as centralized waste treatment, or CWT, facilities)
accepting oil and gas extraction wastewater. The EPA is collecting data and information related to the extent to which CWT
facilities accept such wastewater, available treatment technologies (and their associated costs), discharge characteristics,
financial characteristics of CWT facilities, and the environmental impacts of discharges from CWT facilities. We cannot predict
the impact that these standards may have on our business at this time, but these standards could have a material impact on our
business, financial condition and results of operation.

Also, on March 26, 2015, the Bureau of Land Management (the "BLM") published a final rule governing hydraulic
fracturing on federal and Indian lands. The rule requires public disclosure of chemicals used in hydraulic fracturing,
implementation of a casing and cementing program, management of recovered fluids, and submission to the BLM of detailed
information about the proposed operation, including wellbore geology, the location of faults and fractures, and the depths of all
usable water. On June 21, 2016, the United States District Court for Wyoming set aside the rule, holding that the BLM lacked
Congressional authority to promulgate the rule. The BLM has appealed the decision to the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals.

Furthermore, there are certain governmental reviews either underway or being proposed that focus on environmental
aspects of hydraulic fracturing practices. For example, the EPA is currently reviewing the potential adverse effects that
hydraulic fracturing may have on water quality and public health. On December 13, 2016, the EPA released a study examining
the potential for hydraulic fracturing activities to impact drinking water resources, finding that, under some circumstances, the
use of water in hydraulic fracturing activities can impact drinking water resources. Also, on February 6, 2015, the EPA released
a report with findings and recommendations related to public concern about induced seismic activity from disposal wells. The
report recommends strategies for managing and minimizing the potential for significant injection-induced seismic events. Other
governmental agencies, including the U.S. Department of Energy, the U.S. Geological Survey, and the U.S. Government
Accountability Office, have evaluated or are evaluating various other aspects of hydraulic fracturing. These ongoing or
proposed studies, depending on their degree of pursuit and any meaningful results obtained, could spur initiatives to further
regulate hydraulic fracturing under the SDWA or other regulatory mechanism.
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Some states have adopted, and other states are considering adopting, regulations that could restrict hydraulic fracturing
in certain circumstances, impose additional requirements on hydraulic fracturing activities or otherwise require the public
disclosure of chemicals used in the hydraulic fracturing process. For example, pursuant to legislation adopted by the State of
Texas in June 2011, beginning February 1, 2012, companies were required to disclose to the RRC and the public the chemical
components used in the hydraulic fracturing process, as well as the volume of water used. Also, in May 2013, the RRC adopted
new rules governing well casing, cementing and other standards for ensuring that hydraulic fracturing operations do not
contaminate nearby water resources. The new rules took effect in January 2014. Additionally, on October 28, 2014, the RRC
adopted disposal well rule amendments designed, among other things, to require applicants for new disposal wells that will
receive non-hazardous produced water and hydraulic fracturing flowback fluid to conduct seismic activity searches utilizing the
U.S. Geological Survey. The searches are intended to determine the potential for earthquakes within a circular area of 100
square miles around a proposed, new disposal well. The disposal well rule amendments, which became effective on November
17,2014, also clarify the RRC's authority to modify, suspend or terminate a disposal well permit if scientific data indicates a
disposal well is likely to contribute to seismic activity. The RRC has used this authority to deny permits for waste disposal
wells. In addition to state law, local land use restrictions, such as city ordinances, may restrict or prohibit the performance of
well drilling in general and/or hydraulic fracturing in particular.

A number of lawsuits and enforcement actions have been initiated across the country alleging that hydraulic fracturing
practices have induced seismic activity and adversely impacted drinking water supplies, use of surface water, and the
environment generally. Several states and municipalities have adopted, or are considering adopting, regulations that could
restrict or prohibit hydraulic fracturing in certain circumstances. If these or any other new laws or regulations that significantly
restrict hydraulic fracturing are adopted, such laws could make it more difficult or costly for us to drill and produce from tight
formations as well as make it easier for third parties opposing the hydraulic fracturing process to initiate legal proceedings. In
addition, if hydraulic fracturing is regulated at the federal level, fracturing activities could become subject to additional
permitting and financial assurance requirements, more stringent construction specifications, increased monitoring, reporting
and recordkeeping obligations, plugging and abandonment requirements and also to attendant permitting delays and potential
increases in costs. These developments, as well as new laws or regulations, could cause us to incur substantial compliance
costs, and compliance or the consequences of failure to comply by us could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. At this time, it is not possible to estimate the potential impact on our business that may arise
if federal or state legislation governing hydraulic fracturing is enacted into law.

Air emissions

The federal Clean Air Act, as amended, and comparable state laws restrict the emission of air pollutants from many
sources, including compressor stations, through the issuance of permits and the imposition of other requirements. In addition,
the EPA has developed, and continues to develop, stringent regulations governing emissions of toxic air pollutants at specified
sources. These laws and regulations may require us to obtain pre-approval for the construction or modification of certain
projects or facilities expected to produce or significantly increase air emissions, obtain and strictly comply with stringent air
permit requirements or utilize specific equipment or technologies to control emissions of certain pollutants. The need to obtain
permits has the potential to delay the development of oil and natural gas projects.

In August 2012, the EPA published final rules that subject oil and natural gas production, processing, transmission, and
storage operations to regulation under the New Source Performance Standards ("NSPS") and National Emission Standards for
Hazardous Air Pollutants ("NESHAP"). The rule includes NSPS for completions of hydraulically fractured gas wells and
establishes specific new requirements for emissions from compressors, controllers, dehydrators, storage vessels, natural gas
processing plants and certain other equipment. The final rule seeks to achieve a 95% reduction in volatile organic compounds
("VOC") emitted by requiring the use of reduced emission completions or "green completions" on all hydraulically-fractured
wells constructed or refractured after January 1, 2015. The EPA received numerous requests for reconsideration of these rules
from both industry and the environmental community, and court challenges to the rules were also filed. In response, the EPA
has issued, and will likely continue to issue, revised rules responsive to some of these requests for reconsideration. In
particular, on May 12, 2016, the EPA amended its regulations to impose new standards for methane and VOC emissions for
certain new, modified and reconstructed equipment, processes and activities across the oil and natural gas sector. On the same
day, the EPA finalized a plan to implement its minor new source review program on federal and Indian lands for oil and natural
gas production, and it issued for public comment an information request that will require companies to provide extensive
information instrumental for the development of regulations to reduce methane emissions from existing oil and gas sources. In
addition, on November 15, 2016, the BLM finalized a rule to reduce the flaring, venting and leaking of methane from oil and
gas operations on federal and Indian lands. The rule requires operators to use currently available technologies and equipment to
reduce flaring, periodically inspect their operations for leaks, and replace outdated equipment that vents large quantities of gas
into the air. The rule also clarifies when operators owe the government royalties for flared gas. State and industry groups have
challenged this rule in federal court, asserting that the BLM lacks authority to prescribe air quality regulations. These standards,
as well as any future laws and their implementing regulations, may require us to obtain pre-approval for the expansion or
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modification of existing facilities or the construction of new facilities expected to produce air emissions, impose stringent air
permit requirements, or utilize specific equipment or technologies to control emissions. Our failure to comply with these
requirements could subject us to monetary penalties, injunctions, conditions or restrictions on operations and, potentially,
criminal enforcement actions.

We have incurred additional capital expenditures to insure compliance with these new regulations as they come into
effect. We may also be required to incur additional capital expenditures in the next few years for air pollution control
equipment in connection with maintaining or obtaining operating permits addressing other air emission related issues, which
may have a material adverse effect on our operations. Obtaining permits also has the potential to delay the development of oil
and natural gas projects. We believe that we currently are in substantial compliance with all air emissions regulations and that
we hold all necessary and valid construction and operating permits for our current operations.

Regulation of "greenhouse gas" emissions

Congress has from time to time considered legislation to reduce emissions of greenhouse gases ("GHGs") and almost
one-half of the states have already taken legal measures to reduce emissions of GHGs through the planned development of
GHG emission inventories and/or regional GHG cap and trade programs. Most cap and trade programs work by requiring
major sources of emissions, such as electric power plants, or major producers of fuels, such as refineries and gas processing
plants, to acquire and surrender emission allowances corresponding with their annual emissions of GHGs. The number of
allowances available for purchase is reduced each year until the overall GHG emission reduction goal is achieved. As the
number of GHG emission allowances declines each year, the cost or value of allowances is expected to escalate significantly.
Some states have enacted renewable portfolio standards, which require utilities to purchase a certain percentage of their energy
from renewable fuel sources.

In addition, in December 2009, the EPA determined that emissions of carbon dioxide, methane and other GHGs
present an endangerment to human health and the environment, because emissions of such gases are, according to the EPA,
contributing to warming of the earth's atmosphere and other climatic changes. These findings by the EPA allow the agency to
proceed with the adoption and implementation of regulations that would restrict emissions of GHGs under existing provisions
of the federal Clean Air Act. In response to its endangerment finding, the EPA adopted two sets of rules regarding possible
future regulation of GHG emissions under the Clean Air Act. The motor vehicle rule, which became effective in July 2010,
purports to limit emissions of GHGs from motor vehicles. The EPA adopted the stationary source rule (or the "tailoring rule")
in May 2010, and it became effective in January 2011. The tailoring rule established new GHG emissions thresholds that
determine when stationary sources must obtain permits under the Prevention of Significant Deterioration ("PSD") and Title V
programs of the Clean Air Act. On June 23, 2014, in Utility Air Regulatory Group v. EPA ("UARG v. EPA"), the Supreme Court
held that stationary sources could not become subject to PSD or Title V permitting solely by reason of their GHG emissions.
The Court ruled, however, that the EPA may require installation of best available control technology for GHG emissions at
sources otherwise subject to the PSD and Title V programs. On August 26, 2016, the EPA proposed changes needed to bring the
EPA’s air permitting regulations in line with the Supreme Court’s decision on greenhouse gas permitting. The proposed rule
was published in the Federal Register on October 3, 2016 and the public comment period closed on December 2, 2016.

In September 2009, the EPA issued a final rule requiring the reporting of GHG emissions from specified large GHG
emission sources in the U.S., including NGL fractionators and local natural gas/distribution companies, beginning in 2011 for
emissions occurring in 2010. In November 2010, the EPA published a final rule expanding the GHG reporting rule to include
onshore oil and natural gas production, processing, transmission, storage and distribution facilities. This rule requires reporting
of GHG emissions from such facilities on an annual basis, with reporting beginning in 2012 for emissions occurring in 2011. In
October 2015, the EPA amended the GHG reporting rule to add reporting of GHG emissions from gathering and boosting
systems, completions and workovers of oil wells using hydraulic fracturing, and blowdowns of natural gas transmission
pipelines.

The EPA has continued to adopt GHG regulations applicable to other industries, such as its August 2015 adoption of
three separate, but related, actions to address carbon dioxide pollution from power plants, including final Carbon Pollution
Standards for new, modified and reconstructed power plants, a final Clean Power Plan to cut carbon dioxide pollution from
existing power plants, and a proposed federal plan to implement the Clean Power Plan emission guidelines. Upon publication
of the Clean Power Plan on October 23, 2015, more than two dozen States as well as industry and labor groups challenged the
Clean Power Plan in the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals. On February 9, 2016, the U.S. Supreme Court stayed the Clean Power
Plan pending disposition of the legal challenges. Nevertheless, as a result of the continued regulatory focus, future GHG
regulations of the oil and gas industry remain a possibility.

In December 2015, the United States participated in the 21st Conference of the Parties ("COP-21") of the United
Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change in Paris, France. The resulting Paris Agreement calls for the parties to
undertake "ambitious efforts" to limit the average global temperature, and to conserve and enhance sinks and reservoirs of
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GHGs. The Paris Agreement went into effect on November 4, 2016. The Paris Agreement establishes a framework for the
parties to cooperate and report actions to reduce GHG emissions. Also, on June 29, 2016, the leaders of the United States,
Canada and Mexico announced an Action Plan to, among other things, boost clean energy, improve energy efficiency and
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The Action Plan specifically calls for a reduction in methane emissions from the oil and gas
sector by 40% to 45% by 2025.

Restrictions on GHG emissions that may be imposed could adversely affect the oil and gas industry. The adoption of
legislation or regulatory programs to reduce GHG emissions could require us to incur increased operating costs, such as costs
to purchase and operate emissions control systems, to acquire emissions allowances or comply with new regulatory
requirements. Any GHG emissions legislation or regulatory programs applicable to power plants or refineries could also
increase the cost of consuming, and thereby reduce demand for, the oil and natural gas we produce. Consequently, legislation
and regulatory programs to reduce GHG emissions could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. It remains unclear whether and how the results of the 2016 U.S. presidential and congressional elections could
impact the regulation of greenhouse gas emissions at the federal and state level.

In addition, claims have been made against certain energy companies alleging that GHG emissions from oil and
natural gas operations constitute a public nuisance under federal and/or state common law. As a result, private individuals may
seek to enforce environmental laws and regulations against us and could allege personal injury or property damages. While our
business is not a party to any such litigation, we could be named in actions making similar allegations. An unfavorable ruling in
any such case could significantly impact our operations and could have an adverse impact on our financial condition.

Moreover, there has been public discussion that climate change may be associated with extreme weather conditions
such as more intense hurricanes, thunderstorms, tornados and snow or ice storms, as well as rising sea levels. Another possible
consequence of climate change is increased volatility in seasonal temperatures. Some studies indicate that climate change could
cause some areas to experience temperatures substantially colder than their historical averages. Extreme weather conditions can
interfere with our production and increase our costs and damage resulting from extreme weather may not be fully insured.
However, at this time, we are unable to determine the extent to which climate change may lead to increased storm or weather
hazards affecting our operations.

Occupational Safety and Health Act

We are also subject to the requirements of the federal Occupational Safety and Health Act, as amended ("OSHA") and
comparable state laws that regulate the protection of the health and safety of employees. In addition, OSHA's hazard
communication standard requires that information be maintained about hazardous materials used or produced in our operations
and that this information be provided to employees, state and local government authorities and citizens. We believe that our
operations are in substantial compliance with the OSHA requirements.

National Environmental Policy Act

Oil and natural gas exploration and production activities on federal lands are subject to the National Environmental
Policy Act ("NEPA"). NEPA requires federal agencies, including the Departments of Interior and Agriculture, to evaluate major
agency actions having the potential to significantly impact the environment. In the course of such evaluations, an agency
prepares an environmental assessment to evaluate the potential direct, indirect and cumulative impacts of a proposed project. If
impacts are considered significant, the agency will prepare a more detailed environmental impact study that is made available
for public review and comment. Any exploration and production activities, as well as proposed exploration and development
plans, on federal lands would require governmental permits that are subject to the requirements of NEPA. This environmental
impact assessment process has the potential to delay the development of oil and natural gas projects. Authorizations under
NEPA also are subject to protest, appeal or litigation, which can delay or halt projects.

Endangered Species Act

The Endangered Species Act ("ESA") was established to protect endangered and threatened species. Pursuant to the
ESA, if a species is listed as threatened or endangered, restrictions may be imposed on activities adversely affecting that
species or its habitat. Similar protections are offered to migratory birds under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act. The U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service may designate critical habitat and suitable habitat areas that it believes are necessary for survival of a
threatened or endangered species. A critical habitat or suitable habitat designation could result in further material restrictions to
federal land use and may materially delay or prohibit land access for oil and natural gas development. If we were to have a
portion of our leases designated as critical or suitable habitat, it could cause us to incur additional costs or become subject to
operating restrictions or bans in the affected areas, which could adversely impact the value of our leases.
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Summary

In summary, we believe we are in substantial compliance with currently applicable environmental laws and
regulations. Although we have not experienced any material adverse effect from compliance with environmental requirements,
there is no assurance that this will continue. We did not have any material capital or other non-recurring expenditures in
connection with complying with environmental laws or environmental remediation matters in 2016, 2015 or 2014.

Regulation of oil and gas pipelines

Our oil and gas pipelines are subject to construction, installation, operation and safety regulation by the U.S.
Department of Transportation (“DOT?”) and various other federal, state and local agencies. Congress has enacted several
pipeline safety acts over the years. Currently, the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration (“PHMSA”) under
DOT administers pipeline safety requirements for natural gas and hazardous liquid pipelines. These regulations, among other
things, address pipeline integrity management and pipeline operator qualification rules. In June 2016, Congress approved new
pipeline safety legislation, the “Protecting Our Infrastructure of Pipelines and Enhancing Safety Act of 2016” (the “PIPES
Act”), which provides the PHMSA with additional authority to address imminent hazards by imposing emergency restrictions,
prohibitions and safety measures on owners and operators of gas or hazardous liquids pipeline facilities. Significant expenses
could be incurred in the future if additional safety measures are required or if safety standards are raised and exceed the current
pipeline control system capabilities.

Recently, the PHMSA has proposed additional regulations for gas pipeline safety. For example, in March 2016, the
PHMSA proposed a rule that would expand integrity management requirements beyond "High Consequence Areas" to apply to
gas pipelines in newly defined "Moderate Consequence Areas." The public comment period closed on July 7, 2016. Also, on
January 10, 2017, the PHMSA approved final rules expanding its safety regulations for hazardous liquid pipelines by, among
other things, expanding the required use of leak detection systems, requiring more frequent testing for corrosion and other
flaws and requiring companies to inspect pipelines in areas affected by extreme weather or natural disasters. The final rule will
become effective six months after publication in the Federal Register. Because the executive branch of the Trump
administration has prohibited such publication until it has had time to review the pending regulations, it is not clear when, or if,
the final rules will become effective.

Disclosures required pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Exchange Act, we are required to include certain disclosures in our periodic reports if
we or any of our "affiliates" (as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act) knowingly engaged in certain specified
activities, transactions or dealings relating to Iran or with certain individuals or entities targeted by United States' economic
sanctions during the period covered by the report. Disclosure is generally required even where the activities, transactions or
dealings were conducted in compliance with applicable law. Neither we nor any of our controlled affiliates or subsidiaries
knowingly engaged in any of the specified activities relating to Iran or otherwise engaged in any activities associated with Iran
during the reporting period. However, because the SEC defines the term "affiliate" broadly, it includes any entity controlled by
us as well as any person or entity that controlled us or is under common control with us.

The description of the activities below has been provided to us by Warburg Pincus, affiliates of which: (i) beneficially
own more than 10% of our outstanding common stock and are members of our board of directors and (ii) beneficially own
more than 10% of the equity interests of, and have the right to designate members of the board of directors of Santander Asset
Management Investment Holdings Limited ("SAMIH"). SAMIH may therefore be deemed to be under "common control" with
us; however, this statement is not meant to be an admission that common control exists.

The disclosure below relates solely to activities conducted by SAMIH and its affiliates. The disclosure does not relate
to any activities conducted by Laredo or by Warburg Pincus and does not involve our or Warburg Pincus' management. Neither
Laredo nor Warburg Pincus had any involvement in or control over the disclosed activities of SAMIH, and neither Laredo nor
Warburg Pincus has independently verified or participated in the preparation of the disclosure. Neither Laredo nor Warburg
Pincus is representing as to the accuracy or completeness of the disclosure nor do we or Warburg Pincus undertake any
obligation to correct or update it.

Laredo understands that one or more SEC-reporting affiliates of SAMIH intends to disclose in its next annual or
quarterly SEC report that:

(a) "Santander UK plc ("Santander UK") holds two savings accounts and one current account for two customers
resident in the United Kingdom ("U.K.") who are currently designated by the United States ("U.S.") under the Specially
Designated Global Terrorist ("SDGT") sanctions program. Revenues and profits generated by Santander UK on these accounts
in the year ended December 31, 2016 were negligible relative to the overall revenues and profits of Banco Santander SA.
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(b) Santander UK held a savings account for a customer resident in the U.K. who is currently designated by the
U.S. under the SDGT sanctions program. The savings account was closed on July 26, 2016. Revenue generated by Santander
UK on this account in the year ended December 31, 2016 was negligible relative to the overall revenues and profits of Banco
Santander SA.

(c) Santander UK held a current account for a customer resident in the U.K. who is currently designated by the
U.S. under the SDGT sanctions program. The current account was closed on December 22, 2016. Revenue generated by
Santander UK on this account in the year ended December 31, 2016 was negligible relative to the overall revenues and profits
of Banco Santander SA.

(d) Santander UK holds two frozen current accounts for two U.K. nationals who are designated by the U.S. under
the SDGT sanctions program. The accounts held by each customer have been frozen since their designation and have remained
frozen through the year ended December 31, 2016. The accounts are in arrears (£1,844.73 in debit combined) and are currently
being managed by Santander UK Collections & Recoveries department. Revenues and profits generated by Santander UK on
these accounts in the year ended December 31, 2016 were negligible relative to the overall revenues and profits of Banco
Santander SA.

(e) During the year ended December 31, 2016, Santander UK had an Office of Foreign Assets Control match on
a power of attorney account. A party listed on the account is currently designated by the U.S. under the SDGT sanctions
program and the Iranian Financial Sanctions Regulations ("IFSR"). The power of attorney was removed from the account on
July 29, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2016, related revenues and profits generated by Santander UK were
negligible relative to the overall revenues and profits of Banco Santander SA.

® An Iranian national, resident in the UK, who is currently designated by the U.S. under the IFSR and the
Weapons of Mass Destruction Proliferators Sanctions Regulations, held a mortgage with Santander UK that was issued prior to
such designation. The mortgage account was redeemed and closed on April 13, 2016. No further draw down has been made (or
would be allowed) under this mortgage although Santander UK continued to receive repayment installments prior to
redemption. Revenues generated by Santander UK on this account in the year ended December 31, 2016 were negligible
relative to the overall revenues of Banco Santander SA. The same Iranian national also held two investment accounts with
Santander [SA Managers Limited. The funds within both accounts were invested in the same portfolio fund. The accounts
remained frozen until the investments were closed on May 12, 2016 and bank checks issued to the customer. Revenues
generated by Santander UK on these accounts in the year ended December 31, 2016 were negligible relative to the overall
revenues and profits of Banco Santander SA.

(2) In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2016, Santander UK held a basic current account for an
Iranian national, resident in the UK, previously designated under the Iranian Transactions and Sanctions Regulations. The
account was closed in September 2016. Revenues generated by Santander UK on this account in the year ended December 31,
2016 were negligible relative to the overall revenues and profits of Banco Santander SA."

Employees

As of December 31, 2016, we had 324 full-time employees. We also employed a total of 29 contract personnel who
assist our full-time employees with respect to specific tasks and perform various field and other services. Our future success
will depend partially on our ability to identify, attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel. We are not a party to any
collective bargaining agreements and have not experienced any strikes or work stoppages. We consider our relations with our
employees to be satisfactory.

Our offices

Our executive offices are located at 15 W. Sixth Street, Suite 900, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119, and the phone number at
this address is (918) 513-4570. We also lease corporate offices in Midland, Texas. On January 20, 2015, we announced the
closing of our Dallas, Texas area office. We are currently still subject to the lease covering this office space, but are actively
exploring alternative arrangements for its use.

Available information

We are required to file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC.
You may read and copy any documents filed by us with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. Our filings with the SEC are also available to the public from commercial document retrieval services and at
the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov.
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Our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "LPL." Our reports, proxy
statements and other information filed with the SEC can also be inspected and copied at the New York Stock Exchange, 20
Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

We also make available on our website (http://www.laredopetro.com) all of the documents that we file with the SEC,
free of charge, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with the SEC. Our Code of Conduct
and Business Ethics, Code of Ethics For Senior Financial Officers, Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of our
audit committee, compensation committee and nominating and corporate governance committee are also available on our
website and in print free of charge to any stockholder who requests them. Requests should be sent by mail to our corporate
secretary at our executive office at 15 W. Sixth Street, Suite 900, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119. Information contained on our
website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report. We intend to disclose on our website any amendments or
waivers to our Code of Ethics that are required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 5.05 of Form 8-K.

31



Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business involves a high degree of risk. If any of the following risks, or any risks described elsewhere in this
Annual Report, were actually to occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely
affected and the trading price of our shares could decline resulting in the loss of part or all of your investment. The risks
described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks not presently known to us or which we currently consider
immaterial may also adversely affect us.

Risks related to our business

Oil, NGL and natural gas prices are volatile. The continuing and extended volatility in oil, NGL and natural gas prices has
adversely affected, and may continue to adversely affect, our business, financial condition and results of operations and may
in the future affect our ability to meet our capital expenditure obligations and financial commitments as well as negatively
impact our stock price further.

The prices we receive for our oil, NGL and natural gas production heavily influence our revenue, profitability, access
to capital and future rate of growth. Oil, NGL and natural gas are commodities, and therefore, their prices are subject to wide
fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes in supply and demand. Historically, the market for oil, NGL and natural gas
has been volatile, and this volatility exhibited a negative trend in the second half of 2014 which has continued into the first
quarter of 2017. While prices have increased from recent lows, they are still significantly below previous highs. The market
will likely continue to be volatile in the future. The prices we receive for our production, and the levels of our production,
depend on numerous factors beyond our control. These factors include the following:

«  worldwide and regional economic and financial conditions impacting the global supply and demand for oil, NGL
and natural gas;

* actions of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries and state-controlled oil companies relating to oil,
NGL and natural gas production and price controls;

* the level of global oil, NGL and natural gas exploration and production;

*  the level of global oil, NGL and natural gas supplies, in particular due to supply growth from the United States;
»  foreign and domestic supply capabilities for oil, NGL and natural gas;

»  the price and quantity of U.S. imports and exports of oil, natural gas, including liquefied natural gas, and NGL;

*  political conditions in or affecting other oil, NGL and natural gas-producing countries, including the current
conflicts in the Middle East, and conditions in South America, Africa, Ukraine and Russia;

* the extent to which U.S. shale producers act as "swing producers" adding or subtracting to the world supply of oil,
NGL and natural gas;

» future regulations prohibiting or restricting our ability to apply hydraulic fracturing to our wells;

« current and future regulations regarding well spacing;

*  prevailing prices on local oil, NGL and natural gas price indexes in the areas in which we operate;

* localized and global supply and demand fundamentals and transportation availability;

e weather conditions;

* technological advances affecting energy consumption;

»  the price and availability of alternative fuels; and

*  domestic, local and foreign governmental regulation and taxes.

Lower oil, NGL and natural gas prices have and will continue to reduce our cash flows and borrowing ability. We may
be unable to obtain needed capital or financing on satisfactory terms, which could lead to a decline in our oil, NGL and natural
gas reserves as existing reserves are depleted. A continuing decrease in oil, NGL and natural gas prices could render
uneconomic a large portion of our exploration, development and exploitation projects. This has already resulted in us having to
make significant downward adjustments to our estimated proved reserves, and we may need to make further downward
adjustments in the future. Furthermore, under our Senior Secured Credit Facility, scheduled borrowing base redeterminations
occur on each May 1 and November 1, and the lenders have the right to call for an interim redetermination of the borrowing
base one time between any two redetermination dates and in other specified circumstances. A reduced borrowing base could
trigger repayment obligations under our Senior Secured Credit Facility. Also, lower oil, NGL and natural gas prices may cause

a further decline in our stock price. In addition, it is uncertain what impact the 2016 U.S. presidential and congressional
elections will have on the energy industry.
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Currently, we receive incremental cash flows as a result of our hedging activity. To the extent we are unable to obtain future
hedges at attractive prices or our derivative activities are not effective, our cash flows and financial condition may be
adversely impacted.

To achieve more predictable cash flows and reduce our exposure to adverse fluctuations in the prices of oil, NGL and
natural gas, we enter into derivative instrument contracts for a portion of our oil, NGL and natural gas production, including
swaps, collars, puts and basis swaps. In accordance with applicable accounting principles, we are required to record our
derivatives at fair market value, and they are included on our consolidated balance sheet as assets or liabilities and in our
consolidated statements of operations as gain (loss) on derivatives. Gain (loss) on derivatives are included in our cash flows
from operating activities. Accordingly, our earnings may fluctuate significantly as a result of changes in the fair market value of
our derivative instruments, including a decrease in earnings if the price of commodities increases above the price of hedges that
we have in place. Although our current hedges provide us with a benefit as they are priced above the current depressed prices
for oil, NGL and natural gas, as these hedges expire, there is significant uncertainty that we will be able to put new hedges in
place that will provide us with similar benefit.

Derivative instruments also expose us to the risk of financial loss in some circumstances, including when:

*  production is less than the volume covered by the derivative instruments;
«  the counter-party to the derivative instrument defaults on its contractual obligations;

« there is an increase in the differential between the underlying price in the derivative instrument and actual prices
received; or

» there are issues with regard to legal enforceability of such instruments.

For additional information regarding our hedging activities, please see "Item 7. Management's discussion and analysis
of financial condition and results of operations—Results of operations—Commodity derivatives."

Estimating reserves and future net revenues involves uncertainties. Decreases in oil, NGL and natural gas prices, increases
in service costs or negative revisions to reserve estimates or assumptions as to future oil, NGL and natural gas prices, may
lead to decreased earnings and losses or impairment of oil, NGL and natural gas assets.

The reserve data included in this Annual Report represent estimates. Reserves estimation is a subjective process of
evaluating underground accumulations of oil, NGL and natural gas that cannot be measured in an exact manner. Reserves that
are "proved reserves" are those estimated quantities of oil, NGL and natural gas that geological and engineering data
demonstrate with reasonable certainty are recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and
operating conditions and that relate to specific locations for which the extraction of hydrocarbons must have commenced or the
operator must be reasonably certain will commence within a five-year period.

The estimation process relies on interpretations of available geological, geophysical, engineering and production data.
There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves and in projecting future rates of
production and timing of developmental expenditures, including higher decline curves in the first year of production and many
other factors beyond the control of the producer. In addition, the estimates of future net revenues from our proved reserves and
the present value of such estimates are based upon certain assumptions about future production levels, prices and costs that may
not prove to be correct. Further, initial production rates reported by us or other operators may not be indicative of future or
long-term production rates. A production decline may be rapid and irregular when compared to a well's initial production.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company's positive revision of 34,082 MBOE of previously estimated
quantities is primarily attributable to the combination of positive performance, lower operating costs and other changes to
proved developed producing wells. However, in both 2014 and 2015 the Company had negative revisions of estimated
quantities primarily due to a sharp decline in commodity prices. Although the Company had a positive revision in 2016, it is
possible that the Company will have negative revisions in the future.

Negative revisions in the estimated quantities of proved reserves have the effect of increasing the rates of depletion on
the affected properties, which decrease earnings or result in losses through higher depletion expense. These revisions, as well as
revisions in the assumptions of future cash flows of these reserves, may also trigger impairment losses on certain properties,
which would result in a non-cash charge to earnings. See Note 20.d to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere
in this Annual Report.

As a result of the sustained decrease in prices for oil, NGL and natural gas, we have taken and may be required to take
further write-downs of the carrying values of our properties.

Accounting rules require that we periodically review the carrying value of our properties for possible impairment.
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Based on prevailing commodity prices and specific market factors and circumstances at the time of prospective impairment
reviews, and the continuing evaluation of development plans, production data, economics and other factors, we have been
required to, and may be required to further, write-down the carrying value of our properties. A write-down constitutes a non-
cash charge to earnings.

Oil, NGL and natural gas prices significantly declined starting in mid-2014 and have not regained previous highs.
Primarily as a result of these lower prices, our December 31, 2015 estimated proved reserves decreased 171 MMBOE from our
December 31, 2014 reserves, converted to three streams. Our net book value of evaluated oil and natural gas properties
exceeded the full cost ceiling amount as of March 31, 2016 and each of the last three quarters of 2015 and as a result, we
recorded non-cash full cost ceiling impairments of $161.1 million and $2.4 billion for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively. If prices decline below current levels and all other factors remain the same, we may incur further charges in
the future. Such charges could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations for the periods in which they are
taken. See Note 2.g to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional
information.

Any significant reduction in our borrowing base under our Senior Secured Credit Facility as a result of a periodic
borrowing base redetermination or otherwise will negatively impact our liquidity and, consequently, our ability to fund our
operations, and we may not have sufficient funds to repay borrowings under our Senior Secured Credit Facility or any other
obligation if required as a result of a borrowing base redetermination.

Availability under our Senior Secured Credit Facility is currently subject to a borrowing base of $815.0 million. The
borrowing base is subject to scheduled semiannual (May 1 and November 1) and other elective borrowing base
redeterminations based upon, among other things, projected revenues from, and asset values of, the oil and natural gas
properties securing the Senior Secured Credit Facility. The lenders under our Senior Secured Credit Facility can unilaterally
adjust the borrowing base and the borrowings permitted to be outstanding under our Senior Secured Credit Facility. Reductions
in estimates of our oil, NGL and natural gas reserves will result in a reduction in our borrowing base (if prices are kept
constant). Reductions in our borrowing base could also arise from other factors, including but not limited to:

*  lower commodity prices or production;

* increased leverage ratios;

*  inability to drill or unfavorable drilling results;

»  changes in crude oil, NGL and natural gas reserve engineering;
* increased operating and/or capital costs;

« the lenders' inability to agree to an adequate borrowing base; or

» adverse changes in the lenders' practices (including required regulatory changes) regarding estimation of reserves.

As of February 14, 2017, we had $15.0 million of borrowings outstanding under our Senior Secured Credit Facility.
We may make further borrowings under our Senior Secured Credit Facility in the future. Any significant reduction in our
borrowing base as a result of such borrowing base redeterminations or otherwise will negatively impact our liquidity and our
ability to fund our operations and, as a result, would have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of
operation and cash flow. Further, if the outstanding borrowings under our Senior Secured Credit Facility were to exceed the
borrowing base as a result of any such redetermination, we could be required to repay the excess. We may not have sufficient
funds to make such repayments. If we do not have sufficient funds and we are otherwise unable to negotiate renewals of our
borrowings or arrange new financing, we may have to sell significant assets. Any such sale could have a material adverse effect
on our business and financial results.

Our business requires significant capital expenditures and we may be unable to obtain needed capital or financing on
satisfactory terms or at all.

Our exploration, development, marketing, transportation and acquisition activities require substantial capital
expenditures. Historically, we have funded our capital expenditures through a combination of cash flows from operations,
borrowings on our Senior Secured Credit Facility, equity offerings and proceeds from the sale of our Senior Unsecured Notes.
We do not have commitments from anyone to contribute capital to us. Future cash flows are subject to a number of variables,
including the level of production from existing wells, prices of oil, NGL and natural gas and our success in developing and
producing new reserves. If our cash flow from operations is not sufficient to fund our capital expenditure budget, we may have
limited ability to obtain the additional capital necessary to sustain our operations at current levels. We may not be able to obtain
debt or equity financing on terms favorable to us or at all. The failure to obtain additional capital could result in a curtailment of
our operations relating to exploration and development of our prospects, which in turn could lead to a decline in our oil, NGL
and natural gas production or reserves and, in some areas, a loss of properties.
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Increases in interest rates could adversely affect our business.

Our business and operating results can be harmed by factors such as the availability, terms of and cost of capital,
increases in interest rates or a reduction in credit rating. These changes could cause our cost of doing business to increase, limit
our ability to pursue acquisition opportunities, reduce our cash flow and/or liquidity available for drilling and place us at a
competitive disadvantage. For example, as of February 14, 2017 we had an $815.0 million borrowing base with $15.0 million
outstanding on our Senior Secured Credit Facility, subject to compliance with financial covenants. The impact of a 1.0%
increase in interest rates on an assumed borrowing of the full $815.0 million would result in increased annual interest expense
of $8.15 million and a decrease in our income before income taxes. Recent and continuing disruptions and volatility in the
global financial markets may lead to a contraction in credit availability impacting our ability to finance our operations. We
require continued access to capital. A significant reduction in our cash flows from operations or the availability of credit could
materially and adversely affect our ability to achieve our planned growth and operating results.

We have incurred losses from operations for various periods since our inception and may do so in the future.

We incurred net losses from our inception to December 31, 2006 of $1.8 million and for each of the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2015 and 2016 of $6.1 million, $192.0 million, $184.5 million, $2.2 billion and $260.7
million, respectively. Our development of and participation in an increasingly larger number of locations has required and will
continue to require substantial capital expenditures. The uncertainty and factors described throughout this section may impede
our ability to economically find, develop, exploit and acquire oil, NGL and natural gas reserves. As a result, we may not be able
to achieve or sustain profitability or positive cash flows from operating activities in the future. See "Item 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Ceritical accounting policies and estimates."

We require a significant amount of cash to service our indebtedness. Our ability to generate cash depends on many factors
beyond our control.

Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness and to fund planned capital expenditures depends
on our ability to generate cash in the future. This, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive,
legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. We cannot assure you that we will generate sufficient cash
flow from operations or that future funding will be available to us under our Senior Secured Credit Facility, equity offerings or
other actions in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs. We may need to
refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness at or before maturity. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance any
of our indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

Our debt agreements contain restrictions that limit our flexibility in operating our business.

Our Senior Secured Credit Facility and the indentures governing our Senior Unsecured Notes each contain, and any
future indebtedness we incur may contain, various covenants that limit our ability to engage in specified types of transactions.
These covenants limit our ability to, among other things:

e incur additional indebtedness;

*  pay dividends on, repurchase or make distributions in respect of our capital stock or make other restricted
payments;

*  make certain investments, including in Medallion;

e sell certain assets;

e create liens;

*  consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets; and

e enter into certain transactions with our affiliates.

As aresult of these covenants and a covenant in our Senior Secured Credit Facility that limits our ability to hedge, we
are limited in the manner in which we may conduct our business and we may be unable to engage in favorable business
activities or finance future operations or our capital needs. In addition, the covenants in our Senior Secured Credit Facility
require us to maintain a minimum working capital ratio and minimum interest coverage ratio and also limit our capital
expenditures. A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default under one or more of these agreements, including as a
result of cross default provisions and, in the case of our Senior Secured Credit Facility, permit the lenders to cease making
loans to us. Upon the occurrence of an event of default under our Senior Secured Credit Facility, the lenders could elect to
declare all amounts outstanding under our Senior Secured Credit Facility to be immediately due and payable and terminate all
commitments to extend further credit. Such actions by those lenders could cause cross defaults under our other indebtedness,
including the Senior Unsecured Notes. If we were unable to repay those amounts, the lenders under our Senior Secured Credit
Facility could proceed against the collateral granted to them to secure that indebtedness. We pledged a significant portion of our
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assets as collateral under our Senior Secured Credit Facility. If the lenders under our Senior Secured Credit Facility accelerate
the repayment of the borrowings thereunder, the proceeds from the sale or foreclosure upon such assets will first be used to
repay debt under our Senior Secured Credit Facility, and we may not have sufficient assets to repay our unsecured indebtedness
thereafter. In addition, our Senior Secured Credit Facility terminates in November 2018. While we anticipate putting in place a
replacement credit facility, there is no guarantee that we will be able to do so and even if we are able to do so such new credit
facility may contain terms and covenants that are more restrictive than the Senior Secured Credit Facility.

If we were to experience an ownership change, we could be limited in our ability to use net operating losses arising prior to
the ownership change to offset future taxable income. In addition, our ability to use net operating loss carry forwards to
reduce future tax payments may be limited if our taxable income does not reach sufficient levels.

As of December 31, 2016, we had a net operating loss ("NOL") carryforward for federal income tax purposes of $1.6
billion. If we were to experience an "ownership change," as determined under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the "Code"), our ability to offset taxable income arising after the ownership change with NOLs arising prior
to the ownership change would be limited, possibly substantially. An ownership change would establish an annual limitation on
the amount of our pre-change NOL we could utilize to offset our taxable income in any future taxable year to an amount
generally equal to the value of our stock immediately prior to the ownership change multiplied by the long-term tax-exempt
rate. In general, an ownership change will occur if there is a cumulative increase in our ownership of more than 50 percentage
points by one or more "5% shareholders" (as defined in the Code) at any time during a rolling three-year period. In addition,
under the Code, NOL can generally be carried forward to offset future taxable income for a period of 20 years. Our ability to
use our NOL during this period will be dependent on our ability to generate taxable income, and the NOL could expire before
we generate sufficient taxable income. As of December 31, 2016, based on evidence available to us, including projected future
cash flows from our oil and natural gas reserves and the timing of those cash flows, we believe a portion of our NOL is not
fully realizable. As a result, as of December 31, 2016 a valuation allowance has been recorded against our NOL tax assets. See
Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional information.

The potential drilling locations for our future wells that we have tentatively internally identified will be drilled, if at all, over
many years. This makes them susceptible to uncertainties that could materially alter the occurrence or timing of their
drilling, which in certain instances could prevent production prior to the expiration date of leases for such locations.

Although our management team has established certain potential drilling locations as a part of our long-range planning
related to future drilling activities on our existing acreage, our ability to drill and develop these locations depends on a number
of uncertainties, including oil, NGL and natural gas prices, the availability and cost of capital, drilling and production costs, the
availability of drilling services and equipment, drilling results (including the impact of increased horizontal drilling and longer
laterals), lease expirations, gathering systems, marketing and pipeline transportation constraints, regulatory approvals and other
factors. Because of these uncertain factors, we do not know if the numerous potential drilling locations we have currently
identified will ever be drilled or if we will be able to produce oil, NGL or natural gas from these or any other potential drilling
locations. In addition, unless production is established within the spacing units covering the undeveloped acres on which some
of the potential locations are obtained, the leases for such acreage will expire. As such, it is likely our actual drilling activities,
especially in the long term, could materially differ from those presently anticipated.

Drilling for and producing oil, NGL and natural gas are high-risk activities with many uncertainties that could adversely
affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Our future financial condition and results of operations will depend on the success of our exploration, exploitation,
development and production activities. Our oil, NGL and natural gas exploration, exploitation, development and production
activities are subject to numerous risks beyond our control, including the risk that drilling will not result in commercially viable
oil, NGL and natural gas production. Our decisions to purchase, explore, develop or otherwise exploit locations or properties
will depend in part on the evaluation of information obtained through geophysical and geological analyses, production data,
engineering studies and our Earth Model, the results of which are often inconclusive or subject to varying interpretations. For a
discussion of the uncertainty involved in these processes, see "—Estimating reserves and future net revenues involves
uncertainties. Decreases in oil, NGL and natural gas prices, or negative revisions to reserves estimates or assumptions as to
future oil, NGL and natural gas prices, may lead to decreased earnings, losses or impairment of oil, NGL and natural gas
assets." In addition, our cost of drilling, completing and operating wells is often uncertain before drilling commences. Further,
many factors may curtail, delay or cancel our scheduled drilling projects, including the following:

*  declines in oil, NGL and natural gas prices;

* limited availability of financing or capital at acceptable rates or terms;

* limitations in the market for oil, NGL and natural gas;

* delays imposed by or resulting from compliance with regulatory and contractual requirements and related
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lawsuits, which may include limitations on hydraulic fracturing or the discharge of greenhouse gases;
e pressure or irregularities in geological formations;
»  shortages of or delays in obtaining equipment and qualified personnel;
e equipment failures or accidents;
e fires and blowouts;
e adverse weather conditions, such as hurricanes, blizzards and ice storms; and

» title problems.

We are involved as a passive minority-interest partner in joint ventures and are subject to risks associated with joint venture
partnerships.

We are involved as a passive minority-interest partner in joint venture relationships and may initiate future joint
venture projects. Entering into a joint venture as a passive minority-interest partner involves certain risks that include: the need
to contribute funds to the joint venture to support its operating and capital needs; the inability to exercise voting control over
the joint venture; economic or business interests that are not aligned with our venture partners, including the holding period and
timing of ultimate sale of the ventures' underlying assets; and the inability for the venture partner to fulfill its commitments and
obligations due to financial or other difficulties. Our interest in Medallion is as a passive minority-interest partner. See Note 14
to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional information regarding
Medallion.

In many instances (including Medallion), we depend on the venture partner for elements of the arrangements that are
important to the success of the joint venture, such as agreed payments of substantial development costs pertaining to the joint
venture and its share of other costs of the joint venture. The performance of these venture partner obligations or the ability of
the venture partner to meet its obligations under these arrangements is outside our control. If the venture partner does not meet
or satisfy its obligations under these arrangements, the performance and success of these arrangements, and their value to us,
may be adversely affected.

If our current or future venture partners are unable to meet their obligations because of insolvency, bankruptcy or other
reasons, we may be forced to undertake the obligations ourselves and/or incur additional expenses in order to have some other
party perform such obligations. In addition, the insolvency of a venture partner could result in our liability to governmental
authorities for compliance with environmental, safety and other regulatory requirements, to the joint venture’s suppliers and
vendors and to other third parties. In such cases, we may also be required to enforce our rights, which may cause disputes
among our venture partners and us. If any of these events occur, they may adversely impact us, our financial performance and
results of operations, the joint ventures and/or our ability to enter into future joint ventures. Likewise, we may have similar
obligations to third parties for properties we operate.

Some of our drilling and development activities are subject to joint ventures or operations controlled by third parties, which
could negatively impact our control over these operations and have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects.

A portion of our drilling and development activities is conducted through joint operating agreements under which we
own partial interests in oil and natural gas properties. If we do not operate the properties in which we own an interest, (i) we
have limited ability to influence or control the day-to-day operation of such properties, including compliance with
environmental, safety and other regulations, (i) we cannot control the amount of capital expenditures that we are required to
fund with respect to properties or the future development plans for the properties, (iii) we are dependent on third parties to fund
their required share of capital expenditures the same as our dependency on third parties where we are the operator and (iv) we
may have restrictions or limitations on our ability to sell our interests in these jointly owned assets. The failure of an operator of
our wells to adequately perform operations or an operator's breach of the applicable agreements could materially reduce our
production and revenues. The success and timing of our drilling and development activities on properties operated by others,
therefore, depends upon a number of factors outside of our control, including the operator's timing and amount of capital
expenditures, expertise and financial resources, inclusion of other participants in drilling wells and use of technology. Because
we do not have a majority interest in most wells that we do not operate, we may not be in a position to remove the operator in
the event of poor performance.

In addition, the insolvency of an operator of any of our properties, the failure of an operator of any of our properties to
adequately perform operations or an operator’s breach of applicable agreements could reduce our production and revenue and
result in our liability to governmental authorities for compliance with environmental, safety and other regulatory requirements,
to the operator's suppliers and vendors and to royalty owners under oil and gas leases jointly owned with the operator or
another insolvent owner. Finally, an operator of our properties may have the right, if another non-operator fails to pay its share
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of costs because of its insolvency or otherwise, to require us to pay our proportionate share of the defaulting party's share of
costs.

The inability of our significant customers to meet their obligations to us may materially adversely affect our financial
results.

In addition to credit risk related to receivables from commodity derivative contracts, our principal exposure to credit
risk is through net joint operations receivables ($12.2 million as of December 31, 2016), the sale of purchased oil and other
products ($16.2 million in receivables as of December 31, 2016) and the sale of our oil, NGL and natural gas production ($47.0
million in receivables as of December 31, 2016), which we market to energy marketing companies, refineries and affiliates.
Joint interest receivables arise from billing entities who own partial interests in the wells we operate. These entities participate
in our wells primarily based on their ownership in leases on which we wish to drill. We are generally unable to control which
co-owners participate in our wells. We are also subject to credit risk due to the concentration of our oil, NGL and natural gas
production receivables with several significant customers. The three largest purchasers of our oil, NGL and natural gas
production accounted for 48.5%, 23.0% and 17.0%, respectively, of our total oil, NGL and natural gas revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2016, and our sales of purchased oil are made to one customer. See Note 11 to our consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional information. The inability or failure of our significant
customers or joint working interest owners to meet their obligations to us or their insolvency or liquidation may materially
adversely affect our financial results. Current economic circumstances may further increase these risks.

Our operations are substantially dependent on the availability, use and disposal of water. New legislation and regulatory
initiatives or restrictions relating to water disposal wells could have a material adverse effect on our future business,
financial condition, operating results and prospects.

Water is an essential component of both the drilling and hydraulic fracturing processes. Historically, we have been
able to purchase water from local land owners and other sources for use in our operations. During the past several years, Texas
has experienced the lowest inflows of water in recent history. As a result of these conditions, some local water districts may
begin restricting the use of water subject to their jurisdiction for drilling and hydraulic fracturing in order to protect the local
water supply. If we are unable to obtain water to use in our operations from local sources, we may be unable to economically
produce oil, NGL and natural gas, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.

Additionally, our drilling procedures produce large volumes of water that we must properly dispose. The Clean Water
Act of 1977, as amended, the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, as amended, and
comparable state laws impose restrictions and strict controls regarding the discharge of pollutants, including produced waters
and other natural gas wastes, into federal and state waters. The discharge of pollutants into regulated waters is prohibited,
except in accordance with the terms of a permit issued by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (the "EPA") or the state.
Furthermore, the State of Texas maintains groundwater protection programs that require permits for discharges or operations
that may impact groundwater conditions. The underground injection of fluids is subject to permitting and other requirements
under state laws and regulation. Obtaining permits has the potential to delay the development of oil, NGL and natural gas
projects. These same regulatory programs also limit the total volume of water that can be discharged, hence limiting the rate of
development, and require us to incur compliance costs. In October 2014, the RRC adopted new regulations effective as of
November 17, 2014 that require additional supporting documentation, including records from the U.S. Geological Survey
regarding previous seismic events in the area, as part of applications for new disposal wells. The new regulations also clarify
the RRC's ability to modify, suspend or terminate a disposal well permit if scientific data indicates it is likely to contribute to
seismic activity. The RRC has used this authority to deny permits for waste disposal sites.

Moreover, the EPA is examining regulatory requirements for "indirect dischargers" of wastewater - i.e., those that send
their discharges to private or publicly owned treatment facilities, which treat the wastewater before discharging it to regulated
waters. On June 28, 2016, the EPA published a final rule prohibiting the discharge of wastewater from onshore unconventional
oil and gas extraction facilities to publicly owned wastewater treatment plants. The EPA is also conducting a study of private
wastewater treatment facilities (also known as centralized waste treatment, or CWT, facilities) accepting oil and gas extraction
wastewater. The EPA is collecting data and information related to the extent to which CWT facilities accept such wastewater,
available treatment technologies (and their associated costs), discharge characteristics, financial characteristics of CWT
facilities, and the environmental impacts of discharges from CWT facilities.

Because of the necessity to safely dispose of water produced during drilling and production activities, these
regulations, or others like them, could have a material adverse effect on our future business, financial condition, operating
results and prospects. See "Item 1. Business—Regulation of the oil and natural gas industry" for a further description of the
laws and regulations that affect us.
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Federal and state legislation and regulatory initiatives relating to hydraulic fracturing and water disposal wells could
prohibit projects or result in materially increased costs and additional operating restrictions or delays because of the
significance of hydraulic fracturing and water disposal wells in our business.

Hydraulic fracturing is a practice that is used to stimulate production of oil and/or natural gas from tight formations.
The process involves the injection of water, propants and chemicals under pressure into the formation to fracture the
surrounding rock and stimulate production. Nearly all of our proved non-producing and proved undeveloped reserves
associated with future drilling, recompletion and refracture stimulation projects require hydraulic fracturing. If we are unable to
apply hydraulic fracturing to our wells or the process is prohibited or significantly regulated or restricted, we would lose the
ability to (i) drill and complete the projects for such proved reserves and (ii) maintain the associated acreage, which would have
a material adverse effect on our future business, financial condition, operating results and prospects.

The federal Safe Drinking Water Act ("SDWA") regulates the underground injection of substances through the
Underground Injection Control ("UIC") Program. However, hydraulic fracturing is generally exempt from regulation under the
UIC Program, and thus the process is typically regulated by state oil and gas commissions. Nevertheless, the EPA has asserted
federal regulatory authority over hydraulic fracturing involving diesel additives under the UIC Program. Under this assertion of
authority, the EPA requires facilities to obtain permits to use diesel fuel in hydraulic fracturing operations. The U.S. Energy
Policy Act of 2005, which exempts hydraulic fracturing from regulation under the SDWA, prohibits the use of diesel fuel in the
fracturing process without a UIC permit. On February 12, 2014, the EPA published a revised UIC Program guidance for oil,
NGL and natural gas hydraulic fracturing activities using diesel fuel. The guidance document describes how regulations of
Class II wells, which are those wells injecting fluids associated with oil, NGL and natural gas production activities, may be
tailored to address the purported unique risks of diesel fuel injection during the hydraulic fracturing process. Although the EPA
is not the permitting authority for UIC Class II programs in Texas, where we maintain acreage, the EPA is encouraging state
programs to review and consider use of the above-mentioned guidance. Furthermore, legislation has been proposed in recent
sessions of Congress to repeal the hydraulic fracturing exemption from the SDWA, provide for federal regulation of hydraulic
fracturing, and require public disclosure of the chemicals used in the fracturing process.

In addition, the EPA plans to develop a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking by June 2018, which would describe a
proposed mechanism-regulatory, voluntary, or a combination of both to collect data on hydraulic fracturing chemical
substances and mixtures.

Also, on March 26, 2015, the Bureau of Land Management (the "BLM") published a final rule governing hydraulic
fracturing on federal and Indian lands. The rule requires public disclosure of chemicals used in hydraulic fracturing,
implementation of a casing and cementing program, management of recovered fluids, and submission to the BLM of detailed
information about the proposed operation, including wellbore geology, the location of faults and fractures, and the depths of all
usable water. On June 21, 2016, the United States District Court for Wyoming set aside the rule, holding that the BLM lacked
Congressional authority to promulgate the rule. The BLM has appealed the decision to the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals.

Furthermore, there are certain governmental reviews either underway or being proposed that focus on environmental
aspects of hydraulic fracturing practices. For example, the EPA is currently reviewing the potential adverse effects that
hydraulic fracturing may have on water quality and public health. On December 13, 2016, the EPA released a study examining
the potential for hydraulic fracturing activities to impact drinking water resources, finding that, under some circumstances, the
use of water in hydraulic fracturing activities can impact drinking water resources. Also, on February 6, 2015, the EPA released
a report with findings and recommendations related to public concern about induced seismic activity from disposal wells. The
report recommends strategies for managing and minimizing the potential for significant injection-induced seismic events. Other
governmental agencies, including the U.S. Department of Energy, the U.S. Geological Survey, and the U.S. Government
Accountability Office, have evaluated or are evaluating various other aspects of hydraulic fracturing. These ongoing or
proposed studies, depending on their degree of pursuit and any meaningful results obtained, could spur initiatives to further
regulate hydraulic fracturing under the SDWA or other regulatory mechanism.

On August 16, 2012, the EPA published final rules that subject oil, NGL and natural gas production, processing,
transmission, and storage operations to regulation under the New Source Performance Standards ("NSPS") and National
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants ("NESHAP") programs. The rule includes NSPS Standards for completions of
hydraulically fractured gas wells and establishes specific new requirements for emissions from compressors, controllers,
dehydrators, storage vessels, natural gas processing plants and certain other equipment. The final rule seeks to achieve a 95%
reduction in volatile organic compounds ("VOC") emitted by requiring the use of reduced emission completions or "green
completions" on all hydraulically-fractured wells constructed or refractured after January 1, 2015. The EPA received numerous
requests for reconsideration of these rules from both industry and the environmental community, and court challenges to the
rules were also filed. In response, the EPA has issued, and will likely continue to issue, revised rules responsive to some of
these requests for reconsideration. In particular, on May 12, 2016, the EPA amended its regulations to impose new standards for
methane and VOC emissions for certain new, modified and reconstructed equipment, processes and activities across the oil and
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natural gas sector. On the same day, the EPA finalized a plan to implement its minor new source review program on federal and
Indian lands for oil and natural gas production, and it issued for public comment an information request that will require
companies to provide extensive information instrumental for the development of regulations to reduce methane emissions from
existing oil and gas sources.

Also, on November 15, 2016, the BLM finalized a rule to reduce the flaring, venting and leaking of methane from oil
and gas operations on federal and Indian lands. The rule requires operators to use currently available technologies and
equipment to reduce flaring, periodically inspect their operations for leaks and replace outdated equipment that vents large
quantities of gas into the air. The rule also clarifies when operators owe the government royalties for flared gas. State and
industry groups have challenged this rule in federal court, asserting that the BLM lacks authority to prescribe air quality
regulations.

These standards, as well as any future laws and their implementing regulations, may require us to obtain pre-approval
for the expansion or modification of existing facilities or the construction of new facilities expected to produce air emissions,
impose stringent air permit requirements, or utilize specific equipment or technologies to control emissions. Our failure to
comply with these requirements could subject us to monetary penalties, injunctions, conditions or restrictions on operations
and, potentially, criminal enforcement actions.

Some states have adopted, and other states are considering adopting, regulations that could restrict hydraulic fracturing
in certain circumstances, impose additional requirements on hydraulic fracturing activities or otherwise require the public
disclosure of chemicals used in the hydraulic fracturing process. For example, pursuant to legislation adopted by the State of
Texas in June 2011, the chemical components used in the hydraulic fracturing process, as well as the volume of water used,
must be disclosed to the RRC and the public beginning February 1, 2012. Furthermore, on May 23, 2013, the RRC issued the
"well integrity rule," which updates the RRC's Rule 13 requirements for drilling, putting pipe down and cementing wells. The
rule also includes new testing and reporting requirements, such as (i) the requirement to submit to the RRC cementing reports
after well completion or after cessation of drilling, whichever is later, and (ii) the imposition of additional testing on wells less
than 1,000 feet below usable groundwater. The "well integrity rule" took effect in January 2014. Additionally, on October 28,
2014, the RRC adopted disposal well rule amendments designed, among other things, to require applicants for new disposal
wells that will receive non-hazardous produced water and hydraulic fracturing flowback fluid to conduct seismic activity
searches utilizing the U.S. Geological Survey. The searches are intended to determine the potential for earthquakes within a
circular area of 100 square miles around a proposed, new disposal well. The disposal well rule amendments, which became
effective on November 17, 2014, also clarify the RRC's authority to modify, suspend or terminate a disposal well permit if
scientific data indicates a disposal well is likely to contribute to seismic activity. The RRC has used this authority to deny
permits for waste disposal wells. In addition to state law, local land use restrictions, such as city ordinances, may restrict or
prohibit the performance of well drilling in general and/or hydraulic fracturing in particular.

A number of lawsuits and enforcement actions have been initiated across the country alleging that hydraulic fracturing
practices have induced seismic activity and adversely impacted drinking water supplies, use of surface water and the
environment generally. Several states and municipalities have adopted, or are considering adopting, regulations that could
restrict or prohibit hydraulic fracturing in certain circumstances. If these or any other new laws or regulations that significantly
restrict hydraulic fracturing are adopted or laws or regulations are adopted to restrict water disposal wells, such laws could
make it more difficult or costly for us to drill and produce from conventional or tight formations as well as make it easier for
third parties opposing the oil, NGL and natural gas industry to initiate legal proceedings. In addition, if these matters are
regulated at the federal level, fracturing and disposal activities could become subject to additional permitting and financial
assurance requirements, more stringent construction specifications, increased monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping
obligations, plugging and abandonment requirements and also result in permitting delays and potential other increases in costs.
These developments, as well as new laws or regulations, could cause us to incur substantial compliance costs, and compliance
or the consequences of failure to comply by us could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. At this time, it is not possible to estimate the potential impact on our business that may arise if federal or state
legislation or regulations governing hydraulic fracturing or water disposal wells are enacted into law.

We are subject to complex federal, state, local and other laws and regulations that could adversely affect the cost, manner or
feasibility of conducting our operations or expose us to significant liabilities.

Our oil, NGL and natural gas exploration, production and gathering operations are subject to complex and stringent
laws and regulations. In order to conduct our operations in compliance with these laws and regulations, we must obtain and
maintain numerous permits, approvals and certificates from various federal, state and local governmental authorities. We may
incur substantial costs in order to maintain compliance with these existing laws and regulations. In addition, our costs of
compliance may increase if existing laws and regulations are revised or reinterpreted, or if new laws and regulations become
applicable to our operations. Such costs could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Failure to comply with laws and regulations applicable to our operations, including any evolving interpretation and
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enforcement by governmental authorities, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

See "Item 1. Business—Regulation of the oil and natural gas industry" and other risk factors described in this "Item
1A. Risk Factors" for a further description of the laws and regulations that affect us.

Restrictions on drilling activities intended to protect certain species of wildlife may adversely affect our ability to conduct
drilling activities in some of the areas where we operate.

Oil, NGL and natural gas operations in our operating areas can be adversely affected by seasonal or permanent
restrictions on drilling activities designed to protect various wildlife. Seasonal restrictions may limit our ability to operate in
protected areas and can intensify competition for drilling rigs, oilfield equipment, services, supplies and qualified personnel,
which may lead to periodic shortages when drilling is allowed. These constraints and the resulting shortages or high costs could
delay our operations and materially increase our operating and capital costs. Permanent restrictions imposed to protect
threatened or endangered species could prohibit drilling in certain areas or require the implementation of expensive mitigation
measures. The designation of previously unprotected species in arecas where we operate as threatened or endangered could
cause us to incur increased costs arising from species protection measures or could result in limitations on our exploration and
production activities that could have an adverse impact on our ability to develop and produce our reserves.

A change in the jurisdictional characterization of some of our assets by federal, state or local regulatory agencies or a
change in policy by those agencies may result in increased regulation of our assets, which may cause our revenues to
decline and operating expenses to increase.

Section 1(b) of the Natural Gas Act of 1938 (the "NGA") exempts natural gas gathering facilities from regulation by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"). We believe that the natural gas pipelines in our gathering systems meet
the traditional tests FERC has used to establish whether a pipeline performs a gathering function and therefore is exempt from
the FERC's jurisdiction under the NGA. However, the distinction between FERC-regulated transmission services and federally
unregulated gathering services is a fact-based determination. The classification of facilities as unregulated gathering is the
subject of ongoing litigation, so the classification and regulation of our gathering facilities are subject to change based on future
determinations by FERC, the courts or Congress, which could cause our revenues to decline and operating expenses to increase
and may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. In addition, FERC has adopted
regulations that may subject certain of our otherwise non-FERC jurisdictional facilities to FERC annual reporting and daily
scheduled flow and capacity posting requirements. Additional rules and legislation pertaining to those and other matters may be
considered or adopted by FERC from time to time. Failure to comply with those regulations in the future could subject us to
civil penalty liability, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

The adoption of climate change legislation or regulations restricting emissions of "'greenhouse gases' could result in
increased operating costs and reduced demand for the oil, NGL and natural gas we produce.

Congress has from time to time considered legislation to reduce emissions of GHGs, and almost one-half of the states
have already taken legal measures to reduce emissions of GHGs, through the planned development of GHG emission
inventories and/or regional GHG cap and trade programs or other mechanisms. Most cap and trade programs work by requiring
major sources of emissions, such as electric power plants, or major producers of fuels, such as refineries and gas processing
plants, to acquire and surrender emission allowances corresponding with their annual emissions of GHGs. The number of
allowances available for purchase is reduced each year until the overall GHG emission reduction goal is achieved. As the
number of GHG emission allowances declines each year, the cost or value of allowances is expected to escalate significantly.
Some states have enacted renewable portfolio standards, which require utilities to purchase a certain percentage of their energy
from renewable fuel sources.

In addition, in December 2009, the EPA determined that emissions of carbon dioxide, methane and other GHGs
present an endangerment to human health and the environment, because emissions of such gases are, according to the EPA,
contributing to warming of the earth's atmosphere and other climatic changes. These findings by the EPA allow the agency to
proceed with the adoption and implementation of regulations that would restrict emissions of GHGs under existing provisions
of the federal Clean Air Act. In response to its endangerment finding, the EPA recently adopted two sets of rules regarding
possible future regulation of GHG emissions under the Clean Air Act. The motor vehicle rule, which became effective in July
2010, purports to limit emissions of GHGs from motor vehicles. The EPA adopted the stationary source rule (or the "tailoring
rule") in May 2010, and it became effective in January 2011. The tailoring rule established new GHG emissions thresholds that
determine when stationary sources must obtain permits under the Prevention of Significant Deterioration ("PSD") and Title V
programs of the Clean Air Act. On June 23, 2014, in Utility Air Regulatory Group v. EPA ("UARG v. EPA"), the Supreme Court
held that stationary sources could not become subject to PSD or Title V permitting solely by reason of their GHG emissions.
The Court ruled, however, that the EPA may require installation of best available control technology for GHG emissions at
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sources otherwise subject to the PSD and Title V programs. On August 26, 2016, the EPA proposed changes needed to bring the
EPA’s air permitting regulations in line with the Supreme Court’s decision on greenhouse gas permitting. The proposed rule
was published in the Federal Register on October 3, 2016 and the public comment period closed on December 2, 2016.

In September 2009, the EPA issued a final rule requiring the reporting of GHG emissions from specified large GHG
emission sources in the U.S., including NGL fractionators and local natural gas/distribution companies, beginning in 2011 for
emissions occurring in 2010. In November 2010, the EPA published a final rule expanding the GHG reporting rule to include
onshore oil, NGL and natural gas production, processing, transmission, storage and distribution facilities. This rule requires
reporting of GHG emissions from such facilities on an annual basis, with reporting beginning in 2012 for emissions occurring
in 2011. In October 2015, the EPA amended the GHG reporting rule to add the reporting of GHG emissions from gathering and
boosting systems, completions and workovers of oil wells using hydraulic fracturing, and blowdowns of natural gas
transmission pipelines.

The EPA has continued to adopt GHG regulations applicable to other industries, such as its August 2015 adoption of
three separate, but related, actions to address carbon dioxide pollution from power plants, including final Carbon Pollution
Standards for new, modified and reconstructed power plants, a final Clean Power Plan to cut carbon dioxide pollution from
existing power plants, and a proposed federal plan to implement the Clean Power Plan emission guidelines. Upon publication
of the Clean Power Plan on October 23, 2015, more than two dozen States as well as industry and labor groups challenged the
Clean Power Plan in the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals. On February 9, 2016, the U.S. Supreme Court stayed the Clean Power
Plan pending disposition of the legal challenges. Nevertheless, as a result of the continued regulatory focus, future GHG
regulations of the oil and gas industry remain a possibility.

In December 2015, the United States participated in the 21st Conference of the Parties of the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change in Paris, France. The resulting Paris Agreement calls for the parties to undertake
"ambitious efforts" to limit the average global temperature, and to conserve and enhance sinks and reservoirs of GHGs. The
Paris Agreement went into effect on November 4, 2016. The Paris Agreement establishes a framework for the parties to
cooperate and report actions to reduce GHG emissions. Also, on June 29, 2016, the leaders of the United States, Canada and
Mexico announced an Action Plan to, among other things, boost clean energy, improve energy efficiency and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions. The Action Plan specifically calls for a reduction in methane emissions from the oil and gas sector
by 40% to 45% by 2025.

Restrictions on GHG emissions that may be imposed could adversely affect the oil and gas industry. The adoption of
legislation or regulatory programs to reduce GHG emissions could require us to incur increased operating costs, such as costs
to purchase and operate emissions control systems, to acquire emissions allowances or comply with new regulatory
requirements. Any GHG emissions legislation or regulatory programs applicable to power plants or refineries could also
increase the cost of consuming, and thereby reduce demand for, the oil, NGL and natural gas we produce. Consequently,
legislation and regulatory programs to reduce GHG emissions could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations. It remains unclear whether and how the results of the 2016 U.S. presidential and congressional
elections could impact the regulation of greenhouse gas emissions at the federal and state level.

In addition, claims have been made against certain energy companies alleging that GHG emissions from oil, NGL and
natural gas operations constitute a public nuisance under federal and/or state common law. As a result, private individuals may
seek to enforce environmental laws and regulations against us and could allege personal injury or property damages. While we
are currently not a party to any such litigation, we could be named in actions making similar allegations. An unfavorable ruling
in any such case could significantly impact our operations and could have an adverse impact on our financial condition.

Moreover, there has been public discussion that climate change may be associated with extreme weather conditions
such as more intense hurricanes, thunderstorms, tornadoes and snow or ice storms, as well as rising sea levels. Another possible
consequence of climate change is increased volatility in seasonal temperatures. Some studies indicate that climate change could
cause some areas to experience temperatures substantially colder than their historical averages. Extreme weather conditions can
interfere with our production and increase our costs and damage resulting from extreme weather may not be fully insured.
However, at this time, we are unable to determine the extent to which climate change may lead to increased storm or weather
hazards affecting our operations.

Our oil, NGL and natural gas is sold to a limited number of geographic markets so an oversupply in any of those areas
could have a material negative effect on the price we receive.

Our oil, NGL and natural gas is sold to a limited number of geographic markets which each have a fixed amount of
storage and processing capacity. As a result, if such markets become oversupplied with oil, NGL and/or natural gas, it could
have a material negative effect on the price we receive for our products and therefore an adverse effect on our financial
condition. There is a risk that refining capacity in the U.S. Gulf Coast may be insufficient to refine all of the light sweet crude
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oil being produced in the United States. If light sweet crude oil production remains at current levels or continues to increase,
demand for our light crude oil production could result in widening price discounts to the world crude prices and potential shut-
in of production due to a lack of sufficient markets despite the lift on prior restrictions on the exporting of oil and natural gas.

Our operations may be exposed to significant delays, costs and liabilities as a result of environmental, health and safety
requirements applicable to our business activities.

We may incur significant delays, costs and liabilities as a result of federal, state and local environmental, health and
safety requirements applicable to our exploration, development, marketing, transportation and production activities. These laws
and regulations may require us to obtain a variety of permits or other authorizations governing our air emissions, water
discharges, waste disposal or other environmental impacts associated with drilling, production and transporting product
pipelines or other operations; regulate the sourcing and disposal of water used in the drilling, fracturing and completion
processes; limit or prohibit drilling activities in certain areas and on certain lands lying within wilderness, wetlands, frontier,
seismically active areas, and other protected areas; require remedial action to prevent or mitigate pollution from former
operations such as plugging abandoned wells or closing earthen pits; and/or impose substantial liabilities for spills, pollution or
failure to comply with regulatory filings. In addition, these laws and regulations may restrict the rate of oil or natural gas
production. These laws and regulations are complex, change frequently and have tended to become increasingly stringent over
time. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in the assessment of administrative, civil and criminal
penalties, imposition of cleanup and site restoration costs and liens, the suspension or revocation of necessary permits, licenses
and authorizations, the requirement that additional pollution controls be installed and, in some instances, issuance of orders or
injunctions limiting or requiring discontinuation of certain operations.

Under certain environmental laws that impose strict as well as joint and several liability, we may be required to
remediate contaminated properties currently or formerly operated by us or facilities of third parties that received waste
generated by our operations regardless of whether such contamination resulted from the conduct of others or from
consequences of our own actions that were in compliance with all applicable laws at the time those actions were taken. In
addition, claims for damages to persons or property, including natural resources, may result from the environmental, health and
safety impacts of our operations. In addition, accidental spills or releases from our operations could expose us to significant
liabilities under environmental laws. Moreover, public interest in the protection of the environment has increased dramatically
in recent years. The trend of more expansive and stringent environmental legislation and regulations applied to the crude oil,
NGL and natural gas industry could continue, resulting in increased costs of doing business and consequently affecting
profitability. To the extent laws are enacted or other governmental action is taken that restricts drilling or imposes more
stringent and costly operating, waste handling, disposal and cleanup requirements, our business, prospects, financial condition
or results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

See "Item 1. Business—Regulation of environmental and occupational health and safety matters" for a further
description of the laws and regulations that affect us.

If we are unable to drill new allocation wells it could have a material adverse impact on our future production results.

In the State of Texas, allocation wells allow an oil and gas producer to drill a horizontal well under two or more
leaseholds that are not pooled. We are active in drilling and producing allocation wells. If there are regulatory changes with
regard to allocation wells, the RRC denies or significantly delays the permitting of allocation wells or if legislation is enacted
that negatively impacts the current process under which allocation wells are currently permitted, it could have an adverse
impact on our ability to drill long horizontal lateral wells on some of our leases, which in turn could have a material adverse
impact on our anticipated future production.

Unless we replace our oil, NGL and natural gas production, our reserves and production will continue to decline, which
would adversely affect our future cash flows and results of operations.

Producing oil, NGL and natural gas reservoirs are generally characterized by declining production rates that vary
depending upon reservoir characteristics and other factors. Unless we conduct successful ongoing exploration, development
and exploitation activities or continually acquire properties containing proved reserves, our proved reserves will continue to
decline as those reserves are produced. Our future oil, NGL and natural gas reserves and production, and therefore our future
cash flow and results of operations, are highly dependent on our success in efficiently developing and exploiting our current
reserves and economically finding or acquiring additional recoverable reserves. We may not be able to develop, exploit, find or
acquire sufficient additional reserves to replace our current and future production. If we are unable to replace our current and
future production, the value of our reserves will decrease, and our business, financial condition and results of operations would
be adversely affected.
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A decrease in our production of oil, NGL and natural gas could negatively impact our ability to meet our contractual
obligations to deliver oil, NGL and natural gas and our ability to retain our leases.

A portion of our oil, NGL and gas production in any region may be interrupted, or shut in, from time to time for
numerous reasons, including as a result of weather conditions, accidents, loss or unavailability of pipeline or gathering system
access and capacity, field labor issues or strikes, or we might voluntarily curtail production in response to market conditions,
including low oil, NGL and gas prices. If a substantial amount of our production is interrupted at the same time, it could
temporarily adversely affect our cash flow. Furthermore, if we were required to shut in wells, we might also be obligated to pay
shut-in royalties to certain mineral interest owners to maintain our leases.

In addition, we have entered into agreements with third party shippers, including Medallion, and purchasers that
require us to deliver minimum amounts of crude oil and natural gas. Pursuant to these agreements, we must deliver specific
amounts, either from our own production or from oil we acquire, over the next thirteen years. If we are unable to fulfill all of
our contractual delivery obligations from our own production, we may be required to pay penalties or damages pursuant to
these agreements or we may have to purchase oil from third parties to fulfill our delivery obligations. This could adversely
impact our cash flows, profit margins and net income.

We may incur substantial losses and be subject to substantial liability claims as a result of our operations. Additionally, we
may not be insured for, or our insurance may be inadequate to protect us against, these risks.

We are not insured against all risks. Losses and liabilities arising from uninsured and underinsured events could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. Our oil, NGL and natural gas
exploration and production activities are subject to all of the operating risks associated with drilling for and producing oil, NGL
and natural gas, including the possibility of:

« environmental hazards, such as uncontrollable flows of oil, natural gas, brine, well fluids, toxic gas or other
pollution into the environment, including groundwater and shoreline contamination;

*  abnormally pressured formations;

» mechanical difficulties, such as stuck oilfield drilling and service tools and casing collapse;

» fires, explosions and ruptures of pipelines;

e personal injuries and death;

e natural disasters; and

« terrorist attacks targeting oil, NGL and natural gas related facilities and infrastructure.

Any of these risks could adversely affect our ability to conduct operations or result in substantial losses to us as a
result of:

e injury or loss of life;

» damage to and destruction of property, natural resources and equipment;

*  pollution and other environmental damage and associated clean-up responsibilities;

« regulatory investigations, penalties or other sanctions;

*  suspension of our operations; and

»  repair and remediation costs.

We may elect not to obtain insurance if we believe that the cost of available insurance is excessive relative to the risks
presented. In addition, pollution and environmental risks generally are not fully insurable. The occurrence of an event that is

not fully covered by insurance could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The marketability of our production is dependent upon transportation and other facilities, certain of which we do not
control. If these facilities are unavailable, our operations could be interrupted and our revenues reduced.

The marketability of our oil, NGL and natural gas production depends on a variety of factors, including the
availability, proximity, capacity and quality constraints of transportation and storage facilities owned by us or third parties. We
do not control many of the trucks and other third-party transportation facilities necessary for the transportation of our products
and our access to them may be limited or denied. Our failure to provide or obtain such services on acceptable terms could
materially harm our business.

Insufficient production from our wells to support the construction of pipeline facilities by our purchasers or a
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significant disruption in the availability of our or third-party transportation facilities or other production facilities could
adversely impact our ability to deliver to market or produce our oil, NGL and natural gas and thereby cause a significant
interruption in our operations. The crude oil pipelines that transport our crude oil to market have quality specifications,
including a Reid Vapor Pressure ("RVP") specification. While our tank batteries and equipment are designed to deliver crude
oil that meets all pipeline specifications, including RVP, there is a risk that our crude oil production at any of our tank batteries
could have an RVP that exceeds the pipeline specifications. The pipelines have the right under their tariffs to request that crude
oil that does not meet their quality specifications, including RVP, be shut in until such crude is brought within quality
specifications. If, in the future, we are unable, for any sustained period, to implement acceptable delivery or transportation
arrangements or specifications or encounter production related difficulties, we may be required to shut in or curtail production.
Any such shut-in or curtailment, or an inability to obtain favorable terms for delivery of the oil, NGL and natural gas produced
from our fields, could materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Derivatives reform legislation and related regulations could have an adverse effect on our ability to hedge risks associated with
our business.

The July 2010 Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act") provides for
federal oversight of the over-the-counter derivatives market and entities that participate in that market and mandates that the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC"), the SEC, and federal regulators of financial institutions (the
"Prudential Regulators") adopt rules or regulations implementing the Dodd-Frank Act and providing definitions of terms used
in the Dodd-Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act establishes margin requirements and requires clearing and trade execution
practices for certain market participants and may result in certain market participants needing to curtail or cease their
derivatives activities.

Although some of the rules necessary to implement the Dodd-Frank Act remain to be adopted, the CFTC, the SEC and
the Prudential Regulators have issued many rules to implement the Dodd-Frank Act, including a rule, which we refer to as the
"Mandatory Clearing Rule," requiring clearing of hedges, or swaps, that are subject to it (currently, only certain interest rate
and credit default swaps, which we do not presently have), a rule, which we refer to as the "End User Exception," establishing
an "end user" exception to the Mandatory Clearing Rule, a rule, which we refer to as the "Margin Rule," setting forth collateral
requirements in connection with swaps that are not cleared and also an exception to the Margin Rule for end users that are not
financial end users, which exception we refer to as the "Non-Financial End User Exception," and a rule, subsequently vacated
by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia and remanded to the CFTC for further proceedings, imposing
position limits. The CFTC proposed a new version of this rule, with respect to which the comment period closed but the rule
was not adopted, and another new version of this rule, which we refer to as the "Re-Proposed Position Limit Rule," with respect
to which the comment period has closed but a final rule has not been issued. The Re-Proposed Position Limit Rule provides an
exemption from the position limits for swaps that constitute “bona fide hedging positions” within the definition of such term
under the Re-Proposed Position Limit Rule, subject to the party claiming the exemption complying with the applicable filing,
recordkeeping and reporting requirements of the Re-Proposed Position Limit Rule.

We qualify for the End User Exception and will utilize it if the Mandatory Clearing Rule is expanded to cover swaps
in which we participate, we qualify for the Non-Financial End User Exception and will not be required to post margin in
connection with uncleared swaps under the Margin Rule, and our existing and anticipated hedging positions constitute "bona
fide hedging positions" under the Re-Proposed Position Limit Rule and we intend to undertake the filing, recordkeeping and
reporting necessary to utilize the bona fide hedging position exemption under the Re-Proposed Position Limit Rule if and when
it becomes effective, so we do not expect to be directly affected by any of such rules. However, most if not all of our hedge
counterparties will be subject to mandatory clearing in connection with their hedging activities with parties who do not qualify
for the End User Exception and will be required to post margin in connection with their hedging activities with other swap
dealers, major swap participants, financial end users and other persons that do not qualify for the Non-Financial End User
Exception. In addition, the European Union and other non-U.S. jurisdictions have enacted laws and regulations (including laws
and regulations giving the European Union financial authorities the power to write down amounts we may be owed on hedging
agreements with counterparties subject to such laws and regulations and/or require that we accept equity interests in such
counterparties in lieu of cash in satisfaction of such amounts), which we refer to collectively as "Foreign Regulations," which
may apply to our transactions with counterparties subject to such Foreign Regulations, which we refer to as "Foreign
Counterparties." The Dodd-Frank Act, the rules which have been adopted and not vacated, and, to the extent that the Re-
Proposed Position Limit Rule is effected, such proposed rule could significantly increase the cost of our derivative contracts,
materially alter the terms of our derivative contracts, reduce the availability of derivatives to us that we have historically used
to protect against risks that we encounter in our business, reduce our ability to monetize or restructure our existing derivative
contracts and increase our exposure to less creditworthy counterparties. The Foreign Regulations could have similar effects. We
have stopped entering into new hedging transactions with Foreign Counterparties and do not currently intend to resume
hedging with Foreign Counterparties. If we reduce our use of derivatives as a result of the Dodd-Frank Act and regulations and
Foreign Regulations, our results of operations may become more volatile and our cash flows may be less predictable, which
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could adversely affect our ability to plan for and fund capital expenditures. Finally, the Dodd-Frank Act was intended, in part,
to reduce the volatility of oil and natural gas prices, which some legislators attributed to speculative trading in derivatives and
commodity contracts related to oil and natural gas. Our revenues could therefore be adversely affected if a consequence of the
Dodd-Frank Act and regulations is to lower commodity prices. Any of these consequences could have a material adverse effect
on us, our financial condition and our results of operations.

Our producing properties are in a concentrated geographic area, making us vulnerable to risks associated with operating in
one major geographic area.

Our producing properties are geographically concentrated in the Permian Basin. At December 31, 2016, all of our total
estimated proved reserves were attributable to properties located in this area. As a result of this concentration, we may be
disproportionately exposed to the impact of regional supply and demand factors, delays or interruptions of production from wells
inthis area caused by governmental regulation, processing or transportation capacity constraints, market limitations, water shortages
or other drought-related conditions or interruption of the processing or transportation of oil or natural gas.

Seasonal weather conditions and lease stipulations adversely affect our ability to conduct drilling activities in some of the
areas where we operate.

Oil, NGL and natural gas operations in our operating areas can be adversely affected by seasonal weather conditions
and lease stipulations designed to protect various wildlife. This limits our ability to operate in those areas and can later intensify
competition during certain months for drilling rigs, oilfield equipment, services, supplies and qualified personnel, which may
lead to periodic shortages. These constraints and the resulting shortages or high costs could delay our operations and materially
increase our operating and capital costs.

Our use of 2D and 3D seismic and other data, including our Earth Model, is subject to interpretation and may not
accurately identify the presence of oil, NGL and natural gas, which could adversely affect the results of our drilling
operations.

Even when properly used and interpreted, 2D and 3D seismic data and other data, such as that incorporated into our
Earth Model that provide either visualization techniques and/or statistical analyses are only tools used to assist geoscientists in
identifying subsurface structures and hydrocarbon indicators and do not enable geoscientists to know whether hydrocarbons
are, in fact, present in those structures or the amount of hydrocarbons. We employ 3D seismic technology with respect to
certain of our projects. The implementation and practical use of 3D seismic technology is relatively unproven, which can lessen
its effectiveness, at least in the near term, and increase our costs. In addition, the use of 3D seismic and other advanced
technologies requires greater pre-drilling expenditures than traditional drilling strategies, and we could incur greater drilling
and exploration expenses as a result of such expenditures, which may result in a reduction in our returns. As a result, our
drilling activities may not be successful or economical, and our overall drilling success rate or our drilling success rate for
activities in a particular area could decline.

The Earth Model is reliant upon data that is subject to interpretation and is itself the product of interpretation.
Therefore, there is no guarantee that the data it produces or our interpretation of that data will be correct. The Earth Model is a
relatively new process, and there is no guarantee that the initial rates of correlation will be duplicated.

We often gather 3D seismic data over large areas. Our interpretation of seismic data delineates those portions of an
area that we believe are desirable for drilling. Therefore, we may choose not to acquire option or lease rights prior to acquiring
seismic data, and in many cases, we may identify hydrocarbon indicators before seeking option or lease rights in the location. If
we are not able to lease those locations on acceptable terms, we will have made substantial expenditures to acquire and analyze
3D data without having an opportunity to attempt to benefit from those expenditures.

The unavailability or high cost of additional drilling rigs, equipment, supplies, personnel and oilfield services as well as fees
for the cancellation of such services could adversely affect our ability to execute our exploration and development plans
within our budget and on a timely basis.

The demand for and availability of qualified and experienced personnel to drill wells and conduct field operations,
geologists, geophysicists, engineers and other professionals in the oil and natural gas industry can fluctuate significantly, often
in correlation with oil, NGL and natural gas prices, causing periodic shortages. From time to time, there have been shortages of
drilling and workover rigs, pipe and other equipment as demand for rigs and equipment has increased along with the number of
wells being drilled. In particular, in recent years the high level of drilling activity in the Permian Basin has resulted in
equipment shortages in those areas. We have committed in the past, and we may in the future commit, to drilling contracts with
various third parties that contain penalties for early terminations. These penalties could negatively impact our financial
statements upon contract termination. Rig shortages as well as rig related fees could result in delays or cause us to incur
significant expenditures that are not provided for in our capital budget, which could have a material adverse effect on our
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business, financial condition or results of operations.

Competition in the oil and natural gas industry is intense, making it difficult for us to acquire properties, market oil, NGL
and natural gas and secure trained personnel.

Our ability to acquire additional locations and to find and develop reserves in the future may depend on our ability to
evaluate and select suitable properties and to consummate transactions in a highly competitive environment for acquiring
properties, marketing oil, NGL and natural gas and securing trained personnel. Also, there is substantial competition for capital
available for investment in the oil, NGL and natural gas industry, especially in our focus areas. Many of our competitors
possess and employ financial, technical and personnel resources substantially greater than ours. Those companies may be able
to pay more for productive oil, NGL and natural gas properties and exploratory locations and to evaluate, bid for and purchase a
greater number of properties and locations than our financial or personnel resources permit. In addition, other companies may
be able to offer better compensation packages to attract and retain qualified personnel than we are able to offer. We may not be
able to compete successfully in the future in acquiring prospective reserves, developing reserves, marketing hydrocarbons,
attracting and retaining quality personnel and raising additional capital, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business.

Technological advancements and trends in our industry affect the demand for certain types of equipment.

Technological advancements and trends in our industry affect the demand for certain types of equipment. Especially in
times when commodity prices are high, the demand for drilling rigs that are able to drill horizontally in the Permian Basin
increases. In addition, oil and gas exploration and production companies have increased the use of "pad drilling" in recent years
whereby a series of horizontal wells are drilled in succession by walking or skidding a drilling rig at a single-site location. If we
are unable to secure such rigs in a timely or cost-efficient manner it could have a material adverse effect on our business.

The loss of senior management or technical personnel could adversely affect operations.

We depend on the services of our senior management and technical personnel. The loss of the services of our senior
management or technical personnel, including Randy Foutch, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, could have a material
adverse effect on our operations. We do not maintain, nor do we plan to obtain, any insurance against the loss of any of these
individuals.

A significant reduction by Warburg Pincus of its ownership interest in us could adversely affect us.

Warburg Pincus is our largest stockholder and two members of our board of directors are affiliates of Warburg Pincus.
As of December 31, 2016, Warburg Pincus owned 36.2% of our outstanding common stock. We believe that Warburg Pincus'
substantial ownership interest in us provides them with an economic incentive to assist us to be successful. However, Warburg
Pincus is not obligated to maintain its ownership interest in us and may elect at any time to change its ownership position in our
stock. If Warburg Pincus sells all or a substantial portion of its ownership interest in us, Warburg Pincus may have less
incentive to assist in our success and its affiliates that are members of our board of directors may resign. Such actions could
adversely affect our ability to successfully implement our business strategies, which could adversely affect our cash flows or
results of operations.

We may be subject to risks in connection with acquisitions of properties.
The successful acquisition of producing properties requires an assessment of several factors, including:

e recoverable reserves;

»  future oil, NGL and natural gas prices and their applicable differentials;
*  timing of development;

« capital and operating costs; and

*  potential environmental and other liabilities.

The accuracy of these assessments is inherently uncertain. Our assessment will not reveal all existing or potential
problems nor will it permit us to become sufficiently familiar with the properties to fully assess their deficiencies and
capabilities. Inspections may not always be performed on every well, and environmental problems are not necessarily
observable even when an inspection is undertaken. Even when problems are identified, the seller may be unwilling or unable to
provide effective contractual protection against all or part of the problems. We often are not entitled to contractual
indemnification for environmental liabilities and acquire properties on an "as is" basis. Even in those circumstances in which
we have contractual indemnification rights for pre-closing liabilities, it remains possible that the seller will not be able to fulfill
its contractual obligations. Problems with properties we acquire could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
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condition and results of operations.
We may incur significant additional amounts of debt.

As of February 14, 2017, we had total long-term indebtedness of $1.3 billion. In addition, we may be able to incur
substantial additional indebtedness, including secured indebtedness, in the future. The restrictions on the incurrence of
additional indebtedness contained in the indentures governing our Senior Unsecured Notes and in our Senior Secured Credit
Facility are subject to a number of significant qualifications and exceptions, and under certain circumstances, the amount of
indebtedness that could be incurred in compliance with these restrictions could be substantial. If new debt is added to our
existing debt levels, the related risks that we face would increase and may make it more difficult to satisfy our existing financial
obligations. In addition, the restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness contained in the indentures governing the
Senior Unsecured Notes apply only to debt that constitutes indebtedness under the indentures.

We may incur more taxes and certain of our projects may become uneconomic if certain federal income tax deductions
currently available with respect to oil and natural gas exploration and development are eliminated as a result of future
legislation.

Legislation has been proposed that would, if enacted, eliminate certain key U.S. federal income tax preferences
currently available to oil and natural gas exploration and production companies. These changes include, but are not limited to
(1) the repeal of the percentage depletion allowance for oil and natural gas properties, (ii) the elimination of current deductions
for intangible drilling and development costs, (iii) the elimination of the deduction for certain U.S. production activities and
(iv) an extension of the amortization period for certain geological and geophysical expenditures. In addition, the former
President of the United States recently proposed adding a $10.25 per Bbl tax on crude oil produced in the United States. Policy
positions taken by the new presidential administration and congress in the United States may result in significant changes in the
rules governing U.S. federal income taxation, including changes to the tax rates, the ability to take certain deductions and/or the
border adjustment tax. It is unclear whether any of the foregoing changes will actually be enacted or how soon any such
changes could become effective. Any such change or similar other change could materially adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations by increasing the costs we incur which would in turn make it uneconomic to drill some
locations if commodity prices are not sufficiently high, resulting in lower revenues and decreases in production and reserves. In
addition, it is uncertain what impact the 2016 U.S. presidential and congressional elections will have on the energy industry.

Loss of our information and computer systems could adversely affect our business.

We are heavily dependent on our information systems and computer based programs, including our well operations
information, seismic data, electronic data processing and accounting data. If any of such programs or systems were to fail or
create erroneous information in our hardware or software network infrastructure or we were subject to cyberspace breaches or
attacks, possible consequences include our loss of communication links, inability to find, produce, process and sell oil, NGL
and natural gas and inability to automatically process commercial transactions or engage in similar automated or computerized
business activities. Any such consequence could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our business could be negatively impacted by security threats, including cyber-security threats, and other disruptions.

As an oil and natural gas producer, we face various security threats, including cyber-security threats to gain
unauthorized access to sensitive information or to render data or systems unusable, threats to the safety of our employees,
threats to the security of our facilities and infrastructure or third-party facilities and infrastructure, such as processing plants and
pipelines, and threats from terrorist acts. Cyber-security attacks in particular are evolving and include, but are not limited to,
malicious software, attempts to gain unauthorized access to data, and other electronic security breaches that could lead to
disruptions in critical systems, unauthorized release of confidential or otherwise protected information and corruption of data.
Although we utilize various procedures and controls to monitor and protect against these threats and to mitigate our exposure to
such threats, there can be no assurance that these procedures and controls will be sufficient in preventing security threats from
materializing. If any of these events were to materialize, they could lead to losses of sensitive information, critical
infrastructure, personnel or capabilities essential to our operations and could have a material adverse effect on our reputation,
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Risks relating to our common stock

The concentration of our capital stock ownership among our largest stockholder will limit other stockholders’' ability to
influence corporate matters.

As of December 31, 2016, Warburg Pincus owned 36.2% of our outstanding common stock. Consequently, Warburg
Pincus has significant influence over all matters that require approval by our stockholders, including the election of directors
and approval of significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership limits the ability of other stockholders to
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influence corporate matters.

Furthermore, conflicts of interest could arise in the future between us, on the one hand, and Warburg Pincus and its
affiliates, including its portfolio companies, on the other hand, concerning among other things, potential competitive business
activities or business opportunities. Warburg Pincus LLC is a private equity firm that has invested in, among other things,
companies in the energy industry. As a result, Warburg Pincus' existing and future portfolio companies which it controls may
compete with us for investment or business opportunities. These conflicts of interest may not be resolved in our favor.

We have also renounced our interest in certain business opportunities. Our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, we renounce any interest or expectancy in any
business opportunity, transaction or other matter in which Warburg Pincus or any private fund that it manages or advises, any of
their respective officers, directors, partners and employees, and any portfolio company in which such persons or entities have
an equity interest (other than us and our subsidiaries) (each, a "specified party") participates or desires or seeks to participate
and that involves any aspect of the energy business or industry, even if the opportunity is one that we might reasonably have
pursued or had the ability or desire to pursue if granted the opportunity to do so, and no such specified party shall be liable to
us for breach of any fiduciary or other duty, as a director or officer or controlling stockholder or otherwise, by reason of the fact
that such specified party pursues or acquires any such business opportunity, directs any such business opportunity to another
person or fails to present any such business opportunity, or information regarding any such business opportunity, to us.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, we do not renounce any interest or expectancy in any business opportunity, transaction or other
matter that is offered in writing solely to (i) one of our directors or officers who is not also a specified party or (ii) a specified
party who is one of our directors, officers or employees and is offered such business opportunity solely in his or her capacity as
our director, officer or employee. By renouncing our interest and expectancy in any business opportunity that from time to time
may be presented to Warburg Pincus and its affiliates, our business and prospects could be adversely affected if attractive
business opportunities are procured by such parties for their own benefit rather than for ours.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws, and Delaware state law contain
provisions that may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control and may adversely affect the market price
of our capital stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes our board of directors to issue preferred stock without
any further vote or action by the stockholders. The rights of the holders of our common stock will be subject to the rights of the
holders of any preferred stock that may be issued in the future. The issuance of preferred stock could delay, deter or prevent a
change in control and could adversely affect the voting power or economic value of our shares.

In addition, some provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated
bylaws could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us, even if the change of control would be beneficial
to our stockholders, including:

» limitations on the ability of our stockholders to call special meetings;

*  aseparate vote of 75% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of capital stock in order for stockholders to
amend the bylaws in certain circumstances;

*  our board of directors is divided into three classes with each class serving staggered three-year terms;
»  stockholders do not have the right to take any action by written consent; and

« advance notice provisions for stockholder proposals and nominations for elections to the board of directors to be
acted upon at meetings of stockholders.

Delaware law prohibits us from engaging in any business combination with any "interested stockholder," meaning
generally that a stockholder who owns 15% of our stock cannot acquire us for a period of three years from the date such
stockholder became an interested stockholder, unless various conditions are met, such as the approval of the transaction by our
board of directors. Warburg Pincus, however, is not subject to this restriction.

The availability of shares for sale in the future could reduce the market price of our common stock.

Our board of directors has the authority, without action or vote of our stockholders, to issue all or any part of our
authorized but unissued shares of common stock. In the future, we may issue securities to raise cash for acquisitions, to pay
down debt, to fund capital expenditures or general corporate expenses, in connection with the exercise of stock options or to
satisfy our obligations under our incentive plans. We may also acquire interests in other companies by using a combination of
cash and our common stock or just our common stock. We may also issue securities convertible into, exchangeable for, or that
represent the right to receive, our common stock. Any of these events may dilute your ownership interest in our Company,
reduce our earnings per share and have an adverse impact on the price of our common stock.
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Because we have no plans to pay, and are currently restricted from paying dividends on our common stock, investors must
look solely to stock appreciation for a return on their investment in us.

We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to
retain all future earnings to fund the development and growth of our business. Any payment of future dividends will be at the
discretion of our board of directors and will depend on, among other things, our earnings, financial condition, capital
requirements, level of indebtedness, statutory and contractual restrictions applying to the payment of dividends and other
considerations that our board of directors deems relevant. Covenants contained in our Senior Secured Credit Facility and the
indentures governing our Senior Unsecured Notes restrict the payment of dividends. Investors must rely on sales of their
common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to realize a return on their investment.
Investors seeking cash dividends should not purchase our common stock.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

The information required by Item 2. is contained in "Item 1. Business".

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are subject to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, including
proceedings for which we have insurance coverage. As of the date hereof, we are not party to any legal proceedings that we
currently believe will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Part I1

Item S. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market for Registrant's Common Equity. Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE")
under the symbol "LPL." The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported
by the NYSE:

Price per share

High Low

2016:

FOUITI QUATTET ...ttt ettt ea e e et et e e et e eae et e eaeetesasenneeneennesaeans $ 1647 $ 11.46

TRITA QUATTET ...ttt ettt et e et et e e e et e et et eneensenseneenseneeaeeenenes $ 13.70 $ 9.20

SECONA QUATTET .......veveeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt et ettt e e te et e ete et e et et e s e s e s eesene e s enseneeneeneereeneareas $ 13.73  § 7.26

FIEST QUATTET ........evieecee ettt ettt ettt e e e e et e e e e et e et et et et et eneensenseneeneeneeaeeenanes $ 9.80 $ 3.90
2015:

FOUTtH QUATTET ..ottt e ettt ettt e s eneeneeneeneeaeeenenes $ 14.19 $ 7.01

TRITA QUATTET ......e.veveeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt e et ea et e e e et e s e eneeneeneeneereeneeaeenes $ 12.66 $ 6.35

SECONA QUATTET .......oeviiviiet ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e et e et e s e s et e ensenseneensensenseneereeaeaeeas $ 16.18 $ 12.34

FIISt QUATTET .......eovieceeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt et e s et et e s e s e e eneeneeneeneeneeneeneenes $ 1484 § 8.02

On February 15, 2017, the last sale price of our common stock, as reported on the NYSE, was $14.33 per share.
Holders. As of February 13, 2017, there were 38 holders of record of our common stock.

Dividends. We have not paid any cash dividends since our inception. Covenants contained in our Senior Secured
Credit Facility and the indentures governing our Senior Unsecured Notes restrict the payment of cash dividends on our
common stock. See "Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks related to our business—Our debt agreements contain restrictions that limit
our flexibility in operating our business" and "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Cash flows—Debt." We currently intend to retain all future earnings for the development and growth of
our business, and we do not anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends to holders of our common stock in the
foreseeable future.

Repurchase of Equity Securities.

Total number of Maximum number of
shares purchased as shares that may yet be
Total number of Average price part of publicly purchased under the
Period shares withheld” per share announced plans plan
October 1, 2016 - October 31, 2016 ................ 1,087 $ 12.86 — —
November 1, 2016 - November 30, 2016 ........ 263§ 13.10 — —
December 1, 2016 - December 31, 2016 ......... 263§ 15.44 — —
0] 721 E TR 1,613

(1) Represents shares that were withheld by us to satisfy employee tax withholding obligations that arose upon the lapse
of restrictions on restricted stock.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds. None.

Stock Performance Graph. The following performance graph and related information shall not be deemed "soliciting
material" or to be "filed" with the SEC, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future filing under the
Securities Act or Exchange Act, except to the extent that we specifically request that such information be treated as "soliciting
material" or specifically incorporate such information by reference into such a filing.
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The performance graph below compares the cumulative five-year total returns to our common stockholders relative to
the cumulative total returns on the Standard and Poor's 500 Index (the "S&P 500") and the Standard and Poor's Oil & Gas
Exploration & Production Select Industry Index (the "S&P O&G E&P"). The comparison was prepared based upon the
following assumptions:

1. $100 was invested in our common stock, the S&P 500 and the S&P O&G E&P from December 30, 2011 to
December 30, 2016; and

2. Dividends, if any, are reinvested.
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Item 6. Selected Historical Financial Data

The selected historical consolidated financial data presented below is not intended to replace our consolidated
financial statements. You should read the following data along with "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the consolidated financial statements and related notes, each of which is
included elsewhere in this Annual Report. We believe that the assumptions underlying the preparation of our financial
statements are reasonable. The financial information included in this Annual Report may not be indicative of our future results
of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Presented below is our historical financial data for the periods and as of the dates indicated. The historical financial
data for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are
derived from our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The
historical financial data for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 are derived from our consolidated financial statements not included in this Annual Report.

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Statement of operations data:"
Total reVenuUes........ccveveieieieieeceee e $ 597,378 § 606,640 $§ 793,885 $ 665257 $ 583,894
Total costs and expenses™ ...........c..coowrvmrrrererreenn. 685,340 3,078,154 567,499 450,906 411,954
Operating income (10SS) ........ccoevvevieieeieieiieienen. (87,962) (2,471,514) 226,386 214,351 171,940
Non-operating income (expense), Net.................... (172,777) 84,633 203,473 (23,267) (77,176)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
INCOME tAXES. .vvovvererniseisieei s seseens (260,739)  (2,386,881) 429,859 191,084 94,764
Income tax benefit (eXpense)..........coeevvevevueennennen. — 176,945 (164,286) (74,507) (33,003)
Income (loss) from continuing operations............. (260,739)  (2,209,9306) 265,573 116,577 61,761
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net
OF X oo — — — 1,423 (107)
Net income (10SS) ...eveeeeeieieieieiee e $ (260,739) $(2,209,936) $ 265,573 $§ 118,000 $ 61,654
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations........... $ (1.16) $ (11.10) $ 1.88 $ 0.88 $ 0.49
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — — 0.01 —
Net income (loss) per share............cceveevennenne. $ (1.16) $ (11.10) $ 1.88 $ 0.89 $ 0.49
Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations........... $ (1.16) $ (11.10) $ 1.85 % 0.87 $ 0.48
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — — 0.01 —
Net income (loss) per share............cceveevennenne. $ (1.16) $ (11.10) $ 1.85 % 0.88 $ 0.48

(1) The oil and natural gas properties that were a component of the Anadarko Basin Sale are not presented as held for sale
nor are their results of operations presented as discontinued operations for the historical periods presented pursuant to
the rules governing full cost accounting for oil and gas properties. The results of operations of the associated pipeline
assets and various other associated property and equipment are presented as results of discontinued operations, net of
tax. For further discussion of the Anadarko Basin Sale see Note C.3 to our consolidated financial statements included
in our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Includes full cost ceiling impairment expense of $161.1 million and $2.4 billion for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.
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As of December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Balance sheet data:
Cash and cash equivalents ...........c.ccceevevverienrennnne. $ 32,672 $ 31,154 $§ 29,321 $ 198,153 $ 33,224
Property and equipment, net..............cccooveurevenrenne.n. $ 1,366,867 $ 1,200,255 $ 3,354,082 $ 2204324 $ 2,113,891
TOtal ASSETS™ ..o $ 1,782,346 $ 1,813,287 $ 3,910,701 $ 2,606,610 $ 2,318,368
Total current liabilities............coooevevieveirereicene $§ 187945 § 216,815 $ 353,834 $§ 253969 § 262,068
Long-term debt, 0 e $ 1,353,909 $ 1,416,226 $ 1,779,447 $ 1,038,022 $ 1,196,824
Stockholders' €qUity ..........cooeeveveevereeeeceieieieeeeaen $ 180,573 $ 131,447 $ 1,563,201 $ 1272256 $ 831,723

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014 2013? 2012
Other financial data:
Net cash provided by operating activities................ $ 356,295 $§ 315947 § 498277 $§ 364,729 § 376,776
Net cash used in investing activities........................ $ (564,402) $ (667,507) $(1,406,961) $ (329,884) $ (940,751)
Net cash provided by financing activities................ $ 209,625 $ 353,393 § 739,852 $§ 130,084 § 569,197

(1) Amounts prior to 2015 have been reclassified to conform to the 2016 and 2015 presentation. See Notes 2.c, 2.k, 5.h, 7
and 14 to our consolidated financial statements included in our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further
information.

(2) Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2013 is offset by proceeds received for the
Anadarko Basin Sale. For further discussion of the Anadarko Basin Sale see Note C.3 to our consolidated financial
statements included in our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Non-GAAP financial measure

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure that we define as net income or loss plus adjustments for
deferred income tax expense or benefit, depletion, depreciation and amortization, bad debt expense, impairment expense, non-
cash stock-based compensation, accretion of asset retirement obligations, restructuring expenses, gains or losses on derivatives,
cash settlements received for matured derivatives, cash settlements on early terminated and modified derivatives, cash
premiums paid for derivatives, interest expense, write-off of debt issuance costs, gains or losses on disposal of assets, loss on
early redemption of debt, buyout of minimum volume commitment, income or loss from equity method investee and
proportionate Adjusted EDITDA of equity method investee. Adjusted EBITDA provides no information regarding a company’s
capital structure, borrowings, interest costs, capital expenditures, working capital movement or tax position. Adjusted EBITDA
does not represent funds available for discretionary use because those funds are required for debt service, capital expenditures
and working capital, income taxes, franchise taxes and other commitments and obligations. However, our management believes
Adjusted EBITDA is useful to an investor in evaluating our operating performance because this measure:

* is widely used by investors in the oil and natural gas industry to measure a company's operating performance
without regard to items excluded from the calculation of such term, which can vary substantially from company to
company depending upon accounting methods, book value of assets, capital structure and the method by which
assets were acquired, among other factors;

*  helps investors to more meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations from period to period by
removing the effect of our capital structure from our operating structure; and

* isused by our management for various purposes, including as a measure of operating performance, in
presentations to our board of directors and as a basis for strategic planning and forecasting.

There are significant limitations to the use of Adjusted EBITDA as a measure of performance, including the inability
to analyze the effect of certain recurring and non-recurring items that materially affect our net income or loss, the lack of
comparability of results of operations to different companies and the different methods of calculating Adjusted EBITDA
reported by different companies. Our measurements of Adjusted EBITDA for financial reporting as compared to compliance
under our debt agreements differ.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016, we changed the methodology for calculating Adjusted EBITDA by including
adjustments for both accretion of asset retirement obligations and our proportionate share of our equity method investee's
Adjusted EBITDA. Accordingly, the prior periods' Adjusted EBITDA has been modified for comparability.

The following presents a reconciliation of Net income (loss) (GAAP) for continuing and discontinued operations to
Adjusted EBITDA (non-GAAP):

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands, unaudited) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Net inCOME (L0SS) ...vvovveeeeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneas $  (260,739) $(2,209,936) $ 265,573 $ 118,000 $ 61,654
Plus:
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense...................... — (176,945) 164,286 75,288 32,949
Depletion, depreciation and amortization.................. 148,339 277,724 246,474 234,571 243,649
Bad debt eXpense .........cecvevveiieieniieieeee e — 255 342 653 —
IMpairment EXPense..........cveeveereevreeeeeeeeeereeeeereenneas 162,027 2,374,888 3,904 — —
Non-cash stock-based compensation, net of
amounts capitalized..........cocooirieniiiiniiie, 29,229 24,509 23,079 21,433 10,056
Accretion of asset retirement obligations .................. 3,483 2,423 1,787 1,475 1,200
Restructuring eXpenses ..........c.eecveeveeverreevesreeeeeneennes — 6,042 — — —

Mark-to-market on derivatives: ........cccccvvveevvvcuvnnnnnn.

(Gain) loss on derivatives, net............cceeeveereerenennn. 87,425 (214,291)  (327,920) (79,878) (8,388)

Cash settlements received for matured derivatives,

TICT 1ttt ettt ettt ettt 195,281 255,281 28,241 4,046 27,025

Cash settlements received for early terminations

and modifications of derivatives, net....................... 80,000 — 76,660 6,008 —
Cash premiums paid for derivatives ..............ccccueuee.. (89,669) (5,167) (7,419) (11,292) (9,135)
INterest EXPeNnSe......ccvevuvieiuieriieeieeiie e e sre e e 93,298 103,219 121,173 100,327 85,572
Write-off of debt issuance costs.........ccccoovvvreeenneene.. 842 — 124 1,502 —
Loss on disposal of assets, net ............ccoceveeveeieeneennn, 790 2,127 3,252 1,508 52
Loss on early redemption of debt............ccoevevennne. — 31,537 — — —
Buyout of minimum volume commitment................. — 3,014 — — —
(Income) loss from equity method investee............... (9,403) (6,799) 192 (29) —
Proportionate Adjusted EBITDA of equity method
INVEStEe!) ... 20,367 9,383 462 29 —

Adjusted EBITDA ........ccoooiiiieiiieieieieeeeeeie § 461270 $§ 477,264 § 600,210 $ 473,641 § 444,634

(1) Proportionate Adjusted EBITDA of Medallion, our equity method investee, is calculated as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands, unaudited) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Income (loss) from equity method investee...................... $ 9,403 § 6,799 § 192) $ 29 $ —
Adjusted for proportionate share of:
Depreciation and amortization............ccceeeeevvereeseenenenn 10,964 4,061 654 — —
Buyout of minimum volume commitment..................... — (1,477) — — —
Proportionate Adjusted EBITDA of equity method
TIIVESTER .ottt e e eae e $ 20367 $ 9383 § 462 $ 29 % —
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report. The
following discussion contains "forward-looking statements" that reflect our future plans, estimates, beliefs and expected
performance. We caution that assumptions, expectations, projections, intentions or beliefs about future events may, and often
do, vary from actual results and the differences can be material. See "Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements" and "Item 1A. Risk Factors." All amounts, dollars and percentages presented in this Annual Report are rounded
and therefore approximate.

Executive overview

We are an independent energy company focused on the acquisition, exploration and development of oil and natural gas
properties, and the transportation of oil, NGL and natural gas from such properties, primarily in the Permian Basin in West
Texas. Since our inception, we have grown primarily through our drilling program coupled with select strategic acquisitions and
joint ventures.

Our financial and operating performance for the year ended December 31, 2016 included the following:

*  Oil, NGL and natural gas sales of $426.5 million, compared to $431.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2015;

*  Average daily sales volumes of 49,586 BOE/D, compared to 44,782 BOE/D for the year ended December 31,
2015;

*  Net loss of $260.7 million, including a non-cash full cost ceiling impairment of $161.1 million, compared to a net
loss of $2.2 billion, including a non-cash full cost ceiling impairment of $2.4 billion, for the year ended
December 31, 2015;

* Adjusted EBITDA (a non-GAAP financial measure) of $461.3 million, compared to $477.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015. See "Item 6. Selected Historical Financial Data" for a reconciliation of Adjusted
EBITDA; and

*  Proved developed and undeveloped reserves of 167,100 MBOE, compared to 125,698 MBOE for the year ended
December 31, 2015. See Note 20.d to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report for discussion of changes in our estimated reserve quantities of oil, NGL and natural gas.

Recent developments

Our board of directors approved a $530.0 million capital budget for 2017 excluding acquisitions and investments in
Medallion.

On January 17, 2017, we completed the sale of 2,900 net acres and working interests in 16 producing vertical wells in
the Midland Basin to a third-party buyer for a purchase price of $59.6 million. After transaction costs reflecting an economic
effective date of October 1, 2016, the proceeds were $59.4 million net of working capital and closing adjustments and subject to
final closing adjustments. A portion of these proceeds were used to pay down $55.0 million on the Senior Secured Credit
Facility.

Acquisitions

Our use of capital for development and acquisitions allows us to direct our capital resources toward what we believe to
be the most attractive opportunities as market conditions evolve. We have historically developed properties that we believe will
meet or exceed our rate of return criteria. For acquisitions of properties with additional development and exploration potential,
we have focused on acquiring properties that we expect to operate so that we can control the timing and implementation of
capital spending. We also make acquisitions in core, mature areas where management can leverage knowledge and experience
to identify upside potential in the assets.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, we completed acquisitions of 9,200 net acres of additional leasehold
interests and working interests in 81 producing vertical wells in western Glasscock and Reagan counties (which included
production of 300 net BOE/D) within the Company's core development area for an aggregate purchase price of $124.7 million
subject to customary closing adjustments.

For further discussion of this acquisition and prior period acquisitions and divestitures, see Note 4 to our consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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2016 equity offerings
May 2016 equity offering

On May 16, 2016, we completed the sale of 10,925,000 shares of our common stock (including the underwriter's
option) (the "May 2016 Equity Offering") for net proceeds of $119.3 million, after underwriting discounts, commissions and
offering expenses, which were used to repay borrowings under our Senior Secured Credit Facility.

July 2016 equity offering

On July 19, 2016, we completed the sale of 13,000,000 shares of our common stock (the "July 2016 Equity Offering")
for net proceeds of $136.3 million, after underwriting discounts, commissions and offering expenses, which, together with the
net proceeds from the underwriters' option exercise, were used to repay borrowings under our Senior Secured Credit Facility.
On August 9, 2016, the underwriters exercised their option to purchase an additional 1,950,000 shares of our common stock
which resulted in net proceeds of $20.5 million, after underwriting discounts, commissions and offering expenses.

Senior Secured Credit Facility reaffirmation

On October 24, 2016, pursuant to a regular semi-annual redetermination, our lenders reaffirmed the borrowing base
under our Senior Secured Credit Facility at $815.0 million. Our aggregate elected commitment of $815.0 million remained
unchanged.

Pricing, reserves and non-cash full cost ceiling impairment

Our results of operations are heavily influenced by oil, NGL and natural gas prices. Oil, NGL and natural gas price
fluctuations are caused by changes in global and regional supply and demand, market uncertainty, economic conditions and a
variety of additional factors. Historically, commodity prices have experienced significant fluctuations, and additional changes in
commodity prices may affect the economic viability of, and our ability to fund, our drilling projects, as well as the economic
valuation and economic recovery of oil, NGL and natural gas reserves.

We have entered into a number of derivative contracts that have enabled us to offset a portion of the changes in our
cash flow caused by price fluctuations for our sales of oil, NGL and natural gas as discussed in "Item 7A. Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk."

Our reserves as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are reported in three streams: oil, NGL and natural gas. Our sales
volumes, prices and reserves as of December 31, 2014 were reported in two streams: crude oil and liquids-rich natural gas with
the economic value of the NGL in our natural gas included in the wellhead natural gas price. This change impacts the
comparability of 2016 and 2015 with 2014.

Our net book value of evaluated oil and natural gas properties did not exceed the full cost ceiling amount as of

December 31, 2016, September 30, 2016 or June 30, 2016. Our net book value of evaluated oil and natural gas properties
exceeded the full cost ceiling amount as of March 31, 2016 and as a result, we recorded a non-cash full cost ceiling impairment
of $161.1 million. Oil, NGL and natural gas prices have somewhat stabilized in comparison to prices during 2016. However, if
these prices decline from the current levels or if adverse economic conditions occur (such as increases in drilling production
and/or service costs) we could incur future full cost ceiling impairments. See Note 2.g to our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this Annual Report for prices used to value our reserves and additional discussion of our full cost
impairments in the first quarter of 2016 and in prior periods.

Core area of operations

The oil and liquids-rich Permian Basin is characterized by multiple target horizons, extensive production histories,
long-lived reserves, high drilling success rates and high initial production rates. As of December 31, 2016, we had assembled
127,847 net acres in the Permian Basin.

Sources of our revenue

Our revenues are derived from the sale of produced oil, NGL and natural gas within the continental United States, the
sale of purchased oil and providing midstream services to third parties. Our revenues do not include the effects of derivatives.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, our revenues were comprised of sales of 53% produced oil, 10% produced NGL, 9%
produced natural gas, 27% purchased oil and 1% midstream services. Our oil, NGL and natural gas revenues may vary
significantly from period to period as a result of changes in volumes of production and/or changes in commodity prices. Our
sales of purchased oil revenue may vary due to changes in oil prices and market differentials. Our midstream service revenues
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may vary due to oil throughput fees and the level of services provided to third parties for (i) gathered natural gas, (ii) gas lift
fees and (iii) water services.

Principal components of our cost structure

Lease operating expenses. These are daily costs incurred to bring oil, NGL and natural gas out of the ground and to
market, together with the daily costs incurred to maintain our producing properties. Such costs also include maintenance,
repairs and non-routine workover expenses related to our oil and natural gas properties.

Production and ad valorem taxes. Production taxes are paid on oil, NGL and natural gas sold based on a percentage of
revenues from products sold at market prices or at fixed rates established by federal, state or local taxing authorities. We take
full advantage of all credits and exemptions in our various taxing jurisdictions. In general, the production taxes we pay correlate
to the changes in oil, NGL and natural gas revenues. Ad valorem taxes are property taxes based on the assessed taxable value of
our reserves attributed to our oil and natural gas properties.

Midstream service expenses. These are costs incurred to operate and maintain our (i) oil and natural gas gathering and
transportation systems and related facilities, (ii) centralized oil storage tanks, (iii) natural gas lift, rig fuel and centralized
compression infrastructure and (iv) water storage, recycling and transportation facilities.

Minimum volume commitments. We have committed to deliver for sale or transportation fixed volumes of product
under certain contractual arrangements that specify the delivery of a fixed and determinable quantity. If not fulfilled, we are
subject to deficiency payments. These commitments are normal and customary for our business. In certain instances, we have
used spot market purchases to meet our commitments in certain locations or due to favorable pricing. Management anticipates
continuing this practice in the future. Also, if our production is not sufficient to satisfy our delivery commitments, we can and
may use spot market purchases to fulfill the commitments.

Costs of purchased oil. These are costs associated with purchasing oil from third parties and the transportation costs
required to bring it to market.

Drilling rig fees. These are costs incurred for the early termination of drilling rig contracts.

General and administrative ("G&A"). These are costs incurred for overhead, including payroll and benefits for our
corporate staff, costs of maintaining our headquarters, costs of managing our production and development operations, franchise
taxes, audit and other fees for professional services, legal compliance and compensation expense related to employee and
director stock awards, performance share awards and option awards granted, which have been recognized on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period associated with the award, and, in prior periods, performance unit awards in which the fair value
was re-measured at the end of each reporting period until settlement.

Accretion of asset retirement obligations. Accretion is a non-cash charge that represents changes in our asset retirement
liability due to the passage of time.

Depletion, depreciation and amortization. Under the full cost accounting method, we capitalize all acquisition,
exploration and development costs, including certain related employee costs, incurred for the purpose of finding oil and natural
gas within a cost center and then systematically expense those costs on a units of production basis based on evaluated oil, NGL
and natural gas reserve quantities. We calculate depletion on the following types of costs: (i) all capitalized costs, other than the
cost of investments in unevaluated properties and major development projects for which evaluated reserves cannot yet be
assigned, less accumulated depletion; (ii) the estimated future expenditures to be incurred in developing evaluated reserves; and
(iii) the estimated dismantlement and abandonment costs, net of estimated salvage values. We calculate depreciation on the cost
of fixed assets related to our pipelines and other fixed assets utilizing the straight-line method over the useful life of the asset, or
in the case of leasehold improvements over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the terms of the related
leases.

Impairment expense. The full cost ceiling is based principally on the estimated future net revenues from our proved oil
and natural gas properties discounted at 10%. Our Realized Prices (as defined below) are utilized to calculate the discounted
future net revenues in our full cost ceiling calculation. In the event the unamortized cost of our evaluated oil and natural gas
properties being depleted exceeds the full cost ceiling, the excess is charged to expense in the period such excess occurs. Once
incurred, a write-down of oil and natural gas properties is not reversible.

Long-lived assets are considered impaired when their net carrying value is greater than the future undiscounted cash
flows. Once an asset is recognized as impaired, costs are incurred to write the asset down. With the continuing volatility in
commodity prices, we may incur additional write-downs on our oil and natural gas properties. Materials and supplies inventory
and line-fill are recorded at the lower of cost or net realizable value ("NRV"), with costs determined using the weighted-average
cost method.
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Other income (expense)

Gain (loss) on derivatives, net. We utilize derivatives to reduce our exposure to fluctuations in the price of crude oil,
NGL and natural gas. This amount represents (i) the recognition of gains and losses associated with our open derivatives as
commodity prices change and derivatives expire or new contracts are entered into, and (ii) our gains and losses on the
settlement, termination and modification of these derivatives. We classify these gains and losses as operating activities in our
consolidated statements of cash flows.

Income (loss) from equity method investee. We have invested in a company where we own 49% of the ownership units.
As such, we account for this investment under the equity method of accounting with our proportionate share of net income
(loss) reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as "Income (loss) from equity method investee" and the carrying
amount reflected in the consolidated balance sheets as "Investment in equity method investee." See Note 14 to our consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional information regarding this investment.

Interest expense. We finance a portion of our working capital requirements, capital expenditures and acquisitions with
borrowings under our Senior Secured Credit Facility and our Senior Unsecured Notes. As a result, we incur interest expense
that is affected by both fluctuations in interest rates and our financing decisions. We reflect interest paid to the lenders and
bondholders in interest expense, net of amounts capitalized. In addition, we include the amortization of: (i) debt issuance costs
(including origination, amendment and professional fees), (ii) deferred premiums associated with our derivative contracts, (iii)
commitment fees and (iv) annual agency fees in interest expense.

Interest and other income. This represents the interest received on our cash and cash equivalents as well as other
miscellaneous income.

Loss on early redemption of debt. This represents the loss on extinguishment recognized in the early redemption of our
January 2019 Notes in April 2015, related to the difference between the redemption price and the net carrying amount.

Write-off of debt issuance costs. Debt issuance fees, which are stated at cost, net of amortization, are amortized over
the life of the respective debt agreements utilizing the effective interest and straight-line methods. Write-offs of such costs can
occur when borrowing terms change and/or debt has been extinguished.

Loss on disposal of assets, net. This represents losses recorded from selling or disposing of property and equipment or
inventory. Sale proceeds are compared with the recorded net book value of the asset and the appropriate gain (loss) is recorded.

Income tax benefit (expense). Income taxes in our financial statements are generally presented on a consolidated basis.
We are subject to federal and state corporate income taxes and Texas franchise tax. These taxes are accounted for under the
asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis and
operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax laws or tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date.

On a quarterly basis, management evaluates the need for and adequacy of valuation allowances based on the expected
realization of the deferred tax assets and adjusts the amount of such allowances, if necessary. We considered all available
evidence, both positive and negative, in determining whether, based on the weight of that evidence, a valuation allowance was
needed on either the federal or Oklahoma net operating loss carry-forwards. Such consideration included estimated future
projected earnings based on existing reserves and projected future cash flows from our oil and natural gas reserves (including
the timing of those cash flows), the reversal of deferred tax liabilities recorded as of December 31, 2016, our ability to
capitalize intangible drilling costs rather than expensing these costs in order to prevent an operating loss carry-forward from
expiring unused and future projections of Oklahoma sourced income. During the year ended December 31, 2016, we
determined it is more likely than not that we will not realize our net deferred tax assets and, as a result, a valuation allowance of
$87.5 million was recorded. As of December 31, 2016, a total valuation allowance of $764.8 million has been recorded against
the deferred tax asset. See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for
additional discussion of our valuation allowance.
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Results of operations consolidated

For the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2015, and for the year ended
December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014

Oil, NGL and natural gas sales volumes, revenues and pricing

The following table sets forth information regarding oil, NGL and natural gas sales volumes, revenues and average

sales prices per BOE sold, for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Sales volumes:"
OFL (MBDBL) ... 8,442 7,610 6,901
NGL (MBD) ..o 4,784 4,267 —
Natural 2aS (IMMCT) ..ot 29,535 26,816 28,965
0il equivalents (MBOE)®® oot 18,149 16,346 11,729
Average daily sales volumes (BOE/D)® ..........cocoouiimiieoeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 49,586 44,782 32,134
0 Ol .o 47% 47% 59%
Oil, NGL and natural gas sales (in thousands):"
Ol oo 318,466 $ 329301 $ 571,620
NGL oo 56,982 50,604 —
NATULAL AS ..ottt ettt b eaeebeeaaere e 51,037 51,829 165,583
Total oil, NGL and natural gas sales...........cccccererieniecieniieienieeeee e 426,485 $ 431,734 $ 737,203
Average sales prices:"
Oil, realized ($/BDD)™ ..o 3773 $ 4327 $ 8283
NGL, realized ($/BD)™® ... 1191 § 11.86 $ —
Natural gas, realized ($/McH)™® ... 173 $ 193§ 5.72
Average price, realized ($/BOE)™ .......cocoiviiiooeeoeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 2350  $ 2641 $  62.86
Oil, hedged ($/BDI)®) ... 5807 $ 7441 $ 8577
NGL, hedged ($/BDI) ... 1191 § 11.86 $ —
Natural gas, hedged ($/MchH)™ .........oivmioiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 220 S 242§ 5.73
Average price, hedged (S/BOE) ... 3373 0% 4171 S 64.62

(1) For the period prior to January 1, 2015, we presented our sales volumes, sales and average sales prices for oil and
natural gas, which combined NGL with the natural gas stream, and did not separately report NGL. This change
impacts the comparability of 2016 and 2015 with 2014.

(2) BOE is calculated using a conversion rate of six Mcf per one Bbl.

(3) The volumes presented are based on actual results and are not calculated using the rounded numbers presented in the

table above.

(4) Realized oil, NGL and natural gas prices are the actual prices realized at the wellhead adjusted for quality,
transportation fees, geographical differentials, marketing bonuses or deductions and other factors affecting the price
received at the wellhead. The prices presented are based on actual results and are not calculated using the rounded

numbers presented in the table above.

(5) Hedged prices reflect the after-effects of our hedging transactions on our average sales prices. Our calculation of such
after-effects includes current period settlements of matured derivatives in accordance with GAAP and an adjustment to
reflect premiums incurred previously or upon settlement that are attributable to instruments that settled in the period.
The prices presented are based on actual results and are not calculated using the rounded numbers presented in the

table above.
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The following table presents cash settlements received for matured derivatives and premiums incurred previously or
upon settlement attributable to instruments that settled during the periods utilized in our calculation of the hedged prices
presented above:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Cash settlements received for matured derivatives:
L0 11 OSSPSR $§ 181,401 $ 241,391 $ 26,803
INALTULAL AS ...ttt sttt ettt ettt et e st et e e e st enneeneennas 13,880 13,890 1,438
TOLAL ettt $ 195281 $§ 255281 § 28,241
Premiums paid attributable to contracts that matured during the respective period:
L 1 1 TSR P SRR PRSPRRI $ (9,669) §  (4,464) $ (6,497)
INALUTAL AS ..ottt ettt et e ta et e e saesbeesseeseessesseensesseeneas — (703) (922)
TOTAL ettt ettt ettt ettt enea $ (9,669) §  (5,167) § (7,419)

Changes in average realized sales prices and sales volumes caused the following changes to our oil, NGL and natural
gas revenues between the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014:

Total net
effect
(in thousands) Oil NGL Natural gas of change
2014 REVEIUE ......evieiieiieiieiieeteeteeteeteeetesaeeaesseeaesseenaessaensesseenseessenns $§ 571,620 § — § 165,583 § 737,203
Effect of changes in average realized sales prices ..............c......... (301,0306) 50,603 (101,631) (352,064)
Effect of changes in sales VOIUMES...........cccocvevvevierieiienieeieieeeee, 58,660 — (12,293) 46,367
OtRCT . 57 1 170 228
2015 REVEIUE .....eiiieiieiiesiieieetiete ettt sie e sraensesneenseessenes 329,301 50,604 51,829 431,734
Effect of changes in average realized sales prices ..............c......... (46,838) 238 (6,048) (52,648)
Effect of changes in sales VOIUMES...........cccoceevieieerieiienieeieeee, 36,003 6,140 5,256 47,399
2016 REVEIUE ..ottt $§ 318466 $ 56,982 $§ 51,037 $§ 426,485

Oil revenue. Our oil revenue is a function of oil production volumes sold and average sales prices received for those
volumes. The decrease in oil revenue of $10.8 million, or 3.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2015, is mainly due to a 13% decrease in average oil prices realized, partially offset by an 11% increase in
oil sales volumes. The decrease in oil revenue of $242.3 million, or 42%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014, is mainly due to a 48% decrease in average oil prices realized, partially offset by a 10%
increase in oil sales volumes.

NGL and natural gas revenues. On January 1, 2015, we began utilizing three-stream reporting, which impacts the
comparability of 2016 and 2015 with 2014. Our NGL and natural gas revenues are a function of NGL and natural gas
production volumes sold and average sales prices received for those volumes. The increase in NGL revenue of $6.4 million, or
12.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2016, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2015, is mainly due to a 12%
increase in NGL sales volumes. The decrease in natural gas revenue of $0.8 million, or 1.5%, for the year ended December 31,
2016 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2015, is mainly due to a 11% decrease in average natural gas prices realized,
partially offset by a 10% increase in natural gas sales volumes. The decrease in NGL and natural gas revenues from the year
ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014, is mainly due to a decrease in average prices
realized on our NGL and natural gas sales volumes. Stripping out the NGL component from our liquids-rich natural gas results
in a lower price received for residue natural gas during the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014 in which we received revenues from liquids-rich natural gas. The decrease in prices is partially offset by an
increase in NGL and natural gas sales volumes during the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014, converted to a three-stream basis.
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Costs and expenses

The following table sets forth information regarding costs and expenses and average costs per BOE sold for the
periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands except for per BOE sold data) 2016 2015 2014
Costs and expenses:
Lease OPErating €XPENSES ......cveuirvererrereereresreseesessesessesesseseseseesesseseseesessssesseseaeas $ 75,327 $ 108,341 § 96,503
Production and ad valorem taxes ...........cccueeevveeeiieeeeie e 28,586 32,892 50,312
MidStream SEIVICE EXPEIISES.......ecueereereeriereesreereesseeseesseesesseesesseessesssessesssessenns 4,077 5,846 5,429
Minimum volume COMMItMENTS ...........cooviiierieeeereeeeeee e e e 2,209 5,235 2,552
Costs of purchased 01l ..........c.ccvivieiiiiiiiiiice s 169,536 174,338 53,967
DIilliNg TIZ FEES .euviiiiiiitiitiiiretee et — — 527
General and administrative:
CASI Lttt ettt eb b b benes 62,527 65,916 82,965
Non-cash stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized.................. 29,229 24,509 23,079
REStIUCTUIING EXPEIISES ..c.veuvivinteieiiieieiet ettt ettt ettt — 6,042 —
Accretion of asset retirement obligations.............cc.ccueveeviiieerieiierieeeesieeeenens 3,483 2,423 1,787
Depletion, depreciation and amortization .............coecueveereereerieseerieeieeeieeene 148,339 277,724 246,474
IMPAITMENt EXPEINISE ....vevveevviiieiiiciiereetiete ettt ettt et eaesae b e s teese e ebeeesesbeens 162,027 2,374,888 3,904
TOtAL .ottt ettt bt ereeb e enes $ 685340 $ 3,078,154 $§ 567,499
Average costs per BOE sold:""
Lease Operating €XPENSES ......cueuerwereruereriereriereriesertesestesteseneeseneeseeeseneeseseesesnesens $ 415 $ 6.63 § 8.23
Production and ad valorem taxes ..........cceeveevvieiirieeiiiiieie e 1.58 2.01 4.29
MidStream SEIVICE EXPEISES. ...cveuererrereterteireiteiteiteieeieeteetestesrestesresaeseessenseneens 0.22 0.36 0.46
General and adminiStratiVe: ..........cceoveriiiieriiiiecie et
CASH Lttt ea et b esenan 3.45 4.03 7.07
Non-cash stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized.................. 1.61 1.50 1.97
Depletion, depreciation and amortization ............ccccecevererenienenenenenenenennens 8.17 16.99 21.01
TOtAL ..ottt $ 19.18 § 3152 § 43.03

(1) For the period prior to January 1, 2015, we presented our average costs per BOE sold, which combined NGL with the
natural gas stream, and did not separately report NGL. This change impacts the comparability of 2016 and 2015 with
2014.

Lease operating expenses. Lease operating expenses, which include workover expenses, decreased by $33.0 million,
or 30%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015. Previous investments in field infrastructure, primarily in our
four production corridors, including water takeaway and recycling facilities and centralized compression, have lowered
expenses and reduced well downtime. We continue to focus on economic efficiencies associated with the usage and
procurement of products and services related to lease operating expenses.

Lease operating expenses increased by $11.8 million, or 12%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared
to 2014. On a three-stream per BOE sold comparable basis, lease operating expenses decreased to $6.63 per BOE sold for the
year ended December 31, 2015 compared to $6.98 per BOE sold for the year ended December 31, 2014 due to (i) derived
efficiencies from wells drilled along our production corridors resulting in reduced service costs from water handling and
disposal and utilization of our centralized compression facilities, (ii) our initiative to reduce field electricity costs by working
with electric service providers to build infrastructure to our facilities, (iii) reduced fuel costs from natural gas lift and (iv) lower
workover expenses.

Production and ad valorem taxes. Production and ad valorem taxes decreased by $4.3 million, or 13%, for the year
ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015. This change is mainly due to a $5.0 million decrease in ad valorem taxes for the
year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015, which are based on and fluctuate in proportion to the taxable value assessed
by the various counties where our properties are located.
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Production and ad valorem taxes decreased by $17.4 million, or 35%, for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared to 2014. This change is mainly due to a $16.9 million decrease in production taxes for the year ended December 31,
2015 compared to 2014, which are based on and fluctuate in proportion to our oil, NGL and natural gas revenue.

Midstream service expenses. See "—Results of operations - midstream and marketing" for a discussion of these
expenses.

Minimum volume commitments. Minimum volume commitments decreased by $3.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to 2015, and increased by $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to 2014.
These changes are mainly a result of our 2015 buyout of a minimum volume commitment to Medallion related to natural gas
gathering infrastructure constructed by Medallion on acreage we do not plan to develop. See Notes 12.d and 14 to our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for further discussion of our minimum volume
commitments.

Costs of purchased oil. See "—Results of operations - midstream and marketing" for a discussion of these expenses.

General and administrative ("G&A"). The table below shows the changes in the significant components of G&A
expense for the periods presented:

Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 compared to 2015 2015 compared to 2014
Changes in G&A:

Stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized........................... $ 4720 $ 1,430

Performance unit aWardS..............coooviiiiiieiiiie et (4,081) 3,481

Salaries, benefits and bonuses, net of amounts capitalized...................... 3,578 (4,084)

Professional feeS..........ccuivuieiiiiciicicieeeee et (2,200) (6,066)

Charitable cOntribUtIONS ...........cocviivvieiiieciieeie et 175 (3,208)

OthCT ...ttt ettt (861) (7,172)

Total changes iN G&A.........c.ccveieiiieiieieeeeeeee e $ 1,331 $ (15,619)

G&A expense, excluding stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized, decreased by $3.4 million, or 5%, for
the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015. This change is primarily due to decreases in expenses related to our 2013
performance unit awards and professional fees, partially offset by an increase in salaries, benefits and bonuses, net of amounts
capitalized. Expense incurred for our 2013 performance unit awards was $4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.
There was no comparable expense during the year ended December 31, 2016 as these types of awards are no longer a part of
our compensation at this time. The performance criteria of these awards were satisfied on December 31, 2015 and paid during
the first quarter of 2016.

Stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized, increased by $4.7 million, or 19%, for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to 2015. This increase is mainly due to the issuance of restricted stock awards, stock option
awards and performance share awards during the year ended December 31, 2016. For further discussion of our stock-based
compensation, see Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

G&A expense, excluding stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized, decreased by $17.0 million, or 21%,
for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to 2014. This change is primarily due to (i) professional fees paid to a
consulting company in 2014 that was engaged to assist us with the optimization of our development operations, (ii) reduced
personnel expenses as a result of the reduction in force (the "RIF") which occurred early in the first quarter of 2015 and (iii) our
$3.0 million charitable contribution pledge expensed in 2014, which will be paid in annual installments through 2024. These
contributors are partially offset by an increase in the fair value of the 2013 performance unit awards as of December 31, 2015
compared to 2014, based on the performance of our stock price relative to the peer group specified in the award agreement and
utilized in the forward-looking Monte Carlo simulation.

Stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized, increased by $1.4 million, or 6%, for the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to 2014 due to the varying service periods of our award types, partially offset by forfeitures of
restricted stock awards and stock option awards as a result of the first-quarter 2015 RIF.

The fair values for each of our restricted stock awards issued were calculated based on the value of our stock price on
the grant date in accordance with GAAP and are being expensed on a straight-line basis over their associated requisite service
periods. The fair values for each of our stock option awards were determined using a Black-Scholes valuation model in
accordance with GAAP and are being expensed on a straight-line basis over their associated four-year requisite service periods.
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Our performance share awards are accounted for as equity awards and are included in stock-based compensation
expense. The fair values of the performance share awards issued were based on a projection of the performance of our stock
price relative to a peer group, defined in each performance share awards' agreement, utilizing a forward-looking Monte Carlo
simulation. The fair values for each of our performance share awards will not be re-measured after their initial grant-date
valuation and are being expensed on a straight-line basis over their associated three-year requisite service periods.

Our performance unit awards were accounted for as liability awards and settled in cash at the end of their requisite
service periods. The fair value and corresponding liability related to the 2013 performance unit awards as of December 31,
2015 was $6.4 million. The 2013 performance unit awards had a performance period of January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2015
and, as their performance criteria were satisfied, they were paid at $143.75 per unit during the first quarter of 2016. The fair
value and corresponding liability related to the 2012 performance unit awards as of December 31, 2014 was $2.7 million. The
2012 performance unit awards had a performance period of January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014 and, as their performance
criteria were satisfied, they were paid at $100 per unit during the first quarter of 2015.

See Notes 2.r and 6 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional
information regarding our stock and performance-based compensation.

Restructuring expenses.  For the year ended December 31, 2015, we incurred restructuring expenses of $6.0 million
related to the first-quarter 2015 RIF, which was undertaken to reduce expenses and better position ourselves for future
operations in a low commodity price environment. No comparable expenses were recorded for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2014. See Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for further
discussion of the RIF.

Depletion, depreciation and amortization ("DD&A"). The following table provides components of our DD&A
expense for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Depletion of evaluated oil and natural gas properties .............cococevvrvreereeriennnnn. $ 134,105 $§ 263,666 $ 237,067
Depreciation of midstream SErvice aSSetS..........covevuirievuiiieriieieirieieereeeeereeneenes 8,331 7,529 4,303
Depreciation and amortization of other fixed assets ...........cccoceevveveenierieeiennnne. 5,903 6,529 5,104
TOtal DD&A ...t $ 148,339 §$ 277,724  $ 246,474

DD&A decreased by $129.4 million, or 47%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to 2015 mainly due
to the impact of our full cost ceiling impairments of $161.1 million and $2.4 billion for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively. DD&A increased by $31.3 million, or 13%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to 2014
mainly due to (i) the reduction in our reserves volume, (ii) the impact of $152.5 million in unevaluated properties' carrying
costs being added to the depletion base during the year ended December 31, 2015 and (iii) higher total production levels. These
contributors were partially offset by the impact of our 2015 full cost ceiling impairments.

Impairment expense.  Our net book value of evaluated oil and natural gas properties exceeded the full cost ceiling
amount as of March 31, 2016 and each of the quarters ended in 2015, and as a result, we recorded non-cash full cost ceiling
impairments of $161.1 million and $2.4 billion for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. There
were no comparable full cost ceiling impairments in 2014. For further discussion of our non-cash full cost ceiling impairments,
see Note 2.g to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

During the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, we reduced materials and supplies inventory by $1.0
million, $2.8 million and $1.8 million, respectively, in order to reflect the balance at lower of cost or market. For the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we recorded lower of cost or market adjustments of $1.3 million and $2.1 million,
respectively, related to our line-fill inventory. There were no comparable line-fill inventory impairments in 2016. See Note 2.
to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional information regarding our
inventory impairments.
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Non-operating income (expense). The following table sets forth the components of non-operating income (expense)
for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

Non-operating income (expense):
Gain (10SS) 0N derivatives, NEL............oceeveeveieeeeeeeceeeee e $ (87,425) $ 214291 $ 327,920
Income (loss) from equity method investee...........ccoeveeveerieiiciieiieieieeeee 9,403 6,799 (192)
INEEIESt EXPEIISE .. .eeuvieeieiieiieitieteeteete et ettt e nte et esseeaesseenaesseensesseessesseensesseenseans (93,298) (103,219) (121,173)
Interest and Other INCOME ............c.ccuiiviiiiiiieie ettt 175 426 294
Loss on early redemption of debt..........cccoevveviiiinieiiiiiiiccee e — (31,537) —
Write-off of debt iSSUANCE COSES.......ioiiiiiiiiiiiieciicieecete e (842) — (124)
Loss on disposal 0f aSSets, NEt .......ccceeveriieierieierieie et (790) (2,127) (3,252)

Non-operating income (EXpPenSe), NEt..........cocverrvvereereeereeereeereeeeeeeeeereeeans $  (172,777) $ 84,633 § 203,473

Gain (loss) on derivatives, net. The table below presents the changes in the components of gain (loss) on derivatives,
net for the periods presented:

Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 compared to 2015 2015 compared to 2014
Changes in gain or loss on derivatives, net:
Fair value of derivatives outstanding............ccoccoceevevirrinienierieieieieeeene $ (321,716) $ (264,009)
Early terminations of derivatives received.........ccovvevievieriieieniienieneenenn, 80,000 (76,660)
Cash settlements received for matured derivatives, net.............c..c.cc.oe..... (60,000) 227,040
Total changes in gain or loss on derivatives, net.............ccccvevvevereeneenen. $ (301,716) $ (113,629)

The changes in fair value of derivatives outstanding are the result of new and expiring contracts and the changing
relationship between our outstanding contract prices and the future market prices in the forward curves, which we use to
calculate the fair value of our derivatives. In general, if no contracts were entered into, we experience gains during periods of
decreasing market prices and losses during periods of increasing market prices. Cash settlements received for matured
derivatives are based on the cash settlement prices of our matured derivatives compared to the prices specified in the derivative
contracts.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, we received proceeds from a hedge restructuring in which we early
terminated floors of certain derivative contract collars, resulting in a termination amount due to us of $80.0 million. The $80.0
million was settled in full by applying the proceeds to the premiums on two new derivative contracts entered into as part of the
hedge restructuring. During the year ended December 31, 2014, we received $76.7 million in net proceeds from the early
termination of our oil basis swap differential between the Light Louisiana Sweet Argus and the Brent International Petroleum
Exchange index oil prices and the related physical contract. There were no comparable early termination amounts in 2015.

See Notes 2.1, 8 and 9 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report and
"Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" for additional information regarding our derivatives.

Income (loss) from equity method investee. See "—Results of operations - midstream and marketing" for a
discussion of this income (loss).

66



Interest expense. The table below shows the changes in the significant components of interest expense for the
periods presented:

Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 compared to 2015 2015 compared to 2014
Changes in interest expense:
January 2019 NOLES ......c.oovieiieiieeeeeeeee ettt $ (13,865) $ (38,002)
MaArch 2023 INOLES ...ttt e e e e e e e e e seaaeeeeseans 4,740 17,135
Senior Secured Credit Facility, net of capitalized interest........................ (615) 1,969
JanUAry 2022 NOTES .....cevveeievieieeiiereetieteeteere et eaeestessesseessesnaesseennesseennens — 1,477
OtheT ..ttt (181) (533)
Total changes in INtErest EXPENSE .........eveeerieriereirenreireiesieeeeeeeseeeeeneens $ (9,921) $ (17,954)

Interest expense decreased by $9.9 million, or 10%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015, and
decreased by $18.0 million, or 15%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to 2014. These decreases are primarily
due to the early redemption of the January 2019 Notes on April 6, 2015, which are partially offset by the issuance of the March
2023 Notes. The March 2023 Notes, which began accruing interest on March 18, 2015, have both a lower interest rate and a
lower principal amount than the January 2019 Notes.

Loss on early redemption of debt. During the year ended December 31, 2015, we redeemed the entire $550.0 million
outstanding principal amount of the January 2019 Notes at a redemption price of 104.750% of the principal amount, plus
accrued and unpaid interest up to the Redemption Date. We recognized a loss on extinguishment of $31.5 million related to the
difference between the redemption price and the net carrying amount of the January 2019 Notes. There were no comparable
early redemption of debt amounts in 2016 and 2014.

Write-off of debt issuance costs.  We wrote-off $0.8 million of debt issuance costs during the year ended
December 31, 2016 as a result of changes in the borrowing base and aggregate elected commitment of the Senior Secured
Credit Facility. We wrote-off $0.1 million of debt issuance costs during the year ended December 31, 2014 as a result of
changes in the borrowing base of the Senior Secured Credit Facility due to the issuance of the January 2022 Notes. No debt
issuance costs were written-off in 2015.

Loss on disposal of assets, net. Loss on disposal of assets, net decreased by $1.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to 2015, and decreased $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to 2014.
From time to time, we dispose of materials and supplies inventory and other fixed assets. The associated gain or loss recorded
during the period fluctuates depending upon the volume of the assets disposed, their associated net book value and, in the case
of a disposal by sale, the sale price.

Income tax benefit (expense). The table below shows income tax benefit (expense) for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

Income tax benefit (EXPENSE).......c.cvriruirririerierieieieiesieeereereeee e eee e eresresaesseseens $ — $§ 176,945 $§ (164,286)

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we determined it was more likely than not that our net deferred
tax assets were not realizable, therefore we recorded valuation allowances of $87.5 million and $676.0 million, respectively, to
reduce certain deferred tax assets to amounts that are more likely than not to be realized. Our effective tax rate is affected by
changes in valuation allowances, recurring permanent differences and discrete items that may occur in any given year, but are
not consistent from year to year. The effective tax rate for our operations was 0%, 7% and 38% for the years ended December
31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. For further discussion of our valuation allowance, see Note 7 to our consolidated
financial statements located elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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Results of operations - midstream and marketing

The following table presents selected financial information regarding our midstream and marketing operating segment

for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Revenues:
Natural @aS SAIES......c.ovvivieieeiereeietieieteee ettt $ 1,141  § 1,692 $ 1,660
MidStIEAM SEIVICE TEVEIUES .......vveeeeeeieieeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeseaeeseeaeesans 49971 27,965 7,838
Sales of purchased 01l .........coooiiiiiiiieie e 162,551 168,358 54,437
TOAL TEVETIUECS ...ttt eae s $ 213,663 $ 198,015 $ 63,935
Expenses:
MidStream SEIViCe EXPEISES. ...cueuerieriereeriariererreasestesseseessessessessesseseeseesessens $ 29,693 $ 17,557 % 7,089
Costs of purchased 01l ..........coeiiieiiiieiieieeeeee e 169,536 174,338 53,967
General and administrative' ..........o.ooooeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 7,855 8,174 6,969
Depreciation and AMOTHZATOND ..o 8,932 8,093 4,640
IMPAITMENTE EXPEIISE c..veevieeieeieniieeieie et ete st enre et eaeeseesseeseeseeseesseeneesseeneas — 2,592 2,102
Other operating costs and EXPENSES™ ..o 209 1,178 2,618
OPETAtiNg LOSS .....oevovieiieieeceieeieeceee ettt $ (2,562) $ (13,917) $ (13,450)
Other financial information:
Income (loss) from equity method investee..........coevevveveveieieienieienene, $ 9,403 $ 6,799 § (192)
Interest eXPense™ ........ooiivoeeeeeeeeee e $ (5,813) $ (5,179) $ (3,613)
Loss on early redemption of debt®™ .............cccoovviviieeeeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeae $ — S (1,481) $ —
Income tax (expense) benefit® ............o.coooioirieoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ — 8 4,993 § 6,265
(1) G&A was allocated based on the number of employees in the midstream and marketing segment as of December 31,

2)

)

4)

)

(6)

2016, 2015 and 2014. Certain components of G&A expense, primarily payroll, deferred compensation and vehicle
expenses, were not allocated but were actual expenses for each segment. Land and geology expenses were not
allocated to the midstream and marketing segment.

Depreciation and amortization were actual expenses for the midstream and marketing segment with the exception of
the allocation of depreciation of other fixed assets, which was based on the number of employees in the midstream and
marketing segment as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Other operating costs and expenses consist of (i) accretion of asset retirement obligations for the year ended
December 31, 2016, (ii) minimum volume commitments, restructuring expense and accretion of asset retirement
obligations for the year ended December 31, 2015 and (iii) minimum volume commitments and accretion of asset
retirement obligations for the year ended December 31, 2014. These are actual costs and expenses and were not
allocated.

Interest expense was allocated to the midstream and marketing segment based on gross property and equipment and
life-to-date contributions to the Company's equity method investee as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Loss on early redemption of debt was allocated to the midstream and marketing segment based on gross property and
equipment and life-to-date contributions to the Company's equity method investee as of December 31, 2015.

Income tax (expense) benefit for the midstream and marketing segment was calculated by multiplying income or loss
before income taxes by 36% for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Natural gas sales. These revenues are related to our midstream and marketing segment providing our exploration and

production segment with processed natural gas for use in the field. The corresponding cost component of these transactions are
included in "Midstream service expenses." See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
Annual Report for additional information on the operating segments.

Midstream service revenues. Our midstream service revenues from operations increased by $22.0 million for the year

ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015. This increase is mainly due to (i) water service revenue that we began
recognizing in the third quarter of 2015 and (ii) an increase in volumes of natural gas provided for natural gas lift mainly in our
production corridors over the prior period. Our midstream service revenues from operations increased by $20.1 million for the
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year ended December 31, 2015 compared to 2014. This increase is mainly due to (i) water service revenue that we began
recognizing in the third quarter of 2015, (ii) oil throughput fees generated by our oil gathering line which was not operational
until July of 2014, (iii) higher volumes of gathered natural gas and (iv) an increase in volumes of natural gas provided for
natural gas lift mainly in our production corridors that were not operational until September of 2014.

Sales of purchased oil. Sales of purchased oil decreased by $5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to 2015 due to the decrease in oil prices. During the fourth quarter of 2014, we began to purchase oil from third
parties in West Texas, transport it on on the Bridgetex Pipeline and sell it to a third party in the Houston market.

Midstream service expenses. Midstream service expenses increased by $12.1 million and $10.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015 and for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to 2014, respectively.
Midstream service expenses primarily represent costs incurred to operate and maintain our (i) oil and natural gas gathering and
transportation systems and related facilities, (i) centralized oil storage tanks, (iii) natural gas lift, rig fuel and centralized
compression infrastructure and (iv) water storage, recycling and transportation facilities. The increases are due to continued
expansion of the midstream service component of our business.

Costs of purchased oil. Costs of purchased oil decreased by $4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to 2015 due to the decrease in oil prices. These costs include purchasing oil from third parties and transporting it on
the Bridgetex Pipeline.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased by $0.8 million and $3.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015 and for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to 2014, respectively, due to
the continued expansion of our midstream service infrastructure.

Income (loss) from equity method investee. We own 49% of the ownership units of Medallion. As such, we account for
this investment under the equity method of accounting with our proportionate share of net income (loss) reflected in the
consolidated statements of operations as "Income (loss) from equity method investee" and the carrying amount reflected in the
consolidated balance sheets as "Investment in equity method investee." Income from equity method investee increased by $2.6
million, or 38%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015. During the year ended December 31, 2016,
Medallion continued expansion activities on existing portions of its pipeline infrastructure in order to gather additional third-
party oil production. Medallion began recognizing revenue during the first quarter of 2015 due to its main pipeline becoming
fully operational. The Medallion-Midland Basin system transported an average of 107,000 barrels of oil per day ("BOPD") and
42,000 BOPD during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. See Note 14 to our consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional information regarding this investment.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased by $0.6 million and $1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to 2015 and for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to 2014, respectively. Consolidated interest, which has
decreased for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 2015 and for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to
2014, is allocated to the midstream and marketing segment based on its gross property and equipment and life-to-date
contributions to its equity method investee. We have expanded the midstream and marketing component of our business, built
out our service facilities and have continued our capital contributions to Medallion since prior periods, thereby increasing the
interest expense that is allocated to this segment. See "—Results of operations consolidated" for a discussion of these
decreases.

Loss on early redemption of debt. We recognized a loss on extinguishment related to the difference between the
redemption price and the net carrying amount of the extinguished January 2019 Notes during the year ended December 31,
2015. Loss on early redemption of debt was allocated to the midstream and marketing segment based on gross property and
equipment and life-to-date contributions to our equity method investee as of December 31, 2015.

Liquidity and capital resources

Our primary sources of liquidity have been cash flows from operations, proceeds from equity offerings, proceeds from
senior unsecured note offerings, borrowings under our Senior Secured Credit Facility and proceeds from asset dispositions. We
believe cash flows from operations (including our hedging program) and availability under our Senior Secured Credit Facility
provide sufficient liquidity to manage our cash needs and contractual obligations and to fund expected capital expenditures.
Our primary operational uses of capital have been for the acquisition, exploration and development of oil and natural gas
properties, LMS' infrastructure development and investments in Medallion.

A significant portion of our capital expenditures can be adjusted and managed by us. We continually monitor the
capital markets and our capital structure and consider which financing alternatives, including equity and debt capital resources,
joint ventures and asset sales, are available to meet our future planned or accelerated capital expenditures. We may make
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changes to our capital structure from time to time, with the goal of maintaining financial flexibility, preserving or improving
liquidity and/or achieving cost efficiency. Such financing alternatives, including capital market transactions and debt
repurchases, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other
factors. The amounts involved may be material. See Notes 3, 4.b and 5 to our consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report regarding our current year and prior year equity offerings, prior year divestiture and debt
(including our prior year debt redemption), respectively.

We continually seek to maintain a financial profile that provides operational flexibility. However, as evidenced by the
decline in our Realized Prices used in our reserves compared to the prior year, the decrease in oil, NGL and natural gas prices
may have a negative impact on our ability to raise additional capital and/or maintain our desired levels of liquidity. As of
February 14, 2017, we had $800.0 million available for borrowings under our Senior Secured Credit Facility. We believe that
our operating cash flow and the aforementioned liquidity sources provide us with the financial resources to implement our
planned exploration and development activities. We use derivatives to reduce exposure to fluctuations in the prices of oil, NGL
and natural gas. As of February 15, 2017 utilizing the mid-point of our first-quarter guidance, approximately 79% of our
anticipated oil production for the first three months of 2017 is hedged at a weighted-average floor price of $55.82 per Bbl,
approximately 16% of our anticipated NGL production for the first three months of 2017 is hedged for (i) 111,000 Bbls of
ethane at a weighted-average floor price of $11.24 per Bbl and (ii) 93,750 Bbls of propane at a weighted-average floor price of
$22.26 per Bbl and approximately 85% of our anticipated natural gas production for the first three months of 2017 is hedged at
a weighted-average floor price of $2.75 per MMBtu. Approximately 77% of total anticipated oil production in the first quarter
of 2017 retains significant upside to an increase in the price of oil with those volumes either having a weighted-average ceiling
price of $86.00 per Bbl or no ceiling at all.

See Note 8.a to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for information
regarding our derivative settlement indices and our open hedge positions as of December 31, 2016. There were no new hedge
transactions between January 1, 2017 and February 15, 2017.

By removing a significant portion of the price volatility associated with future production, we expect to mitigate, but
not eliminate, the potential effects of variability in cash flows from operations due to fluctuations in commodity prices. Our
derivative positions will help us stabilize a portion of our expected cash flows from operations in the event of future declines in
the price of oil, NGL and natural gas. See "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" below.

Cash flows
Our cash flows for the periods presented are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

Net cash provided by operating activities ............cccvevvevreeviiereeviiereeieereeeie e $ 356,295 $§ 315947 $§ 498,277

Net cash used in INVEStING ACIVITICS........couiiieriiiieriieieieeieeteeee e (564,402) (667,507) (1,406,961)

Net cash provided by financing activities ............ccceevvevueeiiireeiieereeieereeere e 209,625 353,393 739,852
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents............cccoceveeverieeiennen. $ 1,518 § 1,833 $§ (168,832)

Cash flows provided by operating activities

The increase of $40.3 million from 2015 to 2016 consisted of notable cash changes of (i) a decrease of $64.5 million
in cash settlements received for matured and early terminations of derivatives, net of deferred premiums paid, (ii) an increase in
working capital changes of $56.7 million and (iii) an increase of $3.7 million in settlement of performance unit awards.

The decrease of $182.3 million from 2014 to 2015 is mainly due to the price related decrease in oil, NGL and natural
gas revenue, however notable cash flow changes consist of (i) a net increase of $150.4 million of proceeds from derivative
settlements due to maturity or early termination, (ii) an increase of $31.5 million related to our loss on the early redemption of
our January 2019 Notes and (iii) $56.6 million in decreased changes in working capital.

Our operating cash flows are sensitive to a number of variables, the most significant of which are the volatility of oil,
NGL and natural gas prices and production levels. Regional and worldwide economic activity, weather, infrastructure, capacity
to reach markets, costs of operations, legislation and regulations and other variable factors significantly impact the prices of
these commodities. These factors are not within our control and are difficult to predict. For additional information on the
impact of changing prices on our financial position, see "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk."
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Cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities decreased $103.1 million from 2015 to 2016 and is mainly attributable to (i)
decreased capital expenditures due to our decreased capital budget and (ii) decreased contributions to Medallion. These
decreases were partially offset by (i) 2016 acquisitions of oil and natural gas properties and (ii) 2015 proceeds from the sale of
non-strategic and primarily non-operated properties and associated production. See Notes 4.a and 4.b to our consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for discussion of our current period acquisitions and prior period
divestiture. See Notes 14 and 15.a to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for
additional discussion regarding Medallion.

Net cash used in investing activities decreased $739.5 million from 2014 to 2015 and is mainly attributable to
decreased capital expenditures due to our decreased capital budget. This decrease was partially offset by $64.8 million in
proceeds from our 2015 sale of non-strategic and primarily non-operated properties and increased contributions to Medallion.
Medallion significantly expanded its pipeline network during 2015.

Our cash used in investing activities for the periods presented are summarized in the table below:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Deposit received for sale of oil and natural gas properties...........cccceeeveereenreneene. $ 3,000 $ — $ —
Capital expenditures:
Acquisitions of oil and natural gas properties............ccoeeevevreeveerieeeerreeeenreennns (124,660) — (6,493)
Acquisition of mineral INtEreSts ..........cccvevuerieiiirieieeiere et — — (7,305)
Oil and natural Gas PrOPErtiCs........c.ccieuirueerrisierietiesteeiesreeeesreeeesreeseernesseeseens (360,679) (588,017)  (1,251,757)
MidSEIeamM SETVICE ASSELS.....viiiuiieieeirieireeetieeteeeieeereeeteeeaeeteeeveeeaeeeereesraeeaneenes (5,240) (35,459) (60,548)
Other fIXed @SSELS ....viivieiieiiceiicie ettt ettt eanebeeseens (7,611) (9,125) (27,444)
Investment in equity method INVESTEE .........ccevieriieierieieeeeeeeeee e (69,609) (99,855) (55,164)
Proceeds from dispositions of capital assets, net of selling costs......................... 397 64,949 1,750
Net cash used in iINVEStING ACHIVILIES .....veevereieiieiieiieiee e $ (564,402) $ (667,507) $ (1,406,961)
Capital budget

Our board of directors approved a capital budget of approximately $530.0 million for calendar year 2017, excluding
acquisitions and investments in Medallion. We do not have a specific acquisition budget since the timing and size of
acquisitions cannot be accurately forecasted. In addition, as a 49% owner of Medallion, we do not direct the expansion
activities of this entity and therefore cannot predict future capital commitments related to Medallion.

The amount, timing and allocation of capital expenditures, other than with respect to Medallion, are largely
discretionary and within management's control. If oil, NGL and natural gas prices decline below our acceptable levels, or costs
increase above our acceptable levels, we may choose to defer a portion of our budgeted capital expenditures until later periods
to achieve the desired balance between sources and uses of liquidity and prioritize capital projects that we believe have the
highest expected returns and potential to generate near-term cash flow. Subject to financing alternatives, we may also increase
our capital expenditures significantly to take advantage of opportunities we consider to be attractive. We consistently monitor
and may adjust our projected capital expenditures in response to success or lack of success in drilling activities, changes in
prices, availability of financing and joint venture opportunities, drilling and acquisition costs, industry conditions, the timing of
regulatory approvals, the availability of rigs, reduction of service costs, contractual obligations, internally generated cash flow
and other factors both within and outside our control. For additional information on the impact of changing prices on our
financial position, see "[tem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk."

Cash flows provided by financing activities

For the year ended December 31, 2016, our primary sources of cash provided by financing activities were the
combined proceeds from our July 2016 Equity Offering and May 2016 Equity Offering of $276.1 million and borrowings on
our Senior Secured Credit Facility of $239.7 million. The cash inflows were partially offset by the payments on our Senior
Secured Credit Facility of $304.7 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, net cash provided by financing activities was the result of proceeds from our
March 2015 equity offering of $754.2 million, our issuance of our March 2023 Notes of $350.0 million and borrowings on our
Senior Secured Credit Facility of $310.0 million. The cash inflows were offset by the redemption of our January 2019 Notes of
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$576.2 million, payments on our Senior Secured Credit Facility of $475.0 million and payments for debt issuance costs totaling
$6.8 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, net cash provided by financing activities was the result of the issuance of our
January 2022 Notes of $450.0 million, borrowings of $300.0 million on our Senior Secured Credit Facility and proceeds from
the exercise of employee stock options of $1.9 million. These cash inflows were partially offset by payments for debt issuance
costs totaling $7.8 million.

Our cash provided by financing activities for the periods presented is summarized in the table below:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Borrowings on Senior Secured Credit Facility ............ccooooviviiiiiiiiciceceee, $ 239,682 $ 310,000 $ 300,000
Payments on Senior Secured Credit Facility..........cccoovveviiiiiviiiieiicieieeieis (304,682) (475,000) —
Issuance 0f March 2023 NOTES ......ccuveeieeeeeeeee e — 350,000 —
Issuance of January 2022 NOLES........cccvervieierrieierieeeesieeieseesesreeaeeseesseeeeenseens — — 450,000
Redemption of January 2019 NOtES .......c.ccceevvieiiiiieiiiieiecteeee e — (576,200) —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of offering costs....................... 276,052 754,163 —
Purchase of treasury StOCK...........cveevierieiiieiieii et (1,635) (2,811) (4,242)
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock Options ...........cccceveverenenenenennene 208 — 1,885
Payments for debt 1SSUANCE COSES ......oouiiiriiiiiriiiiitieiecie ettt — (6,759) (7,791)

Net cash provided by financing activities...........ccccvevveveieieeeiiieieeereeeenn $ 209,625 $§ 353,393 § 739,852
Debt

As of December 31, 2016, we were a party only to our Senior Secured Credit Facility and the indentures governing
our Senior Unsecured Notes.

As of December 31, 2016, we had $1.4 billion in debt outstanding, $745.0 million available for borrowings under our
Senior Secured Credit Facility and $32.7 million in cash on hand for total available liquidity of $777.7 million.

As of February 14, 2017, we had $1.3 billion in debt outstanding, $800.0 million available for borrowings under our
Senior Secured Credit Facility and $23.9 million in cash on hand for total available liquidity of $823.9 million. Future declines
in oil, NGL and natural gas prices may negatively impact our future borrowing base redeterminations.

Senior Secured Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2016, our Senior Secured Credit Facility, which matures
November 4, 2018, had a maximum credit amount of $2.0 billion and a borrowing base and aggregate elected commitment of
$815.0 million. As of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, borrowings outstanding under our Senior Secured Credit Facility
totaled $70.0 million, $135.0 million and $300.0 million, respectively.

The borrowing base under our Senior Secured Credit Facility is subject to a semi-annual redetermination based on the
lenders' evaluation of our oil, NGL and natural gas reserves. The lenders have the right to call for an interim redetermination of
the borrowing base once between any two redetermination dates and in other specified circumstances. On October 24, 2016,
pursuant to a regular semi-annual redetermination, the lenders reaffirmed the borrowing base under our Senior Secured Credit
Facility at $815.0 million. Our aggregate elected commitment of $815.0 million remained unchanged. The next semi-annual
redetermination will occur by May 1, 2017.

Principal amounts borrowed under our Senior Secured Credit Facility are payable on the final maturity date with such
borrowings bearing interest that is payable, at our election, either on the last day of each fiscal quarter at an Adjusted Base Rate
or at the end of one-, two-, three-, six- or, to the extent available, 12-month interest periods (and in the case of six- and 12-
month interest periods, every three months prior to the end of such interest period) at an Adjusted London Interbank Offered
Rate, in each case, plus an applicable margin, which ranges from 0.5% to 1.5% for Adjusted Base Rate loans and from 1.5% to
2.5% for Adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate loans, based on the ratio of the outstanding revolving credit on our Senior
Secured Credit Facility to the elected commitment. We are also required to pay an annual commitment fee based on the unused
portion of the bank's commitment of 0.375% to 0.5%.

Our Senior Secured Credit Facility is secured by a first-priority lien on certain of our assets, including oil and natural
gas properties constituting at least 80% of the present value of our proved reserves owned now or in the future. Our Senior
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Secured Credit Facility contains both financial and non-financial covenants. We were in compliance with these covenants as of
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

As of December 31, 2016, we were subject to the following financial ratios on a consolidated basis:

a current ratio at the end of each fiscal quarter, as defined by the agreement, that is not permitted to be less than
1.00 to 1.00; and

at the end of each fiscal quarter, the ratio of earnings before interest, taxes, depletion, depreciation, amortization
and exploration expenses and other non-cash charges ("EBITDAX") for the four fiscal quarters ending on the
relevant date to the sum of net interest expense plus letter of credit fees, in each case for such period, is not
permitted to be less than 2.50 to 1.00.

Our Senior Secured Credit Facility contains various non-financial covenants that limit our ability to:

incur indebtedness;

pay dividends and repay certain indebtedness;
grant certain liens;

merge or consolidate;

engage in certain asset dispositions;

use proceeds for any purpose other than to finance the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral
interests and for working capital and general corporate purposes;

make certain investments, including in Medallion;
enter into transactions with affiliates;

engage in certain transactions that violate ERISA or the Code or enter into certain employee benefit plans and
transactions;

enter into certain swap agreements or hedge transactions;

incur, become or remain liable under any operating lease that would cause rentals payable to be greater than
$20.0 million in a fiscal year;

acquire all or substantially all of the assets or capital stock of any person, other than assets consisting of oil and
natural gas properties and certain other oil and natural gas related acquisitions and investments; and

repay or redeem our Senior Unsecured Notes, or amend, modify or make any other change to any of the terms in
our Senior Unsecured Notes that would change the term, life, principal, rate or recurring fee, add call or pre-
payment premiums, or shorten any interest periods.

As of December 31, 2016, we were in compliance with the terms of our Senior Secured Credit Facility. If an event of
default exists under our Senior Secured Credit Facility, the lenders will be able to accelerate the maturity of our Senior Secured
Credit Facility and exercise other rights and remedies. As of December 31, 2016, each of the following would be an event of

default:

failure to pay any principal of any note or any reimbursement obligation under any letter of credit when due or
any interest, fees or other amount within certain grace periods;

failure to perform or otherwise comply with the covenants in our Senior Secured Credit Facility and other loan
documents, subject, in certain instances, to certain grace periods;

a representation, warranty, certification or statement is proved to be incorrect in any material respect when made;

failure to make any payment in respect of any other indebtedness in excess of $25.0 million, any event occurs that
permits or causes the acceleration of any such indebtedness or any event of default or termination event under a
hedge agreement occurs in which the net hedging obligation owed is greater than $25.0 million;

voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or insolvency events involving us or our subsidiary and in the case of an
involuntary proceeding, such proceeding remains undismissed and unstayed for the applicable grace period,;

one or more adverse judgments in excess of $25.0 million to the extent not covered by acceptable third party
insurers, are rendered and are not satisfied, stayed or paid for the applicable grace period;

incurring environmental liabilities that exceed $25.0 million to the extent not covered by acceptable third-party
insurers;
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»  the loan agreement or any other loan paper ceases to be in full force and effect, or is declared null and void, or is
contested or challenged, or any lien ceases to be a valid, first-priority, perfected lien;

« failure to cure any borrowing base deficiency in accordance with our Senior Secured Credit Facility;

* achange of control, as defined in our Senior Secured Credit Facility; and

* an "event of default" under the indentures governing our Senior Unsecured Notes.

Additionally, our Senior Secured Credit Facility provides for the issuance of letters of credit, limited in the aggregate
to the lesser of $20.0 million and the total availability under the facility. No letters of credit were outstanding as of

December 31, 2016. See Note 5.f to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for further
discussion of our Senior Secured Credit Facility.

Senior Unsecured Notes. The following table presents principal amounts and applicable interest rates for our
outstanding Senior Unsecured Notes as of December 31, 2016:

(in millions, except for interest rates) Principal Interest rate

JANUATY 2022 NNOTES ....veeeiieieiieteeet ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt b e e e b ebe s e s saenesbeneenene $ 450.0 5.625%

IMAY 2022 NOTES ..ottt ettt ettt st e e sb e et s bt et ebe e bt es e e bt e st e ebeestesstentesneenbesneenaeennens 500.0 7.375%

MATCh 2023 INOTES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt st sb et be sttt ettt ebeebeenea 350.0 6.250%
Total Senior UnSECUIEd INOTES ......c.vviiiieiieiiiieeeeeee ettt e e e e e enes $ 1,300.0

Utilizing proceeds from the March 2023 Notes and the March 2015 equity offering, we redeemed the January 2019
Notes in full on April 6, 2015. See Note 5.¢ to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report
for information regarding the early redemption of the January 2019 Notes.

Refer to Note 5 included elsewhere in this Annual Report for further discussion of the March 2023 Notes, January
2022 Notes, May 2022 Notes, January 2019 Notes and our Senior Secured Credit Facility.

74



Obligations and commitments

We had the following significant contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2016:

Less than More than

(in thousands) 1 year 1 -3 years 3 -Syears 5 years Total
Senior Secured Credit Facility'” ..........c.coccveveiuviuenane. $ — $ 70,000 $ — — $ 70,000
Senior Unsecured Notes® ..............cooovvvvrvveverrerne. 84,063 168,125 168,125 1,363,906 1,784,219
Drilling CONTACES™ oo 7,896 — — — 7,896
Firm sale and transportation commitments™® ............. 58,523 115,454 112,867 154,184 441,028
DErivatives™ ..o 6,442 2,683 — — 9,125
Asset retirement obligations'® ................cccoocooveevenann. 1,603 5,683 8,214 36,707 52,207
Lease commitments'”.............ccooueveereeeeeeeeeeeenes 3,127 6,298 3,857 7,022 20,304

TOUAL ..o $ 161,654 $ 368,243 $ 293,063 $ 1,561,819 $ 2,384,779

(1) Includes outstanding principal amount at December 31, 2016. This table does not include future loan advances,
repayments, commitment fees or other fees on our Senior Secured Credit Facility as we cannot determine with
accuracy the timing of such items. Additionally, this table does not include interest expense as it is a floating rate
instrument and we cannot determine with accuracy the future interest rates to be charged. As of December 31, 2016,
the principal on our Senior Secured Credit Facility is due on November 4, 2018.

(2) Values presented include both our principal and interest obligations.

(3) As of December 31, 2016, we had drilling rigs under term contracts which expire during 2017. The value in the table
represents the gross amount that we are committed to pay. However, we will record our proportionate share based on
our working interest in our consolidated financial statements as incurred. See Note 12.c to our consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional discussion of our drilling contracts.

(4) As of December 31, 2016, we have committed to deliver for sale or transportation fixed volumes of product under
certain contractual arrangements that specify the delivery of a fixed and determinable quantity. If not fulfilled, we are
subject to deficiency payments. See "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and Note 12.d to our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional discussion of our firm sale and transportation commitments.

(5) Represents payments due for deferred premiums on our commodity hedging contracts. See Note 9.a to our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional discussion of our deferred
premiums.

(6) Amounts represent our estimate of future asset retirement obligations. Because these costs typically extend many years
into the future, estimating these future costs requires management to make estimates and judgments that are subject to
future revisions based upon numerous factors, including the rate of inflation, changing technology and the political
and regulatory environment. See Note 2.m to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report for additional information.

(7) See Note 12.a to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for a description of
our lease obligations.

Critical accounting policies and estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of our financial statements requires
us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Certain accounting policies involve judgments and uncertainties to such an extent
that there is reasonable likelihood that materially different amounts could have been reported under different conditions or if
different assumptions had been used. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on a regular basis. We base our estimates on
historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions used in preparation of our consolidated financial
statements. We believe these accounting policies reflect our more significant estimates and assumptions used in preparation of
our consolidated financial statements.

In management's opinion, the more significant reporting areas impacted by our judgments and estimates are (i) the
choice of accounting method for oil and natural gas activities, (ii) estimation of oil, NGL and natural gas reserve quantities and
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standardized measure of future net revenues, (iii) impairment of oil and natural gas properties, (iv) revenue recognition, (v)
estimation of income taxes, (vi) asset retirement obligations, (vii) valuation of derivatives and deferred premiums, (viii)
valuation of stock-based compensation and, in prior periods, performance unit compensation and (ix) fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in an acquisition. Management's judgments and estimates in these areas are based on
information available from both internal and external sources, including engineers, geologists and historical experience in
similar matters. Actual results could differ from the estimates as additional information becomes known.

There have been no material changes in our critical accounting policies and procedures during the year ended
December 31, 2016. For our other critical accounting policies and procedures, please see our disclosure of critical accounting
policies in "Part II, Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations".
Additionally, see Note 2.b to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for a discussion of
additional accounting policies and estimates made by management.

Method of accounting for oil and natural gas properties

The accounting for our business is subject to special accounting rules that are unique to the oil and natural gas
industry. There are two allowable methods of accounting for oil and natural gas business activities: the successful efforts
method and the full cost method. We follow the full cost method of accounting under which all costs associated with property
acquisition, exploration and development activities are capitalized. We also capitalize internal costs that can be directly
identified with our acquisition, exploration or development activities and do not include any costs related to production, general
corporate overhead or similar activities.

Under the full cost method, capitalized costs are amortized on a composite unit of production method based on proved
oil, NGL and natural gas reserves. If we maintain the same level of production year over year, the depletion expense may be
significantly different if our estimate of remaining reserves or future development costs changes significantly. Proceeds from
the sale of properties are accounted for as reductions of capitalized costs unless such sales involve a significant change in the
relationship between costs and evaluated reserves, in which case a gain or loss is recognized. The costs of unevaluated
properties not being depleted are excluded from amortization until the properties are evaluated. We review all of our
unevaluated properties quarterly to determine whether or not and to what extent evaluated reserves have been assigned to the
properties, and otherwise if impairment has occurred.

Oil, NGL and natural gas reserve quantities and standardized measure of future net revenue

On an annual basis, our independent reserve engineers prepare the estimates of oil, NGL and natural gas reserves and
associated future net cash flows. The SEC has defined proved reserves as the estimated quantities of oil, NGL and natural gas
that geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known
reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. The process of estimating oil, NGL and natural gas reserves is
complex, requiring significant decisions in the evaluation of available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data.
The data for a given property may also change substantially over time as a result of numerous factors, including additional
development activity, evolving production history and a continual reassessment of the viability of production under changing
economic conditions. As a result, material revisions to existing reserve estimates occur from time to time. Although every
reasonable effort is made to ensure that reserve estimates reported represent the most accurate assessments possible, the
subjective decisions and variances in available data for various properties increase the likelihood of significant changes in these
estimates. If such changes are material, they could significantly affect future amortization of capitalized costs and result in
impairment of assets that may be material.

Impairment of oil and natural gas properties

We review the carrying value of our oil and natural gas properties under the full cost accounting rules of the SEC on a
quarterly basis. This quarterly review is referred to as a ceiling test. Under the ceiling test, capitalized costs, less accumulated
amortization and related deferred income taxes, may not exceed an amount equal to the sum of the present value of estimated
future net revenues less estimated future expenditures to be incurred in developing and producing the evaluated reserves, less
any related income tax effects. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we recorded a full cost impairment expense
of $161.1 million and $2.4 billion, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the results of the ceiling test concluded
that the carrying amount of our oil and natural gas properties was significantly below the calculated ceiling test value and as
such, our properties were not impaired and a write-down was not required. In calculating future net revenues, current prices are
calculated as the average oil, NGL and natural gas prices during the 12-month period prior to the end of the current reporting
period, determined as the unweighted arithmetic average first-day-of-the-month prices for the prior 12-month period and costs
used are those as of the end of the appropriate quarterly period. See Note 2.g to our consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional discussion of our impairment of oil and natural gas properties.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from our interests in producing wells is recognized when the product is delivered, at which time the customer
has taken title and assumed the risks and rewards of ownership and collectability is reasonably assured. The sales prices for oil,
NGL and natural gas are adjusted for transportation and other related deductions. These deductions are based on contractual or
historical data and do not require significant judgment. Subsequently, these revenue deductions are adjusted to reflect actual
charges based on third-party documents. As there is a ready market for oil, NGL and natural gas, we sell the majority of
production soon after it is produced at various locations.

Midstream service revenues are recorded at the time products are sold or services are provided to third parties at a
fixed or determinable price, delivery or performance has occurred, title has transferred and collectability of the revenue is
probable. Revenues and expenses attributable to oil purchases and sales are reported on a gross basis when we take title to the
products and have risks and rewards of ownership.

Income taxes
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, we had a net deferred tax asset of zero.

As part of the process of preparing the consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate the federal and
state income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating the actual current tax
exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items such as derivative
instruments, depletion, depreciation and amortization, and certain accrued liabilities for tax and financial accounting purposes.
These differences and our net operating loss carry-forwards result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in
our consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess, using all available negative and positive evidence, the likelihood that the
deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income. If we believe that recovery is not likely, we must establish a
valuation allowance. Generally, to the extent we establish a valuation allowance or increase or decrease this allowance in a
period, we must include an expense or reduction of expense within the tax provision in the consolidated statement of
operations.

Under accounting guidance for income taxes, an enterprise must use judgment in considering the relative impact of
negative and positive evidence. The weight given to the potential effect of negative and positive evidence should be
commensurate with the extent to which it can be objectively verified. The more negative evidence that exists (i) the more
positive evidence is necessary and (ii) the more difficult it is to support a conclusion that a valuation allowance is not needed
for all or a portion of the deferred tax asset. Among the more significant types of evidence that we consider are:

e our earnings history exclusive of the loss that created the future deductible amount coupled with evidence
indicating that the loss is an aberration rather than a continuing condition;

» the ability to recover our net operating loss carry-forward deferred tax assets in future years;

»  the existence of significant proved oil, NGL and natural gas reserves;

« our ability to use tax planning strategies, such as electing to capitalize intangible drilling costs as opposed to
expensing such costs;

*  current price protection utilizing oil and natural gas hedges; and

» future revenue and operating cost projections that indicate we will produce more than enough taxable income to
realize the deferred tax asset based on existing sales prices and cost structures.

«  current market prices for oil, NGL and natural gas

During 2016, in evaluating whether it was more-likely-than-not that our deferred tax asset was recoverable from future
net income, we considered our earnings history for the current and most recent two years.

In performing our analysis, we used inputs from third-party sources that came primarily from our reserve reports that
were independently estimated by Ryder Scott. Based on our forecasted results from multiple analyses, during the year ended
December 31, 2016, we determined it is more likely than not that we will not realize our net deferred tax assets. Therefore, a
valuation allowance of $87.5 million was recorded in 2016 in addition to the valuation allowance of $676.0 million recorded in
2015.

We will continue to assess the need for a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets considering all available
evidence obtained in future reporting periods.
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Variable interest entities

An entity is referred to as a VIE pursuant to accounting guidance for consolidation if it possesses one of the following
criteria: (i) it is thinly capitalized, (ii) the residual equity holders do not control the entity, (iii) the equity holders are shielded
from the economic losses, (iv) the equity holders do not participate fully in the entity's residual economics, or (v) the entity was
established with non-substantive voting interests. We would consolidate a VIE when we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE. A
primary beneficiary has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the activities of the VIE and the right to
receive the benefits or the obligation to absorb the losses of the entity that could be potentially significant to the VIE. We
continually monitor our unconsolidated VIE exposure in order to determine if any events have occurred that could cause the
primary beneficiary to change. See Notes 14 and 15.a to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
Annual Report for a discussion of our unconsolidated VIE, Medallion.

Asset retirement obligations ("ARO")

We record the fair value of a liability for a legal obligation to retire an asset in the period in which the liability is
incurred with the corresponding cost capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. For oil and
natural gas properties, this is the period in which the well is drilled or acquired. For midstream service assets, this is the period
in which the asset is placed in service. The ARO represents the estimated amount we will incur to plug, abandon and remediate
the properties at the end of their productive lives, in accordance with applicable state laws. The liability is accreted to its
present value each period and for oil and natural gas properties the capitalized cost is depleted on the unit of production method
or for midstream service assets depreciated over its useful life. The accretion expense is recorded in the line item "Accretion of
asset retirement obligations" in our consolidated statement of operations.

We determine the ARO by calculating the present value of estimated cash flows related to the liability. Estimating the
future ARO requires management to make estimates and judgments regarding timing and existence of a liability, as well as
what constitutes adequate restoration. Included in the fair value calculation are assumptions and judgments including the
ultimate costs, inflation factors, credit adjusted discount rates, timing of settlement and changes in the legal, regulatory,
environmental and political environments. To the extent future revisions to these assumptions impact the fair value of the
existing ARO liability, a corresponding adjustment is made to the related asset.

Derivatives

We record all derivatives on the balance sheet as either assets or liabilities measured at their estimated fair value. We
have not designated any derivatives as hedges for accounting purposes, and we do not enter into such instruments for
speculative trading purposes. Gains and losses from the settlement, terminations and modifications of commodity derivatives
and gains and losses from valuation changes in the remaining unsettled commodity derivatives are reported under "Non-
operating income (expense)" in our consolidated statements of operations.

Stock-based compensation

We measure stock-based compensation expense at the grant date based on the fair value of an award and recognize the
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the service period, which is usually the vesting period. The fair value of the
awards is based on the value of our common stock on the grant date. The determination of the fair value of an award requires
significant estimates and subjective judgments regarding, among other things, the appropriate option pricing model, the
expected life of the award and forfeiture rate assumptions. We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model to measure the
fair value of stock options granted under our 2011 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan. We capitalize a portion of stock-based
compensation for employees who are directly involved in the acquisition, exploration or development of our oil and natural gas
properties into the full cost pool. Capitalized stock-based compensation is included as an addition to "Oil and natural gas
properties" in the consolidated balance sheets.

As there are inherent uncertainties related to these performance criteria and our judgment in applying them to the fair
value determinations, there is risk that the recorded stock compensation may not accurately reflect the amount ultimately
earned by the employee. Refer to Note 6 of our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for
additional information regarding our stock-based compensation.

Performance share and performance unit awards

Our performance share awards are accounted for as equity awards and will be settled in stock subject to a combination
of market and service vesting criteria. The fair value of the performance share awards issued during 2016, 2015 and 2014 were
based on a projection of the performance of our stock price relative to our peer group utilized in a forward-looking Monte Carlo
simulation. The fair values of the performance share awards are not re-measured after the initial valuation of the awards and are
expensed on a straight-line basis over their respective three-year requisite service periods. Compensation expense for
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performance share awards is included in "General and administrative" expense in our consolidated statements of operations.
Refer to Note 6.c of our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional information
regarding our performance share awards.

In prior periods, for performance unit awards issued to management, we utilized a Monte Carlo simulation prepared
by an independent third party to determine the fair value of the awards at the grant date and to re-measure the fair value at the
end of each reporting period until settlement in accordance with GAAP. The volatility criteria utilized in the Monte Carlo
simulation is based on the stock prices' expected volatility. The performance unit awards are classified as liability awards as
they have a combination of performance and service criteria and were settled in cash at the end of their respective three-year
requisite service periods based on the achievement of certain performance criteria. The liability and related compensation
expense for each period for these awards was recognized by dividing the fair value of the total liability by the requisite service
period and recording the pro rata share for the period for which service has already been provided. Compensation expense for
the performance units is included in "General and administrative" expense in our consolidated statements of operations. Refer
to Note 6.e of our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional information
regarding our performance unit awards.

Recent accounting pronouncements

We adopted new guidance regarding the (i) accounting treatment of cloud computing arrangements that include or
exclude a software license in the first quarter of 2016, (ii) simplification of income tax consequences to stock compensation
awards in the third quarter of 2016, (iii) classification of certain cash receipts and cash payments on the consolidated statements
of cash flows in the third quarter of 2016 and (iv) simplification of the measurement of inventory which was mainly included to
change the subsequent measurement of inventory from lower of cost or market to NRV in the fourth quarter of 2016. For
additional discussion of these early adoptions and other recent accounting pronouncements, see Note 18 to our consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Inflation

Inflation in the U.S. has been relatively low in recent years and did not have a material impact on our results of
operations for the period from December 31, 2014 through the year ended December 31, 2016. Although the impact of inflation
has been insignificant in recent years, it continues to be a factor in the U.S. economy and historically, we have experienced
inflationary pressure on the costs of oilfield services and equipment as drilling activity increases in the areas in which we
operate.

Off-balance sheet arrangements

Currently, we do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than operating leases, drilling contracts and firm
sale and transportation commitments, which are described in "—Obligations and commitments." See Notes 12.a, 12.c and 12.d
to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report and "Item 1. Business—Our core assets—
Midstream and marketing" for additional information.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The primary objective of the following information is to provide forward-looking quantitative and qualitative
information about our potential exposure to market risk. The term "market risk," in our case, refers to the risk of loss arising
from adverse changes in oil, NGL and natural gas prices and in interest rates. The disclosures are not meant to be precise
indicators of expected future losses, but rather indicators of how we view and manage our ongoing market risk exposures. All
of our market risk sensitive instruments were entered into for hedging purposes, rather than for speculative trading.

Commodity price exposure

Due to the inherent volatility in oil, NGL and natural gas prices, we use derivatives, such as puts, swaps, collars and,
in prior periods, basis swaps, to hedge price risk associated with a significant portion of our anticipated production. By
removing a portion of the price volatility associated with future production, we expect to reduce, but not eliminate, the potential
effects of variability in cash flows from operations due to fluctuations in commodity prices. We have not elected hedge
accounting on these derivatives and, therefore, the gains and losses on open positions are reflected in earnings. At each period
end, we estimate the fair values of our derivatives using an independent third-party valuation and recognize the associated gain
or loss in our consolidated statements of operations included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

The fair values of our derivatives are largely determined by estimates of the forward curves of the relevant price
indices. As of December 31, 2016, a 10% change in the forward curves associated with our derivatives would have changed our
net positions to the following amounts:

(in thousands) 10% Increase  10% Decrease

DIETIVALIVES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e et e eteeae et e eseea e et st et et ensensensensensenseneeneeneareanea $ (37,827) $ 48,627

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the fair values of our open derivative contracts were $3.0 million and $276.2
million, respectively. Refer to Notes 2., 8 and 9 of our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report for additional disclosures regarding our derivatives.

Interest rate risk

Our Senior Secured Credit Facility bears interest at a floating rate and, as of December 31, 2016, we had $70.0 million
outstanding on our Senior Secured Credit Facility. Our January 2022 Notes, May 2022 Notes and March 2023 Notes bear fixed
interest rates and we had $450.0 million, $500.0 million and $350.0 million outstanding, respectively, on these notes as of
December 31, 2016, as shown in the table below.

Expected maturity

(in millions except for interest rates) 2018 2022 2023 Total
January 2022 Notes - fiXed Tate ........cooveieveieierieeeiceeeeeeeeeeeee e $ — § 4500 % — § 4500
TNEETESE TALE .....ivieeceie ettt ees —% 5.625% —% 5.625%
May 2022 Notes - fIXEd FAe ........cveveviierieeeieeeeceeeeeeeeeee e $ — § 5000 % — $ 500.0
TNEETESE TALE ..ottt st s —% 7.375% —% 7.375%
March 2023 Notes - fIXed Fate ........c.covvevieveeieeerieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ — 3§ — $ 3500 $ 3500
TNEETESE TALE ..ottt sttt ee e —% —% 6.250% 6.250%
Senior Secured Credit Facility - variable rate............c.ccccoeveveiereeieeenene. $§ 700 S — 3 — $§ 700
Average iNterest rate!) ............coooiveoveeeeeeeeeeee oo 2.026% —% —% 2.026%

(1) For the year ended December 31, 2016.
Counterparty and customer credit risk

As of December 31, 2016, our principal exposures to credit risk were through receivables of (i) $47.0 million from the
sale of our oil, NGL and natural gas production that we market to energy marketing companies and refineries, (ii) $29.7
million from the fair values of our open derivative contracts, (iii) $16.2 million from sales of purchased oil and other products,
(iv) $12.2 million from joint-interest partners and (v) $11.1 million from matured derivatives.

We are subject to credit risk due to the concentration of (i) our oil, NGL and natural gas receivables with three
significant customers and (ii) our purchased oil receivable with one significant customer. On occasion we require our customers
to post collateral, and the inability of our significant customers to meet their obligations to us or their insolvency or liquidation
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may adversely affect our financial results.

We have entered into International Swap Dealers Association Master Agreements ("ISDA Agreements") with each of
our derivative counterparties, each of whom is also a lender in our Senior Secured Credit Facility. The terms of the ISDA
Agreements provide the non-defaulting or non-affected party the right to terminate the agreement upon the occurrence of
certain events of default and termination events by a party and also provide for the marking to market of outstanding positions
and the offset of the mark to market amounts owed to and by the parties (and in certain cases, the affiliates of the non-
defaulting or non-affected party) upon termination.

Refer to Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional
disclosures regarding credit risk.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements and supplementary financial data are included in this Annual Report beginning
on page F-1.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. The Company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the
Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of the Company's financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

As of December 31, 2016, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting based on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in the 2013 "Internal Control -
Integrated Framework," issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this
assessment and those criteria, management determined that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2016.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Grant Thornton LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated financial
statements of the Company included in this Annual Report, has issued their report on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016. The report, which expresses an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, is included in this Item under
the heading "Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm."

82



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Laredo Petroleum, Inc.

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Laredo Petroleum, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and
subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in the 2013 Infernal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and our report dated
February 16, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
February 16, 2017
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

We had no changes in, and no disagreements with, our accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As required by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Exchange Act, we have
evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report. Our
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed
by us in reports that we file under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure and is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the
SEC. Based upon the evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2016 at the reasonable assurance level.

Design and Evaluation of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, our management has included a report of their assessment of the design and effectiveness of our internal
controls over financial reporting as part of this Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. Grant Thornton
LLP, the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report and the independent registered public accounting
firm's attestation report are included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" in this Annual Report under the
caption entitled "Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting" and "Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm," respectively, and are incorporated herein by reference.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There have been no changes in our internal controls over
financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during our last fiscal quarter that have
materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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Part I11

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information regarding our Code of Conduct and Business Ethics, Code of Ethics For Senior Financial Officers and
Corporate Governance Guidelines for our principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer are
described in "Item 1. Business" in this Annual Report. Pursuant to paragraph 3 of General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we
incorporate by reference into this Item 10 the information to be disclosed in our definitive proxy statement, which is to be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A with the SEC within 120 days after the close of the year ended December 31, 2016.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Pursuant to paragraph 3 of General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference into this Item 11 the
information to be disclosed in our definitive proxy statement, which is to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the SEC
within 120 days after the close of the year ended December 31, 2016.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Pursuant to paragraph 3 of General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference into this Item 12 the
information to be disclosed in our definitive proxy statement, which is to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the SEC
within 120 days after the close of the year ended December 31, 2016.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Pursuant to paragraph 3 of General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference into this Item 13 the
information to be disclosed in our definitive proxy statement, which is to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the SEC
within 120 days after the close of the year ended December 31, 2016.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Pursuant to paragraph 3 of General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference into this Item 14 the
information to be disclosed in our definitive proxy statement, which is to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the SEC
within 120 days after the close of the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements are included under Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report. For a listing of these
statements and accompanying footnotes, see "Index to Consolidated Financial Statements" on page F-1 of this Annual Report.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they are either not applicable, not required or the information called for
therein appears in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Exhibit Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between Laredo Petroleum, LLC and Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.,
dated as of December 19, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Laredo's Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on December 22, 2011).

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on December 22,
2011).

3.2 Certificate of Ownership and Merger, dated as of December 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on January 6, 2014).

33 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Laredo Petroleum, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of
Laredo's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on February 17, 2016).

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Laredo's Registration
Statement on Form 8-A12B/A (File No. 001-35380) filed on January 7, 2014).

4.2 Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of June 24, 2014, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Laredo
Midstream Services, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 of Laredo's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35380) filed on August 7, 2014).

43 Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 3, 2014, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Garden City
Minerals, LLC, Laredo Midstream Services, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Laredo’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-35380) filed
on February 26, 2015).

44 Indenture, dated as of April 27, 2012, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., the several guarantors named therein
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Laredo's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 30, 2012).

4.5 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 31, 2013, among Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.,
Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Laredo Midstream Services, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-35380) filed on January 6, 2014).

4.6 Amended and Restated Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 24, 2014, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc.,
Laredo Midstream Services, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Laredo's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35380) filed on August 7,
2014).
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Exhibit Number

Description

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9#

10.10#

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 3, 2014, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Garden City
Minerals, LLC, Laredo Midstream Services, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 of Laredo’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-35380) filed
on February 26, 2015).

Indenture, dated as of January 23, 2014, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Laredo Midstream Services, LLC and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Laredo's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on January 24, 2014).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 3, 2014, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Garden City
Minerals, LLC, Laredo Midstream Services, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 of Laredo’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-35380) filed
on February 26, 2015).

Indenture, dated as of March 18, 2015, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Laredo Midstream Services, LLC,
Garden City Minerals, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 of Laredo’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on March 24, 2015).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 18, 2015, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Laredo Midstream
Services, LLC, Garden City Minerals, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Laredo’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed
on March 24, 2015).

Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2013, among Laredo Petroleum,
Inc., as borrower, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, and the other financial
institutions signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's Current Report on Form
8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on January 6, 2014).

First Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014, among
Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, Laredo Midstream Services, LLC
and the banks signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on February 4, 2014).

Second Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 8, 2014, among
Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, Laredo Midstream Services, LLC
and the banks signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on May 8, 2014).

Third Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2015, among
Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, Laredo Midstream Services, LLC,
Garden City Minerals, LLC and the banks signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
Laredo’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35380) filed on May 7, 2015).

Fourth Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of October 30, 2015, among
Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, Laredo Midstream Services, LLC,
Garden City Minerals, LLC and the banks signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Laredo’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35380) filed on November 5, 2015).

Waiver Letter to Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 3, 2015, among Laredo
Petroleum, Inc., as borrower, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, and the banks
signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-35380) filed on March 4, 2015).

Memorandum of Borrowing Base Reduction, dated May 2, 2016, from Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. to Laredo
Petroleum, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-35380) filed on May 5, 2016).

Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated December 20, 2011 among Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
and the signatories thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-35380) filed on December 22, 2011).

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. and each of the officers and
directors thereof (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-35380) filed on December 22, 2011).

Laredo Petroleum, Inc. Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated as of March 30, 2016
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed
on May 25, 2016).
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Exhibit Number

Description

10.11#

10.12#

10.13#

10.14#

10.15#

10.16#

10.17#

10.18#*

10.19#

10.20

21.1%

23.1%

23.2%
31.1%

31.2%

32.1%*

99.1%*
101.INS*
101.CAL*
101.SCH*
101.DEF*
101.LAB*
101.PRE*

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on February 9, 2012).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Laredo's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35380) filed on August 9, 2012).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Laredo's Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on May 25, 2016).

Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Laredo's Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on February 9, 2012).

Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Laredo's Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on May 25, 2016).

Form of Performance Compensation Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Laredo's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on February 9, 2012).

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Laredo's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on May 25, 2016).

Laredo Petroleum, Inc. Change in Control Executive Severance Plan, as amended June 21, 2015, December
14,2015 and September 9, 2016.

Form of 2013 Performance Compensation Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of
Laredo's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on March 12, 2013).

Non-Exclusive Aircraft Lease Agreement, dated January 1, 2015 between Lariat Ranch, LLC and Laredo
Petroleum, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of Laredo’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 001-35380) filed on February 26, 2015).

List of Subsidiaries of Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
Consent of Grant Thornton LLP.
Consent of Ryder Scott Company, L.P.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18. U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Summary Report of Ryder Scott Company, L.P.
XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Schema Document.

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.

XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

XBRL Labels Linkbase Document.

XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.

*  Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
# Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LAREDO PETROLEUM, INC.
Date: February 16, 2017 By: /s/ Randy A. Foutch

Randy A. Foutch
Chief Executive Officer

KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Randy A. Foutch, Richard C. Buterbaugh, Kenneth E. Dornblaser and Michael T. Beyer, each of whom may act
without joinder of the other, as their true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, each with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for such person and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments
to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents full power and
authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully
to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and
agents, or their substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title Date
/s/ Randy A. Foutch Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
ncinal Ve offi 2/16/2017
Randy A. Foutch (principal executive officer)

Js/ Richard C. Buterbaugh Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer (principal financial 2/16/2017
Richard C. Buterbaugh officer)
/s/ Michael T. B Vice President - Controller and Chief
s/ Michael 1. beyer Accounting Officer (principal accounting 2/16/2017
Michael T. Beyer officer)
/s/ Peter R. Kagan Director 2/16/2017
Peter R. Kagan
/s/ James R. Levy Director 2/16/2017
James R. Levy
/s/ B.Z. (Bill) Parker Director 2/16/2017
B.Z. (Bill) Parker
/s/ Pamela S. Pierce Director 2/16/2017
Pamela S. Pierce
/s/ Dr. Myles W. Scoggins Director 2/16/2017
Dr. Myles W. Scoggins
/s/ Edmund P. Segner, II1 Director 2/16/2017
Edmund P. Segner, 111
/s/ Donald D. Wolf Director 2/16/2017

Donald D. Wolf
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Laredo Petroleum, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Laredo Petroleum, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and
subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Laredo Petroleum, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in the 2013

Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0), and our report dated February 16, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
February 16, 2017
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Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
Consolidated balance sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2016 2015
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and CaSh EQUIVALEIILS .........iuiiiieiiiieict ittt ettt ettt e sttt e e st b et eseese st e e eseebenseneeseseneenesseneas $ 32,672 $ 31,154
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE, TIEL.....ouviivieiiitietieie ettt ettt ettt et et e ae e e et e e beessesaeeseess e beeseesseeseessesseessessenseessesseseeseenseseas 86,867 87,699
DIEIIVALIVES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e e teete et e eae e st e b e es e esseeseessesseeseessess e seessesseessessesseessens e seesaesseessessenseessenseseeseensenes 20,947 198,805
OFNET CUITEIE ASSEES......vivietieiieteeiteeteetteteeteetteseeseestesseeseessesseessesseessessesseeseessesseessessesseessenseseessessesssessensesssesseseessensesss 14,291 14,574
TOAL CUITEIE ASSELS......veveevreurieteesieteeteesteeteeteesteeteeseeseeteessesesseessesseeseessesseeseessesseessessaseessesseseessessesasessensesseensensens 154,777 332,232
Property and equipment:
Oil and natural gas properties, full cost method:
EVAIUALEA PIOPEITICS. .. vttt ettt ettt e st e e st et et esees e et e s eseese s eneen e et e seneene et enseneenesseneaneasensans 5,488,756 5,103,635
Unevaluated properties not being depleted...........ccoiviiriieiiiiiiiiceecretee ettt 221,281 140,299
Less accumulated depletion and IMPaIrMENLt..........c.coucueueririeuiinieieirieceeectee ettt (4,514,183) (4,218,942)
Oil and natural Gas PrOPEITICS, NMEL ......e.eoviieirieieiieterteeett ettt ettt es e eseetes s esessesseseesesesseseeseseneesessenseseesensens 1,195,854 1,024,992
Midstream service assets, net . 126,240 131,725
OthET fIXEA @SSES, TMET....uieuiiiieiieiiiteeteete ettt ettt et et e te et e eteeteesseeseeseesseeseessesseeseesseseessesseeseessessesssessenseessesseseessenseseas 44,773 43,538
Property and ©QUIPIMEINE, TICE .......c.eiveieiiieeieteiteiet et ettt eie st et estete s et ese et esseseese st eneeseesesseseeseseneesessenseseasensens 1,366,867 1,200,255
DIEIIVALIVES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et et ete e st e et e e st et et e eseeseessessesseessessesseeseeaseeseeseesseeseessesseeseenseaseeasenbesseeseensebeeneeneeneas 8,718 77,443
Investment in equity MEthOA INVESLEE. ........c.iitiierietiieieei ettt ettt ettt et e st es e s eseesesseneeseebe s eneeseesenes 243,953 192,524
OBNET @SSELS, TET ...viviiuiiiietiete et et et e ete et e eteete et e eteese et e ebeessesesssessesseessessesseeseessesseessesseeseessesseeseessesseessessesseeseensesseeseenseses 8,031 10,833
TOTAL @SSELS....vveuvitieteeie et etteete et et et e e st ete e st e st e eseeseesseeseessessesseessesseessessesbeessessesssessenseessess e beessenseeseessensenaeensentens $ 1,782,346  $ 1,813,287
Liabilities and stockholders’' equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . $ 15,054  $ 14,181
Undistributed revenue and TOYAITIES ........cueiieieieririeieieeieiee ettt ettt et s et eseese s eseesesseneeseesenseneeseesenes 26,838 34,540
Accrued CapItal EXPEIAILUIES ... eveuieiieeiieiieti ettt ettt s ettt ese et et e st ese st en e et e b e s ene et et eseesesseneeseesenseneeseesenes 30,845 61,872
DIETIVALIVES ...ttt ettt et e et e et e e teeeaee e teeeae e e teeeaeeeteeemeeeseeeneeeteeeneeeseeenseeseeenseeaeeeneeeteeeneeenreeenneans 20,993 —
Other CUITENT THADIIITIES ...vvivieieeieiteeti ettt ettt ettt et e eteete e s e eae e e e b e beeseesseeseesseseeseesseseeseesseessessenseessessesseessensesnas 94,215 106,222
Total current liabilities... . 187,945 216,815
LONGEIT AEDE, MOttt ettt ettt ettt s et e e st s et e s s e e s e s e st et et ensen e esenseneeseeseneeseeb et eneesenenes 1,353,909 1,416,226
DIETIVALIVES ...ttt et e ettt e ettt et e et e e teeeae e et e e eaee e teeeaeeeseeeaeeeteeeneeeseeenteeteeeaeeeteeeaeeeteeenreereeenreenres 5,694 —
AsSet TEtIEMENt ODIIZALIONS ......eviuieiiieiteiietiet ettt ettt et ettt ese s e es e s e st ete s enseseesenseneesesseneeseesenseneesensenes 50,604 44,759
Other NONCUITENT TIADTIITIES .......veuietieticiiitieti ettt ettt ettt ete et et e ete e s e st e e seesseeseesseseeseessesesasessesseeseesseseessenseseas 3,621 4,040
TOAL THADIIIEIES ...cvveveeeieete ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et e e st e eeaeeseesbeeseessebeeseeseesseessessaseessessebeessensesasessenseeneensenseas 1,601,773 1,681,840
Commitments and CONMTNMZEIICIES ......veueviierieteteieseeteteseetesteseeseetesteseeseeseseesessesseseesessesseseesesseseesesseseeseasenseneesenseseesesseneas
Stockholders' equity:
2P(r)c;fserred stock, $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized and zero issued as of December 31, 2016 and
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 450,000,000 shares authorized and 241,929,070 and 213,808,003 issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, re€SPECtIVELY..........cevueiieieriieeieeeceeeeeeete et 2,419 2,138
Additional Paid-in CAPILAL ........c.iiuiriiiieiicie ettt ne st n e bttt en ettt eneenenes 2,396,236 2,086,652
ACCUMUIALEA AETICIE....c.viiiiiiiiict ettt ettt (2,218,082) (1,957,343)
Total SLOCKNOIACTS' ©QUILY ....vevvetitieeeiieee ettt ettt ettt s e e st e st eb e s eneeseesenseseesesseneeseesensens 180,573 131,447
Total liabilities and StOCKNOIAETS' EQUILY.....c..cuirieieiitiieieii ettt eneseeneas $ 1,782,346  $ 1,813,287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
Consolidated statements of operations
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Revenues:
Oil, NGL and natural @as SAIES .........cccerieiririeieiieteiee sttt ettt ssenaenene $ 426,485 $ 431,734 $ 737,203
MIASIIEAM SEIVICE TEVEIUECS ... .vevveeriereersesteesteseeseesseeseeseesesseassessesssessesseeseessesseessessesssessessesseessesseeseens 8,342 6,548 2,245
Sales Of PUICHASEA Ol ....euiieiiiiiiiie ettt sseneenan 162,551 168,358 54,437
TOAL TEVEIIUES ....cuveveeeieieetieete ettt et ettt ettt eeseeas e b e seesseseebaesseseessessesbeessessesseessensesssensenseeseannn 597,378 606,640 793,885
Costs and expenses:
LeASE OPCTALING CXPEIISES...uveverinrereeuetesteseetetesteseeseseesessesseseesessenseseesenseseasessessasessesseneesenseneenessenseseane 75,327 108,341 96,503
Production and ad VAlOTEIM tAXES ......c.evveiueeiiriieieeieeie et erte ettt ere e s e eteeseesaesseeseesesseesseseessessesseeseens 28,586 32,892 50,312
Midstream service expenses ... 4,077 5,846 5,429
Minimum volume commitments 2,209 5,235 2,552
COsts OF PUICRASEA 011ttt sttt eseaenene 169,536 174,338 53,967
DIFIINE TIZ FRES vttt ettt et sttt e s et e e st eaesses e et e s et ene et e seneeneeseneeneane — — 527
General and adMINISIIATIVE ........cvievieiiieceee ettt a et eeseesaesaeeseesesseesseseeseeaesseeseens 91,756 90,425 106,044
Restructuring expenses ............... . — 6,042 —
Accretion of asset retirement ObIIZAtIONS ........cveieueiririirieieereieee et 3,483 2,423 1,787
Depletion, depreciation and amOTtiZatiON .............eeueueirerieieereieeeete ettt seeeenene 148,339 277,724 246,474
TIMPAITINENE EXPEIISE .....vveetesiestetetestettetesteseetestest et eeteseeseesesseseese st enseseesenseseeseesenteseasenseneesenseneenessennenene 162,027 2,374,888 3,904
TOtal COSES ANA EXPENISES ...vvvevieritinieiietereeieete ettt ettt ettt st e st ese et et eseese s enaesesse s eneesenseneeneas 685,340 3,078,154 567,499
Operating iNCOME (L0SS) ....veuveurerieteieieitetei ettt ettt ettt et et e s es e sesae s eneeseseneenessenseseane (87,962) (2,471,514) 226,386
Non-operating income (expense):
Gain (10SS) ON AETIVALIVES, TICL ...e.veuiiuiieiietieteiiee ettt ettt ettt ese s ene et se e enesseneenene (87,425) 214,291 327,920
Income (loss) from equity Method INVESLEE.........c.eeveieireirieieieiieieeeteee et 9,403 6,799 (192)
Interest expense (93,298) (103,219) (121,173)
Interest and Other INCOMIC..........c.iriiuiuiiieiiieieeeec ettt s 175 426 294
Loss on early redemption 0f deDt..........coeiiiiiiiiiiiie e e — (31,537) —
Write-off 0f debt ISSUANCE COSES........cuiiiiiiiieieiiieiei ettt ee (842) — (124)
Loss on diSposal 0f @SSELS, NEL .......c.ceeurueuiririeiiiieieiiiteteiee ettt (790) (2,127) (3,252)
Non-operating income (expense), net . (172,777) 84,633 203,473
Income (10SS) bEfOre IMNCOME TAXES ....c.vvviurieieiiieieiirieieicet ettt ettt es (260,739) (2,386,881) 429,859
Income tax benefit (expense):
DIETEITEA ...ttt ettt et e te e e b e e ae et e beese et e aeesb e b e ere e b e ebeeneeaeeanenrans — 176,945 (164,286)
Total income tax benefit (EXPEISE)......coveueueirueueuiriieriieieieieteteie sttt ettt es e e neneae — 176,945 (164,286)
NEt INCOME (LOSS) vttt ettt ene e ee $ (260,739) $ (2,209,936) $ 265,573
Net income (loss) per common share:
BASIC. .o ovveee oo oo $ (1.16) $ (11.10) ' $ 1.88
DAIULEA. oo $ (1.16) ' $ (11.10) ' $ 1.85
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
BaaSIC .ttt ettt ettt ettt n ettt e e st ekt e n e e st et e st en e e st en e et e betene et enenene 225,512 199,158 141,312
DHIULEA. .ttt ettt ettt a e st e sttt n et n st en et e st et be e eneeseneneene 225,512 199,158 143,554

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance, December 31,2013 ...............

Restricted stock awards........................

Vested restricted stock exchanged for
tax withholding .............ccocooviiievinenns

Retirement of treasury stock................
Exercise of employee stock options.....
Stock-based compensation...................
Net inCOME ..o
Balance, December 31,2014 ...............

Restricted stock awards

Vested restricted stock exchanged for
tax withholding .............ccocoevivieiiienas

Retirement of treasury stock

Equity issuance, net of offering costs ..
Stock-based compensation...................
NEt10SS....cveuiiieiieieeeeeee e
Balance, December 31, 2015 ...............

Restricted stock awards........................

Vested restricted stock exchanged for
tax withholding ...........cccccoevvveeiininne.

Retirement of treasury stock................

Exercise of employee stock options.....

Equity issuances, net of offering costs.
Stock-based compensation

Net 10SS....oveveeiiiereiiinen

Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
Consolidated statements of stockholders' equity
(in thousands)

Common Stock Add?tiqnal Tre?::l E())]sf)tOCk (Acfll;ilpl.cl;gted
paid-in retained
Shares Amount capital Shares Amount earnings Total
142,671 $ 1,427 $ 1,283,809 — — (12,980) § 1,272,256
1,234 12 (12) — — — —
(148) (1) 1 — — — —
— — — 166 (4,242) — (4,242)
(166) 2) (4,240) (166) 4,242 — —
95 1 1,884 — — — 1,885
— — 27,729 — — — 27,729
— — — — — 265,573 265,573
143,686 1,437 1,309,171 — — 252,593 1,563,201
1,902 19 (19) — — — —
(553) (6) 6 — — — —
— — — 227 (2,811) — (2,811)
(227) 2) (2,809) (227) 2,811 — —
69,000 690 753,473 — — — 754,163
— — 26,830 — — — 26,830
— — — — — (2,209,936) (2,209,936)
213,808 2,138 2,086,652 — — (1,957,343) 131,447
2,982 30 (30) — — — —
(457) 5) 5 — — — —
— — — 296 (1,635) — (1,635)
(296) 3) (1,632) (296) 1,635 — —
17 — 208 — — — 208
25,875 259 275,793 — — — 276,052
— — 35,240 — — — 35,240
— — — — — (260,739) (260,739)
241,929 $ 2,419 $ 2,396,236 — — $ (2,218,082) $ 180,573

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
Consolidated statements of cash flows
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
INEE INCOME (0SS)...vtvirierietiiesiettetet ettt ettt ettt e et et se et e e b et ese et e b eseesees e s eseesesseneeseesessenseneesenseseanens
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Deferred income tax (benefit) EXPEnse ..........coociuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiicccce e
Depletion, depreciation and amMOTtIZATION .........c.ceuiriiietiriirieiieieteiee ettt eeenes
TMPAITMENT EXPEIISE ..ttt ettt b et es ettt ae et e bt e bt et ettt et e it st et et ebesae e eneeaenee
Loss on early redemption 0f debt..........coveiiiiiiiiriieie e
Bad debt XPEIISE....c.euvvtiaiieiiiiet ettt ettt
Non-cash stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized ............cocovvevieirerieinereseseeene
Mark-to-market on derivatives:
(Gain) 10SS 0N AETIVALIVES, TICL......erueuietieteieiiite ettt ettt sttt ese et tes e ese st eneeseebeste e eneesenne
Cash settlements received for matured derivatives, NEt..........ccoueevveeeiieiiieiie et
Cash settlements received for early terminations of derivatives, Net..........cceeeverueeririeenenireenieieenens
Change in net present value of derivative deferred premiums.........c.oeeivivieininiccninncrcncceeeccee
Cash premiums paid fOr dETTVALIVES .......ecviieeiieieiicieieieeeee ettt esenee
Amortization Of debt ISSUANCE COSES ......c.vruiuiuiriieiiriiieiiiriet ettt ettt
Write-off of debt issuance costs................
(Income) loss from equity Method INVESLEE ........c.eruirieiiiiriiiiiriecietere e

Cash settlement of performance Unit AWArdS ...........cccoorieiiririeiniecec e
OBNET, ML ..ttt ettt et ettt ettt et ettt et e e et e seeas et e eteesseeseeaseaseseeas et eeteesseseeasensesseensenseseas
Decrease (increase) in aCCOUNLS TECEIVADIE .......euviuiiiiieiiiiiieietiieee et
Increase in other assets..........c.oeeeevnieucnnnee

Increase (decrease) in aCCOUNES PAYADIE.......c.eveuiiiiiiiieiiiieieiet ettt
(Decrease) increase in undistributed revenues and royalties..........ccooeveirereirineneeneneeeeeeesee
Increase (decrease) in other accrued HabIlItIes. .......c.ovevirviiieiiiiieice e
(Decrease) increase in other noncurrent Habilities ..........oovevveiriirieieinieieieieiee e
Increase in fair value of performance Unit aWards ............c.eoveirierieirenieieereeeee e
Net cash provided by Operating aCtivities .........c..oeeeririeuerieieieirieieieireiee ettt
Cash flows from investing activities:
Deposit received for sale of oil and natural gas Properties ..........coeovvereieenerieirenieine s
Capital expenditures:
Acquisitions of 0il and natural Zas ProOPErties ..........ceiririeriirirreiririeieieeieiert ettt ettt
Acquisition Of MINETAL INTETESES .....c.vevirveierietiieiiete ettt ettt sttt s se e ese s eseesesseneeneesenes
Oil and NAtural gas PrOPEITIES........c.ceveueuirrueuiuiereieiirietetetetetee ettt ee et ettt et ee et st e b et s s s eaeneneas
MIASEIEAIM SEIVICE ASSEES ..uveuvvieineeuietetetestetestestet e st et eteete st ese et et eseeseseeneeseebesseneeseeaessesessenseseebessenseneesenne
OhET FIXEA ASSEES ..euveuteiietiteieeie ettt ettt ettt st b bttt et st et e st ebesbe st eneenenne
Investment in equity MEthOd INVESIEE ........c.eiririeiiiiieiiiec e
Proceeds from dispositions of capital assets, net of selling COSS .......c.oveirriirireeririccceeecee
Net cash used in INVEStING ACHIVITIES.....eveuievirieierietiieiee ettt ese e ees
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on Senior Secured Credit Facility

Payments on Senior Secured Credit FACIIIEY .....c..oiviiiiiiiiiieieci e
Issuance of March 2023 NOLES ........c.cueuiuiiiiiiiiriiiiieieiiteteie ettt ettt ettt
Issuance of JAnUAry 2022 NOTES .....cceueueirieueiririetiieteiett ettt ettt ettt sttt ne
Redemption of January 2019 NOLES .......ccueieririeieiriiieiieeiet ettt re e sse s ese s sseneeseesenes
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of offering COStS ........cvveiririreririnieie e
PUrchase Of treaSUIY SEOCK ......c.viuiriiietiitiiei ettt ettt ettt sttt st eneene e
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options..
Payments for debt ISSUANCE COSTS .....vveuiuiriruiiirietiieieteiiet ettt ettt ettt sttt eneee

Net cash provided by financing aCtiVIties .........c.coeueeririeeriririeiniiieereee et

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash €qQUIVAIENLS ...........ooveieirieieieieie e
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning Of PEriod ..........cccoveueiririiiiiriiieiireceeee et
Cash and cash equivalents, end Of PETiOd........c.eoueiiiriiieiieei e

For the years ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(260,739) $  (2,209,936) $ 265,573
— (176,945) 164,286
148,339 277,724 246,474
162,027 2,374,888 3,904
— 31,537 —
— 255 342
29,229 24,509 23,079
87,425 (214,291) (327,920)
195,281 255,281 28,241
80,000 — 76,660
232 203 220
(89,669) (5,167) (7,419)
4,279 4,727 5,137
842 — 124
(9,403) (6,799) 192
(6,394) (2,738) —
4,596 4,554 5,442
832 38,975 (49,953)
(1,013) (2,309) (16,688)
873 (24,827) 23,006
(7,735) (30,898) 30,314
17,712 (26,996) 23,837
(419) 119 2,825
— 4,081 601
356,295 315,947 498,277
3,000 — —
(124,660) — (6,493)
— — (7,305)
(360,679) (588,017) (1,251,757)
(5,240) (35,459) (60,548)
(7,611) (9,125) (27,444)
(69,609) (99,855) (55,164)
397 64,949 1,750
(564,402) (667,507) (1,406,961)
239,682 310,000 300,000
(304,682) (475,000) —
— 350,000 —
— — 450,000
— (576,200) —
276,052 754,163 —
(1,635) (2,811) (4,242)
208 — 1,885
— (6,759) (7,791)
209,625 353,393 739,852
1,518 1,833 (168,832)
31,154 29,321 198,153
32,672 $ 31,154 $ 29,321

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
Notes to consolidated financial statements

Note 1—Organization

Laredo Petroleum, Inc. ("Laredo"), together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Laredo Midstream Services, LLC
("LMS") and Garden City Minerals, LLC ("GCM"), is an independent energy company focused on the acquisition, exploration
and development of oil and natural gas properties, and the transportation of oil and natural gas from such properties, primarily
in the Permian Basin in West Texas. LMS and GCM (together, the "Guarantors") guarantee all of Laredo's debt instruments. In
these notes, the "Company" refers to Laredo, LMS and GCM collectively, unless the context indicates otherwise. All amounts,
dollars and percentages presented in these consolidated financial statements and the related notes are rounded and therefore
approximate.

The Company operates in two business segments: (i) exploration and production and (ii) midstream and marketing.
The exploration and production segment is engaged in the acquisition, exploration and development of oil and natural gas
properties. The midstream and marketing segment provides Laredo's exploration and production segment and third parties with
products and services that need to be delivered by midstream infrastructure, including oil and natural gas gathering services as
well as rig fuel, natural gas lift and water delivery and takeaway.

Note 2—Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies
a. Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were derived from the historical accounting records of the
Company and reflect the historical financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods described herein. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). All material intercompany transactions and account balances have been
eliminated in the consolidation of accounts. Unless otherwise indicated, the information in these notes relates to the Company's
continuing operations. The Company uses the equity method of accounting to record its net interests when the Company holds
20% to 50% of the voting rights and/or has the ability to exercise significant influence but does not control the entity. Under the
equity method, the Company's proportionate share of the investee's net income (loss) is included in the consolidated statements
of operations. See Note 14 for additional discussion of the Company's equity method investment.

b. Use of estimates in the preparation of consolidated financial statements

The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although management believes these estimates
are reasonable, actual results could differ.

Significant estimates include, but are not limited to, (i) estimates of the Company's reserves of oil, natural gas liquids
("NGL") and natural gas, (ii) future cash flows from oil and natural gas properties, (iii) depletion, depreciation and
amortization, (iv) impairments, (v) asset retirement obligations, (vi) stock-based compensation, (vii) deferred income taxes,
(viii) fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in an acquisition and (ix) fair values of derivatives, deferred premiums
and performance unit awards. As fair value is a market-based measurement, it is determined based on the assumptions that
would be used by market participants. These estimates and assumptions are based on management's best judgment.
Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors,
including the current economic environment. Such estimates and assumptions are adjusted when facts and circumstances
dictate. Illiquid credit markets and volatile equity and energy markets have combined to increase the uncertainty inherent in
such estimates and assumptions. Management believes its estimates and assumptions to be reasonable under the circumstances.
As future events and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual values and results could differ from these
estimates. Any changes in estimates resulting from future changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the
financial statements in future periods.

¢. Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2016
presentation. These reclassifications had no impact to previously reported balance sheets, net income (loss) or stockholders'
equity.

d. Cash and cash equivalents

The Company defines cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, cash in bank accounts and highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit
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Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
Notes to consolidated financial statements

accounts and money market funds that may not be federally insured. The Company has not experienced any losses in such
accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on such accounts. See Note 11 for discussion regarding the
Company's exposure to credit risk.

e. Accounts receivable

The Company sells produced oil, NGL and natural gas and purchased oil to various customers and participates with
other parties in the development and operation of oil and natural gas properties. The Company's accounts receivable are
generally unsecured. Accounts receivable for joint interest billings are recorded as amounts billed to customers less an
allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses inherent in its accounts receivable
portfolio. In establishing the required allowance, management considers historical losses, current receivables aging and existing
industry and economic data. The Company reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly. Past due amounts greater than
90 days and over a specified amount are reviewed individually for collectability. Account balances are charged off against the
allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is remote.

Accounts receivable consisted of the following components as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2016 2015
Oil, NGL and natural as SAIES.........cccceviririiriiriirieieieieiet ettt eae e ese s $ 46,999 $ 25,582

Sales of purchased oil and other products 16,213 11,775
Joint operations, net) 12,175 21,375
MaAtUTEA AETTVALIVES ..ottt et et e et e e e e e et e eeeeaeeesenaaeeeaaeeesneessenneeeas 11,059 27,469
ORCT .ttt ettt ettt ettt b st s et s et n st se et e teereereeteeaeebeereeseebenns 421 1,498

TOLAL ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et ettt et eteeteeteeteeaeebeebeeaeereebeeresbenns $ 86,867 $ 87,699

(1) Accounts receivable for joint operations are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.2 million as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015. As the operator of the majority of its wells, the Company has the ability to realize some
or all of these receivables through the netting of production revenues.

f- Derivatives

The Company uses derivatives to reduce exposure to fluctuations in the prices of oil, NGL and natural gas. By
removing a significant portion of the price volatility associated with future production, the Company expects to mitigate, but
not eliminate, the potential effects of variability in cash flows from operations due to fluctuations in commodity prices. These
transactions are in the form of puts, swaps, collars and, in prior periods, basis swaps.

Derivatives are recorded at fair value and are presented on a net basis on the consolidated balance sheets as assets or
liabilities. The Company nets the fair value of derivatives by counterparty where the right of offset exists. The Company
determines the fair value of its derivatives by utilizing pricing models for substantially similar instruments. Inputs to the pricing
models include publicly available prices and forward price curves generated from a compilation of data gathered from third
parties. See Note 9 for discussion regarding the fair value of the Company's derivatives.

The Company's derivatives were not designated as hedges for accounting purposes for any of the periods presented.
Accordingly, the changes in fair value are recognized in the consolidated statements of operations in the period of change.
Gains and losses on derivatives are included in cash flows from operating activities. See Notes 8 and 9 for discussion regarding
the Company's derivatives.

g.  Oil and natural gas properties

The Company uses the full cost method of accounting for its oil and natural gas properties. Under this method, all
acquisition, exploration and development costs, including certain related employee costs incurred for the purpose of exploring
for or developing oil, NGL and natural gas properties, are capitalized and depleted on a composite unit of production method
based on proved oil, NGL and natural gas reserves. Such amounts include the cost of drilling and equipping productive wells,
dry hole costs, lease acquisition costs, delay rentals and other costs related to such activities. Costs, including related employee
costs, associated with production and general corporate activities are expensed in the period incurred. Sales of oil and natural
gas properties, whether or not being amortized currently, are accounted for as adjustments of capitalized costs, with no gain or
loss recognized, unless such adjustments would significantly alter the relationship between capitalized costs and proved
reserves of oil, NGL and natural gas.

F-8



Laredo Petroleum, Inc.
Notes to consolidated financial statements

The Company computes the provision for depletion of oil and natural gas properties using the units of production
method based upon production and estimates of proved reserve quantities. Unevaluated costs and related carrying costs are
excluded from the depletion base until the properties associated with these costs are evaluated. Approximately $221.3 million
and $140.3 million of such costs were excluded from the depletion base as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The
depletion base includes estimated future development costs and dismantlement, restoration and abandonment costs, net of
estimated salvage values. Total accumulated depletion and impairment for oil and natural gas properties was $4.5 billion and
$4.2 billion for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Depletion expense for oil and natural gas properties
was $134.1 million, $263.7 million and $237.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Depletion per barrel of oil equivalent for the Company's oil and natural gas properties was $7.39, $16.13 and $20.21 for the
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The following table presents capitalized employee-related costs for the periods presented:
For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Capitalized employee-related COStS........oorirririiiriiirieirieeeieeeieeeennes $ 19,222 $ 10,688 $ 16,345

The Company excludes the costs directly associated with acquisition and evaluation of unevaluated properties from the
depletion calculation until it is determined whether or not proved reserves can be assigned to the properties. The Company
capitalizes a portion of its interest costs to its unevaluated properties. Capitalized interest becomes a part of the cost of the
unevaluated properties and is subject to depletion when proved reserves can be assigned to the associated properties. All items
classified as unevaluated property are assessed on a quarterly basis for possible impairment. See Note 20.b for further
information regarding unevaluated property costs. The assessment includes consideration of the following factors, among
others: intent to drill, remaining lease term, geological and geophysical evaluations, drilling results and activity, the assignment
of evaluated reserves and the economic viability of development if proved reserves are assigned. During any period in which
these factors indicate an impairment, the cumulative drilling costs incurred to date for such property and all or a portion of the
associated leasehold costs are transferred to the full cost pool and are then subject to depletion.

The full cost ceiling is based principally on the estimated future net revenues from proved oil and natural gas
properties discounted at 10%. The Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") guidelines require companies to use the
unweighted arithmetic average first-day-of-the-month price for each month within the 12-month period prior to the end of the
reporting period before differentials ("Benchmark Prices"). The Benchmark Prices are then adjusted for quality, transportation
fees, geographical differentials, marketing bonuses or deductions and other factors affecting the price received at the wellhead
("Realized Prices"). The Realized Prices are utilized to calculate the discounted future net revenues in the full cost ceiling
calculation.

In the event the unamortized cost of evaluated oil and natural gas properties being depleted exceeds the full cost
ceiling, as defined by the SEC, the excess is charged to expense in the period such excess occurs. Once incurred, a write-down
of oil and natural gas properties is not reversible.
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The following table presents the Benchmark Prices and Realized Prices as of the dates presented:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Benchmark Prices:

OIL(S/BDL) 1ot $ 3925 § 46.79 $ 91.48

NGL ($/BDL) oo $ 1824 § 18.75 § —

Natural gas ($/MMBLU) ........ovoverieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 233§ 247 $ 4.25
Realized Prices:

OIL($/BDL) ittt $ 3744 § 4558 % 89.57

NGL ($/BDL) oo $ 11.72  § 1250 § —

Natural a8 ($/MECE) ....veveeeeeceeeceeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 1.78 $ 189 § 6.39

(1) For periods prior to January 1, 2015, the Company presented reserves for oil and natural gas, which combined NGL
with the natural gas stream, and did not separately report NGL. This change impacts the comparability of 2016 and
2015 with prior periods.

Full cost ceiling impairment expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 in the consolidated statements
of operations was $161.1 million and $2.4 billion, respectively. There were no full cost ceiling impairments recorded during the
year ended December 31, 2014. These amounts are included in the "Impairment expense" line item in the consolidated
statements of operations and in the financial information provided for the Company's exploration and production segment
presented in Note 16.

h. Midstream service assets

Midstream service assets, which consist of oil and natural gas pipeline gathering assets, related equipment, oil delivery
stations, water storage and treatment facilities and their related asset retirement cost, are recorded at cost, net of impairment.
See Note 2.m for discussion regarding midstream service asset retirement cost. Depreciation of assets is recorded using the
straight-line method based on estimated useful lives of 10 to 20 years, as applicable. Expenditures for significant betterments or
renewals, which extend the useful lives of existing fixed assets, are capitalized and depreciated. Upon retirement or disposition,
the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is recognized in "Loss on
disposal of assets, net" in the consolidated statements of operations. Depreciation expense for midstream service assets was
$8.3 million, $7.5 million and $4.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Midstream service assets consisted of the following as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2016 2015

MIASIIEAIMN SETVICE @SSEES.......viiieiieeieeeeieeetie et e e et e e e e et e et e e e eeaee e e e e e eeaeeseaeeeaeeeeaeeseeeeeeeeeanes $ 150,629 $ 147,811

Less accumulated depreciation and iMpPairMent ...........c.ecveveeieieerieieeneeeee e sesee e eenns (24,389) (16,086)
TTOLAL TICL ...ttt et e e et et e e et e e et e et eeeeeaeeene et esee e e st eeeeeeenaeaa $ 126,240 $ 131,725

i. Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets are recorded at cost and are subject to depreciation and amortization. Land is recorded at cost and is
not subject to depreciation. Depreciation and amortization of other fixed assets is provided using the straight-line method based
on estimated useful lives of three to ten years, as applicable. Leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortized over the
shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the terms of the related leases. Expenditures for significant betterments or
renewals, which extend the useful lives of existing fixed assets, are capitalized and depreciated. Upon retirement or disposition,
the cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is
recognized in "Loss on disposal of assets, net" in the consolidated statements of operations. Depreciation and amortization
expense for other fixed assets was $5.9 million, $6.5 million and $5.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and
2014, respectively.
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Other fixed assets consisted of the following as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2016 2015
Computer hardware and SOTTWATE ...........cceviiiiiiieiicieeeeie et $ 12,710 $ 12,148
ATTCTATT ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e aeeteeaeete et e et e bt et e et e eteeaeas 11,352 4,952
Real estate and DUIIAINGS .......cc.ooviiiviiiiiiieii ettt eve e e 7,618 7,618
Leasehold iMPrOVEMENLS ..........ccveviiiiiiieieieiei ettt ettt eseete e sbeesessesbeesessessessessessesessens 7,549 7,710
VMICIES. ..o ettt ettt e e e e aareeaas 7,413 9,266
ONET ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt te et et ettt ettt eteans 5,849 5,105
Depreciable tOtal ........cceiiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt b et aa b e 52,491 46,799
Less accumulated depreciation and amortiZation ...............cc.eeveveieeieeeeeneeeseesessesresressesnens (22,632) (18,169)
Depreciable total, MO ........cceiveiiieieii ettt a e ee 29,859 28,630
LGN ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et et et e et e et et et e et e eteeaeas 14,914 14,908
TTOEAL TIC ..o ettt et e e e et e et e ee s e eaeeene e e e eeeeae e $ 44,773  $ 43,538

J. Long-lived assets and inventory

Impairment losses are recorded on property and equipment used in operations and other long-lived assets when
indicators of impairment are present and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the
assets' carrying amount. Impairment is measured based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the asset.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company early-adopted a new accounting standard that simplified the
measurement of inventory and has applied its provisions prospectively. The main substantive provision of this guidance is for
an entity to change the subsequent measurement of inventory, within the scope of this guidance, from lower of cost or market
("LCM") to the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value ("NRV") is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation. There was no effect to the
consolidated financials statements upon adoption of this guidance. See additional discussion in Note 18.

Materials and supplies inventory, which is used in the Company's production activities of oil and natural gas properties
and midstream service assets, is carried at the lower of cost or NRV, with cost determined using the weighted-average cost
method, and is included in "Other current assets" and "Other assets, net" on the consolidated balance sheets. The NRV for
materials and supplies inventory is determined utilizing a replacement cost approach (Level 2).

Beginning in 2016, the Company has frac pit water inventory, which is used in developing oil and natural gas
properties and is carried at lower of cost or NRV, with cost determined using the weighted-average cost method, and is included
in "Other current assets" on the consolidated balance sheets. The market price for frac pit water inventory is determined
utilizing a replacement cost approach (Level 2).

The minimum volume of product in a pipeline system that enables the system to operate is known as line-fill and is
generally not available to be withdrawn from the pipeline system until the expiration of the transportation contract. Beginning
in the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company owns oil line-fill in third-party pipelines, which is accounted for at lower of cost or
NRYV, with cost determined using the weighted-average cost method, and is included in "Other assets, net" on the consolidated
balance sheets. The net realizable value is determined utilizing a quoted market price adjusted for regional price differentials
(Level 2).
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The following table presents inventory impairments recorded as of the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Inventory impairments:
Materials and SUPPHES...........oovoivieeeeeeeeee e $ 963 $ 2,819 $ 1,802
LANE-TII®) oot — 1,314 2,102
Total INVeNtory IMPAITINENTS. .....c.eiveieteieeiieeeieiieeeieetesieeesieieeeseeeeeeeeeeas $ 963 $ 4,133 §$ 3,904

(1) Included in "Impairment expense" in the consolidated statements of operations and in "Impairment expense" for the
Company's exploration and production segment presented in Note 16.

(2) Included in "Impairment expense" in the consolidated statements of operations and in "Impairment expense" for the
Company's midstream and marketing segment presented in Note 16.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company recorded an impairment, based on an internally developed cash
flow model, of $1.3 million related to its compressed natural gas station. This amount is included in "Impairment expense" in
the consolidated statements of operations and as "Impairment expense" for the Company's midstream and marketing segment
presented in Note 16. There were no comparable impairments recorded for the years ended December 31, 2016 or 2014.

k. Debt issuance costs

Debt issuance fees, which are recorded at cost, net of amortization, are amortized over the life of the respective debt
agreements utilizing the effective interest and straight-line methods. The Company capitalized $6.8 million of debt issuance
costs during the year ended December 31, 2015 mainly as a result of the issuance of the March 2023 Notes (as defined below).
The Company capitalized $7.8 million of debt issuance costs during the year ended December 31, 2014 mainly as a result of the
issuance of the January 2022 Notes (as defined below). No debt issuance costs were capitalized in the year ended December 31,
2016. The Company had total debt issuance costs of $18.8 million and $23.9 million, net of accumulated amortization of $21.3
million and $17.0 million, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Company wrote-off $0.8 million of debt issuance costs during the year ended December 31, 2016 as a result of
changes in the borrowing base and aggregate elected commitment of the Senior Secured Credit Facility (as defined below),
which are included in the consolidated statements of operations in the "Write-off of debt issuance costs" line item. The
Company wrote-off $6.6 million of debt issuance costs during the year ended December 31, 2015 as a result of the early
redemption of the January 2019 Notes (as defined below), which are included in the consolidated statements of operations in
the "Loss on early redemption of debt" line item. During the year ended December 31, 2014, $0.1 million of debt issuance costs
were written-off as a result of changes in the borrowing base of the Senior Secured Credit Facility due to the issuance of the
January 2022 Notes, which are included in the consolidated statements of operations in the "Write-off of debt issuance costs"
line item.

Debt issuance costs related to the Company's senior unsecured notes are presented in "Long-term debt, net" on the
Company's consolidated balance sheets. Debt issuance costs related to the Senior Secured Credit Facility are presented in
"Other assets, net" on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. See Note 5.h for additional discussion of debt issuance costs.

Future amortization expense of debt issuance costs as of the period presented is as follows:

(in thousands) December 31, 2016
1 0 SO $ 4,238
0 L8 ettt ettt ettt ettt et e ettt e eatete et e eteebe et e eaeeteetteteeateeteebeerbeteeateeteenreenen 4,068
2000 ettt ettt ettt ettt ete et ettt et eete et e ete et e et eete et e eteereenen 2,915
2020 ettt ettt ettt et e ettt et ettt et ettt e ett et e et eete et e et ete et e eteenteeteereenean 3,005
1 0 SRR 3,102
TRETEATIET ...ttt e e e et e e e et e e e et e e s eaa e e e eaaeeesaeeesaaeeeaeaaeeseateeenareeenaeas 1,483

TOTAL ...ttt ettt ettt et ea e et et e et e e et e et et e e et e e et e et e e eraeeareeereens $ 18,811
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l.  Other current assets and liabilities

Other current assets consisted of the following components as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2016 2015

TVEIEOTY ... $ 8,063 $ 6,974

Prepaid expenses and Other ..........ccoiiiiiiieniieierieectee e 6,228 7,600
Total OthET CUITENT ASSELS......vviiiveiieieceee ettt ettt ete e e e eeaeeeaeeenee e $ 14291 $ 14,574

(1) See Note 2.j for discussion of inventory held by the Company.

Other current liabilities consisted of the following components as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2016 2015
Accrued compensation and Benefits ..........ccooeiveirieinieininieecc e $ 25,947 $ 14,342
Accrued INErest PAYADIC. ......c.ccuiiiiiiiiieci ettt ettt re s 24,152 24,208
Purchased 01l PAYADIE ........ccooiiiiiiieiceccc ettt aens 17,213 12,189
Lease operating eXpense PAYADIE........c.cccuevieriiiieriieieee ettt sre e eaeeae s 10,572 13,205
Capital contribution payable to equity method investee™..............ooovovvimrieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen. — 27,583
Other ACCrUEd HADIIITIES ....coeviiiieiie ettt et e e et e e et eeeaaeeeeaaees 16,331 14,695
Total other CUrTent HADIITIES ...c..vvveeieeee et e e e e e e e e eeaeeeeeaeeeeeaes $ 94,215 §$ 106,222

(1) See Notes 14 and 15.a for additional discussion regarding the Company's equity method investee.
m. Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets are recognized as a liability in
the period in which they are incurred and become determinable. The associated asset retirement costs are part of the carrying
amount of the long-lived asset. Subsequently, the asset retirement cost included in the carrying amount of the related long-lived
asset is charged to expense through depletion, or for midstream service assets through depreciation, of the associated asset.
Changes in the liability due to the passage of time are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the liability and as
corresponding accretion expense.

The fair value of additions to the asset retirement obligation liability is measured using valuation techniques consistent
with the income approach, which converts future cash flows into a single discounted amount. Significant inputs to the valuation
include: (i) estimated plug and abandonment cost per well based on Company experience, (ii) estimated remaining life per well,
(iii) estimated removal and/or remediation costs for midstream service assets, (iv) estimated remaining life of midstream service
assets, (v) future inflation factors and (vi) the Company's average credit adjusted risk-free rate. Inherent in the fair value
calculation of asset retirement obligations are numerous assumptions and judgments including, in addition to those noted above,
the ultimate settlement of these amounts, the ultimate timing of such settlement and changes in legal, regulatory, environmental
and political environments. To the extent future revisions to these assumptions impact the fair value of the existing asset
retirement obligation liability, a corresponding adjustment will be made to the asset balance.

The Company is obligated by contractual and regulatory requirements to remove certain pipeline and gathering assets
and perform other remediation of the sites where such pipeline and gathering assets are located upon the retirement of those
assets. However, the fair value of the asset retirement obligation cannot currently be reasonably estimated because the
settlement dates are indeterminate. The Company will record an asset retirement obligation for pipeline and gathering assets in
the periods in which settlement dates are reasonably determinable.
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The following reconciles the Company's asset retirement obligation liability as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2016 2015

Liability at be@inning Of YEAT ..........c.ccvcviviiuiiieriieeieieeceteeeeeeet ettt $ 46,306 $ 32,198
Liabilities added due to acquisitions, drilling, midstream service asset construction and
ORI .ttt et ettt be b e e te e b e te e be st e eteebeeneeseententeens 1,528 2,236
ACCTELION EXPEIISE ...vvevveevieureeeteiteesseeteesteeteeteessesseesseeseeseessesseessasssesseessesseessesssesessseseensesseans 3,483 2,423
Liabilities settled upon plugging and abandonment................cecveveeieireneeeneneneieeeee e (1,242) (146)
Liabilities removed due to sale of property — (2,005)
Revision of estimates” 2,132 11,600

Liability at end of year......... o $ 52,207 $ 46,306

(1) The revision of estimates that occurred during the year ended December 31, 2015 was mainly related to a change in
the estimated remaining life per well due to declining commodity prices.

n. Fair value measurements

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, undistributed revenue and royalties, accrued capital expenditures and other accrued assets and liabilities
approximate their fair values. See Note 5.g for fair value disclosures related to the Company's debt obligations. The Company
carries its derivatives at fair value. See Note 9 for details regarding the fair value of the Company's derivatives.

o. Treasury stock

Laredo's employees may elect to have the Company withhold shares of stock to satisfy their tax withholding
obligations that arise upon the lapse of restrictions on their stock awards. Such treasury stock is recorded at cost and retired
upon acquisition.

P.  Revenue recognition

Oil, NGL and natural gas revenues are recorded using the sales method. Under this method, the Company recognizes
revenues based on actual volumes of oil, NGL and natural gas sold to purchasers. For natural gas sales, the Company and other
joint interest owners may sell more or less than their entitlement share of the volumes produced. Under the sales method, when
a working interest owner has overproduced in excess of its share of remaining estimated reserves, the overproduced party
recognizes the excessive imbalance as a liability. If the underproduced working interest owner determines that an overproduced
owner's share of remaining net reserves is insufficient to settle the imbalance, the underproduced owner recognizes a receivable,
net of any allowance from the overproduced working interest owner. The Company is also subject to natural gas pipeline
imbalances, which are recorded as accounts receivable or payable at values consistent with contractual arrangements with the
owner of the pipeline. The Company did not have any producer or pipeline imbalance positions as of December 31, 2016 or
2015.

Midstream service revenues are recorded at the time products are sold or services are provided to third parties at a
fixed or determinable price, delivery or performance has occurred, title has transferred and collectability of the revenue is
probable. Revenues and expenses attributable to oil purchases and sales are reported on a gross basis when the Company takes
title to the products and has risks and rewards of ownership.

q. Fees received for the operation of jointly-owned oil and natural gas properties

The Company receives fees for the operation of jointly-owned oil and natural gas properties and records such
reimbursements as a reduction of general and administrative expenses.

The following amounts have been recorded for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

Fees received for the operation of jointly-owned oil and natural gas properties  $ 2477 $ 3,125 § 3,265
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r. Compensation awards

Stock-based compensation expense, net of amounts capitalized, is included in "General and administrative" in the
Company's consolidated statements of operations over the awards' vesting periods and is based on the awards' grant date fair
value. The Company utilizes the closing stock price on the grant date, less an expected forfeiture rate, to determine the fair
values of service vesting restricted stock awards and a Black-Scholes pricing model to determine the fair values of service
vesting restricted stock option awards. The Company utilizes a Monte Carlo simulation prepared by an independent third party
to determine the fair values of the performance share awards and, in prior periods, performance unit awards. The Company
capitalizes a portion of stock-based compensation for employees who are directly involved in the acquisition, exploration and
development of its oil and natural gas properties into the full cost pool. Capitalized stock-based compensation is included as an
addition to "Oil and natural gas properties" in the consolidated balance sheets. See Note 6 for further discussion regarding the
restricted stock awards, restricted stock option awards, performance share awards and performance unit awards.

s. Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards. Under this method, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in income (loss) in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company evaluates uncertain tax positions for recognition and measurement in the consolidated financial
statements. To recognize a tax position, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the tax position will be
sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation, based on the technical merits of the
position. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to be
recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The amount of tax benefit recognized with respect to any tax position is
measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement. The Company
has no unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions in the consolidated financial statements at December 31,
2016 or 2015. See Note 7 for additional information regarding the Company's income taxes.

t. Environmental

The Company is subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. These laws, among
other things, regulate the discharge of materials into the environment and may require the Company to remove or mitigate the
environmental effects of the disposal or release of petroleum or chemical substances at various sites. Environmental
expenditures are expensed in the period incurred. Liabilities for expenditures of a non-capital nature are recorded when
environmental assessment or remediation is probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities are generally
undiscounted unless the timing of cash payments is fixed and readily determinable. Management believes no materially
significant liabilities of this nature existed as of December 31, 2016 or 2015.

u. Non-cash investing and supplemental cash flow information
The following presents the non-cash investing and supplemental cash flow information for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Non-cash investing information:
Change in accrued capital expenditures..............ccoeveeeieieeerececreereeennn, $ (31,027) $ (86,369) $ 31,913
Change in accrued capital contribution to equity method investee'" ....... $ (27,583) $ 27,583 $ (2,597)
Capitalized asset retiremMent COSt.........coververierieieieieiereeeeeere e $ 3,660 $ 13,836 $ 9,118

Supplemental cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of $294, $236 and $150 of capitalized
INtErest, TESPECHVELY.......cviieeieeeieiee e $ 89,432 § 112,457  $ 104,936

(1) See Notes 14 and 15.a for additional discussion of the Company's equity method investee.
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Note 3—Equity offerings
a. July 2016 Equity Offering

On July 19, 2016, the Company completed the sale of 13,000,000 shares of Laredo's common stock (the "July 2016
Equity Offering") for net proceeds of $136.3 million, after underwriting discounts, commissions and offering expenses. On
August 9, 2016, the underwriters exercised their option to purchase an additional 1,950,000 shares of Laredo's common stock,
which resulted in net proceeds to the Company of $20.5 million, after underwriting discounts, commissions and
offering expenses.

b. May 2016 Equity Offering

On May 16, 2016, the Company completed the sale of 10,925,000 shares of Laredo's common stock (the "May 2016
Equity Offering") for net proceeds of $119.3 million, after underwriting discounts, commissions and offering expenses.

¢. March 2015 Equity Offering

On March 5, 2015, the Company completed the sale of 69,000,000 shares of Laredo's common stock (the "March 2015
Equity Offering") for net proceeds of $754.2 million, after underwriting discounts, commissions and offering expenses. Entities
affiliated with Warburg Pincus LLC ("Warburg Pincus") purchased 29,800,000 shares in the March 2015 Equity Offering.

There were no comparative offerings of Laredo's stock during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Note 4—Acquisitions and divestiture
a. 2016 Acquisitions of evaluated and unevaluated oil and natural gas properties

The Company accounts for acquisitions of evaluated and unevaluated oil and natural gas properties under the
acquisition method of accounting. Accordingly, the Company conducts assessments of net assets acquired and recognizes
amounts for identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the estimated acquisition date fair values, while transaction
costs associated with the acquisitions are expensed as incurred.

The Company makes various assumptions in estimating the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The
most significant assumptions relate to the estimated fair value of evaluated and unevaluated oil and natural gas properties. The
fair value of these properties are measured using a discounted cash flow model that converts future cash flows to a single
discounted amount. Significant inputs to the valuation include estimates of: (i) forecasted oil, NGL and natural gas reserve
quantities; (ii) future commodity strip prices as of the closing dates adjusted for transportation and regional price differentials;
(iii) forecasted ad valorem taxes, production taxes, income taxes, general and administrative expenses, operating expenses and
development costs; and (iv) a peer group weighted-average cost of capital rate subject to additional project-specific risk factors.
To compensate for the inherent risk of estimating the value of the unevaluated properties, the discounted future net revenues of
proved undeveloped and probable reserves are reduced by additional reserve adjustment factors. These assumptions represent
Level 3 inputs under the fair value hierarchy, as described in Note 9.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company acquired 9,200 net acres of additional leasehold interests and
working interests in 81 producing vertical wells in western Glasscock and Reagan counties (which included production of
approximately 300 net BOE/D) within the Company's core development area for an aggregate purchase price of $124.7 million
subject to customary closing adjustments.
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The following table reflects an aggregate of the final estimate of the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired
during the year ended December 31, 2016:

Fair value of
(in thousands) acquisitions

Fair value of net assets:

Evaluated oil and natural as PrOPEeItiCS.........c.ccirirririririerreriestestestestetessesesessesesesseseeseesseseeseesseseeseeseeseas $ 4,800

Unevaluated oil and natural @as PrOPEITIES ........cc.erieruieierierieeierieetesteeteeeesteeaesseesesraesseessesseessesseesessnens 119,923

ASSEE TEUITEIMEIE COST ..vviiiiuiiiiitiie ittt eeteee e ettt e e et e e eeeeee e e e e e eeaeeeeeateeeesteeeentaeesaseseeensseessasteesenesesensseesaneseesnees 1,105

Total @SSELS ACQUITEA ... .cuvievieiieeiiite ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e ettt eetseebe e b e eteeaseeeseebeeaseeasesseesseseenseeneenns 125,828
Asset TetiremMENt ODIIGALIONS ......c.ecviivietieiiitietictecteete ettt ettt ettt se s e e e e esseseesaesseseeseesseseeseeseeseeseenas (1,105)

NEt ASSEES ACQUITEM. .. ..viiviiiieiietietiete ettt ettt ettt ettt et et b e s e s e s ess e s ess e st essessessessesseseenseneesseseenas $ 124,723

Fair value of consideration paid for net assets:
CaSH COMSIACTATION ...ttt ettt et et e e e et e et e s e e et e et e s e eeaeeeeaeesaeesaeeeeneesane $ 124,723

b. 2015 Divestiture of non-strategic assets

On September 15, 2015, the Company completed the sale of non-strategic and primarily non-operated properties and
associated production totaling 6,060 net acres and 123 producing wells in the Midland Basin to a third-party buyer for a
purchase price of $65.5 million. After transaction costs reflecting an economic effective date of July 1, 2015, the net proceeds
were $64.8 million, net of working capital adjustments and post-closing adjustments. The purchase price, excluding post-
closing adjustments, was allocated to oil and natural gas properties pursuant to the rules governing full cost accounting.

Effective at closing, the operations and cash flows of these properties were eliminated from the ongoing operations of
the Company, and the Company has no continuing involvement in the properties. This divestiture does not represent a strategic
shift and will not have a major effect on the Company's operations or financial results.

The following table presents revenues and expenses of the oil and natural gas properties sold included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2015 2014
Oil, NGL and natural as SAlES.........ccerieieirieieieieieeeieee e $ 5,138 $ 19,337
EXPEISES ! ..ot $ 5791 § 11,082

(1) Expenses include (i) lease operating expense, (ii) production and ad valorem tax expense, (iii) accretion expense and
(iv) depletion expense.

c. Summary of 2014 acquisitions

The following table presents the Company's material 2014 acquisitions. For further discussion of the estimates of fair
value of the acquired assets and liabilities of these acquisitions, see Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements included in
the Company's 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Accounting Cash

(in thousands) treatment consideration
Acquisition

August 28, 2014 acquisition of leasehold INtETESLS ........cceeverrieiiiieriieieie e of assets $ 192,484
Acquisition

June 23, 2014 acquisition of evaluated and unevaluated oil and natural gas properties............... method $ 1,800
Acquisition

June 11, 2014 acquisition of evaluated and unevaluated oil and natural gas properties............... method $ 4,693
Acquisition

February 25, 2014 acquisition of mineral interests ............ccevieviiiieriieieriieiecieere e of assets $ 7,305
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Note S—Debt
a. Interest expense
The following amounts have been incurred and charged to interest expense for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Cash payments fOr INTETESt .........cc.ecieieieieieieiieeeieett et $ 89,726 $ 112,693 $ 105,086
Amortization of debt issuance costs and other adjustments..............c.ccvevveneneene. 3,922 4,243 4,433
Change in aCCrUed INLETESL.......ccuverieeieeieieeieie ettt beseeeae e e sseenne e (56) (13,481) 11,804
Interest COSES INCUITEA ......vvviiieiii ittt e eaee e 93,592 103,455 121,323
Less capitalized INTETESt........ecviiuieiieeieciieie ettt ettt ettt (294) (236) (150)
Total INTErESt EXPENSE ...vevvrveeerieietiteee ettt ettt ettt es e $ 93298 $ 103,219 § 121,173

b. March 2023 Notes

On March 18, 2015, the Company completed an offering of $350.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 6 1/4%
senior unsecured notes due 2023 (the "March 2023 Notes"), and entered into an Indenture (the "Base Indenture"), as
supplemented by the Supplemental Indenture (the "Supplemental Indenture" and, together with the Base Indenture, the
"Indenture"), among Laredo, LMS and GCM, as guarantors, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee. The March
2023 Notes will mature on March 15, 2023 with interest accruing at a rate of 6 1/4% per annum and payable semi-annually in
cash in arrears on March 15 and September 15 of each year, commencing September 15, 2015. The March 2023 Notes are fully
and unconditionally guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the Guarantors and certain of the Company's future restricted
subsidiaries, subject to certain automatic customary releases, including the sale, disposition, or transfer of all of the capital
stock or of all or substantially all of the assets of a subsidiary guarantor to one or more persons that are not the Company or a
restricted subsidiary, exercise of legal defeasance or covenant defeasance options or satisfaction and discharge of the Indenture,
designation of a subsidiary guarantor as a non-guarantor restricted subsidiary or as an unrestricted subsidiary in accordance
with the Indenture, release from guarantee under the Senior Secured Credit Facility, or liquidation or dissolution (collectively,
the "Releases").

The March 2023 Notes were offered and sold pursuant to a prospectus supplement dated March 4, 2015 and the base
prospectus dated March 22, 2013, relating to the Company's effective shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (File No.
333-187479). The Company received net proceeds of $343.6 million from the offering, after deducting the underwriters'
discount and the estimated outstanding offering expenses. In April 2015, the Company used the proceeds of the offering to fund
a portion of the Company's redemption of the January 2019 Notes (as defined below). See Note 5.e for additional discussion of
this early redemption.

The Company may redeem, at its option, all or part of the March 2023 Notes at any time on or after March 15, 2018, at
the applicable redemption price plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but not including, the date of redemption. Further, before
March 15, 2018, the Company may on one or more occasions redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the
March 2023 Notes in an amount not exceeding the net proceeds from one or more private or public equity offerings at a
redemption price of 106.25% of the principal amount of the March 2023 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of
redemption, if at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the March 2023 Notes remains outstanding immediately after
such redemption and the redemption occurs within 180 days of the closing date of each such equity offering.

c. January 2022 Notes

On January 23, 2014, the Company completed an offering of $450.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5 5/8%
senior unsecured notes due 2022 (the "January 2022 Notes"), and entered into an Indenture (the "2014 Indenture") among
Laredo, LMS as guarantor and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee. The January 2022 Notes will mature on
January 15, 2022 with interest accruing at a rate of 5 5/8% per annum and payable semi-annually in cash in arrears on January
15 and July 15 of each year, commencing July 15, 2014. The January 2022 Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a
senior unsecured basis by the Guarantors and certain of the Company's future restricted subsidiaries, subject to certain Releases.

The January 2022 Notes were issued pursuant to the 2014 Indenture in a transaction exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). The January 2022 Notes were offered and sold
only to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144 A under the Securities Act and to persons outside the United States
pursuant to Regulation S under the Securities Act. The Company received net proceeds of $442.2 million from the offering,
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after deducting the initial purchasers' discount and the estimated outstanding offering expenses. The Company used the net
proceeds of the offering for general working capital purposes.

Laredo has the option to redeem all or part of the January 2022 Notes at any time on and after January 15, 2017, at the
applicable redemption price plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption.

d. May 2022 Notes

On April 27, 2012, the Company completed an offering of $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 7 3/8%
senior unsecured notes due 2022 (the "May 2022 Notes"). The May 2022 Notes will mature on May 1, 2022 and bear an
interest rate of 7 3/8% per annum, payable semi-annually, in cash in arrears on May 1 and November 1 of each year,
commencing November 1, 2012. The May 2022 Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by
the Guarantors and certain of the Company's future restricted subsidiaries, subject to certain Releases.

The May 2022 Notes were issued under, and are governed by, an indenture and supplement thereto, each dated April
27,2012 (collectively, and as further supplemented, the "2012 Indenture"), among Laredo Inc, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as trustee, and the guarantors named therein. The 2012 Indenture contains customary terms, events of default and
covenants relating to, among other things, the incurrence of debt, the payment of dividends or similar restricted payments,
entering into transactions with affiliates and limitations on asset sales. Indebtedness under the May 2022 Notes may be
accelerated in certain circumstances upon an event of default as set forth in the 2012 Indenture.

Laredo will have the option to redeem the May 2022 Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after May 1, 2017, at
the redemption prices (expressed as percentages of principal amount) of 103.688% for the 12-month period beginning on May
1,2017, 102.458% for the 12-month period beginning on May 1, 2018, 101.229% for the 12-month period beginning on May 1,
2019 and 100.000% beginning on May 1, 2020 and at any time thereafter, together with any accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to the date of redemption. In addition, before May 1, 2017, Laredo may redeem all or any part of the May 2022 Notes at a
redemption price equal to the sum of the principal amount thereof, plus a make-whole premium at the redemption date, plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. Laredo may also be required to make an offer to purchase the May
2022 Notes upon a change of control triggering event.

e. January 2019 Notes

On January 20, 2011, the Company completed an offering of $350.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 9 1/2%
senior unsecured notes due 2019 (the "January Notes") and on October 19, 2011, the Company completed an offering of an
additional $200.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 9 1/2% senior unsecured notes due 2019 (the "October Notes" and
together with the January Notes, the "January 2019 Notes"). The January 2019 Notes were due to mature on February 15,2019
and bore an interest rate of 9 1/2% per annum, payable semi-annually, in cash in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each
year. The January 2019 Notes were fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the Guarantors and
certain of the Company's future restricted subsidiaries, subject to certain Releases.

The January 2019 Notes were issued under and were governed by an indenture dated January 20, 2011 (as
supplemented, the "2011 Indenture") among Laredo Inc, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee, and guarantors
named therein. The Indenture contains customary terms, events of default and covenants relating to, among other things, the
incurrence of debt, the payment of or similar restricted payments, the undertaking of transactions with Laredo's unrestricted
affiliates and limitations on asset sales.

On April 6, 2015 (the "Redemption Date"), utilizing a portion of the proceeds from the March 2015 Equity Offering
and the March 2023 Notes offering, the entire $550.0 million outstanding principal amount of the January 2019 Notes was
redeemed at a redemption price of 104.750% of the principal amount of the January 2019 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid
interest up to the Redemption Date. The Company recognized a loss on extinguishment of $31.5 million related to the
difference between the redemption price and the net carrying amount of the extinguished January 2019 Notes.

f- Senior Secured Credit Facility

As of December 31, 2016, the Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (as amended, the "Senior Secured
Credit Facility"), which matures on November 4, 2018, had a maximum credit amount of $2.0 billion, a borrowing base and an
aggregate elected commitment of $815.0 million with $70.0 million outstanding and was subject to an interest rate of 2.31%.
The borrowing base is subject to a semi-annual redetermination occurring by May 1 and November 1 of each year based on the
lenders' evaluation of the Company's oil and natural gas reserves. As defined in the Senior Secured Credit Facility, (i) the
Adjusted Base Rate advances under the facility bear interest payable quarterly at an Adjusted Base Rate plus applicable margin,
which ranges from 0.5% to 1.5%, based on the ratio of outstanding revolving credit to the total commitment under the Senior
Secured Credit Facility; and (ii) the Eurodollar advances under the facility bear interest, at the Company's election, at the end of
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one-month, two-month, three-month, six-month or, to the extent available, 12-month interest periods (and in the case of six-
month and 12-month interest periods, every three months prior to the end of such interest period) at an Adjusted London
Interbank Offered Rate plus an applicable margin, which ranges from 1.5% to 2.5%, based on the ratio of outstanding revolving
credit to the total commitment under the Senior Secured Credit Facility. Laredo is also required to pay an annual commitment
fee on the unused portion of the financial institutions' commitment of 0.375% to 0.5%, based on the ratio of outstanding
revolving credit to the total commitment under the Senior Secured Credit Facility.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility is secured by a first-priority lien on Laredo and the Guarantors' assets (other than
LMS's interest in Medallion (defined below)) and stock, including oil, NGL and natural gas properties, constituting at least 80%
of the present value of the Company's evaluated reserves. Further, the Company is subject to various financial and non-financial
covenants on a consolidated basis, including a current ratio at the end of each calendar quarter, of not less than 1.00 to 1.00. As
defined by the Senior Secured Credit Facility, the current ratio represents the ratio of current assets to current liabilities,
inclusive of available capacity and exclusive of current balances associated with derivative positions. Additionally, at the end of
each calendar quarter, the Company must maintain a ratio of (I) its consolidated net income (loss) (a) plus each of the
following; (i) any provision for (or less any benefit from) income or franchise taxes; (ii) consolidated net interest expense;
(ii1) depletion, depreciation and amortization expense; (iv) exploration expenses; and (v) other non-cash charges, and (b) minus
other non-cash income ("EBITDAX"), as defined in the Senior Secured Credit Facility, to (II) the sum of consolidated net
interest expense plus letter of credit fees of not less than 2.50 to 1.00, in each case for the four quarters then ending. The
Company was in compliance with these covenants for all periods presented.

Additionally, the Senior Secured Credit Facility provides for the issuance of letters of credit, limited to the lesser of
total capacity or $20.0 million. No letters of credit were outstanding as of December 31, 2016 or 2015. See Note 19.a for
discussion of a payment made to the Senior Secured Credit Facility subsequent to December 31, 2016.

g. Fairvalue of debt

The Company has not elected to account for its debt instruments at fair value. The following table presents the
carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's debt as of the periods presented:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Long-term Fair Long-term Fair

(in thousands) debt value debt value
January 2022 NOTES.....cc.eeierieriiiiirieeieeteteee ettt § 450,000 $ 456,382 § 450,000 $ 388,301
MaY 2022 NOES ...ouveeureeieieiiienie ettt ettt sttt sttt seean 500,000 521,413 500,000 460,000
MaATCh 2023 NOLES...c.veuivenieiiieiiietieettetee ettt 350,000 365,649 350,000 301,000
Senior Secured Credit Facility .........ccoovvevievvienieiiiieieceseeeee e 70,000 69,975 135,000 134,993
Total value of debt........ccoooieiiiiiii e $ 1,370,000 §$ 1,413,419 $ 1,435,000 $ 1,284,294

The fair values of the debt outstanding on the January 2022 Notes, the May 2022 Notes and the March 2023 Notes
were determined using the December 31, 2016 and 2015 quoted market price (Level 1) for each respective instrument. The fair
values of the outstanding debt on the Senior Secured Credit Facility as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 were estimated utilizing
pricing models for similar instruments (Level 2). See Note 9 for information about fair value hierarchy levels.
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h. Long-term debt, net

The following table summarizes the net presentation of the Company's long-term debt and debt issuance costs on the
consolidated balance sheets as of the periods presented:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Long-term Debt issuance Long-term Long-term Debt issuance Long-term

(in thousands) debt costs, net debt, net debt costs, net debt, net
January 2022 NOES......vvvrrrverroreere $ 450,000 $§  (4.963) $ 445037 $ 450,000 $  (5939) $ 444,061
May 2022 NOtES....cceerereenieeeerieennenn 500,000 (6,164) 493,836 500,000 (7,066) 492,934
March 2023 NOtes......coovereevrerireeennne 350,000 (4,964) 345,036 350,000 (5,769) 344,231
Senior Secured Credit Facility"......... 70,000 — 70,000 135,000 — 135,000

Total....coooiriirii $ 1,370,000 $§ (16,091) $ 1,353,909 §$ 1,435,000 $ (18,774) § 1,416,226

(1) Debt issuance costs related to our Senior Secured Credit Facility of $2.7 million and $5.2 million as of December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively, are recorded net in "Other assets, net" on the consolidated balance sheets.

Note 6—Employee compensation

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "LTIP"), which provides for the granting of incentive awards in the
form of restricted stock awards, stock option awards, performance share awards, performance unit awards and other awards.
During the year ended December 31, 2016, Laredo's stockholders approved an increase in the maximum number of shares of
Laredo's common stock issuable under the LTIP from 10,000,000 shares to 24,350,000 shares.

The Company recognizes the fair value of stock-based compensation awards expected to vest over the requisite service
period as a charge against earnings, net of amounts capitalized. The Company's stock-based compensation awards are accounted
for as equity instruments and, in prior periods, its performance unit awards were accounted for as liability awards. Stock-based
compensation is included in "General and administrative" in the consolidated statements of operations. The Company capitalizes
a portion of stock-based compensation for employees who are directly involved in the acquisition, exploration or development of
oil and natural gas properties into the full cost pool. Capitalized stock-based compensation is included as an addition to "Oil and
natural gas properties” in the consolidated balance sheets.

a. Restricted stock awards

All service vesting restricted stock awards are treated as issued and outstanding in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. Per the award agreement terms, if an employee terminates employment prior to the restriction lapse date for
reasons other than death or disability, the awarded shares are forfeited and canceled and are no longer considered issued and
outstanding. If the employee's termination of employment is by reason of death or disability, all of the holder's restricted stock
will automatically vest. Historically, restricted stock awards granted to officers and employees vest in a variety of vesting
schedules including (i) 33%, 33% and 34% per year beginning on the first anniversary date of the grant, (ii) 50% in year two and
50% in year three, (iii) fully on the first anniversary of the grant date and (iv) fully on the third anniversary of the grant date.
Restricted stock awards granted to non-employee directors vest fully on the first anniversary of the grant date.
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The following table reflects the restricted stock award activity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016:

Weighted-average

grant date

Restricted fair value

(in thousands, except for weighted-average grant date fair values) stock awards (per award)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 ......c.ooiiiieieieeeeeee e 1,799 $ 19.17
GIANTEA ...t e e et e e et e e et e e sea e e eeeeeeeeareeseeaeeseeaees 1,234 § 25.68
FOTTEItEA. ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt teeseeseeaeereeseeaeene s (148) § 22.56
VESEEA. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ae et eneenens (680) $ 19.13
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 .......c.ooiiiieieieieeeeeeeee e 2,205 $ 22.63
GIANTEA ... et e e e et e et e e e eesea e e e e e e seaeeeeeeaeeeeeeees 1,902 $ 11.98
FOTTEItEA. ...ttt ettt ettt seese et eaeereeseeneeae e (553) § 20.48
VESTEA. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ae et eneenens (1,015) $ 22.32
Outstanding as of December 31, 2015......cc.ooiiiieieieeieeeeeee e 2,539 $ 15.26
GIANTEA ... et e e e et e e et e e et eesea e e e e e eeseeareeeeeaeeeeeaeeas 2982 $ 12.28
FOTTEItEA. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt te e seeaeeseeseereeae s 457) $ 13.95
VESTEA™ ..ot (1,186) $ 16.07
Outstanding as of December 31, 2010, .....c.coiiieierieieieieeeeeeee et 3878 §$ 12.88

(1) The total intrinsic value of vested restricted stock awards for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $7.3 million.

The Company utilizes the closing stock price on the grant date to determine the fair value of service vesting restricted
stock awards. As of December 31, 2016, unrecognized stock-based compensation related to the restricted stock awards expected
to vest was $29.7 million. Such cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.88 years.
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b. Stock option awards

Stock option awards granted under the LTIP vest and are exercisable in four equal installments on each of the four
anniversaries of the grant date. The following table reflects the stock option award activity for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2015 and 2016:

Weighted-average

Weighted-average remaining

(in thousands, except for weighted-average price and weighted-average Stock option price contractual term
remaining contractual term) awards (per option) (years)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 .........ccooviiiiiiiciieieecieeee 1,229 $ 19.32 8.82

GIaANtE ..ottt et er e 336§ 25.60

EXEICISEA ..ottt 95) $ 19.93

Expired or canceled ............cooveeeveioieeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeee e (30) $ 21.15

FOIfEted .....oviiieicecece et (73) $ 19.68
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 .........cccoevievirieiiiiieeeeeeeenns 1,367 $ 20.76 8.17

GIANTEA ...t 632 $ 11.93

EXETCISEA ...t — 3 —

Expired or canceled ...........c.ooovoviovoioeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 82) $ 19.92

FOIfeIted ...c.ooveieiceeeeee e (139) $ 18.17
Outstanding as of December 31, 2015......cccccoviviiiiienieieeeieeeee 1,778  $ 17.86 7.91

GIANTEW ... et 1,016 $ 4.18

EXEICISEA ..ot a7 $ 11.93

Expired or canceled ..........cooveveieiiieiiiiieeeee (109) $ 21.71

FOITRIted ...ttt (298) § 12.49
Outstanding as of December 31, 2016.........cccccveierieviieieeeieeeeee 2,370 $ 12.54 7.71
Vested and exercisable at end of period™..........coooovevveeeeeerreeeee. T 831 $ 19.43 6.25
Expected to vest at end of period®............o.ooveveeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeen. 1,536 § 8.78 8.51

(1) The vested and exercisable stock option awards as of December 31, 2016 had $0.3 million aggregate intrinsic value.

(2) The stock option awards expected to vest as of December 31, 2016 had $10.0 million aggregate intrinsic value.

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock option awards and is
recognizing the associated expense on a straight-line basis over the four-year requisite service period of the awards. Determining
the fair value of equity-based awards requires judgment, including estimating the expected term that stock option awards will be
outstanding prior to exercise and the associated volatility. As of December 31, 2016, unrecognized stock-based compensation
related to stock option awards expected to vest was $9.8 million. Such cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average
period of 2.76 years.
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The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock option awards granted during the period are as follows:

May 25, April 1, February 27, February 27,
2016 2016 2015 2014
Risk-free interest rate") .........c...cooovvorrveriieneieseeses e 1.58% 1.44% 1.70% 1.88%
Expected option Iife® ............cooooooieoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 6.25 years 6.25 years 6.25 years 6.25 years
Expected volatility™............co.ooviiieeeeeee e 61.94% 61.34% 52.59% 53.21%
Fair value per stock option award ...............ccocevvveierecereeerene, $ 975 $ 444 % 6.15 § 13.41

(1) U.S. Treasury yields as of the grant date were utilized for the risk-free interest rate assumption, correlating the treasury
yield terms to the expected life of the stock option award.

(2) As the Company had limited or no exercise history at the time of valuation relating to terminations and modifications,
expected stock option award life assumptions were developed using the simplified method in accordance with GAAP.

(3) The Company utilized its own volatility in order to develop the expected volatility for the May 25, 2016, April 1, 2016
and February 27, 2015 grants. The February 27, 2014 grant utilized a peer historical look-back, which was weighted
with the Company's own volatility, in order to develop the expected volatility.

In accordance with the LTIP and stock option agreement, the stock option awards granted will become exercisable in
accordance with the following schedule based upon the number of full years of the optionee's continuous employment or service
with the Company, following the date of grant:

Incremental percentage of Cumulative percentage of

Full years of continuous employment option exercisable option exercisable
Less than 0N .........civiiirieiieiee e —% —%
D18 1.ttt et bttt sttt ean 25% 25%
WO ettt ettt 25% 50%
TRICE. ...ttt ettt sttt nen 25% 75%
FOUT Lttt 25% 100%

No shares of common stock may be purchased unless the optionee has remained in continuous employment with the
Company for one year from the grant date. Unless terminated sooner, the stock option award will expire if and to the extent it is
not exercised within 10 years from the grant date. The unvested portion of a stock option award shall expire upon termination of
employment, and the vested portion of a stock option award shall remain exercisable for (i) one year following termination of
employment by reason of the holder's death or disability, but not later than the expiration of the option period, or (ii) 90 days
following termination of employment for any reason other than the holder's death or disability, and other than the holder's
termination of employment for cause. Both the unvested and the vested but unexercised portion of a stock option award shall
expire upon the termination of the option holder's employment or service by the Company for cause.

c. Performance share awards

The performance share awards granted to management on May 25, 2016 and April 1, 2016 (collectively the "2016
Performance Share Awards"), on February 27, 2015 (the "2015 Performance Share Awards") and on February 27, 2014 (the
"2014 Performance Share Awards") are subject to a combination of market and service vesting criteria. A Monte Carlo
simulation prepared by an independent third party was utilized to determine the grant date fair value of these awards. The
Company has determined these awards are equity awards and recognizes the associated expense on a straight-line basis over the
three-year requisite service period of the awards. These awards will be settled, if at all, in stock at the end of the requisite service
period based on the achievement of certain performance criteria.

The 1,670,577 outstanding 2016 Performance Share Awards have a performance period of January 1, 2016 to December
31, 2018, and any shares earned under such awards are expected to be issued in the first quarter of 2019 if the performance
criteria are met. The 454,164 outstanding 2015 Performance Share Awards have a performance period of January 1, 2015 to
December 31, 2017, and any shares earned under such awards are expected to be issued in the first quarter of 2018 if the
performance criteria are met. The 200,516 outstanding 2014 Performance Share Awards had a performance period of January 1,
2014 to December 31, 2016 and, as their performance criteria were satisfied, 75% of the shares will be issued during the first
quarter of 2017 if the February 27, 2017 vesting criteria is satisfied.
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The following table reflects the performance share award activity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and

2016:
Performance Weighted-average

share grant date fair value

(in thousands, except for weighted-average grant date fair values) awards (per award)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 .......ooiiiiiiieeeeeee e — 3 —
GIANTEA. .. ettt ettt ettt b e e te e b e e at e beesbeeteesbeesseeseesseeseesbeesnas 272 $ 28.56
FOTTRILEA . ....vovtetieietiiee ettt ettt ettt b e s et et s et s eseenenis — 3 —
VESTEA. ittt ettt ettt ettt b ettt ettt st beneenens — —
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 .......cccoiiiiiiieriieieeee e 272§ 28.56
GIANLEM. ....ceeevieeieticieeee ettt ettt ettt b bbbt e s essess e s s e st eseesseseeseeseeseeseeseenas 602 $ 16.23
FOITEItEA ...ttt ettt et ae e eaeenas — 3 —
VESTEA. .. ettt ettt ettt ettt et et te b e e ta e aa et e ereebeeneeereenne — 3 —
Outstanding as of December 31, 2015 ....cc.ooiiiiiiiiiiiieieeee e 874 $ 20.06
(2 a1 1<« PR 1,801 $ 17.71
FOTTRILEA . ....vovtieetieeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt (350) $ 19.34
VESEEA. 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt re ettt teereeaeeteereere s — 3 —
Outstanding as of December 31, 2016 .......ccooeieiieiieeieeeeeeeeee e 2,325 §$ 18.35

As of December 31, 2016, unrecognized stock-based compensation related to the performance share awards expected to
vest was $26.2 million. Such cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.03 years.

The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the performance share awards granted are as follows:

May 25, April 1, February 27, February 27,
2016 2016 2015 2014
Risk-free rate!........cooorieie s 1.02% 0.87% 0.95% 0.63%
Dividend yield.........coviiiiriiiniiinieincccee e —% —% —% —%
Expected volatility® ...........ooooveoiveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 74.73% 71.54% 53.78% 38.21%
Laredo stock closing price as of the grant date........................... $ 1236  $ 771 % 1193 § 25.60
Fair value per performance share..............ccocoevveveviiieiienieeennn, $ 17.86  $ 983 § 1623 S 28.56

(1) The risk-free rate was derived using a term-matched zero-coupon yield derived from the U.S. Treasury constant
maturities yield curve on the grant date.

(2) The Company utilized its own historical volatility over a look-back period equal to the length of the remaining
performance period from the grant date in order to develop the expected volatility for these grants.

d. Stock-based compensation expense
The following has been recorded to stock-based compensation expense for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Restricted stock award COMPENSAtION .............cceeuiivieriiriireerieteeieeeeereereereere e $ 21,609 $ 17,534 $ 21,982
Stock option award COMPENSALION..........coeveieieieierieiiee et ere ettt 4,519 4,074 3,639
Restricted performance share award cOmpensation ..........ccocceevveevereerienveneeennenne 9,112 5,222 2,108
Total stock-based COMPENSALION, GLOSS......c.eevvieieriierierriereeierteereeeesieeieseeenees 35,240 26,830 27,729
Less amounts capitalized in oil and natural gas properties .............ccceeveevervrennnnne. (6,011) (2,321) (4,650)
Total stock-based compensation, net of amounts capitalized...............cevveneeee. $ 29229 $ 24,509 $ 23,079

e. Performance unit awards

The performance unit awards issued to management on February 15,2013 (the "2013 Performance Unit Awards") and
on February 3, 2012 (the "2012 Performance Unit Awards") were subject to a combination of market and service vesting criteria.
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These awards were accounted for as liability awards as they were settled in cash at the end of the requisite service period based
on the achievement of certain performance criteria. A Monte Carlo simulation prepared by an independent third party was
utilized to determine the fair values of these awards at the grant date and to re-measure the fair values at the end of each
reporting period until settlement in accordance with GAAP. The volatility criteria utilized in the Monte Carlo simulation was
based on the volatility of the Company's stock price and the stock price volatilities of a group of peer companies defined in each
respective award agreement. The liability and related compensation expense of these awards for each period was recognized by
dividing the fair value of the total liability by the requisite service period and recording the pro rata share for the period for
which service had already been provided.

The 44,481 settled 2013 Performance Unit Awards had a performance period of January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2015
and, as their performance criteria were satisfied, they were paid at $143.75 per unit during the first quarter of 2016. The 27,381
settled 2012 Performance Unit Awards had a performance period of January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014 and, as their
performance criteria were satisfied, they were paid at $100.00 per unit during the first quarter of 2015. The liability related to the
2013 Performance Unit Awards as of December 31, 2015 was $6.4 million and represents the cash payment made in the first
quarter of 2016.

The following has been recorded to performance unit award compensation expense for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2015 2014

2013 Performance Unit Award cOmpensation EXPENSE...........erreruereerrereerreereesseenseseessesssesseens $ 4,081 $ 409

2012 Performance Unit Award cOmpensation EXPENSE..........uervrerreereerueereerreereesreesseeeesseesesseens — 192
Total performance unit award cCOMPeNSation EXPENSE..........eevvererrerreererreerererrenressessensessensennes $ 4,081 $ 601

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, compensation expense for the performance unit awards is recognized
in "General and administrative" in the Company's consolidated statements of operations, and as of December 31, 2015, the
corresponding liability is included in "Other current liabilities" on the consolidated balance sheets.

S Defined contribution plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribution plan for the benefit of substantially all employees at the date of
hire. The plan allows eligible employees to make pre-tax and after-tax contributions up to 100% of their annual compensation,
not to exceed annual limits established by the federal government. The Company makes matching contributions of up to 6% of
an employee's compensation and may make additional discretionary contributions for eligible employees. Employees are 100%
vested in the employer contributions upon receipt.

The following table presents the cost recognized for the Company's defined contribution plan for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

CONIIIDULIONS ...t et ettt et s e et e et e s eeeeateeeaeesaeesaeean $ 1,780 $ 1,847 § 2,202

Note 7—Income taxes

The Company is subject to federal and state income taxes and the Texas franchise tax. Income tax benefit (expense) for
the periods presented consisted of the following:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Current taxes:
FEAEIAL ..ottt $ — $ — 3 —
I 11 USSP — — —
Deferred taxes:
FOARTAL.....eiiiiiciieieee ettt ettt sttt sne e eneenen — 152,590 (147,445)
SEALC ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et ettt et r et e ae et e b e eaeebe et e ebeebeesesaebesenaens — 24,355 (16,841)
Income tax benefit (EXPENSE).......ccveveiveueiveeeerieeeeeeeceeee ettt $ — $ 176,945 $ (164,286)
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Income tax benefit (expense) differed from amounts computed by applying the applicable federal income tax rate of
35% for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 to pre-tax earnings as a result of the following:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Income tax benefit (expense) computed by applying the statutory rate..................... $ 91,259 $ 835408 $ (150,450)
Increase in deferred tax valuation alloWance .............ccoceeveeveeienieieiiesieeeeie e (86,569) (668,702) (1,139)
Stock-based compensation tax defiCIeNnCY .........ccovevvieieviieiiiieieciecie e (4,144) (3,274) (266)
State income tax and increase in valuation allowance ............c..ccoceevreeirererieniennns (370) 13,975 (11,099)
Non-deductible stock-based compensation .............ceevverueeiereecienienieeieseeieeeeee e — (256) (509)
OPNET TEEIMS ...ttt ettt sttt ettt ettt be st et eseebens et et eseseseeseneas (176) (2006) (823)
Income tax benefit (EXPENSE) .....evverveierieieieieieieteiete ettt eens $ — $ 176,945 $§ (164,286)

The effective tax rate for the Company's operations was 0%, 7% and 38% for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company's effective tax rate is affected by changes in valuation allowances, recurring
permanent differences and by discrete items that may occur in any given year, but are not consistent from year to year.

A valuation allowance is established to reduce deferred tax assets if it is determined that it is more likely than not that
the related tax benefit will not be realized. On a quarterly basis, management evaluates the need for and adequacy of valuation
allowances based on the expected realizability of the deferred tax assets and adjusts the amount of such allowances, if
necessary. During the year ended December 31, 2016, in evaluating whether it was more likely than not that the Company’s net
deferred tax assets were realizable through future net income, management considered all available positive and negative
evidence, including (i) its earnings history, (ii) its ability to recover net operating loss carry-forwards, (iii) the existence of
significant proved oil, NGL and natural gas reserves, (iv) its ability to use tax planning strategies, (v) its current price protection
utilizing oil, NGL and natural gas hedges, (vi) its future revenue and operating cost projections and (vii) the current market
prices for oil, NGL and natural gas. Based on all the evidence available, during the year ended December 31, 2016,
management determined it was more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets were not realizable, therefore a valuation
allowance of $87.5 million was recorded. During the year ended December 31, 2015, a valuation allowance of $676.0 million
was recorded. The Company maintains a valuation allowance to reduce certain deferred tax assets to amounts that are more
likely than not to be realized. As of December 31, 2016, a total valuation allowance of $764.8 million has been recorded against
the deferred tax asset.

The Company early-adopted a new accounting standard that simplified the accounting for stock-based compensation.
As a result, the Company recorded a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of January 1, 2016 for all windfall tax
benefits that were not previously recognized because the related tax deduction had not reduced current taxes payable. The
resulting deferred tax asset was assessed for realizability in accordance with GAAP. Due to the Company's valuation allowance
position, a cumulative-effect adjustment was recorded to retained earnings as of January 1, 2016, and therefore, the net effect of
the early adoption of this new accounting standard was zero. See Note 18 for additional discussion of the early adoption of this
new accounting standard.

The following table presents significant components of the Company's net deferred tax asset as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2016 2015
Net operating 108S Carry-fOrWard .............cooivuiviiiiiiiicieieeeeee ettt $ 573,521 § 479,022
Oil and natural gas properties, midstream service assets and other fixed assets ............ccccevvevuenennnn 186,473 306,997
Equity MEthOd INVESTEE ......c.vevieiieiieiieiieiieieit ettt ettt st et sae et sae b besse b e s e ssebessesensens (24,293) (31,711)
Stock-based COMPENSATION .....c.vieuiireieiieiesteeie ettt ste et ebe et e steebesseeseessesseessesssesseessesseesesssenseas 15,639 11,597
ACCTUEA DOMUS ... ettt et e e et e ettt e e et e e eeateeeesaeeseseseeesaeesannneeaas 8,834 4,763
Materials and suppli€S IMPAITMENT .........c.eecvieuieriiiieitieteeie ettt ettt ete et eae e ereebeereeeseessesseesseeeas 1,982 1,647
CaPItAlIZEA INTETEST ... euvieiiiiieieiei ettt ettt ettt et teeteeteeseesesbeesesbesbeesessebessessessesessensensas 1,767 2,525
DIEIIVALIVES .o e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeseeraees 150 (98,675)
ONCT ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et e et e et et et et et et eseans 743 1,173
Net deferred tax asset before valuation alloWanCe .............occueveveuieiieiiiieeiee e 764,816 677,338
ValUuation AllOWAINCE.........ccviiuiiiiitiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e eaeeeveeseeaseeaeeaseeaeenseenis (764,816) (677,338)
Net defErTed tAX @SSEL.......icveiieeeieieeieteeeet ettt ettt ettt ettt ee st as et ae s e esene s $ — $ —
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The following presents the Company's federal net operating loss carry-forwards and their applicable expiration dates
as of the period presented:

(in thousands) December 31, 2016
2020ttt ettt ettt ettt e b e e at e heeateehe e bt eRte st en s e estenseeRte Rt enbeeReenbees s e st enbe et teseenteeseenseeneenseenean $ 2,741
20027 ettt ettt e et e e ettt b teanh e e aaeeabeeasteenteenseeanteesteeabeetteenteeaseetteenseeanneeteeenneennaeeseeans 38,651
2028 ettt ettt et ettt ae bt e ettt eaae et eeatteenhaeatbeetteeabeeatseantaeeab e e st e entteesseentteanbeeenaeenbeeesseennseenseeenreennes 228,661
2029, ettt h ettt et h et eat et e ea b e eh e ea bt eat ekt e n bRt en b e en e e bt eate ekt e bt ente bt enteeneenteeneas 101,932
2030ttt ettt ettt e te e be et e e b e st e b e enteeheea bt eRbe s e en s e eRtenbeeRte R e enbeeReenbeen s e beenteettenbeenseeseenseeneenteenean 80,963
TRETEATIET ...ttt ettt e et e e et e e et e e e et et e e eaae e e eat e e e ettt e eanaeeeeaaeeeaateeeananeeanes 1,180,937

TOUAL. ettt ettt ettt et e ekt e bttt et e e b e ete e b e etb e he e s b e ett e b e ets e beeabeett e beeab e teeaseetsenbeerbeeteenseessenreenseeteenns $ 1,633,885

The Company had federal net operating loss carry-forwards totaling $1.6 billion and state of Oklahoma net operating
loss carry-forwards totaling $42.6 million as of December 31, 2016. These carry-forwards begin expiring in 2026. As of
December 31, 2016, the Company believes a portion of the net operating loss carry-forwards are not fully realizable. The
Company considered all available evidence, both positive and negative, in determining whether, based on the weight of that
evidence, a valuation allowance was needed. Such consideration included projected future cash flows from its oil, NGL and
natural gas reserves (including the timing of those cash flows), the reversal of deferred tax liabilities recorded as of December
31, 2016, the Company's ability to capitalize intangible drilling costs, rather than expensing these costs in order to prevent an
operating loss carry-forward from expiring unused, and future projections of Oklahoma sourced income.

The Company files a single return. The Company's income tax returns for the years 2013 through 2016 remain open
and subject to examination by federal tax authorities and/or the tax authorities in Oklahoma and Texas, which are the
jurisdictions where the Company has or had operations. Additionally, the statute of limitations for examination of federal net
operating loss carry-forwards typically does not begin to run until the year the attribute is utilized in a tax return. See Note 2.s
for further discussion of accounting policies regarding income taxes.

Note 8—Derivatives
a. Commodity derivatives

The Company engages in derivative transactions such as puts, swaps, collars and, in prior periods, basis swaps to
hedge price risks due to unfavorable changes in oil, NGL and natural gas prices related to its production. As of December 31,
2016, the Company had 20 open derivative contracts with financial institutions that extend from January 2017 to December
2018. None of these contracts were designated as hedges for accounting purposes. The contracts are recorded at fair value on
the consolidated balance sheets and gains and losses are recognized in earnings. Gains and losses on derivatives are reported on
the consolidated statements of operations on the "Gain (loss) on derivatives, net" line item.

Each put transaction has an established floor price. The Company pays the counterparty a premium, which can be
deferred until settlement, to enter into the put transaction. When the settlement price is below the floor price, the counterparty
pays the Company an amount equal to the difference between the settlement price and the fixed price multiplied by the hedged
contract volume. When the settlement price is above the floor price, the put option expires.

Each swap transaction has an established fixed price. When the settlement price is below the fixed price, the
counterparty pays the Company an amount equal to the difference between the settlement price and the fixed price multiplied
by the hedged contract volume. When the settlement price is above the fixed price, the Company pays its counterparty an
amount equal to the difference between the settlement price and the fixed price multiplied by the hedged contract volume.

Each collar transaction has an established price floor and ceiling. When the settlement price is below the price floor
established by these collars, the Company receives an amount from its counterparty equal to the difference between the
settlement price and the price floor multiplied by the hedged contract volume. When the settlement price is above the price
ceiling established by these collars, the Company pays its counterparty an amount equal to the difference between the
settlement price and the price ceiling multiplied by the hedged contract volume.

In prior years, the oil basis swap transactions had an established fixed basis differential. The Company's oil basis
swaps' differential was between the West Texas Intermediate-Argus Americas Crude (Midland) ("WTI Midland") index crude
oil price and the West Texas Intermediate NYMEX ("WTI NYMEX") index crude oil price. When the WTI NYMEX price less
the fixed basis differential was greater than the actual WTI Midland price, the difference multiplied by the hedged contract
volume was paid to the Company by the counterparty. When the WTI NYMEX price less the fixed basis differential was less
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than the actual WTI Midland price, the difference multiplied by the hedged contract volume was paid by the Company to the
counterparty.

The Company's oil derivatives are settled based on the month's average daily NYMEX index price for the First Nearby
Month of the West Texas Intermediate Light Sweet Crude Oil Futures Contract. The Company's NGL derivatives are settled
based on the month's average daily OPIS index price for Mont Belvieu Purity Ethane and TET Propane. The Company's natural
gas derivatives are settled based on the Inside FERC index price for West Texas Waha for the calculation period.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company successfully completed a hedge restructuring by early
terminating the floors of certain derivative contract collars that resulted in a termination amount of $80.0 million, which was
settled in full by applying the proceeds to prepay the premiums on two new derivatives entered into during the restructuring.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the following derivatives were terminated:

Aggregate Floor price
volumes (Bbl) ($/Bbl) Contract period
Oil:
Put portion of the associated collars ...........ccceeevevueeeerreennennen. 2,263,000 $ 80.00 January 2017 - December 2017
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the following derivatives were entered into:
Aggregate
volumes” Floor price®  Ceiling price® Contract period
0il:?
PUb.cii 600,000 $ 40.00 $ — May 2016 - December 2016
PUE™ o 2,263,000 $ 60.00 $ —  January 2017 - December 2017
SWAD et 1,003,750 $ 5190 § 51.90 January 2017 - December 2017
SWAD ettt 1,003,750 $ 51.17  $ 51.17 January 2017 - December 2017
COlIAT .t 1,168,000 $ 50.00 $ 60.75  January 2017 - December 2017
PUE e 2,098,750 $ 60.00 $ —  January 2017 - December 2018
SWAD ettt 1,095,000 $ 5212 $ 52.12 January 2018 - December 2018
NGL:
Swap - Ethane.........cccoceeeeivieiieieieieeeee 444,000 $ 1124 § 11.24  January 2017 - December 2017
Swap - Propane.........cceceeveeeeeieeieeieee 375,000 $ 2226 % 22.26  January 2017 - December 2017
Natural gas:©
PUL i 8,040,000 $ 2.50 $ — January 2017 - December 2017
COlIAT ..o 5,256,000 $ 2.50 % 3.05 January 2017 - December 2017
COlAT i 3,723,000 $ 3.00 $ 3.54 January 2017 - December 2017
COlAT e 4,562,500 $ 3.00 $ 3.55 January 2017 - December 2017
PUL e 8,220,000 $ 250 $ —  January 2018 - December 2018
COlIAT it 4,635,500 $ 250 % 3.60 January 2018 - December 2018

(1) Oil and NGL are in Bbl and natural gas is in MMBtu.
(2) Oil and NGL are in $/Bbl and natural gas is in $/MMBtu.
(3) There were $2.9 million in deferred premiums associated with these contracts upon inception.

(4) As part of the Company's hedge restructuring, this put replaced the early terminated put portion of the restructured
derivative contract collars. A premium of $40.0 million was paid at contract inception.

(5) As part of the Company's hedge restructuring, a premium of $40.0 million was paid at contract inception.

(6) There were $5.1 million in deferred premiums associated with these contracts upon inception.
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During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company unwound a physical commodity contract and the associated
oil basis swap financial derivative contract that hedged the differential between the Light Louisiana Sweet Argus and the Brent
International Petroleum Exchange index oil prices. Prior to its unwind, the physical commodity contract qualified to be scoped
out of mark-to-market accounting in accordance with the normal purchase and normal sale scope exemption. Once modified to
settle financially in the unwind agreement, the contract ceased to qualify for the normal purchase and normal sale scope
exemption, therefore requiring it to be marked-to-market. The Company received net proceeds of $76.7 million from the early
termination of these contracts. The Company agreed to settle the contracts early due to the counterparty's decision to exit the
physical commodity trading business.

The following represents cash settlements received for derivatives, net for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

Cash settlements received for matured derivatives, Nt .........cocovoveverevererennn. $ 195,281 $§ 255281 $ 28,241

Cash settlements received for early terminations of derivatives, net? 80,000 — 76,660
Cash settlements received for derivatives, Net..........c...ocvevveeeeeicieeeieceneeenen. $ 275281 $ 255,281 $ 104,901

(1) The settlement amount does not include premiums paid attributable to contracts that matured during the respective
period.

(2) The settlement amount for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes $4.0 million in deferred premiums that were
settled net with the early terminated contracts from which they derive.
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The following table summarizes open positions as of December 31, 2016, and represents, as of such date, derivatives
in place through December 2018 on annual production volumes:

Year 2017 Year 2018
Oil positions:
Puts:
Hedged vOIUME (BDBI) .....ooviiiiiiiciiceeeeee ettt et ev e et ve s 1,049,375 1,049,375
Weighted-average price ($/BDL) ......ccuioiiiiiiiiiieieieieeeeeee e $ 60.00 § 60.00
Swaps:
Hedged vOlume (BDL) ......oiouiieiiieiiieie ettt 2,007,500 1,095,000
Weighted-average price ($/BDL) ......cc.oouiiviiuiieiieieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et $ 51.54  § 52.12
Collars:
Hedged vOIUME (BDBI) .....coviiiiiiicieeieiecet ettt ebeennens 3,796,000 —
Weighted-average floor price ($/BDB1)........c.ccuiiviiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeee e $ 5692 § —
Weighted-average ceiling price ($/BDI) .......o.ovviiioiioiiieceeeceeeeeeeeeeee e $ 86.00 $ —
Totals:
Total volume hedged with floor price (BDL)........c.cocueviieieiiiiiiieieceecesee e 6,852,875 2,144,375
Weighted-average floor price (3/Bb)........c.cviviiouieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 5582 $ 55.98
Total volume hedged with ceiling price (Bbl).........ccoveiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeicececeee e 5,803,500 1,095,000
Weighted-average ceiling price ($/BDL) ........coovieviieiiieiiieiiieiiieeeeeer et $ 74.08 § 52.12
NGL positions:
Swaps - Ethane:
Hedged vOIUME (BDBI) .....ooviiiiiiiieiiceeeeeee ettt ettt ev et veennan 444,000 —
Weighted-average price ($/BDL) ......cciciiiiiiriiiiiiieieieeee e $ 1124 $ —
Swaps - Propane:
Hedged vOIUME (BDBI) .....coviiiiiiieiiceceeee ettt et ae e esbeennens 375,000 —
Weighted-average price ($/BDL) .......c.ooviiuiiuiiiiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeete s $ 2226 $ —
Totals:
Total volume hedged with floor price (BDL)........c.oovueviirieniiiiiiieieceeeeeee e 819,000 —
Total volume hedged with ceiling price (Bbl).........cccoieierieiiiieiieieeeeeseee e 819,000 —
Natural gas positions:
Puts:
Hedged volume (IMMBEU) .......cuiiiiiieiiiee ettt 8,040,000 8,220,000
Weighted-average price ($/MMBIU) .........c.ciiuiieiieetceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 250 § 2.50
Collars:
Hedged volume (IMMBIEU) .......ceoiiiiiiiiiciecieciecie ettt ene s s e 19,016,500 4,635,500
Weighted-average floor price (3/MMBIU) ........cocivvoviieeiieeiieeiceeeeeeeeteee et $ 2.86 $ 2.50
Weighted-average ceiling price ($/MMBIU) .........oovouieevieeeeieeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 354§ 3.60
Totals:
Total volumed hedged with floor price (MMBU).........cooviiiiiiiiieieieceeee e 27,056,500 12,855,500
Weighted-average floor price (3/MMBIU) .......ccocovveriieriieeicieeieeeeeeeeeteee et $ 275§ 2.50
Total volume hedged with ceiling price (MMBIW).........ccoveiiiieriieieecieceee e 19,016,500 4,635,500
Weighted-average ceiling price ($/MMBIW) ......c.coooviiviiiiiiiieceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 354 § 3.60

b. Balance sheet presentation

In accordance with the Company's standard practice, its derivatives are subject to counterparty netting under
agreements governing such derivatives. The Company's oil, NGL and natural gas derivatives are presented on a net basis as
"Derivatives" on the consolidated balance sheets. See Note 9.a for a summary of the fair value of derivatives on a gross basis.
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By using derivatives to hedge exposures to changes in commodity prices, the Company exposes itself to credit risk and
market risk. For the Company, market risk is the exposure to changes in the market price of oil, NGL and natural gas, which are
subject to fluctuations from a variety of factors, including changes in supply and demand. Credit risk is the failure of the
counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the
counterparty owes the Company, thereby creating credit risk. The Company's counterparties are participants in the Senior
Secured Credit Facility, which is secured by the Company's oil, NGL and natural gas reserves; therefore, the Company is not
required to post any collateral. The Company does not require collateral from its derivative counterparties. The Company
minimizes the credit risk in derivatives by: (i) limiting its exposure to any single counterparty, (ii) entering into derivatives only
with counterparties that meet the Company's minimum credit quality standard or have a guarantee from an affiliate that meets
the Company's minimum credit quality standard and (iii) monitoring the creditworthiness of the Company's counterparties on
an ongoing basis.

Note 9—Fair value measurements

The Company accounts for its oil, NGL and natural gas derivatives at fair value. The fair value of derivatives is
determined utilizing pricing models for similar instruments. The models use a variety of techniques to arrive at fair value,
including quotes and pricing analysis. Inputs to the pricing models include publicly available prices and forward curves
generated from a compilation of data gathered from third parties.

The Company has categorized its assets and liabilities measured at fair value, based on the priority of inputs to the
valuation technique, into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets are categorized based on inputs to the
valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1— Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value for which values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in an active market that management has the ability to access. Active markets are considered
to be those in which transactions for the assets or liabilities occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2— Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value for which values are based on quoted prices in markets that are not
active or model inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the assets
or liabilities. Substantially all of these inputs are observable in the marketplace throughout the full term of the
price risk management instrument and can be derived from observable data or supported by observable levels at
which transactions are executed in the marketplace.

Level 3— Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value for which values are based on prices or valuation techniques that
require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement. Unobservable
inputs are not corroborated by market data. These inputs reflect management's own assumptions about the
assumptions a market participant would use in pricing the asset or liability.

When the inputs used to measure fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy in a liquid environment, the
level within which the fair value measurement is categorized is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. The Company conducts a review of fair value hierarchy classifications on an annual basis.
Changes in the observability of valuation inputs may result in a reclassification for certain financial assets or liabilities.
Transfers between fair value hierarchy levels are recognized and reported in the period in which the transfer occurred. No
transfers between fair value hierarchy levels occurred during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 or 2014.
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a. Fair value measurement on a recurring basis

The following tables summarize the Company's fair value hierarchy by commodity on a gross basis and the net
presentation on the consolidated balance sheets for derivative assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as
of the periods presented:

Net fair value
presented on the

Total gross Amounts consolidated
(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fair value offset balance sheets
As of December 31, 2016:
Assets
Current:
Oil derivatives .........cocoeeeveeeeeennnn. $ — $ 22527 §$ — $ 22527 $% — S 22,527
NGL derivatives .........ccoceeeveveerenenene. — — — — — —
Natural gas derivatives ...........c.......... — 270 — 270 (270) —
Oil deferred premiums....................... — — — — (1,580) (1,580)
Natural gas deferred premiums ......... — — — — — —
Noncurrent:
Oil derivatives ........ccccceeevererencnnnn $ — § 8718 § — § 8718 § — § 8,718
NGL derivatives ......c.cccceeeereeenenncnne. — — — — — —
Natural gas derivatives ...................... — 1,377 — 1,377 (1,377) —

Oil deferred premiums....................... — — — — — —

Natural gas deferred premiums ......... — — — — — —

Liabilities
Current:
Oil derivatives .........ccoccoeeveveveevennnne. $ — $ (9,789) % — $ (9,789) % — $ (9,789)
NGL derivatives ..........ccceveveeeeeneennns — (2,803) — (2,803) — (2,803)
Natural gas derivatives ...................... — (3,639) — (3,639) 270 (3,369)
Oil deferred premiums....................... — — (3,569) (3,569) 1,580 (1,989)
Natural gas deferred premiums ......... — — (3,043) (3,043) — (3,043)
Noncurrent:
Oil derivatives ........cccoeveereeenecnene, $ — § 4552 % — $ 4552) % — 8§ (4,552)
NGL derivatives .........ccceevevueeevenneennn. — — — — — —
Natural gas derivatives ...................... — (133) — (133) 1,377 1,244
Oil deferred premiums.............c........ — — — — — —
Natural gas deferred premiums ......... — — (2,386) (2,386) — (2,386)
Net derivative position................... $ — $ 11,976 $ (8,998) $§ 2978 $ — 3 2,978
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Net fair value

presented on the
Total gross Amounts consolidated

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fair value offset balance sheets

As of December 31, 2015:
Assets

Current:
Oil derivativesS ........oveeveeveeeeeeeeeeeen, $ — $194940 $ — $194940 $ — 3 194,940
Natural gas derivatives...................... — 13,166 — 13,166 — 13,166
Oil deferred premiums ...................... — — — — (9,301) (9,301)
Natural gas deferred premiums......... — — — — — —
Noncurrent:
Oil derivatives .......cocoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenen. $ — $ 80302 $ — $ 80302 $ — 3 80,302
Natural gas derivatives...................... — 2,459 — 2,459 — 2,459
Oil deferred premiums ...................... — — — — (4,877) (4,877)
Natural gas deferred premiums......... — — — — (441) (441)
Liabilities
Current:
Oil derivatives .........ocovuvrvceccecnnn. $ — — 8 — 8 — § — § —
Natural gas derivatives...................... — — — — — —
Oil deferred premiums ...................... — — (9,301) (9,301) 9,301 —
Natural gas deferred premiums......... — — — — — —
Noncurrent:
Oil derivatives..........cccoveeereenrnnns $ — 8 — § — $ — 8 — $ —
Natural gas derivatives...................... — — — — — —
Oil deferred premiums ...................... — — (4,877) (4,877) 4,877 —
Natural gas deferred premiums......... — — (441) (441) 441 —
Net derivative position .................. $ — $290,867 $ (14,619) $ 276,248 $ — 3 276,248

These items are included as "Derivatives" on the consolidated balance sheets. Significant Level 2 assumptions
associated with the calculation of discounted cash flows used in the mark-to-market analysis of derivatives include each
derivative contract's corresponding commodity index price, appropriate risk-adjusted discount rates and other relevant data.

The Company's deferred premiums associated with its derivative contracts are categorized as Level 3, as the Company
utilizes a net present value calculation to determine the valuation. They are considered to be measured on a recurring basis as
the derivative contracts they derive from are measured on a recurring basis. As derivative contracts containing deferred
premiums are entered into, the Company discounts the associated deferred premium to its net present value at the contract trade
date, using the Senior Secured Credit Facility rate at the trade date (historical input rates range from 1.69% to 3.56%), and then
records the change in net present value to interest expense over the period from trade until the final settlement date at the end of
the contract. After this initial valuation, the net present value of each deferred premium is not adjusted; therefore, significant
increases (decreases) in the Senior Secured Credit Facility rate would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value
measurement for each new contract entered into that contained a deferred premium; however, the valuation for the deferred
premiums already recorded would remain unaffected. While the Company believes the sources utilized to arrive at the fair
value estimates are reliable, different sources or methods could have yielded different fair value estimates; therefore, on a
quarterly basis, the valuation is compared to counterparty valuations and a third-party valuation of the deferred premiums for
reasonableness.

The following table presents actual cash payments required for deferred premiums for the calendar years presented:

(in thousands) December 31, 2016
20 L7 bt h et h bt a et bt e bt h e e bt e a e e bt ea bt bt e b e h b e bt e at e eh e e bt e st e bt et e bt enbeeeee $ 6,442
2018 ettt h sttt h e h e h e eh e bbbt bt b e h e bbbt bt sae bt naen 2,683

e 21 OO ROTRRTRPRROPOt $ 9,125
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A summary of the changes in assets classified as Level 3 measurements for the periods presented are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Balance of Level 3 at beginning of period ............ccccoovevevivieeieieieeeeeeeeeeeeee $ (14619) $ (9,285 $ (12,684)
Change in net present value of derivative deferred premiums............cceveeverieeienen. (232) (203) (220)
Total purchases and settlements:
PUICRASES ...ttt sttt (7,715) (10,298) (3,800)
SEtIEMENES'!) ... 13,568 5,167 7,419
Balance of Level 3 at end of period............oovevvveiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $  (8998) $ (14,619) $  (9,285)

(1) The amount for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes $3.9 million that represents the present value of deferred
premiums settled in the Company's restructuring upon their early termination.

b. Fair value measurement on a nonrecurring basis

The Company accounts for the impairment of long-lived assets, if any, at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. For
purposes of fair value measurement, it was determined that the impairment of long-lived assets is classified as Level 3, based
on the use of internally developed cash flow models. The Company accounts for the impairment of inventory, if any, at lower of
cost or NRV on a nonrecurring basis. For purposes of market measurement, it was determined that the impairment of inventory
is classified as Level 2, based on the use of a replacement cost approach. See Note 2.j for discussion regarding the Company's
impairment of (i) materials and supplies for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, (ii) line-fill for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 and (iii) other fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The accounting policies for impairment of oil and natural gas properties are discussed in Note 2.g. Significant inputs
included in the calculation of discounted cash flows used in the impairment analysis include the Company's estimate of
operating and development costs, anticipated production of evaluated reserves and other relevant data. See Note 2.g for
discussion regarding the prices used in the calculation of discounted cash flows.

The Company accounts for acquisitions of evaluated and unevaluated oil and natural gas properties under the
acquisition method of accounting. Accordingly, the Company conducts assessments of net assets acquired and recognizes
amounts for identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the estimated acquisition date fair values, while transaction
costs associated with the acquisitions are expensed as incurred. See Note 4.a for additional discussion of the Company's
acquisitions.

Note 10—Net income (loss) per common share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income (loss) per common share reflects the potential dilution of non-
vested restricted stock awards, performance share awards and outstanding stock options. For the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, all of these potentially dilutive items were anti-dilutive due to the Company's net loss and, therefore, were
excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per common share.

The effect of the Company's outstanding stock options was excluded from the calculation of diluted net income per
common share for the year ended December 31, 2014. The inclusion of these options would be anti-dilutive due to the
following: (i) utilizing the treasury stock method, the sum of the assumed proceeds exceeded the average stock price during the
period for the restricted stock option awards granted in February 2013 and (ii) the exercise prices were greater than the average
market price during the period for the restricted stock option awards granted in February 2012 and February 2014. For the year
ended December 31, 2014, the 2014 Performance Share Awards' total shareholder return was below their agreement's payout
threshold, and therefore the 2014 Performance Share Awards were excluded from the calculation of diluted net income per
share. See Note 6 for further discussion regarding the restricted stock awards, restricted stock option awards and performance
share awards.
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The following is the calculation of basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding and net income
(loss) per common share for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands, except for per share data) 2016 2015 2014
Net income (loss) (numerator):
Net income (loss)—basic and diluted.............cccoveevieiieciinieiicieceeeeeie s $ (260,739) $ (2,209,936) $ 265,573
Weighted-average common shares outstanding (denominator):"
BASIC 1.ttt 225,512 199,158 141,312
Non-vested restricted Stock awards ...........ooovveeviiiiiiiieiiieeeeeee e — 2,242
DIIUEEA et 225,512 199,158 143,554
Net income (loss) per common share:
BASIC 1.ttt ettt ene e $ (1.16) $ (11.10) $ 1.88
DIIULEA ..ot $ (1.16) $ (11.10) $ 1.85

(1) Weighted-average common shares outstanding used in the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per
common share attributable to stockholders was computed taking into account equity offerings that occurred during the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. There were no comparable equity offerings during the year ended
December 31, 2014. See Note 3 for additional discussion of the Company's equity offerings.

Note 11—Credit risk

The Company's oil, NGL and natural gas sales are made to a variety of purchasers, including intrastate and interstate
pipelines or their marketing affiliates and independent marketing companies. The Company's joint operations accounts
receivable are from a number of o0il and natural gas companies, partnerships, individuals and others who own interests in the oil
and natural gas properties operated by the Company. The Company's sales of purchased oil are made to one customer.
Management believes that any credit risk imposed by a concentration in the oil and natural gas industry is offset by the
creditworthiness of the Company's customer base and industry partners. The Company routinely assesses the recoverability of
all material trade and other receivables to determine collectability.

The Company uses derivatives to hedge its exposure to oil, NGL and natural gas price volatility. These transactions
expose the Company to potential credit risk from its counterparties. In accordance with the Company's standard practice, its
derivatives are subject to counterparty netting under agreements governing such derivatives; therefore, the credit risk associated
with its derivative counterparties is somewhat mitigated. See Notes 2.f, 8 and 9 for additional information regarding the
Company's derivatives.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company had three customers that accounted for (i) 48.5%, 23.0% and
17.0% of total oil, NGL and natural gas sales, and (ii) 45.7%, 24.7% and 22.6% of oil, NGL and natural gas sales accounts
receivable as of December 31, 2016. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company had (A) two customers that
accounted for (i) 37.5% and 20.3% of total oil, NGL and natural gas sales, and (ii) 35.3% and 23.7% of oil, NGL and natural
gas sales accounts receivable, and (B) two other customers accounting for 18.5% and 10.7% of oil, NGL and natural gas sales
accounts receivable as of December 31, 2015. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company had (A) two customers that
accounted for (i) 36.0% and 13.7% of total oil, NGL and natural gas sales, and (ii) 16.4% and 22.5% of oil, NGL and natural
gas sales accounts receivable, and (B) three other customers accounting for 13.5%, 12.5% and 11.6% of oil, NGL and natural
gas sales accounts receivable as of December 31, 2014. These customers and percentages reported are related to the Company's
exploration and production segment, see Note 16.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had one partner whose joint operations accounts receivable accounted for
19.3% of the Company's total joint operations accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2015, the Company had two partners
whose joint operations accounts receivable accounted for 18.9% and 17.1% of the Company's total joint operations accounts
receivable. These customers and percentages reported are related to the Company's exploration and production segment, see
Note 16.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company had one customer that accounted for 100.0% of total sales of
purchased oil, with the same customer accounting for 99.7% of purchased oil and other product sales receivable as of
December 31, 2016. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company had one customer that accounted for 100.0% of total
sales of purchased oil, with the same customer accounting for 99.6% of purchased oil and other product sales receivable as of
December 31, 2015. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company had one customer that accounted for 100.0% of total
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sales of purchased oil, with the same customer accounting for 97.3% of purchased oil and other product sales receivable as of
December 31, 2014. The customer and percentages reported relate to the Company's midstream and marketing segment, see
Note 16.

The Company's cash balances are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 per bank. The Company had cash balances on
deposit with a certain bank as of December 31, 2016 that exceeded the balance insured by the FDIC in the amount of $40.1
million. Management believes that the risk of loss is mitigated by the bank's reputation and financial position.

Note 12—Commitments and contingencies

a. Lease commitments

The Company leases office space under operating leases expiring on various dates through 2027. Minimum annual
lease commitments for the calendar years presented are:

(in thousands) December 31, 2016
2007 bbb h bt e h e h e h bt a e bbbt bt e a e bttt eh b bt e bttt ehe et eates $ 3,127
O G OO OO OO P PP USOUUPUPPRO 3,177
20T ettt ettt eh ettt h ekt ebt ettt et ettt et 3,121
2020 e h et bt R et s st h Rt e Rt et h e e bt eh e bt bt e bt ehe bt ebe bt bttt ebe et enes 2,031
02T bttt bt e h e a e a bt et bt bbbttt e bttt eh e bt et be et ehe et eates 1,826
TRETEATIET ...ttt ettt e et e e et e e et e e e e aae e e e aaa e e e eaateesenteeeetaeeeeaaeeeeaaeeeeaaeesenteeeaans 7,022

TOTAL e ettt e e et e et e et e e e e et eeee— e e —teeeeateeeeate e e aeeeaeateeeeaeeeeaaaeeas $ 20,304

The following has been recorded to rent expense for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

RENE EXPEIISE......cuviivievieiiteeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt eteeteeveeteeteeveete et e et e eteeaeeseeseesenns $ 2,664 $ 2,880 $ 3,042

The Company's office space lease agreements contain scheduled escalation in lease payments during the term of the
lease. In accordance with GAAP, the Company records rent expense on a straight-line basis and a deferred lease liability for the
difference between the straight-line amount and the actual amounts of the lease payments. Rent expense is included in the
consolidated statements of operations in the "General and administrative" line item.

b. Litigation

From time to time the Company is involved in legal proceedings and/or may be subject to industry rulings that could
bring rise to claims in the ordinary course of business. The Company has concluded that the likelihood is remote that the
ultimate resolution of any pending litigation or pending claims will be material or have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

c. Drilling contracts

The Company has committed to several drilling contracts with a third party to facilitate the Company's drilling plans.
Certain of these contracts contain early termination clauses that require the Company to potentially pay penalties to the third
party should the Company cease drilling efforts. These penalties would negatively impact the Company's financial statements
upon early contract termination. In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company announced a reduced 2015 capital expenditure
budget compared to 2014. As a result, the Company began releasing rigs as drilling contracts came close to expiration and
incurred charges of $0.5 million which were recorded for the year ended December 31, 2014 on the consolidated statements of
operations as "Drilling rig fees." No comparable amounts were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2016 or 2015.
Future commitments of $7.9 million as of December 31, 2016 are not recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. Management does not currently anticipate the early termination of any existing contracts in 2017 that would result in a
substantial penalty.

d. Firm sale and transportation commitments

The Company has committed to deliver for sale or transportation fixed volumes of product under certain contractual
arrangements that specify the delivery of a fixed and determinable quantity. If not fulfilled, the Company is subject to
deficiency payments. These commitments are normal and customary for the Company's business. In certain instances, the
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Company has used spot market purchases to meet its commitments in certain locations or due to favorable pricing. Management
anticipates continuing this practice in the future. Also, if production is not sufficient to satisfy the Company's delivery
commitments, the Company can and may use spot market purchases to fulfill the commitments. During the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the Company incurred $2.2 million, $5.2 million and $2.6 million, respectively, in
deficiency payments which are reported on the consolidated statements of operations on the "Minimum volume commitments"
line item. During the year ended December 31, 2015, $3.0 million of the deficiency payments was a result of a negotiated
buyout of a minimum volume commitment for future periods to Medallion (as defined below). See Note 14 for additional
discussion regarding Medallion, the Company's equity method investment. Future commitments of $441.0 million as of
December 31, 2016 are not recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

e. Federal and state regulations

Oil and natural gas exploration, production and related operations are subject to extensive federal and state laws,
rules and regulations. Failure to comply with these laws, rules and regulations can result in substantial penalties. The regulatory
burden on the oil and natural gas industry increases the cost of doing business and affects profitability. The Company believes
that it is in compliance with currently applicable federal and state regulations related to oil and natural gas exploration and
production, and that compliance with the current regulations will not have a material adverse impact on the financial position or
results of operations of the Company. These rules and regulations are frequently amended or reinterpreted; therefore, the
Company is unable to predict the future cost or impact of complying with these regulations.

f- Other commitments

See Notes 2.u, 14 and 15.a for the amount of and discussion regarding outstanding commitments to the Company's
equity method investment.

Note 13—2015 Restructuring

Following the fourth-quarter 2014 drop in oil prices, in an effort to reduce costs and to better position the Company for
ongoing efficient growth, on January 20, 2015, the Company executed a company-wide restructuring and reduction in force (the
"RIF") that included (i) the relocation of certain employees from the Company's Dallas, Texas area office to the Company's
other existing offices in Tulsa, Oklahoma and Midland, Texas; (ii) closing the Company's Dallas, Texas area office; (iii) a
workforce reduction of approximately 75 employees and (iv) the release of 24 contract personnel. The RIF was communicated
to employees on January 20, 2015 and was generally effective immediately. The Company's compensation committee approved
the RIF and the related severance package. The Company incurred $6.0 million in expenses during the year ended
December 31, 2015 related to the RIF. There were no comparative amounts recorded in the years ended December 31, 2016 or
2014.

Note 14—Variable interest entity

An entity is referred to as a variable interest entity ("VIE") pursuant to accounting guidance for consolidation if it
possesses one of the following criteria: (i) it is thinly capitalized, (ii) the residual equity holders do not control the entity, (iii)
the equity holders are shielded from the economic losses, (iv) the equity holders do not participate fully in the entity's residual
economics, or (v) the entity was established with non-substantive voting interests. In order to determine if a VIE should be
consolidated, an entity must determine if it is the primary beneficiary of the VIE. The primary beneficiary of a VIE is that
variable interest-holder possessing a controlling financial interest through: (i) its power to direct the activities of the VIE that
most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and (ii) its obligation to absorb losses or its right to receive benefits
from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. In order to determine whether the Company owns a variable
interest in a VIE, a qualitative analysis is performed of the entity's design, organizational structure, primary decision makers
and relevant agreements. The Company continually monitors its VIE exposure to determine if any events have occurred that
could cause the primary beneficiary to change.

LMS contributed $69.6 million and $99.9 million during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
to Medallion Gathering & Processing, LLC, a Texas limited liability company formed on October 12, 2012, and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries (together, "Medallion"). Medallion's pipeline is located in the Midland Basin.

LMS holds 49% of Medallion's ownership units. Medallion was established for the purpose of developing midstream
solutions and providing midstream infrastructure to bring oil, NGL and natural gas to market. LMS and the other 51% interest-
holder have agreed that the voting rights of Medallion, the profit and loss sharing and the additional capital contribution
requirements shall be equal to the ownership unit percentage held. Additionally, Medallion requires a super-majority vote of
75% for all key operating and business decisions. The Company has determined that Medallion is a VIE. However, LMS is not
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considered to be the primary beneficiary of the VIE because LMS does not have the power to direct the activities that most
significantly affect Medallion's economic performance. As such, Medallion is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting with the Company's proportionate share of Medallion's net income (loss) reflected in the consolidated statements of
operations as "Income (loss) from equity method investee" and the carrying amount reflected in the consolidated balance sheets
as "Investment in equity method investee." The Company has elected to classify distributions received from Medallion using
the cumulative earnings approach. No such distributions have been received to date.

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, Medallion continued expansion activities on existing portions of
its pipeline infrastructure in order to gather and transport additional third-party oil production. During the year ended December
31, 2015, Medallion began recognizing revenue due to its pipeline, located in the Midland Basin, becoming fully operational.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company negotiated a buyout of a minimum volume commitment to
Medallion, which was related to natural gas gathering infrastructure Medallion constructed on acreage that the Company does
not plan to develop. The portion of the buyout that was related to the Company's minimum volume commitment for future
periods was $3.0 million and is included in the consolidated statements of operations in the line item "Minimum volume
commitments" for the period in which the buyout was settled. See Note 15.a for discussion of items included in the Company's
consolidated financial statements related to Medallion.

The following table summarizes items included in Medallion's consolidated statements of operations, which are not
recorded in the Company's consolidated financial statements, for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016" 2015@ 2014

TOLAL TEVENMUES .......ooveiei et ettt $ 56,075 $ 38,306 $ 4,623
GIOSS PIOTIE® ... 55,821 30,869 4,623
Net iNCOME (10S3)™ ... 19,601 13,409 (333)

(1) Medallion's consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 was unaudited as of February
16, 2017.

(2) Medallion's audited consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2015 was finalized after the
filing of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

(3) Medallion's pipeline did not become operational until 2015, accordingly no costs of goods sold were recorded for the
year ended December 31, 2014.

(4) As Medallion's financial statements are unaudited at the time of filing the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K,
the Company's proportionate share of Medallion's net income (loss) reflected in the Company's consolidated
statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 includes immaterial prior period
Medallion audit adjustments.
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The following table summarizes items included in Medallion's consolidated balance sheets, which are not recorded in
the Company's consolidated financial statements:

As of December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015
Assets:

CUTTENIE ASSEES +.eveeeeeeeeeee et et e e et e et e et e et e et e et e et e et eeaee s et eeaeeeeeee s teeeeeeeeeeseaeens $ 51,390 $ 82,145

INONCUITENT ASSEES ....uvvvviieeeieeiiei e ettt e e ettt e e e e et et e e e e eeaaaaeeeeeeeebaeeeeeseeesaraeeeeeeensaeees 460,995 352,121
TOTAL ASSEES. ...ttt ettt e e e et e e e et et e e e e et e et e e e e eaeeeeaeenanas $ 512,385 $ 434,266
Liabilities:

CUITENT TTADIIIIES ..ot e e e e e e e $ 14,523  § 41,772

NONCUITENE [HADIIIEIES ... eeviivieiiceieie ettt beesaesse s e sreenne s — —
TOLAL THADIIIEIES ..ottt e e et e e e e e eaeeene e $ 14,523  $ 41,772

(1) Medallion's consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016 was unaudited as of February 16, 2017.

(2) Medallion's audited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015 was finalized after the filing of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Note 15—Related Parties

a. Medallion

The following table summarizes items included in the consolidated statements of operations related to Medallion for
the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

MidStream SEIVICE TEVEIUES. ........c.cveveevererereereeeeteeeeseeeseeeseeseseeseseeseseeseeeenens $ — 3 487 % —
Minimum volume COMMItMENTS..........c.covevviiieiiiiiiiieiee e $ — 3 5235 $ 2,552
Interest and Other INCOME...........c.civeviieeiieiiieieieeet et $ — 158 $ —

The following table summarizes items included in the consolidated balance sheets related to Medallion as of the dates
presented:

December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015

ACCOUNTS TECEIVADIE, TIET ...eeeetieeeeiee ettt e s e e e e e s eaae e e $ — 3 1,163
Accrued capital eXPENAItUIES ..........ccuieierierieeieie ettt ste e saeeneesreebeeneens $ 586 $ —
Other current HABIHHES™ ... $ 118 $ 27,583

(1) Amounts included in "Other current liabilities" above represent LMS' accrued line-fill purchase in Medallion's
pipeline, accrued third-party fees due to Medallion as of December 31, 2016 and capital contribution payable to
Medallion as of December 31, 2015.

b. Archrock Partners, L.P.

The Company has a compression arrangement with affiliates of Archrock Partners, L.P., formerly Exterran Partners
L.P., ("Archrock"). One of Laredo's directors is on the board of directors of Archrock GP LLC, an affiliate of Archrock.

The following table summarizes the lease operating expenses related to Archrock included in the consolidated
statements of operations for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

Lease Operating EXPENSES .........cvevererererirreriereseeseseeseseesesesesesesesesseseesessesens $ 1,975 $ 1,477 $ 975
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The following table summarizes the capital expenditures related to Archrock included in the consolidated statements of
cash flows for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Capital expenditures:
Oil and natural gas Properties ............ocooeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ — 3 — 3 57
MidSEream SEIVICE @SSCLS.......c.evviruirvieriririeteeteteeeteseeeseeee et ereene e eseereeaea $ 20 S 64 § 833

The following table summarizes the amounts included in accounts payable from Archrock in the consolidated balance
sheets as of the periods presented:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015
ACCOUNES PAYADIE .....oviviiieiieiieeeee ettt ettt et ae s $ 177 $ 13

c¢. Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

The Company has had drilling contracts with Helmerich & Payne, Inc. ("H&P"). Laredo's Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer is on the board of directors of H&P.

The following table summarizes the capitalized oil and natural gas properties related to H&P and included in the
consolidated statements of cash flows for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014

Capital expenditures:
Oil and natural gas ProPerties ..........ccverververierierierieieieieeeeeeeeeeereeseeseeneas $ — 3 2,434 § 9,518

Note 16—Segments

The Company operates in two business segments: (i) exploration and production and (ii) midstream and marketing.
The exploration and production segment is engaged in the acquisition, exploration and development of oil and natural gas
properties. The midstream and marketing segment provides Laredo's exploration and production segment and third parties with
products and services that need to be delivered by midstream infrastructure, including oil and natural gas gathering services as
well as rig fuel, natural gas lift and water delivery and takeaway.

The following table presents selected financial information, for the periods presented, regarding the Company's
operating segments on a stand-alone basis and the consolidation and elimination entries necessary to arrive at the information
for the Company on a consolidated basis:
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Exploration and  Midstream and Consolidated
(in thousands) production marketing Eliminations company
Year ended December 31, 2016
Oil, NGL and natural @as Sales ............ccoeuriimiueieiniiieieieieeieeeeeeeeee s $ 427,231 $ 1,141 § (1,887) $ 426,485
MidStream SEIVICE TEVEIUES. .......c..coviereeereereereeereeeeeteeereereeeteeeeereeeseeseeeseenns — 49,971 (41,629) 8,342
Sales of purchased oil — 162,551 — 162,551
Total revenues 427,231 213,663 (43,516) 597,378
Lease operating expenses, including production and ad valorem tax.......... 115,496 — (11,583) 103,913
MidStream SEIVICE EXPEINSES ...vevirveririerierrerirreerestetereeeeseesesiensessenseneeeereene — 29,693 (25,616) 4,077
Costs of PUrChased Oil.......cc.couvieiiiniiieiiiee e — 169,536 — 169,536
General and administrative" ... 83,901 7,855 — 91,756
Depletion, depreciation and amortization 139,407 8,932 — 148,339
TMPAITMENT EXPENSE ....veveiieeieieieiiieteeeetetetetes ettt es et seeseneenene 162,027 — — 162,027
Other operating costs and expenses® ............co..coovvvervverrveorereerreseresnnnns 5,483 209 — 5,692
OPEIANG LOSS ...evvveieiiiieiiierieie ettt senas $ (79,083) $ (2,562) $ (6,317) $ (87,962)
Other financial information:
Income from equity method INVESLEE..........cvvvevereeirrieiieieeieieeeieie e $ — 3 9,403 $ — 3 9,403
Interest eXpense'™..........ooo.oiiviooeeoeeeeeeeee e $ (87,485) $ (5.813) $ — 3 (93,298)
Capital expenditures™ .............coocooriviiioioeeeeeeeee e $ (368,290) $ (5,240) $ — 3 (373,530)
Gross property and equipment® ... $ 5,780,137  $ 400,127 $ (8,240) $ 6,172,024
Year ended December 31, 2015
Oil, NGL and natural gas Sales ............ccevriereririeriiereiiieeisiereeeieeseennens $ 432,711  $ 1,692 § (2,669) $ 431,734
MidStream SEIVICE TEVENMUES. .......cvueevveeereeeeereeereeeseeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeeseeeiseeenes — 27,965 (21,417) 6,548
Sales of purchased Ol ........cccoveiireiieisee s — 168,358 — 168,358
TOLAl TEVEIUES ....vvveeeitiieieeee ettt ae et se e b s sesseneeseesenns 432,711 198,015 (24,086) 606,640
Lease operating expenses, including production and ad valorem tax. 151,918 — (10,685) 141,233
MidStream SErVICE EXPEISES ......eueverimrererirererearereeesesessesesessesesessesessesensasens — 17,557 (11,711) 5,846
Costs 0f purchased 01l.........covvueiriiiiiiei s — 174,338 — 174,338
General and administrative'" .... 82,251 8,174 — 90,425
Depletion, depreciation and AMOTHZATON ..o 269,631 8,093 — 277,724
Impairment eXpense..........ccccovveervenene . 2,372,296 2,592 — 2,374,888
Other operating costs and expenses®® 12,522 1,178 — 13,700
OPETALNG LOSS ....cvvviiiiieie ettt $ (2,455,907) $ (13,917) $ (1,690) $ (2,471,514)
Other financial information:
Income from equity method INVESLEE.........cvovivrueveiieieeieieieeeeie e $ — 3 6,799 $ — 3 6,799
Interest eXpense™ ..o $ (98,040) $ (5,179) $ — % (103,219)
Loss on early redemption of debt” ..........coc..covvvrrvreervereeoerereseeeesennn. $ (30,056) $ (1,481) $ — 3 (31,537)
Income tax benefit™ ..o s $ 171,952 $ 4993 8§ — 3 176,945
Capital eXPENdItUIES.........o.ovevieierieiriieeeieiei et $ (597,086) $ (35,515) $ — 3 (632,601)
Gross property and equipment® ... $ 5,302,716 $ 345183 $ (1,923) $ 5,645,976
Year ended December 31, 2014
Oil, NGL and natural @as Sales ............ccoeuriimiururinieieieiieeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeees $ 738,455 $ 1,660 $ (2,912) $ 737,203
MidStream SEIVICE TEVEIMUES.........c..cvievierrierreereereeeteeteereeteeereeseereeseeseesseenns — 7,838 (5,593) 2,245
Sales of purchased Oil .........cooveeriiiiiiiiicce e — 54,437 — 54,437
TOLALl TEVEINUES ...ttt enaeeenne e 738,455 63,935 (8,505) 793,885
Lease operating expenses, including production and ad valorem tax.......... 153,427 — (6,612) 146,815
MidStream SEIVICE EXPEISES .....eeviverrererierrerestentessetereereeseesesiensessesseneeeereene — 7,089 (1,660) 5,429
Costs Of PUrchased O1l.......c.eiiveiiriiriee s — 53,967 — 53,967
General and administrative” 99,075 6,969 — 106,044
Depletion, depreciation and amortization®® 241,834 4,640 — 246,474
TMPAITMENE EXPENSE ...c.vevieiieeieieieiieeeteeeetet ettt ettt enne 1,802 2,102 — 3,904
Other operating costs and expenses® ... 2,248 2,618 — 4,866
Operating iNCOME (10SS) ....vvvuiuiueieiriieieieieiieie ettt $ 240,069 $ (13,450) $ (233) $ 226,386
Other financial information:
Loss from equity Method INVESTEE .........c.ovurvirevieeiriieieieieiee e $ — 3 (192) $ — 3 (192)
Interest eXPense'™...........oo.oiivwireeeeeeeeeeee e $ (117,560) $ (3,613) $ — 3 (121,173)
Income tax (expense) benefit ® ... $ (170,551) $ 6,265 $ — % (164,286)
Capital eXpenditures™ ...........co.coovveereeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo $ (1,279,142) $ (60,607) $ — % (1,339,749)
Gross property and equipment® $ 4841895 $ 179,355 $ (233) $ 5,021,017

(1) General and administrative expense was allocated based on the number of employees in the respective segment as of
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. Certain components of general and administrative expense, primarily payroll,
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deferred compensation and vehicle expenses, were not allocated but were actual expenses for each segment. Land and
geology expenses were not allocated to the midstream and marketing segment.

(2) Depletion, depreciation and amortization were actual expenses for each segment with the exception of the allocation of
depreciation of other fixed assets, which was based on the number of employees in the respective segment as of
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

(3) Other operating costs and expenses consist of (i) minimum volumes commitments and accretion of asset retirement
obligations for the year ended December 31, 2016, (ii) minimum volume commitments, restructuring expense and
accretion of asset retirement obligations for the year ended December 31, 2015 and (iii) minimum volume
commitments, drilling rig fees and accretion of asset retirement obligations for the year ended December 31, 2014.
These are actual costs and expenses and were not allocated.

(4) Interest expense was allocated to the exploration and production segment based on gross property and equipment as of
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 and allocated to the midstream and marketing segment based on gross property
and equipment and life-to-date contributions to the Company's equity method investee as of December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014.

(5) Capital expenditures exclude acquisition of oil and natural gas properties for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2014 and acquisition of mineral interests for the year ended December 31, 2014.

(6) Gross property and equipment for the midstream and marketing segment includes investment in equity method
investee totaling $244.0 million, $192.5 million and $58.3 million as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Other fixed assets were allocated based on the number of employees in the respective segment as of
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

(7) Loss on early redemption of debt was allocated to the exploration and production segment based on gross property and
equipment as of December 31, 2015 and allocated to the midstream and marketing segment based on gross property
and equipment and life-to-date contributions to the Company's equity method investee as of December 31, 2015.

(8) Income tax expense or benefit for the midstream and marketing segment was calculated by multiplying income or loss
before income taxes by 36% for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Note 17—Subsidiary guarantors

The Guarantors have fully and unconditionally guaranteed the January 2022 Notes, the May 2022 Notes, the March
2023 Notes and the Senior Secured Credit Facility (and had guaranteed the January 2019 Notes until the Redemption Date),
subject to the Releases. In accordance with practices accepted by the SEC, Laredo has prepared condensed consolidating
financial statements to quantify the balance sheets, results of operations and cash flows of such subsidiaries as subsidiary
guarantors. The following condensed consolidating balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and condensed
consolidating statements of operations and condensed consolidating statements of cash flows each for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 present financial information for Laredo on a stand-alone basis (carrying any investment in
subsidiaries under the equity method), financial information for the subsidiary guarantors on a stand-alone basis (carrying any
investment in subsidiaries under the equity method), and the consolidation and elimination entries necessary to arrive at the
information for the Company on a condensed consolidated basis. Deferred income taxes for LMS and for GCM are recorded on
Laredo's statements of financial position, statements of operations and statements of cash flows as they are disregarded entities
for income tax purposes. Laredo and the Guarantors are not restricted from making intercompany distributions to each other.
During the year ended December 31, 2016, certain assets were transferred from Laredo to LMS and from LMS to Laredo at
historical cost. During the year ended December 31, 2014, certain assets were transferred from Laredo to LMS at historical
cost.
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Condensed consolidating balance sheet

December 31, 2016

Subsidiary Intercompany  Consolidated

(in thousands) Laredo Guarantors eliminations company
Accounts receivable, NEt.........ccoooviiiieeieiecieeceeee e $ 70,570 $§ 16,297 $ — $ 86,867
Other CUITENT ASSELS.....uviiieeiiieeirreeeeeeee et ee e e et e et eanees 65,884 2,026 — 67,910
Oil and natural gas properties, NEt ........c.ccceevvereerrereereerieneesieseennens 1,194,801 9,293 (8,240) 1,195,854
Midstream Service asSetS, NEt.........ccovureevvureeieiereeiieeeeieeeeeeeeeeieeeeanes — 126,240 — 126,240
Other fIXed SSELS, NEL.....ccviiiiieiieiieiee et 44,221 552 — 44,773
Investment in subsidiaries and equity method investee..................... 376,028 243,953 (376,028) 243,953
Other 10NZ-TETM ASSELS ...cueevvieiiiieiiieieeieie ettt 13,065 3,684 — 16,749
TOtAl @SSELS....ccuviieiieiieeeie ettt et $ 1,764,569 $ 402,045 $ (384,268) $ 1,782,346
ACCOUNES PAYADIC ..ot $§ 14427 $ 627 $ — $ 15,054
Other current Habilities .........oovveiiieeiee e 150,531 22,360 — 172,891
Long-term debt, Net.......ccooeiieieieeeeee e 1,353,909 — — 1,353,909
Other long-term Habilities..........cooovreriririiiee e 56,889 3,030 — 59,919
Stockholders' @QUILY .....ccvervieieriieiieieseeieeee e 188,813 376,028 (384,268) 180,573
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ..........ccccocvvveviiriviiirierenane. $ 1,764,569 § 402,045 $ (384,268) $ 1,782,346

Condensed consolidating balance sheet
December 31, 2015

Subsidiary Intercompany  Consolidated

(in thousands) Laredo Guarantors eliminations company
Accounts 1eCeiVADLE, MOt ........coveiieiieieeeeeeeeee et $ 74,613 $ 13,086 $ — $ 87,699
Other CUITENT ASSELS.....ccvieeeiieiieeirieeiie et ere et e ereesireeteeeaeesebeessaeeenas 244 477 56 — 244,533
Oil and natural gas properties, Net .........cccceevvereerierieneerieneeieseeniens 1,017,565 9,350 (1,923) 1,024,992
Midstream Service asSetS, NEt..........covvveeivueeeieiuereeiieeeeeieeeeeireeeeieeeeennns — 131,725 — 131,725
Other fiXed aSSELS, NEL.....ccviiiiieeieeieiee et 43,210 328 — 43,538
Investment in subsidiaries and equity method investee..................... 301,891 192,524 (301,891) 192,524
Other 1oNg-term @SSELS .....cveevieeereieiieieiiieie ettt 84,360 3,916 — 88,276
TOtAl ASSELS....eevvieiieeiiieiii ettt ettt e et e et e e beeeaeeesaeeare e $ 1,766,116 $§ 350,985 $ (303,814) $ 1,813,287
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ....o.viviiieiiieieiiieteeeee et $ 12,203 % 1,978 % — $ 14,181
Other current Habilities .........cooveeiiiureeieiie e 158,283 44,351 — 202,634
Long-term debt, Net........cooeiieriiiiiiieieeieeee e 1,416,226 — — 1,416,226
Other long-term Habilities..........cevvveriieierieieiieie e 46,034 2,765 — 48,799
StoCKNOIAETS' @QUILY ..c.veeveieieeieeeieieeie ettt 133,370 301,891 (303,814) 131,447
Total liabilities and stockholders' €quity ..........ccceeveveveveuruerererenenne. $ 1,766,116 $ 350,985 $ (303,814) $ 1,813,287
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Condensed consolidating statement of operations

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Subsidiary Intercompany  Consolidated
(in thousands) Laredo Guarantors eliminations company

TOLAL TEVEIMUES ...ttt e e ee e eeeeeenaeeas $ 427,028 $ 213,866 $ (43,516) $ 597,378

Total COStS aNd EXPENSES .....vveuvirererrieiieierieeiesteeieseesreeeesreesesseenaeens 514,483 208,056 (37,199) 685,340
Operating iNCOME (10SS) c...evviivierieieriieieeiieie et ere e (87,455) 5,810 (6,317) (87,962)
Interest expense & Other, Net............coocveiririeiiieireeeeeee e (93,123) — — (93,123)
Other non-operating inCOME (EXPENSE).......ceeerrerrerrerrerrerrerrersersenenns (73,844) 9,381 (15,191) (79,654)
Income (loss) before iNCOmME taX .........ccoccvveeeveeeiievieeiieeie e (254,422) 15,191 (21,508) (260,739)

TNCOME TAX . .e.iiieiieeiiecie et enes — — — —
Net INCOME (L0SS) w.vvvvevieriirieiieiieiieti ettt $ (254,422) 15,191 $ (21,508) $ (260,739)

Condensed consolidating statement of operations

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Subsidiary Intercompany  Consolidated
(in thousands) Laredo Guarantors eliminations company

TOLAl TEVEIUES .....cvvivieieeeieeiieieciie sttt eteeae e steesaesseenseseaeae e § 432478 $§ 198,248 § (24,086) $ 606,640
Total COStS ANd EXPENSES ......eevieeiirieiieeieie ettt ere e eeee e 2,897,272 203,278 (22,396) 3,078,154
OPErating LOSS ......cvveviiieiieieiieieieeetc ettt (2,464,794) (5,030) (1,690) (2,471,514)
Interest expense & Other, Net...........cevveeveriieiiinienieieseee e (102,793) — — (102,793)
Other NnoN-0perating INCOME ..........c.ccveeeerueeierrieieeiesieeieeieeaeeeeesaeens 182,396 6,708 (1,678) 187,426
Income (loss) before INCOME taX ........cccveevrereieirienieeieeee e (2,385,191) 1,678 (3,368) (2,386,881)
TNCOME tAX DENETTE....eeieeeeeeeeiee e e 176,945 — — 176,945
Net iNCOME (10SS) ..uvvivererieieieeeeeeeeeee ettt $(2,208,246) $ 1,678 $ (3,368) $(2,209,936)

Condensed consolidating statement of operations

For the year ended December 31, 2014

Subsidiary Intercompany  Consolidated
(in thousands) Laredo Guarantors eliminations company

TOAL TEVEIMUECS ...ttt e e et e e eee e eeeeeeenneens $ 738,446 $ 63944 $ (8,505) $ 793,885
Total COStS and EXPENSES ......eerverererrieiieierieeiesteeieeeesreeaesreeseseeenseens 505,455 70,316 (8,272) 567,499
Operating iNCOME (10SS) ....evveivierieieirieieeiieie et 232,991 (6,372) (233) 226,386
Interest expense & Other, Net...........cccveiririeiiieiee e (120,879) — — (120,879)
Other non-operating inCOME (EXPENSE)........eeerrerrerrerrerrerrerrersersernenns 317,980 (339) 6,711 324,352
Income (loss) before iNCOmME tax .........ccceevveeevieeiieeieciiecie e 430,092 (6,711) 6,478 429,859
INCOME tAX EXPEISE....cveeriirierieeieitieteeetesieeeesteebeseeesteeaesseeseseeesaeens (164,286) — — (164,286)
Net inCome (10SS) ..veviuviveuieiieierieieeieteiee et $ 265806 §  (6,711) $ 6,478 § 265,573
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Condensed consolidating statement of cash flows
For the year ended December 31, 2016

Subsidiary Intercompany  Consolidated
(in thousands) Laredo Guarantors eliminations company
Net cash flows provided by operating activities...........c.ccoveerreenneneae § 355458 § 16,028 $ (15,191) $ 356,295
Change in investments between affiliates (73,988) 58,797 15,191 —
Capital expenditures and other (489,577) (74,825) — (564,402)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities.............cceceververuennene 209,625 — — 209,625
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents..............c.cocceververrennennnn. 1,518 — — 1,518
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ............cccevuvennenne. 31,153 1 — 31,154
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period............cccceveveviecieneennnne. $ 32,671 $ 1 3 — $ 32672

Condensed consolidating statement of cash flows
For the year ended December 31, 2015

Subsidiary Intercompany  Consolidated
(in thousands) Laredo Guarantors eliminations company
Net cash flows provided by operating activities.............ccceceevevrnnnen. $ 316,838 $ 787 $  (1,678) $ 315,947
Change in investments between affiliates (136,252) 134,574 1,678 —
Capital expenditures and other (532,140) (135,361) — (667,507)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities...........ccccoeereennencne 353,393 — — 353,393
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents............ccccceveeverieniennnnns 1,833 — — 1,833
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ............cccceeveenenee. 29,320 1 — 29,321
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period...........cccceeveeieiinniennne. $ 31,153 $ 1 $ — $ 31,154

Condensed consolidating statement of cash flows
For the year ended December 31, 2014

Subsidiary Intercompany  Consolidated
(in thousands) Laredo Guarantors eliminations company
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities................. $§ 496955 §  (5,389) $ 6,711 $§ 498,277
Change in investments between affiliates (113,449) 120,160 (6,711) —
Capital expenditures and other (1,292,191) (114,770) —  (1,406,961)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities............ccceevverreenennee. 739,852 — — 739,852
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ..................... (168,833) 1 — (168,832)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ...........cccocevueneenee. 198,153 — — 198,153
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period.............ccccoevirierererennnnn. $ 29,320 $ 1 $ — $ 29,321

Note 18—Recently issued or adopted accounting pronouncements

The Company considers the applicability and impact of all accounting standard updates ("ASU") issued by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"). The ASUs listed below were either adopted during the year ended December
31, 2016 or the discussion of the ASU was determined to be meaningful to the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued new guidance in Topic 230, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash
Payments, to address the following cash flow issues: (i) debt prepayment or debt extinguishment costs; (ii) settlement of zero-
coupon debt instruments or other debt instruments with coupon interest rates that are insignificant in relation to the effective
interest rate of the borrowing; (iii) contingent consideration payments made after a business combination; (iv) proceeds from
the settlement of insurance claims; (v) proceeds from the settlement of corporate-owned life insurance policies; (vi)
distributions received from equity method investees; (vii) beneficial interests in securitization transactions and (viii) separately
identifiable cash flows and application of the predominance principle. The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted, including
adoption in an interim period. If an entity early adopts the amendments in an interim period, any adjustments should be
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reflected as of the beginning of the fiscal year that includes that interim period. An entity that elects early adoption must adopt
all of the amendments in the same period. If practical, the amendments in this ASU should be applied using a retrospective
transition method to each period presented. The Company elected to early-adopt this guidance in the third quarter of 2016 on a
retrospective basis, and the adoption did not have an effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued new guidance in Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation, which seeks to
simplify the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities and classification on the statement
of cash flows. The amendments in this update are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and interim
periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted for any entity in any interim or annual period. If an entity early
adopts the amendments in an interim period, any adjustments should be reflected as of the beginning of the fiscal year that
includes that interim period. An entity that elects early adoption must adopt all of the applicable amendments in the same
period. The Company elected to early-adopt this guidance in the third quarter of 2016 utilizing the adoption methods required
by the ASU. The Company will continue its current accounting policy of estimating forfeitures. See Note 7 for discussion of
additional accounting consequences related to the adoption of this ASU.

In February 2016, the FASB issued new guidance in Topic 842, Leases. The core principle of the new guidance is that
a lessee should recognize the assets and liabilities that arise from leases in the statement of financial position. A lessee should
recognize in the statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. When measuring assets and liabilities arising from a lease, a
lessee (and a lessor) should include payments to be made in optional periods only if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend the lease or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. Similarly, optional payments to purchase the
underlying asset should be included in the measurement of lease assets and lease liabilities only if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that purchase option. Reasonably certain is a high threshold that is consistent with and intended to be applied
in the same way as the reasonably assured threshold in the previous leases guidance. In addition, also consistent with the
previous leases guidance, a lessee (and a lessor) should exclude most variable lease payments in measuring lease assets and
lease liabilities, other than those that depend on an index or a rate or are in substance fixed payments. For leases with a term of
12 months or less, a lessee is permitted to make an accounting policy election by class of underlying asset not to recognize lease
assets and lease liabilities. If a lessee makes this election, it should recognize lease expense for such leases generally on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The recognition, measurement and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from
a lease by a lessee have not significantly changed from previous GAAP. There continues to be a differentiation between finance
leases and operating leases. In transition, lessees and lessors are required to recognize and measure leases at the beginning of
the earliest period presented using a modified retrospective approach. The modified retrospective approach includes a number
of optional practical expedients that entities may elect to apply. These practical expedients relate to the identification and
classification of leases that commenced before the effective date, initial direct costs for leases that commenced before the
effective date and the ability to use hindsight in evaluating lessee options to extend or terminate a lease or to purchase the
underlying asset. An entity that elects to apply the practical expedients will, in effect, continue to account for leases that
commence before the effective date in accordance with previous GAAP unless the lease is modified, except that lessees are
required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all operating leases at each reporting date based on the present
value of the remaining minimum rental payments that were tracked and disclosed under previous GAAP. The amendments in
this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years.
Early application of the amendments in this update is permitted. The Company expects to provide insight regarding the impact
the adoption of this standard will have on its consolidated financial statements in third-quarter 2017.

In July 2015, the FASB issued new guidance in Topic 330, Inventory, which seeks to simplify the measurement of
inventory. The amendments in this update apply to inventory that is measured using all methods excluding last-in, first-out and
the retail inventory method. The main substantive provision of this guidance is for an entity to change the subsequent
measurement of inventory, within the scope of this guidance, from LCM to the lower of cost and NRV. NRV is the estimated
selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation.
The amendments in this ASU are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim
periods within those fiscal years and should be applied prospectively with earlier application permitted as of the beginning of an
interim or annual reporting period. The Company early-adopted this ASU in the fourth quarter of 2016 on a prospective basis,
and the adoption did not have an effect on its consolidated financial statements. See Note 2.j for additional discussion of the
Company's inventory.

In April 2015, the FASB issued new guidance in Subtopic 350-40, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use
Software. The amendments in this update provide guidance to customers about whether a cloud computing arrangement
includes a software license. If a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license, then the customer should account for
the software license element of the arrangement consistent with the acquisition of other software licenses. If a cloud computing
arrangement does not include a software license, the customer should account for the arrangement as a service contract. The
guidance will not change GAAP for a customer's accounting for service contracts. In addition, the guidance in this update
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supersedes paragraph 350-40-25-16. The amendments in this update are effective for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2015, including interim periods within those annual periods and should be applied prospectively to all arrangements entered
into or materially modified after the effective date or retrospectively. The Company adopted this ASU in the first quarter of
2016 on a prospective basis, and the adoption did not have an effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that supersedes the revenue
recognition requirements in Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and industry-specific guidance in Subtopic 932-605, Extractive
Activities—QOil and Gas—Revenue Recognition. The core principle of the new guidance is that a company should recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring those goods or services. The new standard also requires
significantly expanded disclosure regarding the qualitative and quantitative information of an entity's nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The standard creates a five-step model that
requires companies to exercise judgment when considering the terms of a contract and all relevant facts and circumstances. The
standard allows for several transition methods: (a) a full retrospective adoption in which the standard is applied to all of the
periods presented, or (b) a modified retrospective adoption in which the standard is applied only to the most current period
presented in the financial statements, including additional disclosures of the standard's application impact to individual financial
statement line items. In March, April, May and December 2016, the FASB, issued new guidance in Topic 606, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, to address the following potential implementation issues of the new revenue standard: (a) to clarify
the implementation guidance on principal versus agent considerations, (b) to clarify the identification of performance
obligations and the licensing implementation guidance and (c) to address certain issues in the guidance on assessing
collectibility, presentation of sales taxes, noncash consideration, and completed contracts and contract modifications at
transition. This new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim
periods within that reporting period. The Company is currently evaluating the impact the adoption of this standard will have on
its consolidated financial statements.

Note 19—Subsequent events

a. Divestiture of oil and natural gas properties

On January 17, 2017, the Company completed the sale of 2,900 net acres and working interests in 16 producing
vertical wells in the Midland Basin to a third-party buyer for a purchase price of $59.6 million. After transaction costs reflecting
an economic effective date of October 1, 2016, the proceeds were $59.4 million net of working capital and closing adjustments
and subject to final closing adjustments. A portion of these proceeds were used to pay down $55.0 million on the Senior
Secured Credit Facility. The outstanding balance under the Senior Secured Credit Facility was $15.0 million as of the filing of
this Annual Report.

Note 20—Supplemental oil, NGL and natural gas disclosures (unaudited)
a. Costs incurred in oil and natural gas property acquisition, exploration and development activities
Costs incurred in the acquisition, exploration and development of oil, NGL and natural gas assets are presented below:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Property acquisition costs:
EVAIUALEA™Y ... $ 5,905 $ — 3 3,873
UNEVALUALEA ...ttt ettt e e st e e s eae e e eeaaeessaneeean 119,923 — 9,925
EXPIOTAtION COSES™ ... 41,333 20,697 242,284
DEVeloPMENt COSES™ ... 298,942 500,577 1,049,317
TOtal COSES TNCUITEA. ... $ 466,103 $ 521,274 $ 1,305,399

(1) Evaluated property acquisition costs include $1.1 million in asset retirement obligations for the year ended December
31, 2016. See Note 4.a for additional discussion.

(2) The Company acquired significant leasehold interests during the year ended December 31, 2014. See Note 4.c for
additional discussion.

(3) Development costs include $2.5 million, $13.4 million and $6.9 million in asset retirement obligations for the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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b. Capitalized oil, NGL and natural gas costs

Aggregate capitalized costs related to oil, NGL and natural gas production activities with applicable accumulated
depletion and impairment are presented below:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Capitalized costs:
Evaluated PrOPErties.......ccieviiuieiieiiiieiieeieiet ettt ettt ettt eae e eaeeaens $ 5,488,756  $ 5,103,635 $ 4,446,781
Unevaluated properties not being depleted..........ooveieieiiieiiiininiieieee e 221,281 140,299 342,731
5,710,037 5,243,934 4,789,512
Less accumulated depletion and impairment ............c.eceevvereecieneenieeieneereeseeee e (4,514,183) (4,218,942) (1,586,237)
Net CapitalizZed COSES ....ouvvimririiiriieetieeeeeeieeee ettt eaeneas $ 1,195,854 $ 1,024,992 $ 3,203,275

The following table shows a summary of the unevaluated property costs not being depleted as of December 31, 2016,
by year in which such costs were incurred:

2013 and
(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014 prior Total
Unevaluated properties not being depleted(') ............. $ 148,647 $ 1,839 $§ 67467 $ 3,328 $ 221,281

(1) Acquisition costs comprise 95% of the $221.3 million in unevaluated properties not being depleted.

Unevaluated properties, which are not subject to depletion, are not individually significant and consist of costs for
acquiring oil, NGL and natural gas leaseholds where no evaluated reserves have been identified, including costs of wells being
evaluated. The evaluation process associated with these properties has not been completed and therefore, the Company is
unable to estimate when these costs will be included in the depletion calculation.

¢.  Results of oil, NGL and natural gas producing activities

The results of operations of oil, NGL and natural gas producing activities (excluding corporate overhead and interest
costs) are presented below:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Revenues:
Oil, NGL and natural gas Sales............ccoeceeirieriniiniinieeerieiesieeseee e $ 426,485 $ 431,734 $ 737,203
Production costs:
Lease Operating EXPENSES.....ccueeuerreereerreerteeresieesseeseesseessesseessesssesseesesssesseessenses 75,327 108,341 96,503
Production and ad valorem tAXES ......cccveeiieuieiieiieeeeeee ettt eeeee e e eeaee e 28,586 32,892 50,312
103,913 141,233 146,815
Other costs:
DIEPICTION ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt nen 134,105 263,666 237,067
Accretion of asset retirement Obligations............c.coveeievieeievreerieiieeie e 3,274 2,236 1,721
IMPAIMENt EXPENSE ....evevieierietieiietiete et et eteeteetestessesse s esessessessessesessessessenees 161,064 2,369,477 —
Income tax (benefit) expense(l) ......................................................................... — (164,141) 126,576
ReSUIS Of OPETAtiONS. ......c.ecvvivierieiiiiieteeiectcete ettt $ 24,129 $(2,180,737) $ 225,024

(1) During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded valuation allowances against its deferred
tax assets related to its oil, NGL and natural gas producing activities. Accordingly, for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, income tax benefit is computed utilizing the Company's effective rates of 0% and 7%, respectively,
which reflects tax deductions and tax credits and allowances relating to the oil, NGL and natural gas producing
activities that are reflected in the Company's consolidated income tax benefit for the period. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, income tax expense is computed utilizing the statutory rate.
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d. Net proved oil, NGL and natural gas reserves

Ryder Scott Company, L.P. ("Ryder Scott"), the Company's independent reserve engineers, estimated 100% of the
Company's proved reserves as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. In accordance with SEC regulations, reserves as of
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were estimated using the Realized Prices (which are the Benchmark Prices adjusted for
quality, transportation fees, geographical differentials, marketing bonuses or deductions and other factors affecting the price
received at the wellhead), see Note 2.g. The Company's reserves as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are reported in three
streams: oil, NGL and natural gas. The Company's reserves as of December 31, 2014 are reported in two streams: oil and
liquids-rich natural gas with the economic value of the NGLs in the Company's natural gas included in the wellhead natural gas
price. This change impacts the comparability of 2016 and 2015 with 2014. The Company emphasizes that reserve estimates are
inherently imprecise and that estimates of new discoveries are more imprecise than those of producing oil, NGL and natural gas

properties. Accordingly, the estimates may change as future information becomes available.

The following tables provide an analysis of the changes in estimated reserve quantities of oil, NGL and natural gas for
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 and of oil and liquids-rich natural gas for the year ended December 31, 2014, all

of which are located within the U.S.

Year ended December 31, 2016

Oil

NGL

Gas

(MBbI) (MBbI) (MMcf) MBOE

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves:

Beginning 0f YEar........cc.coiiiiiiiiicieie ettt 52,639 36,067 221,952 125,698

Revisions of previous eStMates..........c.cveeeerveereeeereeresesienresiesreseeseenenes 8,726 12,021 80,004 34,082

Extensions, discoveries and other additions .............cccccoovvveiivveeiineeeens 10,741 6,930 43,614 24,940

Purchases of reserves in place..........ccvevverieieiienieeiese e 276 116 822 529

ProdUCION ..o (8,442) (4,784) (29,535) (18,149)
ENd OF YRAT ...ttt 63,940 50,350 316,857 167,100
Proved developed reserves: -

Beginning 0f YEaT........c.ccocviieviiiieieiieeceeeeee et 40,944 29,349 180,613 100,395

ENd Of YOOI ... 53,156 42,950 270,291 141,155
Proved undeveloped reserves:

Beginning 0f YEaT.......ccceviiiiiieiecieie e 11,695 6,718 41,339 25,303

ENd OF YCAT ...t 10,784 7,400 46,566 25,945
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Year ended December 31, 2015

0il NGL Gas
(MBbI) (MBbI) (MMcf) MBOE

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves:

Beginning 0f YEar..........ccveviiieieiiieieecieeee ettt 140,190 — 642,794 247,322

Revisions of previous estimates'’)..............o.ooooveeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee (88,900) 35477  (424,546)  (124,180)

Extensions, discoveries and other additions .............ccceevvveeiivveeiiieeeens 10,511 5,865 36,074 22,388

Sales of reServes N PlaCe ......cuevvieviiiiiiieieeeeeeeee e (1,552) (1,008) (5,554) (3,486)

ProdUCION ......ovvivieiieiiceiecee ettt (7,610) (4,267) (26,816) (16,346)
ENA OF YAT ...ttt 52,639 36,067 221,952 125,698
Proved developed reserves: -

Beginning 0f YEar........cc.cciiiiiiiiieeicie et 56,975 — 291,493 105,557

ENd OF WAL ...ttt 40,944 29,349 180,613 100,395
Proved undeveloped reserves:

Beginning 0f YEaT..........ccvcviieviiiieieiieeceeeeee et 83,215 — 351,301 141,765

ENA Of VAT .....viiiiiiieiiceeee et 11,695 6,718 41,339 25,303

(1) The positive NGL revisions of previous estimates and the negative natural gas revisions of previous estimates include
the impact of the Company's conversion to three-stream reporting. For period prior to January 1, 2015, the Company
presented its reserves for oil and natural gas, which combined NGL with the natural gas stream, and did not separately
report NGL. This change impacts the comparability of 2016 and 2015 with 2014.

Year ended December 31, 2014

Oil Gas
(MBbI) (MMcf) MBOE

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves:

BegiNNiNg Of YEAT......ccuiiiiiieieiieie ettt e eee 111,498 552,702 203,615

Revisions of Previous EStIMALES.........ccuieverierieerieiteseeste e sie et re e seeeeesee e eeis (10,134) (67,350) (21,359)

Extensions, discoveries and other additions ...........cccccoevuvveviiiieiiiieeieeeeceiee e 45,554 185,909 76,539

Purchases of 1€Serves in PlaCe..........ocvevieieieieieieieieeeeeeee e 173 498 256

PrOQUCTION ...ttt st (6,901) (28,965) (11,729)
BN Of YRAT ...ttt een 140,190 642,794 247,322
Proved developed reserves:

Beginning Of YEAT.........coviviiiiiiiieieieeeeee ettt 37,878 203,082 71,725

ENA Of YOAT 1.ttt sttt eee 56,975 291,493 105,557
Proved undeveloped reserves:

Beginning Of YEAT.......c.cciiiiieiiiieiiceee ettt e 73,620 349,620 131,890

ENA OF WAL ..ottt ettt et 83,215 351,301 141,765

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company's positive revision of 34,082 MBOE of previously estimated
quantities is primarily attributable to the combination of positive performance, lower operating costs and other changes to
proved developed producing wells. 26,049 MBOE is due to a combination of positive performance, reduction in operating costs
and other factors. Previously estimated quantities of 2,292 MBOE were removed due to derecognizing certain proved
undeveloped locations and proved developed non-producing targets due to changes in development and drilling plans. In
addition, 10,325 MBOE of revisions is due to proved undeveloped locations that were removed from the development plan in
prior years, four of these locations were drilled in 2016 and seven are scheduled to be drilled in 2017. Extensions, discoveries
and other additions of 24,940 MBOE during the year ended December 31, 2016 consisted of 13,302 MBOE that resulted from
new wells drilled during the year and 11,638 MBOE that resulted from new horizontal proved undeveloped locations added

during the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company's negative revision of 124,180 MBOE of previously estimated
quantities is primarily attributable to the removal of 106,883 MBOE due to the combined effect of the removal of 378 proved
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undeveloped locations and the net effect of reinterpreting 34 undeveloped locations. The 378 locations that were removed were
comprised of 182 vertical Wolfberry wells due to lower commodity prices and 196 horizontal wells to better align the timing of
their development with the Company's future drilling plans. The remaining 17,297 MBOE of negative revisions is due to a
combination of pricing, performance and other changes to the proved developed producing and proved developed non-
producing wells. Extensions, discoveries and other additions of 22,388 MBOE during the year ended December 31, 2015,
consisted of 19,719 MBOE primarily from the drilling of new wells during the year and 2,669 MBOE from four new horizontal
Middle Wolfcamp proved undeveloped locations added during the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company's negative revision of 21,359 MBOE of previously estimated
quantities is primarily attributable to the removal of 26,017 MBOE due to the combined effect of the removal of 226 proved
undeveloped locations and the net effect of reinterpreting 345 undeveloped locations. The 226 locations that were removed
were comprised of vertical Wolfberry and horizontal laterals to better align with the proved developed producing wells. The
increase of 4,658 MBOE, which offsets the overall negative revision, is due to a combination of pricing, performance and other
changes. Extensions, discoveries and other additions of 76,539 MBOE during the year ended December 31, 2014, consisted of
34,782 MBOE primarily from the drilling of new wells during the year and 41,757 MBOE from 113 new horizontal proved
undeveloped locations added during the year. Purchases of minerals in place added 256 MBOE from acquisition of proved
reserves in the Permian Basin.

e. Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows

The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows does not purport to be, nor should it be interpreted to
present, the fair value of the oil, NGL and natural gas reserves of the property. An estimate of fair value would take into
account, among other things, the recovery of reserves not presently classified as proved, the value of proved properties and
consideration of expected future economic and operating conditions.

The estimates of future cash flows and future production and development costs as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and
2014 are based on the Realized Prices, which reflect adjustments to the Benchmark Prices for gravity, quality, local conditions,
fuel and shrinkage and/or distance from market. All Realized Prices are held flat over the forecast period for all reserve
categories in calculating the discounted future net revenues. Any effect from the Company's commodity hedges is excluded. In
accordance with SEC regulations, the proved reserves were anticipated to be economically producible from the "as of date"
forward based on existing economic conditions, including prices and costs at which economic producibility from a reservoir
was determined. These costs, held flat over the forecast period, include development costs, operating costs, ad valorem and
production taxes and abandonment costs after salvage. Future income tax expenses are computed using the appropriate year-end
statutory tax rates applied to the future pretax net cash flows from proved oil, NGL and natural gas reserves, less the tax basis
of the Company's oil, NGL and natural gas properties. The estimated future net cash flows are then discounted at a rate of 10%.
The Company's net book value of evaluated oil, NGL and natural gas properties exceeded the full cost ceiling amount as of
March 31, 2016 and each of the quarterly periods in 2015. See Note 2.g for discussion of the Benchmark Prices, Realized Prices
and the corresponding non-cash full cost ceiling impairments recorded.

The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved oil, NGL and natural gas reserves is
as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015 2014
Future cash inflOWS ........c.ooviiviiiiiiciceceeeeee ettt $ 3,548,567 § 3,269,184 $16,663,685
Future production COSES..........oiiiiiiiiiiieieti ettt ettt eae v e (1,238,369)  (1,321,471)  (3,616,775)
Future develOpmEnt COSES .........ovuiriiriirieieieieieieteiee e e et ere e ese s sbeeseeneas (290,505) (376,701)  (2,471,985)
Future iNCOME taX EXPENSES ...cvievverrieierriereeiesteeteeseesseestesseeseseeesseessesseensesseesseenns — — (2,827,763)
Future net Cash flOWS......ocvviiiiiiiiceee ettt 2,019,693 1,571,012 7,747,162
10% discount for estimated timing of cash flows...........ccccceeviiiieviiciiciciecie (1,041,199) (740,265)  (4,500,434)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ........cocovvvvvevveennnnn. $ 978494 §$ 830,747 $ 3,246,728

It is not intended that the FASB's standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows represent the fair market
value of the Company's proved reserves. The Company cautions that the disclosures shown are based on estimates of proved
reserve quantities and future production schedules which are inherently imprecise and subject to revision, and the 10% discount
rate is arbitrary. In addition, prices and costs as of the measurement date are used in the determinations, and no value may be
assigned to probable or possible reserves.
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Changes in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved oil, NGL and natural gas

reserves are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016 2015

2014

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows, beginning of year......... $ 830,747 $ 3,246,728

Changes in the year resulting from:

Sales, 1eSS ProdUCTION COSES .......uiiuiiiiiieiieeiiitieie ettt ere e eve e e (322,573) (290,501)
Revisions of previous quantity eStimates............ceeveveiereeieeeenieeseerenresresresnennens 179,297  (2,444,322)
Extensions, discoveries and other additions ...........c..ccoeveeevieeiiiieeieieeceeeeecneeene 133,472 192,979
Net change in prices and production COSES..........cvueruieriereerierierieeiesieeie e eere e (80,102)  (1,495,144)
Changes in estimated future development COStS .........ccovevverieciiiieniieieieeieeeeeee 22,153 (2,974)
Previously estimated development costs incurred during the period...................... 189,085 162,237
Purchases of 1€Serves N PlACE.........cveviivieriieieeieie et 3,422 —
Divestitures Of r€Serves N PIACE ........covieieriieiieiieie et e — (29,149)
ACCTEHION OF AISCOUNT ....uviiiiiiiie ettt ettt e et e e e eaeeesaaeeea 83,075 424,453
Net change in iNCOME tAXES .....c.veveierieieieieieeeeereereereereesesseesesseeseesessessessessessesses — 997,805
Timing differences and Other.............cocvevveriieiierieii e (60,082) 68,635

$ 2,322,204

(590,388)
(320,275)
1,340,022
145,740
(22,961)
92,135
6,100
305,325
(266,757)
235,583

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows, end of year.............. $ 978,494 § 830,747

$ 3,246,728

Estimates of economically recoverable oil, NGL and natural gas reserves and of future net revenues are based upon a
number of variable factors and assumptions, all of which are, to some degree, subjective and may vary considerably from actual
results. Therefore, actual production, revenues, development and operating expenditures may not occur as estimated. The
reserve data are estimates only, are subject to many uncertainties and are based on data gained from production histories and on
assumptions as to geologic formations and other matters. Actual quantities of oil, NGL and natural gas may differ materially

from the amounts estimated.

Note 21—Supplemental quarterly financial data (unaudited)
The Company's results by quarter for the periods presented are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2016

First Second Third Fourth
(in thousands, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
REVEIUES ...t ettt et eeeeeeeen $ 106,557 $ 146,773 $ 159,734 $ 184,314
Operating iNCOME (10SS) ....eevvervirieriieiieierie ettt ens (176,788) 17,874 25,492 45,460
Net INCOME (10SS) .vvivieiieiieiieiesie ettt (180,371) (71,432) 9,485 (18,421)
Net income (loss) per common share:
BASIC vttt $ (0.85) $ (0.33) $ 004 § (0.08)
DIIULEA ... $ (0.85) $ (0.33) $ 0.04 § (0.08)
Year ended December 31, 2015
First Second Third Fourth
(in thousands, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
REVEIIUES ..ottt et ettt et et e eee e e ene $ 150,694 $ 182,331 $ 150,340 $ 123,275
OPErating LOSS .....oovviuiieieiiiiieiiei ettt (26,498) (501,480) (927,859) (1,015,677)
INEE LSSttt ettt ettt ettt et te b e s s e sbeena e seenseseean (472) (397,034) (847,783) (964,647)
Net loss per common share:
BaSIC .ttt $ — 8 (1.88) $ (4.01) $ (4.57)
DIIULEA ..o $ — 8 (1.88) $ (4.01) $ (4.57)
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